
  
Board Members 
Joe Neves, District 1, Vice-Chairman 
Richard Valle, District 2 
Doug Verboon, District 3 
Craig Pedersen, District 4, Chairman 
Richard Fagundes, District 5 

 

 

 
 

 
Staff  
Edward Hill, County Administrative Officer  
Diane Freeman, County Counsel 
Catherine Venturella, Clerk of the Board 

Board of Supervisors 
Regular Meeting Agenda 

 

Date:  Tuesday, December 7, 2021 

Time:             9:00 a.m.                                

Place: Board of Supervisors Chambers, Kings County Government Center 

 1400 W. Lacey Boulevard, Hanford, California  93230 

 

 (559) 852-2362    FAX (559) 585-8047         website: https://www.countyofkings.com  
 

COUNTY OF KINGS PUBLIC MEETING PROTOCOL IN RESPONSE TO CORONAVIRUS COVID-19 
California Governor Gavin Newsom signed into Law AB 361 on September 16, 2021, relating to the convening of public agency 
meetings via teleconference in light of the COVID-19 pandemic.  Under this authority, the Board of Supervisors will convene its public 
meetings via video and teleconference.  Pursuant to AB 361, and as advised by local Health Officials, the Kings County Board of 
Supervisors, County staff and interested members of the public may attend the meeting in person.  The meeting can also be attended 
telephonically or by the Internet by sending an email to bosquestions@co.kings.ca.us on the morning of the meeting for an 
automated email response with the WebEx meeting information. Members of the public attending via WebEx will have the 
opportunity to provide public comment during the meeting. 

Members of the public who wish to only observe the meeting virtually can do so via the worldwide web at: 
https://youtu.be/JBDSsx-B1JA 

Members of the public who wish to participate in the meeting virtually and make public comment can do so via the worldwide web at:  
https://countyofkings.webex.com/countyofkings/j.php?MTID=mf17d9171e7fc623e405fc847de32acd2  

Members of the public who wish to comment may submit written comments on any matter within the Board’s subject matter 
jurisdiction, regardless of whether it is on the agenda for Board consideration or action, and those comments will become part of the 
administrative record of the meeting.  Comments will not be read into the record, the Clerk of the Board will only read the names of 
who have submitted comments into the record.  Written comments received by the Clerk of the Board of Supervisors no later than 

8:30 a.m. on the morning of the noticed meeting will be included in the record, those comments received after 8:30 a.m. will be read 
into the record of the next meeting.  To submit written comments by email, please forward them to  bosquestions@co.kings.ca.us or 

by U.S. Mail, please forward them to:  Clerk of the Board of Supervisors, County of Kings, 1400 W. Lacey Blvd., Hanford, CA 93230. 

10:00 AM - REDISTRICTING PUBLIC HEARING INSTRUCTIONS – ENGLISH 

To attend virtually in English and make public comment, the meeting link is:          
https://countyofkings.webex.com/countyofkings/j.php?MTID=mf17d9171e7fc623e405fc847de32acd2  

 Members of the public, who participate via their computers or through the WebEx application platform, may provide public 

comment at the meeting by using the “Raise Your Hand” function and you will be called upon when it is your turn to speak. 

Testimony will be limited to five (5) minutes per speaker during the public hearing section of the meeting.  

 If you have trouble logging in through the Internet, you may join the meeting via telephone by calling (415) 655-0003, then enter 

the access code of 1779 58 2188#.  

If you just wish to only observe the public hearing and not make comments access this YouTube https://youtu.be/JBDSsx-B1JA 

10:00 AM - INSTRUCCIONES PARA LA AUDIENCIA PÚBLICA DE REDISTRIBUCIÓN - ESPAÑOL 

Para asistir virtualmente en inglés y hacer comentarios públicos, el enlace de la reunión es:  
https://countyofkings.webex.com/countyofkings/j.php?MTID=mf74f8638e0926a04cc40ed3a2d9284af   

  Los miembros del público, que participan a través de sus computadoras o mediante la aplicación WebEx, pueden proporcionar 

comentarios públicos en la reunión mediante la función "Levantar la mano" y se le llamará cuando sea su turno de hablar. El 

testimonio se limitará a cinco (5) minutos por orador durante la sección de audiencia pública de la reunión. 

 Si tiene problemas para iniciar sesión a través de Internet, puede unirse a la reunión por teléfono llamando al (415) 655-0003, 

luego ingrese el código de acceso 1777 30 6369# 

Si solo desea observar la audiencia pública y no hacer comentarios acceda a este enlace de YouTube https://youtu.be/yIsJTk92yow 

https://www.countyofkings.com/
mailto:Catherine.Venturella@co.kings.ca.us
https://youtu.be/JBDSsx-B1JA
https://countyofkings.webex.com/countyofkings/j.php?MTID=mf17d9171e7fc623e405fc847de32acd2
mailto:Catherine.Venturella@co.kings.ca.us
https://countyofkings.webex.com/countyofkings/j.php?MTID=mf17d9171e7fc623e405fc847de32acd2
https://youtu.be/JBDSsx-B1JA
https://countyofkings.webex.com/countyofkings/j.php?MTID=mf74f8638e0926a04cc40ed3a2d9284af
https://youtu.be/yIsJTk92yow


Board of Supervisors Regular Meeting Agenda   
December 7, 2021 
Page 2 of 6 

 

I.  9:00 AM CALL TO ORDER 
ROLL CALL – Clerk of the Board 
INVOCATION – Pastor Arthur Fox – New Hope Orthodox Presbyterian Church 
PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 

   
II.  UNSCHEDULED APPEARANCES 

Any person may directly address the Board at this time on any item on the agenda, or on any other 
items of interest to the public, that is within the subject matter jurisdiction of the Board.  Two (2) 
minutes are allowed for each item. 

   
III.  APPROVAL OF MINUTES 
  A. Report Out of Closed Session from the regular meeting for November 23, 2021. 
  B. Approval of the minutes from the regular meeting for November 23, 2021. 
   
IV.  CONSENT CALENDAR 
  A. Agriculture Department: 
   1. Consider approving the Cooperative Agreement with the California Department of Food and 

Agriculture for the County’s Asian Citrus Psyllid Detection Program, retroactively effective 
October 1, 2021 through September 30, 2022. 

  B. Behavioral Health Department: 
   1. Consider amending the Agreement with JDT for Therapeutic Behavioral and Intensive Home 

Based Services from November 2021 through June 30, 2024.  
  C. County Counsel: 
   1. Consider appointing Matthew O. Gilkey as Director of Division 2 and Erik J. Hansen as 

Director of Division 5 of the Corcoran Irrigation District for the period of December 3, 2021 
at 12:00 p.m. through December 5, 2025 at 12:00 p.m. 

  D. Fire Department: 
   1. a. Consider approving the Fire Department to accept the 2021 Emergency Management 

Performance Grant and the 2021 Emergency Management Performance Grant 
Program-American Rescue Plan Act;  

    b. Authorize the County Fire Chief to sign all grant documents; and 
    c. Adopt a Resolution designating the Fire Chief, County Administrative Officer, or 

Purchasing Manager as authorized signatories for execution of all grant 
documentation.   

   2. a. Consider authorizing the Fire Department to accept the Fiscal Year 2021 State 
Homeland Security Grant Project;  

    b. Authorize the County Fire Chief to sign all grant documents; and 
    c. Adopt a Resolution designating the Fire Chief, County Administrative Officer, or 

Purchasing Manager as authorized signatories for execution of all grant 
documentation. 

  E. Human Services Agency: 
   1. a. Consider authorizing Human Services Agency to apply for Homeless Housing Assistance 

and Prevention Round 3 grant fund through the Business Consumer Services 
administered through the Homeless Coordinating and Financial Council; and 

    b. Authorize the Human Services Agency Director, or their designee, to submit application 
and sign necessary grant documents required to secure funds.   

   2. Consider approving the Agreement with Kings United Way for continued maintenance for 
the 211 online and mobile application, retroactively effective from July 1, 2021 to June 30, 
2023. 

     
     
     



Board of Supervisors Regular Meeting Agenda   
December 7, 2021 
Page 3 of 6 

 

  F. Job Training Office: 
   1. Consider approving the documents to close out the Workforce Innovation and Opportunity 

Act Subgrant, County Agreement 18-068. 
  G. Administration: 
   1. Consider denying the Claim for Damages filed by Matthew Soleimanpour on behalf of 

Francisco Maciel Ruiz. 
   2. a.  Consider approving substitution of the County’s Master Crime Bond for individual 

public official bonds; and  
    b. Approve the amounts in the declaration as the amounts required for faithful 

performance bonds of each elected official. 
   3. ConsidConsider approving the Public Safety Realignment & Post Release Community Supervision 

2021 Plan to meet the requirement of Assembly Bill 109. 
   4. Consider approving the cancellation schedule for the Board of Supervisors’ meetings for 

2022. 
   5. Consider authorizing the County Administrative Officer to sign a one-year extension 

Agreement through December 31, 2022 to retain Paragon Government Relations, Inc. to 
perform federal legislative advocacy services for Kings County. 

   
V.  REGULAR AGENDA ITEMS 
  A. Behavioral Health Department – Lisa Lewis/UnChong Parry 
   1. a.  Consider approving the Kings County Behavioral Health Department to accept the 

Coronavirus Response and Relief Supplemental Appropriations Act Telehealth 
Expansion Project Funding; and 

    b. Authorize the Director of Behavioral Health to accept and sign the grant Agreement, 
including any additional grant documentation.   

    c. Adopt the  budget change. (4/5 vote required) 
     
  B. Community Development Agency – Chuck Kinney 
   1. Accept the monthly report of Planning Commission’s actions. 
     
  C. Fire Department – William Lynch 
   1. a.  Consider authorizing the Fire Department to declare one fire utility vehicle, one large 

spreader, one spreader, one ram (long), and one Maverick tool as surplus; 
    b. Authorize the Purchasing Manager to sell one fire utility vehicle, one large spreader, 

one spreader, one ram (long), and one Maverick tool as surplus at public auction; 
    c. Authorize the Fire Department to donate one power unit, one spreader, one cutter, 

one ram (large), one ram (short), and one hose reel to the Laton Fire Department; and 
    d. Authorize the Fire Department to donate one power unit, one cutter, one Maverick 

tool, and one hose reel to the Hanford Race Track. 
     
     
     
     
     
     
     
     
     
     
     
     
     



Board of Supervisors Regular Meeting Agenda   
December 7, 2021 
Page 4 of 6 

 

  D. Human Resources – Henie Ring/Melissa Avalos 
   1. a.  In the Sheriff’s Office, in Budget Unit 22000 delete 1.0 Full-Time Equivalency 

Department Specialist I/II allocation and 2.0 Full-Time Equivalency Department 
Specialist III allocations offset by the addition of 1.0 Full-Time Equivalency Office 
Assistant I/II allocation and 2.0 Full-Time Equivalency Office Assistant III allocations; in 
Budget Unit 221200 delete 1.0 Full-Time Equivalency Department Specialist III 
allocation offset by the addition of 1.0 Full-Time Equivalency Office Assistant III 
allocation; in Budget Unit 222000 delete 1.0 Full-Time Equivalency Department 
Specialist III allocation offset by the addition of 1.0 Full-Time Equivalency Office 
Assistant III; and in Budget Unit 223000 delete 1.0 Full-Time Equivalency Department 
Specialist I/II allocation offset by the addition of 1.0 Full-Time Equivalency Office 
Assistant I/II allocation;  

    b. In the Probation Department, in Budget Unit 233100 delete .50 Full-Time Equivalency 
Department Specialist I/II/III allocation offset by the addition of .50 Full-Time 
Equivalency Office Assistant I/II/III allocation; in Budget Unit 233200 delete 1.0 Full-
Time Equivalency Department Specialist I/II/III allocation offset by the addition of 1.0 
Full-Time Equivalency Office Assistant I/II/III allocation; in Budget Unit 234000 delete 
7.0 Full-Time Equivalency Department Specialist I/II/III allocations offset by the 
addition of 7.0 Full-Time Equivalency Office Assistant I/II/III allocations; in Budget Unit 
234800 delete 1.0 Full-Time Equivalency Department Specialist I/II/III allocation offset 
by the addition of 1.0 Full-Time Equivalency Office Assistant I/II/III allocations; 

    c. In the Health Department, Budget Unit 411000 delete 1.0 Full-Time Equivalency 
Department Specialist I/II/III allocation offset by the addition of 1.0 Full-Time 
Equivalency Office Assistant I/II/III allocation;  

    d. In the Human Services Agency, Budget Unit 510000 delete 12.0 Full-Time Equivalency 
Department Specialist I/II and 7.0 Full-Time Equivalency Department Specialist III 
allocations offset by the addition of 12.0 Full-Time Equivalency Office Assistant I/II and 
Full-Time Equivalency 7.0 Office Assistant III allocations;  

    e.  Laterally reclassify the Department Specialist I incumbents (M. Carrillo) to Office 
Assistant I with no change in salary in accordance with Personnel Rule 3022, Lateral; 

    f. Laterally reclassify the Department Specialist II incumbents (M. Ash, M. Avila, L. 
Campos, B. Flores, D. Garcia, N. Gomez, S. Hernandez, V. Kilner-Avila, M. Lamar, V. 
Quintero, N. Rivera, Y. Rodriguez Alcantar, M. Urquizo, and T. Wilson) to Office 
Assistant II with no change in salary in accordance with Personnel Rule 3022, Lateral;  

    g. Laterally reclassify the Department Specialist III incumbents (K. Alvarez, B. Bravo, C. 
Calderon, M. Cardenas, E. Cardoza, M. Castillo, J. Curiel, A. Frye, M. Garcia, K. Guevara, 
D. Miller, L. Puga, J. Rivera, R. Robles, L. Rose, and M. Sanchez)  to Office Assistant III 
with no change in salary in accordance with Personnel Rule 3022, Lateral;  

    h. Laterally reclassify any Department Specialist to an Office Assistant hired or promoted 
to a Department Specialist classification prior to Board approval of this item; and 

    i. Inactivate the Department Specialist I, II, III classifications.  
     
  E. Public Works Department – Dominic Tyburski/Mitchel Cabrera 
   1. Consider adopting a Resolution authorizing the removal of the stop sign for westbound 

traffic at the intersection of Grangeville Boulevard and 25th Avenue. 
     
     
     
     
     
     
     



Board of Supervisors Regular Meeting Agenda   
December 7, 2021 
Page 5 of 6 

 

  F. Sheriff’s Department – David Robinson 
   1. a.  Consider allocating 1.0 Full Time Equivalency Detentions Lieutenant position in Budget 

unit 233000; and 
    b. Authorize the advance step for Ramon Collier, Detentions Lieutenant, to Step 3 

position at Salary Range 235.5. 
    c. Authorize the advance step for Shari Long, Detentions Lieutenant, to Step 4 position at 

Salary Range 235.5. 
   
  G. Public Health Department – Darcy Pickens/Heather Silva 
   1. Consider adopting a Resolution authorizing the Director of Public Health to execute and 

submit all necessary grant documents to CalRecycle for a Farm and Ranch Solid Waste 
Cleanup and Abatement Grant Program.  

   2. Receive an update on the local emergency in Kings County due to the imminent and 
proximate threat of exposure of COVID-19 on the residents of the County of Kings and take 
action as deemed necessary. 

   
VI. 10:00 AM PUBLIC HEARING  
  Administration – Edward Hill/Kyria Martinez 

County Counsel – Diane Freeman 
  1. a. Conduct the County’s sixth public hearing for the County’s 2021 supervisorial redistricting 

process to further introduce and encourage public discussion concerning the redistricting 
process; and  

   b. Consider adopting a new supervisorial district map by Resolution. 
   
 10:00 AM PUBLIC HEARING 
  Community Development Agency – Chuck Kinney 
  1. a. Conduct a public hearing to receive public comments on the proposed density bonus 

development Agreement; and 
   b. Adopt a Resolution, approving entering into a density bonus development Agreement with 

Spradling Construction Inc.; 
   c. Approve the Density Bonus Agreement with Spradling Construction Inc.  
   
 10:00 AM PUBLIC HEARING 
  Community Development Agency – Chuck Kinney 
  1. a. Conduct a public hearing to receive public comments on the proposed density bonus 

development Agreement; and 
   b. Adopt a Resolution, approving entering into a density bonus development Agreement with 

Aspire Homes Ca, Inc.; 
   c. Approve the Density Bonus Agreement with Aspire Homes Ca. Inc. 
   
VII.  BOARD MEMBER ANNOUNCEMENTS OR REPORTS 

On their own initiative, Board Members may make a brief announcement or a brief report on their 
own activities.  They may ask questions for clarification, make a referral to staff or take action to have 
staff place a matter of business on a future agenda (Gov. Code Section 54954.2a). 

   Board Correspondence 
   Upcoming Events 
   Information on Future Agenda Items 
    
   
   
   
   



Board of Supervisors Regular Meeting Agenda   
December 7, 2021 
Page 6 of 6 

 

VIII.  CLOSED SESSION  
   Conference with Labor Negotiator/Meet and Confer: [Govt. Code Section 54957.6] 
   Negotiators:  Edward Hill, Kyria Martinez, Henie Ring, Che Johnson of Liebert Cassidy Whitmore 

     Prosecutor’s Association 
   Personnel Matter:  [Govt. Code Section 54957] 

Public Employee Appointment:  Ag Commissioner 
   Personnel Matter:  [Govt. Code Section 54957] 

Public Employee Appointment:  Director of Finance 
   
IX.  ADJOURNMENT 
  The next regularly scheduled meeting will be held on Tuesday, December 14, 2021, at 9:00 a.m.   
   

FUTURE MEETINGS AND EVENTS 

 December 14   9:00 AM  Regular Meeting 

 December 21   9:00 AM  Regular Meeting 

 January 4, 2022   9:00 AM  Regular Meeting – Board Reorganization 

 January 11, 2022   9:00 AM  Regular Meeting 

Agenda backup information and any public records provided to the Board after the posting of the agenda will be available for 
the public to review at the Board of Supervisors office, 1400 W. Lacey Blvd, Hanford, for the meeting date listed on this 
agenda. 

 



  
Board Members 
Joe Neves, District 1, Vice-Chairman 
Richard Valle, District 2 
Doug Verboon, District 3 
Craig Pedersen, District 4, Chairman 
Richard Fagundes, District 5 
 

 

 
 

 
Staff  
Edward Hill, County Administrative Officer 
Diane Freeman, Interim County Counsel 
Catherine Venturella, Clerk of the Board 

 Board of Supervisors 
Regular Meeting Action Summary 

 

Date:  Tuesday, November 23, 2021  
Time:             9:00 a.m.  
Place: Board of Supervisors Chambers, Kings County Government Center 
 1400 W. Lacey Boulevard, Hanford, California  93230 

 
 (559) 852-2362     FAX (559) 585-8047         website: https://www.countyofkings.com 

 
COUNTY OF KINGS PUBLIC MEETING PROTOCOL IN RESPONSE TO CORONAVIRUS COVID-19 

California Governor Gavin Newsom signed into Law AB 361 on September 16, 2021, relating to the convening of public agency meetings 
via teleconference in light of the COVID-19 pandemic.  Under this authority, the Board of Supervisors will convene its public meetings 
via video and teleconference.  Pursuant to AB 361, and as advised by local Health Officials, the Kings County Board of Supervisors, County 
staff and interested members of the public may attend the meeting in person.  The meeting can also be attended telephonically or by 
the Internet by sending an email to bosquestions@co.kings.ca.us on the morning of the meeting for an automated email response with 
the WebEx meeting information. Members of the public attending via WebEx will have the opportunity to provide public comment 
during the meeting. 

Members of the public who wish to only observe the meeting virtually can do so via the worldwide web 
at:  https://youtu.be/FgTvxcYyr40 or go to www.countyofkings.com and click on the “Join Meeting” link. 

Members of the public who wish to comment may submit written comments on any matter within the Board’s subject matter 
jurisdiction, regardless of whether it is on the agenda for the Board’s consideration or action, and those comments will become part of 
the administrative record of the meeting.  Comments will not be read into the record, only the names of who have submitted comments 
will be read into the record.  Written comments received by the Clerk of the Board of Supervisors no later than 8:30 a.m. on the morning 
of the noticed meeting will be included in the record, those comments received after 8:30 a.m. will become part of the record of the 
next meeting.  To submit written comments by email, please forward them to  bosquestions@co.kings.ca.us or by U.S. Mail, please 
forward them to:  Clerk of the Board of Supervisors, County of Kings, 1400 W. Lacey Blvd., Hanford, CA 93230. 
    
I.  9:00 AM CALL TO ORDER 

ROLL CALL – Clerk of the Board 
INVOCATION –Andrew Cromwell – Koinonia Church 
PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 
MEMBER PRESENT: JOE NEVES, DOUG VERBOON, CRAIG PEDERSEN, RICHARD FAGUNDES 
MEMBERS ABSENT: RICHARD VALLE 

   
II.  UNSCHEDULED APPEARANCES 

Any person may directly address the Board at this time on any item on the agenda, or on any other 
items of interest to the public, that is within the subject matter jurisdiction of the Board.  Two (2) 
minutes are allowed for each item. 

  Chris Gutierrez, Kings County Firefighters Union #3747 stated that the “KICKS 4 CASA” shoe drive 
partnership with Kings County Court Appointed Special Advocates (CASA) which is being held until 
December 10, 2021 and stated that he was thankful for the outpouring of support from everyone 
helping them to already be ½ way to their goal. He stated that the Kings County Firefighters Union 
#3747 is partnering with United States Marines and collecting Toys for Tots at the Kings County Fire 
Station #5 in Armona located at 11235 14th Avenue, Armona during their Christmas Tree fundraiser.  
 

mailto:Catherine.Venturella@co.kings.ca.us
https://youtu.be/FgTvxcYyr40
http://www.countyofkings.com/
mailto:Catherine.Venturella@co.kings.ca.us


Board of Supervisors Regular Meeting Action Summary   
November 23, 2021 
Page 2 of 5 
 

 

Cathleen Jorgensen, Kings County resident, stated that she has concerns and questions regarding 
item IV.B.1 under the consent calendar on the agenda today and would like to have some 
clarifications for the public on the item and voiced concerns regarding the redistriciting public 
hearing and maps being submitted.  
 

III.  APPROVAL OF MINUTES 
  A. Report out of Closed Session from the regular meeting for November 16, 2021. 
  Edward Hill, Kings County Administrative Officer stated that at the November 16, 2021 meeting the 

Board appointed Diane Freeman to the role of County Counsel effective November 15, 2021 with an 
annual salary of $185,000 ($15,416 monthly) plus an option to annually contribute 40 hours of 
management vacation to deferred comp. Additionally, she will receive a 5% increase on her 
anniversary date if a satisfactory evaluation has been achieved. Finally, she will be eligible for an 
additional 5% increase when the ongoing retainer agreement with Lozano Smith is no longer needed. 
The decision was a 4-0 vote with Supervisor Valle absent. 

  B. Approval of the minutes from the November 16, 2021 regular meeting. 
  ACTION:  APPROVED AS PRESENTED  (DV, JN, RF, CP-Aye, RV-Absent) 
  C. Approval of the minutes from the November 16, 2021 special meeting. 
  ACTION:  APPROVED AS PRESENTED  (DV, RF, JN, CP-Aye, RV-Absent) 
   
IV.  CONSENT CALENDAR 
  A. Behavioral Health: 
   1. Consider approving the Agreement with Monte Nido Lake Vista, LLC dba Clementine Malibu 

Lake for residential eating disorder treatment, retroactively effective from October 8, 2021-
June 30, 2024. [Agmt 21-151] 

  B. County Counsel: 
   1. Consider adopting a Resolution making the findings required by AB 361 to continue meeting 

under its abbreviated teleconferencing provisions.[Reso 21-077] ITEM PULLED FOR 
DISCUSSION BY THE CHAIRMAN AND COUNTY COUNSEL AS PER REQUEST BY A PUBLIC 
MEMBER. DIANE FREEMAN, COUNTY COUNSEL EXPLAINED THE REQUIRMENTS FOR 
ADOPTING THE FINDINGS FOR THE RESOLUTION AND THE BOARD APPROVED AS 
PRESENTED. (JN, DV, RF, CP-Aye, RV-Absent) 

  C. District Attorney’s Office: 
   1. a. Consider approving the District Attorney’s Office to accept the Child Advocacy Center 

Program Grant funds for work with child abuse victims to reduce trauma to children and 
their families; and 

    b. Authorize the District Attorney to sign the Grant application forms; and 
    c. Authorize the District Attorney to sign grant subaward amendments in addition to grant 

subaward documents; and 
    d. Authorize the Certification of Assurance of Compliance form. 
  D. Probation Department: 
   1. Consider approving an Amended Agreement with The Counseling and Psychotherapy Center, 

Inc. to provide treatment services for sex offenders within Kings County, retroactively 
effective July 1, 2020 through July 30, 2022. [Agmt 21-127.1]  

  E. Public Health Department: 
   1. a. Consider authorizing the Interim Public Health Director apply for and to accept up to 

$95,000 in grant funding from Kaiser Permanente for the purpose of COVID-19 vaccine 
education and outreach for the term of January 1, 2022 to June 30, 2022; and 

    b. Authorize the Interim Public Health Director to sign any associated invoices and revisions 
to the initial work and spend plan; and 

    c. Adopt the budget change  (4/5 vote required) 
      



Board of Supervisors Regular Meeting Action Summary   
November 23, 2021 
Page 3 of 5 
 

 

  F. Public Works Department: 
   1. Consider approving the Joint Use Agreement with Southern California Edison and the 

California High Speed Rail Authority.[Agmt 21-152] 
  G. Sheriff’s Department: 
   1. Consider authorizing the Sheriff to sign an Agreement with Veritone, Inc. for the Contact 

Application.[Agmt 21-153] 
  H. Administration: 
   1. Consider approving the Agreement with the Armona Community Services District for 

residential customer utility arrearages. [Agmt 21-154] 
   2. Consider approving the first amendment to the Memorandum of Understanding with the City 

of Hanford to provide for the annexation of eight county islands surrounded by the City. 
   3. Consider approving the sole source Agreement with Capital Partnerships, Inc. for ONESolution 

support in an amount not to exceed $40,000 for a contract term through June 30, 2023. 
  ACTION:  APPROVED AS AMENDED  (DV, JN, RF, CP-Aye, RV-Absent) 
   
V.  REGULAR AGENDA ITEMS 
  A. Human Resources Department – Henie Ring 
   1. Consider authorizing the Human Resources Director and designated staff to sign the 

successor Agreement with the Blue Collar Unit for a term beginning November 1, 2021 and 
ending October 31, 2025.[Agmt 21-156] 

  ACTION:  APPROVED AS PRESENTED  (DV, RF, JN, CP-Aye, RV-Absent) 
    
  B. Job Training Office – Lance Lippincott 
   1. a. Consider authorizing the County Administrative Officer to execute a designation letter 

permitting the Kings County Job Training Office to receive funding under the Request for 
Proposal-California Microbusiness COVID-19 Relief Grant Program; and  

    b. Authorize the Economic and Workforce Development Director to execute any and all 
agreements necessary and reasonable for the execution and implementation of the 
California Microbusiness COVID-19 Relief Grant Program issued by the California Office 
of the Small Business Advocate. 

  ACTION:  APPROVED AS PRESENTED  (DV, RF, JN, CP-Aye, RV-Absent) 
     
  C. Administration – Edward Hill/Kyria Martinez 
   1. Consider appointing three members to the Independent Kings County Solid Waste 

Enforcement Hearing Panel.   
  ACTION:  APPROVED APPOINTMENTS OF SUPERVISOR RICHARD FAGUNDES, LEE JOHNSON AND 

SALVADOR INIGUEZ AS PRESENTED  (DV, JN, RF, CP-Aye, RV-Absent) 
     
  D. Public Health Department – Darcy Pickens/Heather Silva 
   1. Consider adopting a Resolution proclaiming Wednesday, December 1, 2021 as World AIDS 

Day in Kings County.[Reso 21-078] 
  ACTION:  APPROVED AS PRESENTED  (JN, DV, RF, CP-Aye, RV-Absent) 
   2. Receive an update on the local emergency in Kings County due to the imminent and proximate 

threat of exposure of COVID-19 on the residents of the County of Kings and take action as 
deemed necessary. 

  THE BOARD RECEIVED AN UPDATE AND NO OFFICIAL ACITON WAS TAKEN. 
   
   
   
   
     



Board of Supervisors Regular Meeting Action Summary   
November 23, 2021 
Page 4 of 5 
 

 

VI. 10:00 AM PUBLIC HEARING 
  COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT AGENCY – CHUCK KINNEY/NOELLE TOMLINSON 
   1. Hold a Public Hearing to receive public testimony regarding the Implementation of Section 

51244(b), which allows for the 10% reduction in the Williamson Act and Farmland Security 
Zone Contract terms.  If the Board adopts Implementation of Section 51244(b) the following 
actions are also required: 

    a. Determine that the State funded less than one-half (1/2) of Kings County’s actual 
forgone property tax revenues in the prior fiscal year (FY 2020/2021); and 

    b. State that landowners may choose to not participate in implementation of Section 
51244(b) by serving a notice of non-renewal within 90 days of the date of notice of the 
opportunity to prevent the modification and re-evaluation of contracts authorized by 
Section 51244(b) or before February 1, 2022; and 

    c. Amend the County’s Land Conservation Act Program Procedures by extending the 
deadline for landowners to file notices of non-renewal for calendar year 2021 to 
February 1, 2022; and  

    d. Adopt a Resolution authorizing implementation of Section 51244(b). [Reso 21-076] 
  Supervisor Pedersen opened the public hearing, no testimony was received and the public hearing 

was closed. 
ACTION: APPROVED AS PRESENTED (JN, DV, RF, CP-Aye, RV-Absent) 

     
VII.  BOARD MEMBER ANNOUNCEMENTS OR REPORTS 

On their own initiative, Board Members may make a brief announcement or a brief report on their 
own activities.  They may ask questions for clarification, make a referral to staff or take action to have 
staff place a matter of business on a future agenda (Gov. Code Section 54954.2a). 

  Supervisor Verboon stated that he attended events with family over the weekend, attended the 
Amtrak/San Joaquin Joint Powers Authority meeting on November 19, 2021, participated in the 
Housing Authority of Kings County meeting on November 18, 2021 and wished everyone a safe and 
Happy Thanksgiving.  
 
Supervisor Fagundes stated that he attended the Housing Authority of Kings County meeting on 
November 18, 2021 and went to the central coast for business over the weekend. 
 
Supervisor Neves stated that he attended a Cal Vans  special meeting on November 16, 2021 and had 
the opportunity to review a water and accounting tracking tool to help South Fork Kings and their 
sustainable water efforts. He stated that he participatd in a webinar hosted by Valley Childrens 
hosipital r on the effects of Covid-19, attended at Kings County Association of Governments  special 
meeting and  announced at the West Hills Men’s Basketbal game on November 17, 2021. He stated 
that he attended a Housing Authority of Kings County special meeting and a Calvans finance special 
meeting and announced the winners of prizes for the Kings County employee brown bag luncheon 
on November 18, 2021.  He stated that he participated in the Battle of the Badges blood drive on 
November 22, 2021, started his 37th Santa season, attended his granddaughters 17th birthday event 
with Le Grand FFA and stated that she made the 1st round of the Coca-Cola scholarship out of 65,000 
entries.   
 
Supervisor Pedersen stated that he attended the San Joaquin Valley Unified Air Pollution Control 
Distrcit Governing Board meeting on November 18, 2021 and wished everyone a Happy Thanksgiving. 

   Board Correspondence: None 
   Upcoming Events: Edward Hill stated that the Christmas Cozy Feet Slipper Sock Drive is being 

held by Child Support who is collecting slipper socks to donate to seniors in Kings County, they 
must be skid proof slipper socks and drop off locations are the Child Support Services office and 
Job Training Office, and donations must be received by December 15, 2021.  He stated that the 
Kicks 4 CASA event hosted by the Kings County Firefighters who are collecting shoes for Kings 



Board of Supervisors Regular Meeting Action Summary   
November 23, 2021 
Page 5 of 5 
 

 

 

County Foster children in need through CASA (Court Appointed Special Advocates).  The 
donations must be new shoes  and drop off locations in Hanford are JH Tackett, Save Mart, and 
Senator Melissa Hurtado’s Hanford District Office, monetary donations are accepted too and the 
donations must be received by December 10, 2021.  

   Information on Future Agenda Items: Edward Hill stated tht there will be no Board meeting on 
November 30, 2021 and the following items would be on a future agenda:  Administration has 4 
items – Public Safety Realignment & Post Release Community Supervision 2021 plan; Board 
meeting cancellation schedule for 2022; Approval of Crime Bond as Public Official bond and set 
Faithful Performance Amounts; and Claims for Damages; Behavioral Health – Amendment to an 
agreement with JDT Consultants; County Counsel – Appointment of Directors to the Corcoran 
Irrigation District; Community Development Agency has 2 items – public hearing to consider a 
density bonus development agreement with Spalding Construction Inc. and one with Aspire 
Homes Ca, Inc.; Fire Department – Declaration and sale of surplus equipment and donation of 
equipment; Health Department has 2 items – COVID 19 Update and a Farm and Ranch Solid 
Waste Cleanup and Abatement Grant; Human Resources has 2 items - Reclass Department 
Specialists to Office Assistants and County Service Awards Presentation; Human Services has 2 
items – Homeless Housing, assistance, and prevention program round three grant application 
and agreement with Kings United Way for mobile application maintenance; Job Training Office 
– Closeout of workforce innovation and opportunity act sub-grant; Public Works Department 
has 2 items – Capital projects and Removal of stop sign on Grangeville blvd and 25th avenue.  

  The Board took a recess from 9:47 a.m. to 10:00 a.m. 
   
VIII.  CLOSED SESSION 
   Conference with Labor Negotiator/Meet and Confer: [Govt. Code Section 54957.6] 
   Negotiators:  Edward Hill, Kyria Martinez, Henie Ring, Che Johnson of Liebert Cassidy 

Whitemore 
     Prosecutor’s Association 
   Personnel Matter:  [Govt. Code Section 54957] 

Public Employee Appointment:  Director of Finance  
   Litigation initiated formally.  The title is:  Leprino v. Kings County, Case No. 20C0159  

[Govt. Code Section 54956.9(d)(1)] 
 

    
IX.  ADJOURNMENT 
  The November 30, 2021 meeting has been canceled due to Board members participating in CSAC 

Annual Meetings. 
The next regularly scheduled meeting will be held on Tuesday, December 7, 2021 at 9:00 a.m. 

   
X. 11:00 AM BOARD OF EQUALIZATION REGULAR MEETING 
   
XI. 11:15 AM IN-HOME SUPPORTIVE SERVICES PUBLIC AUTHORITY REGULAR MEETING 

FUTURE MEETINGS AND EVENTS 

 November 30        --  Regular Meeting Canceled/Board members participating in CSAC Annual Meeting 
 December 7   9:00 AM  Regular Meeting 
 December 7  10:00 AM  Sixth Public Hearing – Redistricting 
 December 14   9:00 AM  Regular Meeting 
 December 21   9:00 AM  Regular Meeting 
Agenda backup information and any public records provided to the Board after the posting of the agenda will be available for 
the public to review at the Board of Supervisors office, 1400 W. Lacey Blvd, Hanford, for the meeting date listed on this agenda. 





 ...................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................   
 
BOARD ACTION : APPROVED AS RECOMMENDED: _________ OTHER: ________ 
 
 
 
 
 

I hereby certify that the above order was passed and adopted 

on ________________________, 2021. 

CATHERINE VENTURELLA, Clerk of the Board 

By                                                    , Deputy. 
 

 
 

SUBMITTED BY: Agriculture Department – Jimmy Hook/Lynda Schrumpf 
 
SUBJECT:  COOPERATIVE AGREEMENT WITH THE CALIFORNIA DEPARTMENT OF 

FOOD AND AGRICULTURE FOR THE COUNTY’S ASIAN CITRUS PSYLLID 
DETECTION PROGRAM 

SUMMARY: 
 

Overview: 
The Agricultural Commissioner–Sealer provides services in cooperation with the California Department 
of Food and Agriculture for detection and trapping of the Asian Citrus Psyllid.  This agreement 
continues the County’s Asian Citrus Psyllid Detection Program which expired on September 30, 2021. 
 
Recommendation: 
Approve the Cooperative Agreement with the California Department of Food and Agriculture for 
the County’s Asian Citrus Psyllid Detection Program, retroactively effective October 1, 2021 
through September 30, 2022. 
 
Fiscal Impact: 
Revenues of $92,093 for this program are included in the FY 2021-2022 adopted budget, in Budget Unit 
260000, Account 85043 (State Aid-Agriculture). 
 

BACKGROUND: 
The Agricultural Commissioner deploys and services insect traps according to State protocols established by 
this agreement to protect Kings County agriculture and the public from the introduction of the Asian Citrus 
Psyllid, a vector of Huanglongbing also known as HLB or citrus greening disease, a devastating disease of citrus 
trees. The term of this agreement is from October 1, 2021 through September 30, 2022.  This is an ongoing 
program; however, the current fiscal year agreement was not offered to Kings County until October 30, 2021, 
the work plan to produce this agreement was submitted on time August 17, 2021 by the Kings County 
Department of Agriculture. 
 

 _________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________   

  

COUNTY OF KINGS 
BOARD OF SUPERVISORS 

GOVERNMENT CENTER HANFORD, CALIFORNIA 93230 (559) 852-2362 
Catherine Venturella, Clerk of the Board of Supervisors 

 
 

AGENDA ITEM 
December 7, 2021 

 



 

 

The agreement has been reviewed and approved as to form by County Counsel. 



 
State of California, Department of Food and Agriculture 
AGREEMENT 
GAU-03 (Rev.10/2021)                                                  

 

COOPERATIVE AGREEMENT  AGREEMENT NUMBER 
SIGNATURE PAGE 21-0516-020-SF 

   

1. This Agreement is entered into between the State Agency and the Recipient named below: 
 STATE AGENCY’S NAME 
 CALIFORNIA DEPARTMENT OF FOOD AND AGRICULTURE (CDFA) 
 RECIPIENT’S NAME 
 COUNTY OF KINGS 
2. The Agreement Term is: October 1, 2021 through September 30, 2022 

3. The maximum amount of this Agreement is: $92,093.00 
 
 

 
4. The parties agree to comply with the terms and conditions of the following exhibits and attachments 

which are by this reference made a part of the Agreement: 
 
Exhibit A: Prime Award Information 
                Recipient and Project Information 

 
2 Page(s) 

Exhibit B: General Terms and Conditions 5 Page(s) 

Exhibit C: Payment and Budget Provisions 2 Page(s) 
Exhibit D: Federal Terms and Conditions 
 
Attachments: Scope of Work and Budget 

3 Page(s) 
 
 

 
IN WITNESS WHEREOF, this Agreement has been executed by the parties hereto. 

RECIPIENT  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

RECIPIENT’S NAME (Organization’s Name) 
COUNTY OF KERN 
BY (Authorized Signature)  

     
 

DATE SIGNED  
     

 

   

PRINTED NAME AND TITLE OF PERSON SIGNING 
 
ADDRESS 
680 N Campus Drive, Suite B, Hanford, CA  93230-3556 

STATE OF CALIFORNIA 
AGENCY NAME 
CALIFORNIA DEPARTMENT OF FOOD AND AGRICULTURE (CDFA) 
BY (Authorized Signature) DATE SIGNED  
   

PRINTED NAME AND TITLE OF PERSON SIGNING 
CRYSTAL MYERS, BRANCH CHIEF, OFFICE OF GRANTS ADMINISTRATION 

ADDRESS 
1220 N STREET, ROOM 120 
SACRAMENTO, CA  95814                                                                                                          CJ                                



EXHIBIT A 

PRIME AWARD INFORMATION 
 

Federal Agency: United States Department of Agriculture, 
Animal and Plant Health Inspection Service, 
Plant Protection and Quarantine 

Federal Award Identification Number: Pending 
Federal Award Date: Pending 
Catalog of Federal Domestic Assistance Number 
(CFDA) and Name: 

10.025  
Plant and Animal Disease, Pest Control and 
Animal Care 

Amount Awarded to CDFA: $Pending 
Effective Dates for CDFA: October 1, 2021 through September 30, 2022 
Federal Award to State Agency is Research & 
Development (Yes/No) 

 
Yes 

RECIPIENT AND PROJECT INFORMATION 
 

1. CDFA hereby awards an Agreement to the Recipient for the project described herein: 
The county shall place and service traps for the detection of the Asian Citrus Psyllid to prevent a 
major threat to the citrus industry in California.  Food and Agricultural Code 403, 2276.5, and 2283. 
 
Project Title: Asian Citrus Psyllid Trapping  

 
2.The Managers for this Agreement are: 

 
FOR CDFA: FOR RECIPIENT: 
Name: Kelly Aubushon Name: Jimmy Hook 

Division/Branch: Citrus Division / Citrus 
Administration 

Organization: COUNTY OF KINGS 

Address: 1220 N Street Address: 680 N Campus Drive, Suite B 
City/State/Zip: Sacramento, CA  95814 City/State/Zip: Hanford, CA  93230-3556 
Phone: 559-908-1653 Phone: 559-852-2830 
Email Address: kelly.aubushon@cdfa.ca. 

gov 
Email Address: jimmy.hook@co.kings.ca.us 

         
         
3. The Grant Administrative Contacts for this Agreement are: 

  
FOR CDFA: FOR RECIPIENT: 
Name: Stephanie Jacobs Name:       

Division/Branch: Citrus Division / Citrus 
Administration 

Organization:       

Address: 1220 N Street Address:       
City/State/Zip: Sacramento, CA  95814 City/State/Zip:       
Phone: 916-699-0116 Phone:       
Email Address: stephanie.jacobs@cdfa.ca.g

ov 
Email Address:       

  



 
  FISCAL CONTACT FOR RECIPIENT 

(if different from above): 
  Name:       
  Organization:       
  Address:       
  City/State/Zip:       
  Phone:       
  Email Address:       
              

 
4. RECIPIENT: Please check appropriate box below: 

Research and Development (R&D) means all research activities, both basic and applied, and all 
development activities that are performed by non-Federal entities.  The term research also includes 
activities involving the training of individuals in research techniques where such activities utilize the 
same facilities as other R&D activities and where such activities are not included in the instruction 
function. 
 
This award   does      does not     support R&D. 

 
5. For a detailed description of activities to be performed and duties, see Scope of Work and Budget. 
  



EXHIBIT B 

GENERAL TERMS AND CONDITIONS 
 

1. Approval 
This Agreement is of no force or effect until signed by both parties.  The Recipient may not invoice 
for activities performed prior to the commencement date or completed after the termination date of 
this Agreement. 
 

2. Agreement Execution 
Unless otherwise prohibited by state law, regulation, or Department or Recipient policy, the parties 
agree that an electronic copy of a signed Agreement, or an electronically signed Agreement, has the 
same force and legal effect as an Agreement executed with an original ink signature.  The term 
"electronic copy of a signed Agreement" refers to a transmission by facsimile, electronic mail, or other 
electronic means of a copy of an original signed Agreement in a portable document format.  The term 
"electronically signed Agreement" means an Agreement that is executed by applying an electronic 
signature using technology approved by all parties. 
 

3. Assignment 
This Agreement is not assignable by the Recipient, either in whole or in part, without the prior consent 
of the CDFA Agreement Manager or designee in the form of a formal written amendment. 

 
4. Governing Law 

This Agreement is governed by and will be interpreted in accordance with all applicable State and 
Federal laws. 

 
5. State and Federal Law 

It is the responsibility of the Recipient to know and understand which State, Federal, and local laws, 
regulations, and ordinances are applicable to this Agreement and the Project, as described in 
Exhibit A.  The Recipient shall be responsible for observing and complying with all applicable State 
and Federal laws and regulations.  Failure to comply may constitute a material breach. 

 
6. Recipient Commitments 

The Recipient accepts and agrees to comply with all terms, provisions, conditions and commitments 
of the Agreement, including all incorporated documents, and to fulfill all assurances, declarations, 
representations, and statements made by the Recipient in the application, documents, amendments, 
and communications in support of its request for funding. 

 
7. Performance and Assurances 

The Recipient agrees to faithfully and expeditiously perform or cause to be performed all Project work 
as described in the Scope of Work, and to apply grant funds awarded in this Agreement only to 
allowable Project costs. 

 
8. Mutual Liability 

Parties shall, to the extent allowed by law, each be individually liable for any and all claims, losses, 
causes of action, judgments, damages, and expenses to the extent directly caused by their officers, 
agents, or employees. 

 
9. Unenforceable Provision 

In the event that any provision of this Agreement is unenforceable or held to be unenforceable, the 
parties agree that all other provisions of this Agreement shall remain operative and binding. 

  



 
10. Contractors/Consultants 

The Recipient assumes full responsibility for its obligation to pay its Contractors/Consultants.  The 
Recipient is responsible to ensure that any/all contractors/consultants it engages to carry out activities 
under this Agreement shall have the proper licenses/certificates required in their respective 
disciplines.  The Recipient’s use of contractors/consultants shall not affect the Recipient’s 
responsibilities under this Agreement. 

 
11. Non-Discrimination Clause 

The Recipient agrees that during the performance of this Agreement, it will not discriminate, harass, 
or allow harassment or discrimination against any employee or applicant for employment based on 
race, religious creed, color, national origin, ancestry, physical disability, mental disability, medical 
condition, genetic information, marital status, sex, gender, gender identity, gender expression, age, 
sexual orientation, or military and veteran status.  The Recipient agrees to require the same of all 
contractors and consultants retained to carry out the activities under this Agreement. 

 
The Recipient agrees that during the performance of this Agreement, the evaluation and treatment of 
its employees and applicants for employment are free from discrimination and harassment.  The 
Recipient will comply with the provisions of the Fair Employment and Housing Act (Government Code 
section 12990 et seq.) and the applicable regulations promulgated there under (California Code of 
Regulations, Title 2, section 7285 et seq.).  The applicable regulations of the Fair Employment and 
Housing Commission implementing Government Code section 12990 (a-f), set forth in Chapter 5 of 
Division 4 of Title 2 of the California Code of Regulations, are incorporated into this Agreement by 
reference and made a part hereof as if set forth in full.  The Recipient will give written notice of their 
obligations under this clause to labor organizations with which they have a collective bargaining unit 
or other Agreement.  The Recipient must include the nondiscrimination and compliance provisions of 
this clause in all subcontracts to perform work under this Agreement. 
 
The Recipient agrees to require the same of all contractors and consultants retained to carry out 
activities under this Agreement. 
 

12. Excise Tax 
The State of California is exempt from federal excise taxes and no payment will be made for any 
taxes levied on employees' wages.  The CDFA will pay for any applicable State of California or local 
sales or use taxes on the services rendered or equipment or parts supplied pursuant to this 
Agreement.  California may pay any applicable sales and use tax imposed by another State. 

 
13. Disputes 

The Recipient must continue with the responsibilities under this Agreement during any dispute.  In 
the event of a dispute, the Recipient must file a "Notice of Dispute" with the CDFA Agreement 
Manager, identified in Exhibit A, or designee within ten (10) calendar days of discovery of the problem.  
The Notice of Dispute must contain the Agreement number.  Within ten (10) calendar days of receipt 
of the Notice of Dispute, the CDFA Agreement Manager or designee must meet with the Recipient 
for the purpose of resolving the dispute.  In the event of a dispute, the language contained within this 
Agreement prevails. 

 
14. Termination for Convenience 

This Agreement may be terminated by either party upon written notice.  Notice of termination must 
be delivered to the other party at least thirty (30) calendar days prior to the intended date of 
termination.  Notice of termination does not nullify obligations already incurred prior to the date of 
termination.  In the event of Termination for Convenience of this Agreement by CDFA, CDFA must 
pay all responsible costs and non-cancellable obligations incurred by the Recipient as of the date of 
termination. 

 



 
15. Termination for Cause 

Either party may terminate this Agreement for cause in the event of a material breach of this 
Agreement, provided that the non-breaching party provides written notice of the material breach and 
ten (10) calendar days to cure the breach.  If the breach is not cured to the satisfaction of the 
non-breaching party within ten (10) calendar days of receipt of notice, this Agreement shall 
automatically terminate and the CDFA shall reimburse the Recipient for all documented costs incurred 
up to the date of the notice of termination, including all non-cancellable obligations. 

 
16. Acceptable Failure to Perform 

The Recipient shall not be liable for any failure to perform as required by this Agreement, to the extent 
such failure to perform is caused by any of the following: labor disturbances or disputes of any kind, 
accidents, or the inability to obtain any required government approval to proceed, civil disorders, acts 
of aggression, acts of God, energy or other conservation measures, failure of utilities, mechanical 
breakdowns, materials shortages, disease, pandemics, or similar occurrences. 

 
17. Breach 

Reimbursement under this Agreement may be suspended, terminated, or both, and the Recipient 
may be subject to debarment if CDFA determines that the Recipient has breached the terms of this 
Agreement.  A determination of breach may be appealed in writing to the CDFA.  The appeal must 
be post marked within ten (10) calendar days of the date the Recipient received notification and 
addressed to the CDFA Legal Office of Hearing and Appeals or emailed to 
CDFA.LegalOffice@cdfa.ca.gov. 
 

California Department of Food and Agriculture  
Legal Office of Hearing and Appeals  
1220 N Street 
Sacramento, CA  95814 

 
18. Non-Material Breach 

The Recipient may be in material breach under this Agreement if it fails to comply with any term of 
this Agreement.  In the event of a material breach, CDFA shall provide in writing a Notice of Breach 
to the Recipient within ten (10) calendar days upon discovery of breach.  The Recipient shall have 
ten (10) calendar days from receipt of the notice to cure the breach.  If the Recipient fails to cure the 
breach within the time prescribed by this Agreement, CDFA may do any of the following: 

 
A. Suspend payments; 
B. Demand repayment of all funding; 
C. Terminate the Agreement; or 
D. Take any other action deemed necessary to recover costs. 

 
If CDFA determines that the Recipient is not in material breach but that the Project is not being 
implemented in accordance with the provisions of this Agreement, or that the Recipient has failed in 
any other respect to comply with the provisions of this Agreement, and the Recipient has failed to 
remedy any such failure in a reasonable and timely manner, CDFA may withhold all or any portion of 
the grant funding and take any other action that CDFA deems necessary to protect its interests. 
 
Where a portion of the grant funding has been disbursed to the Recipient and CDFA notifies the 
Recipient of its decision not to release funds that have been withheld pursuant to paragraph 17,  the 
portion that has been disbursed shall thereafter be repaid immediately.  CDFA may consider the 
Recipient’s refusal to repay the requested disbursed amount a material breach.     

  

mailto:CDFA.LegalOffice@cdfa.ca.gov


 
If CDFA notifies the Recipient of its decision to withhold the entire funding amount from the Recipient 
pursuant to this paragraph, this Agreement shall terminate upon receipt of such notice by the 
Recipient and CDFA shall no longer be required to provide funds under this Agreement and the 
Agreement shall no longer be binding on either party. 

 
 In the event CDFA finds it necessary to enforce this provision of this Agreement in the manner 
provided by law, the Recipient agrees to pay all enforcement costs incurred by CDFA including, if 
CDFA should prevail in a civil action, reasonable attorneys’ fees, legal expenses, and costs related 
to the action. 

 
19. Publicity and Acknowledgement 

The Recipient agrees that it will acknowledge CDFA’s support whenever projects funded, in whole or 
in part, by this Agreement are publicized in any news media, brochures, publications, audiovisuals, 
presentations or other types of promotional material and in accordance with the Grant Procedures 
Manual if incorporated by reference and attachment to the Agreement.  The Recipients may not use 
the CDFA logo. 

 
20. News Releases/Public Conferences 

The Recipient agrees to notify the CDFA in writing at least two (2) business days before any news 
releases or public conferences are initiated by the Recipient or its Contractors/Consultants regarding 
the project described in the Attachments, Scope of Work and Budget and any project results. 

 
21. Scope of Work and Budget Changes 

Changes to the Scope of Work, Budget, or the Project term, must be requested in writing to CDFA 
Grant Administrative Contact no less than thirty (30) days prior to the requested implementation date.  
Any changes to the Scope of Work and Budget are subject to CDFA approval and, at its discretion, 
CDFA may choose to accept or deny any changes.  If accepted and after negotiations are concluded, 
the agreed upon changes will be made and become part of this Agreement.  CDFA will respond in 
writing within ten (10) business days as to whether the proposed changes are accepted. 

 
22.  Reporting Requirements 

The Recipient agrees to comply with all reporting requirements specified in Scope of Work and/or 
Grant Procedures Manual if incorporated by reference to this Agreement as an attachment.  
 

23. California State Auditor 
This Agreement is subject to examination and audit by the California State Auditor for a period of 
three (3) years after final payment under the contract. 
 

24.  Equipment 
Purchase of equipment not included in the approved Budget requires prior approval.  The Recipient 
must comply with applicable state requirements regarding the use, maintenance, disposition, and 
reporting of equipment as contained in CCR, Title 3, Division 1, Chapter 5, sections 303, 311, 324.1 
and 324.2. 

 
25.  Closeout 

The Agreement will be closed out after the completion of the Project or project term, receipt and 
approval of the final invoice and final report, and resolution of any performance or compliance issues. 

  



 
26.  Confidential and Public Records 

The Recipient and CDFA understand that each party may come into possession of information and/or 
data which may be deemed confidential or proprietary by the person or organization furnishing the 
information or data.  Such information or data may be subject to disclosure under the California Public 
Records Act or the Public Contract Code.  CDFA has the sole authority to determine whether the 
information is releasable.  Each party agrees to maintain such information as confidential and notify 
the other party of any requests for release of the information. 

 
27.  Amendments  

Changes to funding amount or Agreement term require an amendment and must be requested in 
writing to the CDFA Agreement Manager or designee no later than sixty (60) calendar days prior to 
the requested implementation date.  Amendments are subject to CDFA approval, and, at its 
discretion, may choose to accept or deny these changes.  No amendments are possible if the 
Agreement is expired. 

 
  



 
EXHIBIT C 

PAYMENT AND BUDGET PROVISIONS  
 

1. Invoicing and Payment 
A. For activities satisfactorily rendered and performed according to the attached Scope of Work and 

Budget, and upon receipt and approval of the invoices, CDFA agrees to reimburse the Recipient 
for actual allowable expenditures incurred in accordance with the rates specified herein, which is 
attached hereto and made a part of this Agreement. 

 
B. Invoices must include the Agreement Number, performance period, type of activities performed in 

accordance with this Agreement, and when applicable, a breakdown of the costs of parts and 
materials, labor charges, and any other relevant information required to ensure proper invoices 
are submitted for payment.  

 
C. Unless stated in the Scope of Work, quarterly invoices must be submitted to the CDFA 

Administrative Contact, within thirty (30) calendar days after the end of each quarter in which 
activities under this Agreement were performed. 

 
D. Unless stated in the Scope of Work, a final invoice will be submitted for payment no more than 

thirty (30) calendar days following the expiration date of this Agreement, or after project is 
complete, whichever comes first.  The final invoice must be clearly marked “Final Invoice” thus 
indicating that all payment obligations of the CDFA under this Agreement have ceased and that 
no further payments are due or outstanding. 

 
2. Allowable Expenses and Fiscal Documentation 

A. The Recipient must maintain adequate documentation for expenditures of this Agreement to 
permit the determination of the allowability of expenditures reimbursed by CDFA under this 
Agreement.  If CDFA cannot determine if expenditures are allowable under the terms of this 
Agreement because records are nonexistent or inadequate according to Generally Accepted 
Accounting Principles, CDFA may disallow the expenditures. 

 
B. If mileage is a reimbursable expense, using a privately-owned vehicle will be at the standard 

mileage rate established by the United States (U.S.) Internal Revenue Service (IRS) and in effect 
at the time of travel.  The standard mileage rate in effect at the time of travel can be found on IRS’s 
website regardless of funding source/type. 
 

C. If domestic travel is a reimbursable expense, receipts must be maintained to support the claimed 
expenditures.  The maximum rates allowable are those established by the Federal Travel 
Regulation, issued by General Services Administration (GSA), including the maximum per diem 
and subsistence rates prescribed in those regulations. 
 

D. If foreign travel is a reimbursable expense, receipts must be maintained to support the claimed 
expenditures.  The maximum rates allowable are those established in a per diem supplement to 
Section 925, Department of State Standardized Regulations. 

 
E. The Recipient will maintain and have available, upon request by CDFA, all financial records and 

documentation pertaining to this Agreement.  These records and documentation will be kept for 
three (3) years after completion of the Agreement period or until final resolution of any 
performance/compliance review concerns or litigation claims. 

  

https://www.irs.gov/newsroom/standard-mileage-rates-for-2018-up-from-rates-for-2017
https://www.irs.gov/newsroom/standard-mileage-rates-for-2018-up-from-rates-for-2017
http://www.gsa.gov/
http://www.gsa.gov/


 
3. Prompt Payment Clause 

Payment will be made in accordance with, and within the time specified in, California Government 
Code Title 1, Division 3.6, Part 3, Chapter 4.5, commencing with Section 927 - The California Prompt 
Payment Act. 
 

4. Budget Contingency Clause 
If funding for any fiscal year is reduced or deleted for purposes of this program, the CDFA has the 
option to either cancel this Agreement with no liability occurring to the CDFA or offer to amend the 
Agreement to reflect the reduced amount. 
 

  



EXHIBIT D 
 

FEDERAL TERMS AND CONDITIONS 
 

The Recipient and recipients of any subawards under this award, agree to comply with all applicable 
requirements of all Federal laws, executive orders, regulations, and policies governing this program, 
including but not limited to 2 CFR 200, Uniform Administrative Requirements, Cost Principles and Audit 
Requirements for Federal Awards.  For-profit organizations will be subject to 48 CFR Subpart 31.  
Recipients are responsible for identifying the federal regulations appropriate to their organization, 
consistently applying cost principles and ensuring contractors or consultants comply with applicable 
federal regulations. 

 
1.  Civil Rights 

The Recipient must comply with civil rights and nondiscrimination standards pursuant to the following: 
A. Civil Rights Act, 42 USC 2000, as implemented at 28 CFR Part 42;  
B. Age Discrimination Act, 42 USC 6101, as implemented at 45 CFR Part 90;  
C. Age Discrimination in Employment Act, 29 USC 621, as implemented at 29 CFR Part 1625;  
D. Title IX of the Education Amendments of 1972, 20 USC 1681, as implemented at 45 CFR Part 86;  
E. Section 504 of the Rehabilitation Act, 29 USC 791, as implemented at 28 CFR Part 41;  
F. Executive Order (EO) 11246; and  
G. Americans with Disabilities Act, (PL 101-366).  

 
2.  Labor Standards  

The Recipient must comply with labor standards pursuant to the following: 
A. Fair Labor Standards Act, 29 USC 207, as implemented at 29 CFR Part 500-899;  
B. Davis-Bacon Act, 40 USC 3141-3148, as implemented at 29 CFR Parts 1, 3, 5, and 7; and  
C. Contract Work Hours and Safety Standards Act, 40 USC 3701, as implemented at 29 CFR Part 5.  

 
3.  Environmental Standards 

The Recipient must comply with environmental standards pursuant to the following:  
A. Institution of environmental quality control measures under the National Environmental Policy Act 

of 1969 (PL 91-190) and EO 11514 as implemented at 7 CFR Part 1b; 
B. Notification of violating facilities pursuant to EO 11738;  
C. Protection of wetlands pursuant to EO 11990;  
D. Evaluation of flood hazards in floodplains in accordance with EO 11988;  
E. Assurance of project consistency with the approved State management program developed under 

the Coastal Zone Management Act of 1972 (16 USC §§1451 et seq.);  
F. Conformity of Federal actions to State (Clean Air) Implementation Plans under Section 176 (c) of 

the Clean Air Act of 1955, as amended (42 USC §§7401 et seq.);  
G. Protection of underground sources of drinking water under the Safe Drinking Water Act of 1974, 

as amended (PL 93-523); and,  
H. Protection of endangered species under the Endangered Species Act of 1973, as amended 

(PL 93-205). 
 

4.  Drug-Free Environment 
The Recipient must comply with drug-free environment standards pursuant to §5151-5610 of the 
Drug-Free Workplace Act of 1988, as implemented by 2 CFR 421. 

 
5.  Restrictions on Lobbying and Political Activities 

The Recipient must comply with lobbying restriction standards pursuant to the Limitations on Use of 
Appropriated Funds to Influence Certain Federal Contracting and Financial Transactions, 
31 USC 1352, as implemented at 2 CFR 418. 

  



 
6.  Officials Not to Benefit 

The Recipient must ensure that no member of Congress be admitted to any share or part of this 
Agreement or to any benefit arising from it, in accordance with 41 USC 22. 

 
7.  Trafficking in Persons 

The Recipient must comply with the provisions in 2 CFR Part 175, prohibiting trafficking in persons. 
 
8.  Intergovernmental Review 

The Recipient must comply with intergovernmental review standards pursuant to the following:  
A. Executive Order 12372, as implemented at 2 CFR 415; and  
B. The Intergovernmental Cooperation Act of 1968, 31 USC 6501. 

 
9.  Confidentiality  

The Recipient must comply with confidentiality standards pursuant to the following:  
A. Freedom of Information Act, 5 USC 552, as implemented at 7 CFR Part 1; and  
B. Privacy Act, 5 USC 552 (a). 

 
10.  Conservation in Procurement 

The Recipient must comply with procurement standards pursuant to the Resource Conservation and 
Recovery Act, 42 USC 6962 and EO 12873, as implemented at 40 CFR Part 247. 

 
11.  Debarment, Suspension, Criminal or Civil Convictions 

The Recipient and its principals must comply with debarment and suspension standards pursuant to 
the EO 12549, as implemented at 2 CFR 180 and 2 CFR 417. 

 
The Recipient must provide immediate written notice to CDFA if at any time it learns that this 
certification was erroneous when made or has become erroneous by reason of changed 
circumstances and must require recipients of lower-tier covered transactions under this Agreement 
to similarly certify pursuant to EO 12549, as implemented by 2 CFR 180 and 2 CFR 417. 
 
See www.sam.gov to determine debarment and suspension status. 
 

12.  Crimes and Prohibited Activities 
The Recipient must comply with crimes and prohibited activities standards pursuant to the following: 
A. Anti-Kickback (Copeland) Act, as implemented at 29 CFR Part 3.1;  
B. False Claims Act, 31 USC 3729; and  
C. Program Fraud Civil Remedies Act, 31 USC 3801-3812.  

 
13.  Biosafety in Laboratories 

The Recipient must comply with laboratory biosafety standards pursuant to the following the Biosafety 
in Microbiological and Biomedical Laboratories, published jointly by the Centers for Disease Control 
and the National Institutes of Health.   

 
14.  Conflicts of Interest 

The Recipient must comply with the conflict of interest standards pursuant to 2 CFR 400.2. 
 

15.  Inventions, Patents, Copyrights and Project Results 
A. The Recipient must comply with invention and patent standards pursuant to the following: 

1. Patent Rights in Inventions Made with Federal Assistance, 35 USC 202-204, as implemented 
at 37 CFR Part 401 (Bayh-Dole Act and the Technology Transfer Commercialization Act 
of 2000) to ensure that inventions made are used in a manner to promote free competition and 
enterprise without unduly encumbering future research and discovery. 

2. The Plant Variety Protection Act, 7 USC 2321 et seq. 

http://www.sam.gov/


 
B. The Recipient may retain title to any invention conceived of or first actually reduced to practice 

using Federal funds provided Recipient does the following: 
1. Reports all subject inventions to CDFA; 
2. Makes efforts to commercialize the subject invention through patent or licensing; 
3. Formally acknowledges the Federal government’s support in all patents that arise from the 

subject invention; and 
4. Formally grants the Federal government and CDFA a limited use license to the subject 

invention.  
 

C. The Recipient may copyright any publications, data, or other copyrightable works developed using 
Federal funds provided it provides the Federal government and CDFA a royalty-free, 
non-exclusive, and irrevocable license to reproduce, publish, or otherwise use the material, and 
agrees that the Federal government and CDFA may do so in cooperation with other public 
agencies. 

 
D. The Recipient agrees that the results of this project may be published by the Federal government, 

CDFA or appropriate contractors or cooperators as mutually agreed. 
 
16.  Care and Use of Laboratory Animals 

The Recipient must comply with the care and use of laboratory animal standards pursuant to the 
following: 
A. Animal Welfare Act, 7 USC 2131, as implemented at 9 CFR, Sub Chapter A, Parts 1-4; and 
B. Marine Mammal Protection Act, 16 USC 1361-1407. 

 
17.  Fly America Act 

The Recipient must comply with the Fly America Act (49 USC 40118) as implemented at 
41 CFR 301-10.131 to 301-10.143. 
 

18.  Motor Vehicle Safety 
The Recipient must comply with seat belt use standards pursuant to the following: 
A. Highway Safety Act of 1966 as amended (23 USC 402-403);  
B. Occupational Safety and Health Act of 1970 as amended (29 USC 668); 
C. Federal Property and Administrative Services Act of 1949 as amended (40 USC §101 et seq.) 
D. Increasing Seat Belt Use in the United States (EO 13043).  
E. Federal Leadership on Reducing Text Messaging While Driving (EO 13513). 

 
19. Records Retention and Accessibility 

The Recipient and its contractors must comply with the procedures and requirements regarding 
record retention and accessibility as contained in 2 CFR 200.333 – 200.337. 

 
20. All Other Federal Laws 

The Recipient must comply with all applicable requirements of all other Federal laws, executive 
orders, regulations, and policies governing this program. 

















































 ...................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................   
 
BOARD ACTION : APPROVED AS RECOMMENDED: _________ OTHER: ________ 
 
 
 
 
 

I hereby certify that the above order was passed and adopted 

on ________________________, 2021. 

CATHERINE VENTURELLA, Clerk to the Board 

By                                                    , Deputy. 
 

 
 

SUBMITTED BY: Behavioral Health –Lisa Lewis/UnChong Parry 
  
SUBJECT: AMENDMENT TO AN AGREEMENT WITH JDT CONSULTANTS, 

INCORPORATED FOR THERAPEUTIC BEHAVIORAL AND INTENSIVE 
HOME BASED SERVICES    

SUMMARY: 
 

Overview: 
Kings County Behavioral Health (KCBH) is seeking approval of Amendment #1 to Agreement #19-090 
with JDT Consultants. The original agreement was approved by the Board on September 10, 2019. On 
June 25, 2021 the contract was extended for an additional year through June 30, 2022. At this time, 
KCBH is requesting to approve the amendment to include Intensive Home Based Services (IHBS) and to 
further extend the contract to terminate on June 30, 2024.   

 
Recommendation: 
Amend the agreement with JDT for Therapeutic Behavioral and Intensive Home Based Services 
from November 2021 through June 30, 2024.  
  
Fiscal Impact: 
There is no impact to the County General Fund.  This is a fee for service agreement with a maximum 
agreement amount for Fiscal Year (FY) 2021/2022, FY 2022/2023, and FY 2023/2024 for $382,131 
each FY. Expenses under this agreement and sufficient revenue for expenses were included in the 
Department’s FY 2021/2022 Adopted Budget, in Budget Unit 422200. 

 
BACKGROUND: 
Therapeutic Behavioral Services (TBS) is an Early and Periodic Screening, Diagnosis and Treatment (EPSDT) 
supplemental specialty mental health service.  TBS is utilized as a short-term and intensive outpatient treatment 
intervention for individuals under the age of 21, who are experiencing a serious emotional disturbance(s) (SED), 
a stressful transition or life crisis, and would benefit from behavioral focused support services.   
 

(Cont’d) 

 _________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________   

  

COUNTY OF KINGS 
BOARD OF SUPERVISORS 

GOVERNMENT CENTER HANFORD, CALIFORNIA 93230 (559) 852-2362 
Catherine Venturella, Clerk of the Board of Supervisors 

 

AGENDA ITEM 
December 7, 2021 



Agenda Item 
AMENDMENT TO AN AGREEMENT WITH JDT CONSULTANTS, INCORPORATED FOR 
THERAPEUTIC BEHAVIORAL AND INTENSIVE HOME BASED SERVICES    
December 7, 2021 
Page 2 of 2 
 

 

TBS is not a stand-alone treatment, it is intended to supplement ongoing specialty mental health services 
through working with children, their caregivers, and their current mental health treatment provider to maintain 
residential placement. 
 
Intensive Home Based Services (IHBS) are individualized, strength-based interventions designed to ameliorate 
mental health conditions that interfere with a beneficiary’s functioning and are aimed at helping the beneficiary 
build skills necessary for successful functioning in the home and community and improving the beneficiary’s 
family ability to help the beneficiary successfully function in the home and community. 
 
Behavioral Health is seeking approval to approve the Amendment #1 to Agreement #19-090 with JDT and 
extend it in order to meet service requirements and compliance with service offerings to consumers under the 
County Mental Health Plan.  

 
The agreement has been reviewed and approved by County Counsel as to form.  



1

Agreement No. ____

COUNTY OF KINGS

FIRST AMENDMENT TO AGREEMENT

This first amendment (“1st Amendment”) to the Agreement (“Agreement”) is

entered into on __________ ____, 2021 (the “Effective Date”), by and between the County

of Kings, a political subdivision of the State of California (“County”), and JDT Consultants

Inc., a California corporation (singularly a “Party” and collectively the “Parties”).

R E C I T A L S

WHEREAS, the Contractor provides Therapeutic Behavioral Service (“TBS”)

under the Agreement the Parties entered into on or about July 1, 201;

WHEREAS, the County exercised its option to extend the Agreement to June 30,

2022;

WHEREAS, County also requires Intensive Home Based Services (“IBHS”) for

beneficiaries (“Beneficiaries”) of Kings County Behavioral Health (“KCBH”);

WHEREAS, IBHS are individualized, strength based interventions designed for

ameliorating mental health conditions by fostering and building the skills Beneficiaries

need to successfully function at home and the community;

WHEREAS, the Parties intend to expand the services under the Agreement by

adding IBHS to Contractor’s obligations;

WHEREAS, the Parties intend to increase the term of the Agreement to terminate

on June 30, 2024;

WHEREAS, Section 6 of the Agreement authorizes the Parties to modify the

Agreement with the execution of a written amendment; and

WHEREAS, Contractor is ready, willing, able, and qualified to perform IHBS, in

addition to TBS.

NOW, THEREFORE, the Parties agree as follows:

1. Section 4 is replaced in its entirety with the following:

This Agreement commences on July 1, 2019, and terminates on June 30,

2024, unless otherwise terminated in accordance with its terms.

2. Section 6 is replaced in its entirety with the following:



2

This Agreement may be modified only by a written amendment signed

by the Contractor and the County’s Board of Supervisors (“Board”) or other

representative as authorized by the Board.

Any proposed increase in a single line item up to ten percent (10%)

of the original line item must be approved by the Director of KCBH, or their

designee.  Any such Director approved modification shall not exceed the amount set

forth in Section 3 of the Agreement.

3. The revised scope of work setting forth Contractor’s obligations to provide

TBS and IHBS is attached to this 1st Amendment as Revised Exhibit A.  The scope of

work identified as Exhibit A in the Agreement remains valid for the period beginning July

1, 2019, and ending June 30, 2021. Revised Exhibit A operates on the Effective Date.

4. The revised budget setting forth Contractor’s compensation is attached to this

1st Amendment as Revised Exhibit B.  The budget identified as Exhibit B in the

Agreement remains valid for the period beginning July 1, 2019, and ending June 30, 2021.

Revised Exhibit B operates on the Effective Date.

5. The recitals and exhibits are integral to this 1st Amendment and are

incorporated into this 1st Amendment by this reference.

6. The Agreement is attached to this 1st Amendment as Exhibit G.

7. The letter noticing Contractor that County exercised its option to extend the

term of the Agreement is attached to this 1st Amendment as Exhibit H.

8. All other terms and conditions of the Agreement remain in full force and

effect.

9. The Parties may execute this Agreement by electronic means.  The electronic

signatures affixed by their respective signatories give rise to a valid, enforceable, and fully

effective agreement.

10. Each signatory to this Agreement represents it is authorized to enter into this

Agreement and bind the Party to which its signature represents.

SIGNATURES ON FOLLOWING PAGE



3

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the Parties executed this 1st Amendment the day and

year first written above.

COUNTY OF KINGS JDT CONSULTANTS INC.

By: ____________________________ By:_________________________________

      Craig Pedersen, Chair       Jana D. Todd, LCSW, CEO

      Kings County Board of Supervisors

ATTEST

By:_________________________________
       Catherine Venturella, Clerk of the Board

APPROVED AS TO FORM

Diane Freeman, Interim County Counsel

By:_________________________________
      Cindy Crose Kliever, Deputy County Counsel

Exhibits/Attachments:

Revised Exhibit A: Scope of Work

Revised Exhibit B: Compensation/Budget

Exhibit G: Agreement

Exhibit H: Letter exercising option



JDT Consultants Inc.

SCOPE OF WORK

July 1, 2021 to June 30, 2024

Contractor shall provide Therapeutic Behavioral Services (TBS) and Intensive Home Based

Services (IHBS)  to Kings County children/youth who are eligible for Medi-Cal, meet criteria for

medical necessity, and are authorized by Kings County Behavioral Health (KCBH).

Description of the TBS Model

TBS is an intensive, one-to-one, face-to-face, short-term outpatient treatment intervention for

beneficiaries under the age of 21 with serious emotional disturbance (SED) who are experiencing

a stressful transition or life crisis and need additional, short-term, specific support services. These

services shall be available to beneficiaries with difficult behaviors who require one-on-one

assistance and who may be at risk of psychiatric hospitalization. TBS is not a “stand alone” service,

and is intended to supplement other specialty mental health services by addressing one to three

behaviors that jeopardize the beneficiary’s ability to remain in his or her current home. The

Contractor shall provide the beneficiary with skills to effectively manage the behavior(s) or

symptom(s) that is the barrier to achieving residence at the lowest appropriate level. TBS services

shall be provided in the beneficiary’s home and other environments where the beneficiary’s

behaviors occur.

Description of Intensive Home Based Services

Intensive Home-Based Services (IHBS) are individualized, strength-based interventions designed

to ameliorate mental health conditions that interfere with a beneficiary’s functioning and are aimed

at helping the beneficiary build skills necessary for successful functioning in the home and

community and improving the beneficiary’s family ability to help the beneficiary successfully

function in the home and community.

IHBS support the engagement and participation of the beneficiary and his/her significant support

persons  and  to  help  the  beneficiary  develop  skills  and  achieve  the  goals  and  objectives  of  the

treatment and the Child/Family Treatment (CFT) plan.

A. TBS Criteria

1. Eligible beneficiaries shall meet all of the following criteria:

a. Are under the age of 21;

b. Have full-scope Medi-Cal;

c. Meet medical necessity criteria for these Specialty Mental Health Services

(SMHS) as set forth in CCR, Title 9, Section 1830.205 or Section 1830.210;

d. Be currently receiving mental health services from the County’s Mental Health

Plan (MHP).

e. Meet one of the following criteria:

i. Be residing in/being considered for a Short Term Residential Therapeutic

Program (STRTP);

Revised Exhibit A

Revised Exhibit A 
1 of 5



ii. Have had at least one emergency psychiatric hospitalization within the last

24 months;

iii. Be at risk for a psychiatric hospitalization; or

iv. Be at risk for being removed from home placement.

B. IHBS Criteria

1. Eligible beneficiaries shall meet all of the following criteria:

a. Are under the age of 21;

b. Have full-scope Medi-Cal;

c. Meet medical necessity criteria for these Specialty Mental Health Services

(SMHS) as set forth in CCR, Title 9, Section 1830.205 or Section 1830.210;

d. Be currently receiving mental health services from the County’s Mental Health

Plan (MHP);

e. Currently receiving Intensive Care coordination Services (ICC).

2. IHBS may be provided to beneficiaries who:

a. Are receiving, or being considered for, Wraparound;

b. Are receiving, or being considered for, a specialized care rate due to behavioral

health needs;

c. Are being considered for other intensive SMHS, including, but not limited to,

TBS, or are receiving crisis stabilization/intervention services;

d. Are currently in, or being considered for, high-level-care institutional settings,

such as group homes or Short-Term Residential Therapeutic Programs

(STRTPs);

e. Have been discharged within 90 days from, or currently reside in, or are being

considered  for  placement  in,  a  psychiatric  hospital  or  24-hour  mental  health

treatment facility [e.g. psychiatric inpatient hospital, psychiatric health facility

(PHF), community treatment facility, etc.];

f. Have experienced two or more mental health hospitalizations in the last 12

months;

g. Have experienced two or more placement changes, within 24 months, due to

behavioral health needs;

h. Have been treated with two or more antipsychotic medications, at the same

time, over a three-month period [Healthcare Effectiveness Data Information Set

(HEDIS) Specification for Antipsychotics in Children and Adolescents (APC)];

i. If the beneficiary is zero through five years old and has more than one

psychotropic medication, the beneficiary  is six through 11 years old and has

more than two psychotropic medications, or the beneficiary is 12 through 17

years old and has more than three psychotropic medications;

j. If the beneficiary is zero through five years old and has more than one mental

health diagnosis, the beneficiary  is six through 11 years old and has more than

two mental health diagnoses, or the beneficiary  is 12 through 17 years old and

has more than three mental health diagnoses;

Revised Exhibit A

Revised Exhibit A 
2 of 5



k. Have two or more emergency room visits in the last 6 months due to primary

mental health condition or need, including, but not limited to, involuntary

treatment under California Welfare and Institutions Code section 5585.50;

l. Have been detained, pursuant to W&I sections 601 and 602, primarily due to

mental health needs; or

m. Have received SMHS within the last year, and have been reported homeless

within the prior six months.

C. Authorization and Reauthorization for TBS and IHBS

1. All TBS and IHBS referrals shall be reviewed and authorized by the County prior to

contractor rendering services. Services provided without approval of the County shall

not be reimbursed.

2. Services shall be approved by County for either 30 or 60 days at a time, and are

expected to produce the desired changes within a few months. Initial 30 day

authorization  shall  include  the  TBS or  IHBS assessment  and  Plan  of  Care.  Monthly

reauthorization meetings between County and the Contractor shall include the

following:

a. Beneficiary  progress  toward  behaviors  targeted  in  the  Plan  of  Care  in

measurable terms. The current frequency and duration of behaviors will be

compared to the prior authorization period;

b. Behaviors by the beneficiary as well as precipitating events that are rendering

their current placement at risk will be identified, and a specific intervention plan

will be determined;

c. Successful interventions in decreasing the beneficiary’s target behaviors during

the prior review period will be discussed. Types of interventions to be employed

in the next authorization period will be overviewed;

d. The strategies and effectiveness of involving the beneficiary’s care provider

during the previous authorization period will be discussed. Additional strategies

for involving the beneficiary’s care provider during the upcoming authorization

period will be identified;

e. The  plan  for  titration  and  discontinuance  of  TBS  or  IHBS  in  the  upcoming

authorization period will be determined. The days and hours of service will be

identified;

f. The next reauthorization date will be established.

D. Services

1. Contractor shall be available to accept referrals from County for TBS and IHBS service

delivery on a daily basis.

2. Upon receipt of an authorized TBS or IHBS referral, Contractor shall contact family

within 24-48 hours of receiving referral.

3. Contractor will make efforts to assess each beneficiary referred within 1-3 working

days.

4. TBS and IHBS assessments shall be completed within the first 10 days of service by a

licensed/waivered staff person.

Revised Exhibit A

Revised Exhibit A 
3 of 5



5. TBS  and  IHBS  assessments  shall  establish  Medical  Necessity  for  TBS  or  IHBS  by

evaluating the beneficiary’s current behavior (presenting problem/impairment) and

documenting the following:

a. How the behavior causes a significant impairment in an important area of life

functioning; and

b. A reasonable probability of significant deterioration in an important area of life

functioning without TBS  or IHBS services, or

c. A reasonable probability that the beneficiary would not progress

developmentally as individually appropriate without TBS or IHBS services.

6. During the first 30 days of service services should range between 6-12 hours per week.

If more hours are required, Contractor should contact with the County’s Children’s

System of Care Program Manager for authorization.

7. Contractor shall match the beneficiary with a coach or coaches for TBS and behavior

specialists for IHBS. The matching process between the beneficiary  and coach(es) or

behavioral specialist  is an important component of the TBS model  and IHBS and shall

take into consideration factors that include:

a. Cultural background;

b. The beneficiary’s and/or provider’s primary language;

c. Beneficiary age and gender;

d. The coach and behavior specialists experience and training in working with the

beneficiary’s target behaviors;

e. The beneficiary’s disabilities or handicaps;

f. Known beneficiary and care provider needs, strengths, and family dynamics.

8. Contractor shall develop a Plan of Care for each beneficiary served, and include

identification of the following:

a. Behaviors exhibited by the beneficiary that are rendering their current

placement at risk, and the need of intervention

b. The precipitating event(s), frequency and duration of each target behavior

c. Days and hours of service, based on the beneficiary’s needs

d. Specific interventions to be employed to address the target behaviors

e. Strategies for involving the beneficiary’s care provider

f. The plan for titration and discontinuance of TBS or IHBS services, as

improvements occur

i. If applicable, a plan for transition to adult services when the beneficiary

turns 21 years old and is no longer eligible for TBS or IHBS

g. A Safety Plan, which will include the following:

i. Vital information for an anticipated crisis

ii. Interventions to be undertaken by the a coach or behavioral specialists

is not present with the beneficiary  and caretaker

9. Contractor shall accept expedited referrals from County.  Contractor will contact family

the same day the referral is received and schedule an assessment with 24-48 hours.

E.  Progress Notes and Documentation

1. Documentation is required each day that TBS or IHBS is delivered. All direct service

documentation shall be completed in accordance with County’s documentation guidelines.

2. Progress notes shall include a comprehensive summary covering the time that services

were provided, but need not document every minute of service time.

Revised Exhibit A

Revised Exhibit A 
4 of 5



3. Progress notes shall be co-signed by a licensed mental health professional (LMHP) if the

TBS coach or IHBS behavior specialists is providing the service is not an LMHP.

4. TBS and IHBS progress notes shall clearly and specifically document the following:

a. Whether there have been significant changes in the beneficiary’s environment since

the initial development of the TBS or IHBS Plan of Care

b. Whether TBS or IHBS provided to the beneficiary  has not been effective and the

beneficiary  is not making progress toward identified goals

i. In this situation, there must be documented evidence in the chart and any

additional information from the contractor indicating that they have

considered alternatives, and only requested additional hours/days for TBS

or IHBS based on the documented expectation that additional time will be

effective.

c. Whether progress is being made in stabilizing the behaviors and/or symptoms by

changing or eliminating maladaptive behaviors and increasing adaptive behaviors.

5. Contractor only bills for direct services, documentation not to exceed 30 minutes per

service and travel time not to exceed 90 minutes per service).

E.  Staffing

1. Contractor agrees to provide adequate staffing for TBS and IHBS services in Kings

County as detailed in this Scope of Work.

2. Contractor shall compose a staff that reflects the population being served, both

culturally and linguistically.

F. Contractor Deliverables

1. Contractor shall comply will all reporting requirements from County

2. Contractor shall adhere to County’s utilization and compliance review processes.

3. Contractor shall identify a suitable representative to attend regularly scheduled

meetings or other meetings scheduled by the Director of Behavioral Health of

his/her designee.  Meetings may include, but are not limited to case staffing, child

and family team meetings, and contract monitoring meetings.

4. Contractor shall provide trainings to their staff to enhance and enrich their clinical

expertise and the values of wellness and recovery. Trainings shall include annual

Confidentiality/Health Information Portability and Accountability Act

(HIPAA) training with an annual renewal of a signed confidentiality statement and

Four  (4) hours of training must be  related  to Culturally and Linguistically

Appropriate Services (CLAS) standards.

G. Provider Grievance Procedure

1. Contractor may appeal a denied, terminated, or modified request for services

from County. The written appeal shall be submitted to County within thirty (30)

calendar days of the postmark of the notification of the denial, termination, or

modification. Send appeal to:

Kings County Behavioral Health

Managed Care Division

460 Kings County Drive, Suite 101

ATTN: Grievances/Appeals

Revised Exhibit A

Revised Exhibit A 
5 of 5



Budget

KINGS COUNTY JDT  PROJECTED TBS IHBS BUDGET: FY 21/22, 22/23 23/24

FTE % Admin. Direct Total

0001 TBS/IHBS Supervisor (1) 100% 75,000.00 75,000.00

0002 TBS/IHBS Coaches (4) 100% 160,000 160,000.00

0003 TBS/IHBS Program Manager 10% 3,400.00 3,400.00

0004 TBS/IHBS Adminstrative Assistant 10% 2,500.00 2,500.00

0005 TBS/IHBS Medical Records Clerk 10% 2,500.00 2,500.00

0006 Full-Charge Bookkeeper 10% 3,400.00 3,400.00

0007 Chief Executive Officer 5% 4,000.00 4,000.00

0008

15,800.00$   235,000.00$     250,800.00$     

0030 OASDI 948.00 14,100.00 15,048.00

0031 316.00 4,700.00 5,016.00

0032 U.I. 16 268 284

1,280.00$     19,068.00$       20,348.00$       

0040 Retirement

0041 Health Insurance

0042 Life Insurance

0043 Fringe Benefits - 15% 2,370.00 29,622.00 31,992.00

2,370.00$     29,622.00$       31,992.00$       

303,140.00$     

FACILITY/EQUIPMENT EXPENSES

1010 Rent/Lease Building 5,000.00

1030 Rent/Lease Equipment

1050 Utilities 2,114.00

7,114.00$         

MEDICARE

FACILITY/EQUIPMENT TOTAL

PAYROLL TAX TOTAL

EMPLOYEE BENEFITS

EMPLOYEE BENEFITS TOTAL

SALARY & BENEFITS GRAND TOTAL

Budget Categories Total Proposed Budget

Line Item Description (Must be itemized)

PERSONNEL SALARIES

SALARY TOTAL

PAYROLL TAXES

Revised Exhibit B

Revised Exhibit B 
1 of 2



Budget

KINGS COUNTY JDT  PROJECTED TBS IHBS BUDGET: FY 21/22, 22/23 23/24

1060 Telephone Land Lines and Cellular Phones 2,500.00

1061

1062 Postage 224.00

1070 Printing/Reproduction 125.00

1071 Publications 0.00

1072 Legal Notices/Advertising 391.00

1080 Office Supplies 4,200.00

1090 Household Supplies 0

1100 Medication Services 0.00

1120 Program Supplies - ______________________________________Therapeutic Supplies 19,586.00

1122 Program Supplies - ______________________________________Incentives, Graduations, Activities 17,985.00

1130 Transportation of Clients 514.00

1140 Staff Mileage 12,448.00

1141 Staff Travel (Out of County) 0.00

1150 Staff Training/Registration 3,000.00

1151 Lodging 0.00

1152 Other Operating Expenses (list)

60,973.00$       

1160 Administrative Overhead 0.00

1161 External Audit 1,500.00

1170 Worker's Compensation Insurance 2,200.00

1171 Liability Insurance 2,200.00

1172 Insurance-Other Auto & EPLI 1,754.00

1173 Other (list) Sexual Molestation 250.00

7,904.00$         

1180 Computer/Email Maintenance & Repair/Software/Encryption 2,000.00

1181 Interpreter Services 1,000.00

3,000.00$         

2000

2001

382,131.00$     

,

Vol/Units

Revenue/Service Descriptions of Svs Rate

3000 TBS Services 90,984 2.1 191,065.50$     

3100 IHBS Services 90,984 2.1 191,065.50$     

3200

REVENUE TOTAL

382,131.00$     

2.1Cost per unit

FIXED ASSETS:

FIXED ASSETS TOTAL

TOTAL PROJECTED EXPENSES

PROJECTED REVENUE:

OPERATING EXPENSES:

Answering Services

OPERATING EXPENSES TOTAL

TOTAL PROJECTED REVENUE

FINANCIAL SERVICES EXPENSES:

FINANCIAL SERVICES TOTAL

SPECIAL EXPENSES (Consultant/Specialist):

SPECIAL EXPENSE TOTAL

Revised Exhibit B

Revised Exhibit B 
2 of 2



AGREEMENT FOR SERVICES 
BETWEEN THE COUNTY OF KINGS AND JDT CONSULTANTS INC. 

TIDS AGREEMENT is made and entered into as of the 1st day of July, 2019, by and 
between the County of Kings, a political subdivision of the State of California (hereinafter 
"County") and JDT Consultants Inc., a California for-profit organization (hereinafter 
"Contractor"). 

RECITALS 

· WHEREAS, County requires professional Therapeutic Behavioral Services (TBS), in 
compliance with Kings County Behavioral Health's Policies and Procedures, to Kings 
County Medi-Cal beneficiaries who meet the criteria to establish eligibility for TBS. 

WHEREAS, Contractor is ready, willing, able, and qualified to perform such services. 

NOW, THEREFORE, the parties mutually agree as follows: 

1. SCOPE OF SERVICES 

County hereby engages Contractor and Contractor shall do, perform, and carry out the 
services as set forth in Exhibit A. 

2. RESPONSIBILITIES OF CONTRACTOR 

Contractor possesses the requisite skills necessary to perform the work under this 
Agreement and County relies upon such skills. Contractor shall, at all times utilizing his 
ability, experience and talent, faithfully, industriously and professionally perform the work set 
forth in Exhibit A to County's reasonable satisfaction. County's acceptance of Contractor's 
work does not constitute a release of Contractor from his professional responsibility. 

Contractor affirms that it possesses cun-ent valid appropriate licensure, including, but 
not limited to, driver's license, professional license, certificate of tax-exempt status, or permits, 
as required to perform the work under this Agreement. 

3. COMPENSATION 

Consultant shall not be entitled to nor receive from County any additional consideration, 
compensation, or other remuneration for services rendered under this Agreement except as set 
forth in Exhibit B 

Payment for service provided under this Agreement is limited to the maximum amount 
of $382,131 for Fiscal Year 2019/2020 and $382,131 fir Fiscal Year 2020/2021. 

Exhibit G

Exhibit G 
1 of 34



Should no funds or insufficient funds be appropriated for this Agreement, County 
reserves the right to propose an amendment or unilaterally terminate this Agreement 
immediately. 

Upon submission of an invoice by Contractor, and upon approval of County's 
representative, County shall pay Contractor monthly in arrears, up to the maximwn amount 
provided for in this section. Each invoice must include a description of services rendered, to 
whom, date of service and the _charges according to the agreed upon method. 

4. TERM 

This Agreement shall commence on July 1, 2019, and shall terminate on June 30, 
2021, unless otherwise terminated iri accordance with its terms. County shall have the option 
to extend this Agreement for one (1) additional year on the same terms and conditions. 

5. RECORDS AND INSPECTIONS. 

Contractor shall maintain full, complete, and accurate records with respect to all matters 
covered under this Agreement. All such records shall be prepared in accordance with 
generally accepted accounting procedures, shall be clearly identified, and shall be kept readily 
accessible. County shall have free access during normal work hours to such records and the 
right to examine, inspect, copy, or audit them, at no cost to County. Records shall be 
maintained for seven (7) years after the termination of this Agreement or any extension of this 
Agreement. 

6. AMENDMENTS 

This Agreement may be modified only by a written amendment signed by Con.tractor 
and County Board of Supervisors or other representative authorized by County Board of 
Supervisors. 

7. TERMINATION 

The right to terminate this Agreement under this section may be exercised without 
prejudice to any other right or remedy to which the terminating party may be entitled at law or 
under this Agreement. 

A. Without Cause. Either party shall have the right to terminate this Agreement 
without cause by giving the other party thirty (30) calendar days prior written notice of 
its intention to terminate pursuant to this provision, specifying the date of termination. 
If the termination is for non-appropriation of funds, County may terminate this 
Agreement effective immediately. 

B. With Cause. This Agreement may be terminated by either party should the other 
party materially breach this Agreement. · Upon a material breach, the non-defaulting 

2 

Exhibit G

Exhibit G 
2 of 34



party shall provide written notice to the defaulting party of its intention to terminate this 
Agreement and allow a period of ten (10) days to cure the breach. If the breach is not 
remedied within that ten (10) day period, the non-defaulting party may terminate the 
Agreement on further written notice specifying the date of termination. 

Alternatively, County may elect to cure the default and any expense incurred shall be 
payable by Contractor to County. 

If the nature of the breach is such that it cannot be cured within a ten (10) day period, 
the defaulting party may submit a written proposal within that period which sets forth a 
specific means to resolve the default and a date certain for completion. If the non
defaulting party consents to that proposal in writing, the defaulting party shall 
immediately embark on its plan to cure. If the default is not cured within the time 
specified, the non-defaulting party may terminate upon written notice specifying the 
date of termination. 

C. Effects of Termination. Termination of this Agreement shall not terminate any 
obligations of any liability to County for damages sustained by County because of any 
breach of contract by Contractor, nor to indemnify, to maintain and make available any 
records pertaining to this Agreement, to cooperate with any audit, to be subject to offset, 
or to make any reports of pre-termination contract activities. 

D. Forbearance Not to be Construed as Waiver of Breach or Default. · In no event 
shall any act of forbearance by either party constitute a waiver of any breach of this 
Agreement or any default which may then exist, nor shall such act impair or prejudice 
any remedy available to the non-breaching party with respect to the breach or default. 

8. INSURANCE 

A. Without limiting County's right to obtain indemnification from Contractor or any 
third parties, prior to commencement of work, Contractor shall purchase and maintain 
the following types of insurance for minimum limits indicated during the term of this 
Agreement and provide an Endorsed Additional Insured page from Contractor's 
Insurance Carrier guaranteeing such coverage to County. Such page shall be mailed as 
set forth under the Notice Section of this Agreement prior to the execution of this 
Agreement. In the event Contractor fails to keep in effect at all times insurance 
coverage as herein provided, County may, in addition to other remedies it may have, 
suspend, or terminate this Agreement upon the occurrence of such event. 

1. Commercial General Liability. Two Million Dollars ($2,000,000) per 
occurrence and Five Million Dollars ($5,000,000) annual aggregate covering 
bodily injury, personal injury and property damage. County and its officers, 
employees and.agents shall be endorsed to above policies as additional insured, 
using ISO form CG 20 26 or an alternate form that is at least as broad as form 
CG 20 26, as to any liability arising from the performance of this Agreement. 

3 

Exhibit G

Exhibit G 
3 of 34



2. Automobile Liability. Comprehensive Automobile Liability Insurance 
with limits for bodily injury of not less than Five Hundred Thousand Dollars 
($500,000) per person, One Million Dollars ($1,000,000) per accident and for 
property damages not less than One Hundred Thousand Dollars ($100,000), or 
such coverage with a combined single limit of One Million Dollars ($1,000,000). 
Coverage should include owned and non-owned vehicles used in connection with 
this Agreement. 

3. Workers Compensation. Statutory coverage, if and as required according 
to the California Labor Code. The policy shall be endorsed to waive the 
insurer's subrogation rights against County. 

4 . Professional Liability. One Million Dollars ($1,000,000) limit per 
occurrence or claim and Three Million Dollars ($3,000,000) annual aggregate 
limit covering Contractor's wrongful acts, errors and omissions. 

County will accept a claims made policy under the following circumstances: any 
retroactive date must be shown and must be dated before the commencement of 
this Agreement, the policy must be kept in full force and effect or Contractor 
may provide tail coverage or e~tended reporting coverage with a retroactive 
dates to cover any time gaps for five (5) years after the termination of this 
Agreement or any extension of this Agreement 

B. Insurance is to be placed with admitted insurers rated by A.M. Best Co. as A:VII 
or higher. Lower rated, or approved but not admitted insurers, may be accepted if prior 
approval is given by County's Risk Manager. 

C. Each of the above required policies shall be endorsed to provide County with 
thirty (30) days prior written notice of cancellation. County is not liable for the 
payment of premiums or assessments on the policy. No cancellation provisions in the 
insurance policy shall be construed in derogation of the continuing duty of Contractor to 
furnish insurance during the term of this Agreement. 

9. INDEMNIFICATION 

A. When the law establishes a professional standard of care for Contractor's 
services, to the fullest extent permitted by law, Contractor shall indemnify, defend, and 
hold harmless County and any and all of its Board members, officials, employees and 
agents from and against any and all losses, liabilities, damages, costs, and expenses, 
including legal counsel's fees and costs but only to the extent Contractor is responsible 
for such damages, liabilities, and costs on a comparative basis of fault between 
Contractor and County in the performance of professional services under this 
Agreement. Contractor shall not be obligated to defend or indemnify County for 
County's own negligence or for the negligence of third parties. 

4 

Exhibit G

Exhibit G 
4 of 34



B. Other than in the performance of professional services and to the full extent 
permitted by law, Contractor shall indemnify, defend, and hold harmless County, and 
any and all of its Board members, officials, employees, and agents from and against any 
liability (including liability for claims, suits, actions, arbitration proceedings, 
administrative proceedings, regulatory proceedings, losses, expenses or costs of any 
kind, whether actual, alleged or threatened, including legal counsel 's fees and costs, 
court costs, interest, defense costs, and expert witness fees), where the same arise out of, 
are a consequence of, or are in any way attributable to, in whole or in part, any act, 
omission, fault or negligence, whether active or passive, by Contractor or by arty 
individual or entity for which Contractor is legally liable, including, but not limited to, 
officers, agents, employees, or subcontractors of Contractor. 

C. This indemnification specifically includes any claims that may be against County 
by any taxing authority or third party asserting that an employer-employee relationship 
exists by reason of this Agreement. 

D. These indemnification obligations shall survive the termination of this 
Agreement as to any act, omission, fault or negligence occurring during this Agreement 
or any extension of this Agreement. The County's rights to indemnification are in 

. addition to and shall not limit any other rights or remedies that County may have under 
law or this Agreement. 

10. INDEPENDENT CONTRACTOR 

Contractor is an independent contractor and not an agent, officer or employee of 
County. The parties mutually understand and agree that this Agreement is by and between two 
independent contractors and is not intended to, and shall not be construed to create, the 
relationship of agent, servant, employee, partnership, joint venture or association. 

11. COMPLIANCE WITH LAW 

Contractor shall comply with all federal, state and local laws and regulations applicable 
to its performance including, but limited to, Government Code section 8350 et seq. regarding a 
drug free workplace and all health and safety standards set forth by the State of California and 
County. 

Contractor shall comply with all state and federal confidentiality laws including, but 
limited to, the Health Insurance Portability and Accessibility Act (HIP AA) and its regulations 
as amended. Contractor shall execute and comply with the HIP AA Business Associate 
Agreement attached as Exhibit F. 

12. CONFIDENTIALITY 

Contractor shall not use County confidential information for any purpose other than 

5 

Exhibit G

Exhibit G 
5 of 34



carrymg out Contractor's obligations under this Agreement. Contractor shall prevent 
unauthorized disclosure of any County confidential information. Contractor shall promptly 
transmit to County all requests for disclosure of County confidential information. 

13. CONFLICT OF INTEREST 

Contractor warrants that its employees or their immediate families or Board of Directors 
or officers have no financial interest, including, but not limited to, other projects or 
independent contracts, and shall not acquire any financial interest, direct or indirect, which 
conflicts with the rendering of services under this Agreement. Contractor shall employ or 
retain no such person while rendering services under this Agreement. Services rendered by 
Contractor's associates or employees shall not relieve Contractor from personal responsibility 
under this clause. Contractor has an affirmative duty to disclose to County in writing the 
name( s) of any person( s) who have an actual, potential or apparent conflict of interest. 

14. NONDISCRIMINATION 

In rendering services _under this Agreement, Contractor shall comply with all applicable 
federal, state and local laws, rules and regulations and shall not discriminate based on age, 
ancestry, color, gender, marital status, medical condition, national origin, physical or mental 
disability, race, religion, gender identity, or sexual orientation. 

Further, Contractor shall not discriminate against its employees, which includes, but is 
not limited to, employment upgrading, demotion or transfer, recruitment or recruitment 
advertising, layoff or termination, rates of pay or other forms of compensation and selection for 
training, including apprenticeship. 

15. SUBCONTRACTORS 

Services under this Agreement are deemed to be personal services. Contractor warrants 
that it has not and it shall not subcontract any work under this Agreement without the prior 
written consent of County subject to any required state or federal approval. 

16. ASSIGNMENT 

Contractor shall not assign this Agreement or monies due without the prior written 
consent of County subject to any required state or federal approval. Assignment by Contractor 
of any monies due shall not constitute an assignment of the Agreement. 

17. UNFORESEEN CIRCUMSTANCES 

Neither party shall be responsible for any delay caused by natural disaster, war, civil 
disturbance, labor dispute or other cause beyond a party's reasonable control, provided written 
notice is provided to the other party of the cause of the delay within ten (10) days of the start of 
the delay. Thereafter, the parties shall meet and confer as to whether to amend, suspend, or 

6 

Exhibit G

Exhibit G 
6 of 34



terminate this Agreement. 

18. OWNERSHIP OF DOCUMENTS 

County shall be the owner of and shall be entitled to possession of any computations, 
plans, correspondence or other pertinent data and information gathered by or computed by 
Contractor prior to termination of this Agreement by County or upon completion of the work 
pursuant to this Agreement. County's reuse of any such materials on any project other than the 
project for which they were originally intended shall be at County's sole risk. No material 
prepared in connection with the project shall be subject to copyright in the United States or in 
any other county. 

19. NOTICE 

Any notice necessary to the performance of this Agreement shall be given in writing by 
personal delivery, overnight carrier, or by prepaid first-class mail addressed as follows: 

COUNTY: 
COUNTY OF KINGS 

1400 W. LACEY BLVD. 

HANFORD, CA 93230 

CONTRACTOR: 
IDT CONSULTANTS, INC. 

4205 WEST GARDEN DRJVE 

FRESNO CA,93 722 

If notice is given by: a) personal delivery, it is effective as of the date of personal 
delivery; b) overnight carrier, it is effective as of the date of delivery; c) mail, it is effective as 
of five (5) days following the date of mailing or the date of delivery reflected upon a return 
receipt, whichever occurs first. 

20. CHOICE OF LAW 

The parties have executed and delivered this Agreement in the County of Kings, State 
of California. The parties agree that the laws of the State of California shall govern the 
validity, enforceability or interpretation of this Agreement and Kings County shall be the 
venue for any action or proceeding, in law or equity that may be brought in connection with 
this Agreement. · Contractor hereby waives any rights it may possess under Section 394 of the 
Code of Civil Procedure to transfer to a neutral county or other venue any action arising out of 
this Agreement. 

21. SEVERABILITY 

If any of the provisions of this Agreement is found to be unenforceable, the remainder 
shall be enforced as fully as possible and the unenforceable provision shall be deemed 
modified to the limited extent required to permit enforcement of the Agreement as a whole. 

7 

Exhibit G

Exhibit G 
7 of 34



22. SURVIVAL 

The following sections shall survive the termination of this Agreement: Section 5 
Records and Inspections, Section 8 Insurance, Section 9 Indemnification, and Section 12 
Confidentiality. 

23. No THIRD PARTY BENEFICIARIES. 

· County and Contractor are the only parties to this Agreement and are the only parties 
entitled to enforce its terms. Nothing in this Agreement gives, is intended to give, or shall be 
construed to give or provide, any right or benefit, whether directly or indirectly or otherwise, to 
a third party. 

24. ENTIRE AGREEMENT; CONTRIBUTIONS OF BOTH PARTIES; IMAGED AGREEMENT 

This Agreement, including its Recitals and Exhibits which are fully incorporated into 
and are integral parts of this Agreement, constitutes the entire agreement between the parties 
and there are no inducements, promises, terms, conditions .or obligations made or entered into 
by County or Contractor other than those contained herein. 

The parties agree that each party had had an opp011unity to review this Agreement and 
consult with legal counsel and it is expressly agreed and understood that the rule stated in Civil 
Code section 1654, that ambiguities in a contract should be construed against the drafter, shall 
have no application to the construction of the Agreement. 

An original executed Agreement may .be imaged and electronically stored. Such 
imaged Agreement may be used in the same manner and for the same purposes as the original. 
Neither party may object to the admissibility of the imaged Agreement on the basis that it was 
not originated or maintained in documentary form. 

25. CULTURALLY AND LINGUISTICALLY APPROPRIATE SERVICES STANDARDS 

To ensure equal access to quality care by diverse populations, Contractor shall adopt 
and implement the federal Office of Minority Health (OMH) national Culturally and 
Linguistically Appropriate Standards (CLAS), and will be demonstrated through policies, 
training and cultural competency plans its efforts address the CLAS requirements. 

26. AUTHORITY 

Each signatory to this Agreement represents that it is authorized to enter into this 
Agreement and to bind the pa11y to which its signature represents. 

8 

Exhibit G

Exhibit G 
8 of 34



IN WITNESS WHEREOF the parties have executed this Agreement the day and year 
first written above. 

County of Kings 

ATTEST: 
Sfp 1 0 2019 

. U\i tri~ ~vffio. & ~ 
~ Catherine\Tenturella, . Clerk to the B~ d 

Approved and Endorsements Received: 

Sande 

APPROVED AS TO FORM: 
Lee Burdick, County Counsel 

Exhibits/ Attachments: 
Exhibit A: Scope of Work 
Exhibit B: Budget 

Jana D. Todd, CSW, CEO 
IDT Co ultants Inc. 

Exhibit C: Kings County ADA Grievances Procedures 
Exhibit D: Assurances and Certifications 
Exhibit E: Branding 
Exhibit F: BAA/HIP AA 

9 

Exhibit G

Exhibit G 
9 of 34



EXHIBIT A 
IDT Consultants Inc. 

SCOPE OF WORK 
July 1, 2019 - June 30, 2021 

Page 1 of 4 

Contractor shall provide Therapeutic Behavioral Services (TBS) to Kings County children/youth 
who are eligible for Medi-Cal, meet criteria for medical necessity, and are referred by Kings 
County Behavioral Health (KCBH). The program will be identified as TBS and individuals 
participating in TBS will be referred to as "clients." 

Description of the TBS Model 
TBS is an intensive, one-to-one, face-to-face, short-te1m outpatient treatment intervention for 
individuals under the age of21 with serious emotional disturbance (SED) who are experiencing a 
stressful transition or life crisis and need additional, short-term, specific support services. These 
services shall be available to children with difficult behaviors who require one-on-one assistance 
and who may be at risk of psychiatric hospitalization. TBS is not a "stand alone" service, and is 
intended to supplement other specialty mental health services by addressing one to three 
behaviors that jeopardize the child's ability to remain in his or her current home. The Contractor 
shall provide the client with skills to effectively manage the behavior(s) or symptom(s) that is the 
bruTier to achieving residence at the lowest appropriate level. TBS services shall be provided in 
the client's home and other environments where the client's behaviors occur. 

A. Kings County TBS Criteria 
Eligible children/youth shall meet all of the following criteria: 

a. Be 21 years of age or younger 
b. Have full-scope Medi-Cal 
c. Be currently receiving mental health services from Kings County Behavioral 

Health (KCBH) or a contracted Mental Health Plan (MHP) agency 
d. Meet one of the following criteria: 

1. Be residing in/being considered for a group home (Level 12 or above) 
facility 

11. Have had at least one emergency psychiatric hospitalization within the last 
24 months 

m. Be at risk for a psychiatric hospitalization 
1v. Be at risk for being removed from home placement 

B. Authorization and Reauthorization 
• All TBS referrals shall be reviewed and authorized by KCBH prior to services being 

rendered. Services provided without approval of the KCBH shall not be reimbursed. 
• Services shall be approved by KCBH for either 30 or 60 days at a time, and are 

expected to produce the desired changes within a few months. 
• Initial 30 day authorization shall include the TBS assessment and Plan of Care. 
• Monthly reauthorization meetings between KCBH and the Contractor shall include 

the following: 

Exhibit G

Exhibit G 
10 of 34



Page 2 of 4 

o Client progress toward behaviors targeted in her/her Plan of Care . in 
measurable terms. The current frequency and duration of behaviors will be 
compared to the prior authorization period. 

o Behaviors by the client as well as precipitating events that are rendering their 
cunent placement at risk will be identified, and a specific intervention plan 
will be determined. 

o Successful interventions in decreasing the client's target behaviors during the 
prior review period will be discussed. Types of interventions to be employed 
in the next authorization period will be overviewed. 

o The strategies and effectiveness of involving the client' s care provider during 
the previous authorization period will be discussed. Additional strategies for 
involving the client's care provider during the upcoming authorization period 
will be identified. 

o The plan for titration and discontinuance of TBS in the upcoming 
authorization period will be determined. 

o The days and hours of service will be identified. 
o The next reauthorization date will be established. 

C. Services 
• Contractor shall be available to accept refenals from KCBH for TBS service delivery 

on a daily basis. 
• Upon receipt of an authorized TBS referral, Contractor shall contact family within 

24-48 hours ofreceiving refe1rnl. 
• Contractor will make efforts to assess each child/youth refened within 1-3 working 

days. 
• A TBS Assessment shall be completed within the first 10 days of service by a 

licensed/waivered staff person. 
• The TBS Assessment shall establish Medical Necessity for TBS by evaluating the 

child/youth's current behavior (presenting problem/impairment) and documenting the 
following: 

o How the behavior causes a significant impairment in an impo1tant area of life 
functioning. 

o A reasonable probability of significant deterioration in an imp01tant area of 
life functioning without TBS services, or 

o A reasonable probability that the client would not progress developmentally as 
individually appropriate without TBS services. 

• During the first 30 days of service services should range between 6-12 hours per 
week. If more hours are required, Contractor should contact with the KCBH' s 
Children's System of Care Program Manager for authorization. 

• Contractor shall match the client with a coach or coaches. The matching process 
between the client and coach(es) is an impo1tant component of the TBS model and 
shall take into consideration factors that include: 

o Cultural background 
o The client's and/or provider's primary language 
o Consumer age and gender 

Exhibit G

Exhibit G 
11 of 34



Page 3 of 4 

o The coach's experience and training m working with the client's target 
behaviors 

o The client's disabilities or handicaps 
o Known client and care provider needs, strengths, and family dynamics 

• Contractor shall develop a Plan of Care for each client served, and include 
identification of the following: 

o Behaviors exhibited by the client that are rendering their cunent placement at 
risk, and the need of intervention 

o The precipitating event(s), frequency and duration of each target behavior 
o Days and hours of service, based on the client's needs 
o Specific interventions to be employed to address the target behaviors 
o Strategies for involving the client's care provider 
o The plan for titration and discontinuance of TBS services, as improvements 

occur 
• If applicable, a plan for transition to adult services when the 

beneficiary turns 21 years old and is no longer eligible for TBS 
o A Safety Plan, which will include the following: 

• Vital information for an anticipated crisis 
• Interventions to be unde1iaken by the a coach is not present with the 

client and caretaker 
• Contractor will accept expedited referrals from KCBH. Contractor will contact 

family the same day the refenal is received and schedule an assessment with 24-48 
hours. 

D. Progress Notes and Documentation 
• Documentation is required each day that TBS is delivered. All direct service 

documentation shall be completed in accordance with KCBH's documentation 
guidelines. 

• Progress notes shall include a comprehensive summary covering the time that 
services were provided, but need not document every minute of service time. 

• Progress notes shall be co-signed by a licensed mental health professional 
(LMHP) if the TBS coach providing the service is not an LMHP. 

• TBS Progress notes shall clearly and specifically document the following: 
o Whether there have been significant changes in the client's environment 

since the initial development of the TBS Plan of Care 
o Whether TBS provided to the client has not been effective and the client is 

not making progress toward identified goals 
• In this situation, there must be documented evidence in the chaii 

and any additional information from the provider indicating that 
they have considered alternatives, and only requested additional 
hours/days for TBS based on the documented expectation that 
additional time will be effective. 

o Whether progress is being made in stabilizing the behaviors and/or 
symptoms by changing or eliminating maladaptive behaviors and 
increasing adaptive behaviors 

Exhibit G

Exhibit G 
12 of 34



Page 4 of 4 

E. Staffing 
• Contractor agrees to provide adequate staffing for TBS services in Kings County 

as detailed in this Scope of Work. 
• Contractor shall compose a staff that reflects the population being served, both 

culturally and linguistically. 

F. Contractor Deliverables 
• Contractor shall comply will all reporting requirements from KCBH. 
• Contractor shall adhere to KCBH's utilization and compliance review processes. 
• Contractor shall identify a suitable representative to attend regularly scheduled 

meetings or other meetings scheduled by the Director of Behavioral Health of 
his/her designee. Meetings may include, but are not limited to case staffings, 
child and family team meetings, and contract monitoring meetings. 

G. Provider Grievance Procedure 
• Contractor may appeal a denied, terminated, or modified request for services from 

KCBH. The written appeal shall be submitted to KCBH within thirty (30) 
calendar days of the postmark of the notification of the denial, termination, or 
modification. Send appeal to: 

Kings County Behavioral Health 
Managed Care Division 

460 Kings County Drive, Suite 101 
ATTN: Grievances/ Appeals 

Exhibit G

Exhibit G 
13 of 34



Page 1 of 3 

EXHIBIT-B 

KINGS COUNTY BUDGET FY 19/20 AND FY 20/21 

Budget Categories Total Proposed Budget 
FTE 

Line Item Description (Must be itemized) % Admin. Direct Total 

PERSONNEL SALARIES 
0001 TBS Supervisor (1) 100% 75,000.00 75,000.00 

0002 TBS Coaches (4) 100% 160,000 160,000.00 

0003 TBS Program Manager 10% 3,400.00 3,400.00 

0004 TBS Adminstrative Assistant 10% 2,500.00 2,500.00 

0005 TBS Medical Records Clerk 10% 2,500.00 2,500.00 

0006 Full-Charge Bookkeeper 10% 3,400.00 3,400.00 

0007 Chief Executive Officer 5% 4,000.00 4,000.00 

0008 
SALARY $ $ $ 

TOTAL 15,800.00 235,000.00 250,800.00 

PAYROLL TAXES 
0030 OASDI 948.00 14,100.00 15,048.00 

0031 MEDICARE 316.00 4,700.00 5,016.00 

0032 U.1. 16 268 284 
PAYROLL TAX $ $ $ 

TOTAL 1,280.00 19,068.00 20,348.00 

EMPLOYEE BENEFITS 
0040 Retirement 
0041 Health Insurance 

0042 Life Insurance 
0043 Frinae Benefits - 15% 2,370.00 29,622.00 31,992.00 

EMPLOYEE $ $ $ 
BENEFITS TOTAL 2,370.00 29,622.00 31,992.00 

$ 
SALARY & BENEFITS GRAND TOTAL 303,140.00 

FACILITY/EQUIPMENT EXPENSES 

1010 Rent/Lease Building 5,000.00 

1030 Rent/Lease Equipment 

1050 Utilities 2,114.00 
$ 

FACILITY/EQUIPMENT TOTAL 7,114.00 

Exhibit G

Exhibit G 
14 of 34



Page 2 of 3 

EXHIBIT-B 

KINGS COUNTY BUDGET FY 19/20 AND FY 20/21 

OPERATING EXPENSES· 
Land Lines and Cellular 

1060 Telephone Phones 

1061 Answering Services 
1062 Postage 
1070 Printing/Reproduction 
1071 Publications 
1072 Legal Notices/Advertising 
1080 Office Supplies 
1090 Household Supplies 
1100 Medication Services 

Program Supplies - Therapeutic 
1120 Supplies 

Program Supplies - Incentives, Graduations, 

1122 Activities 

1130 Transportation of Clients 

1140 Staff Mileage 
1141 Staff Travel (Out of County) 
1150 Staff Training/Registration 

1151 Lodging 
1152 Other Operating Expenses (list) 

OPERATING EXPENSES TOTAL 

FINANCIAL SERVICES EXPENSES: 

1160 Administrative Overhead 

1161 External Audit 
1170 Worker's Compensation Insurance 
1171 Liability Insurance 
1172 Insurance-Other Auto & EPLI 

Sexual 
1173 Other (list) Molestation 

FINANCIAL SERVICES TOTAL 

SPECIAL EXPENSES (ConsultanUSPecialist): 

2,500.00 

224.00 
125.00 

0.00 
391.00 

4,200.00 
0 

0.00 

19,586.00 

17,985.00 
514.00 

12,448.00 
0.00 

: 
3,000.00 

0.00 

$ 
60,973.00 

0.00 
1,500.00 
2,200.00 
2,200.00 
1,754.00 

250.00 
$ 

7,904.00 

2,000.00 
1,000.00 

1180 
1181 

Computer/Email Maintenance & Repair/Software/Encryption 
Interpreter Services 

SPECIAL EXPENSE TOTAL I 3~000.00 

FIXED ASSETS: 

12000 
2001 

FIXED ASSETS TOT AL I 

TOTAL PROJECTED EXPENSES 13$82,131.00 

Exhibit G

Exhibit G 
15 of 34



Page 3 of 3 
EXHIBIT-B 

l<INGS COUNTY BUDGET FY 19/20 AND FY 20/21 

PROJECTED REVENUE: 

Vol/Units 

Revenue/Service Descriptions of Svs Rate 
$ 

3000 TBS Services 181 ,967 2.1 382,131.00 

3100 
3200 

REVENUE TOTAL 

TOTAL PROJECTED COSTS I $ 
FOR EACH FISCAL YEAR 382,131.00 

Cost per unit ____ 2_.1_ 

Exhibit G

Exhibit G 
16 of 34



Exhibit C 

County of Kings 2016 ADA Self-Evaluation 

AppendixE. 

Kings County ADA Grievance Procedure 

Kings County 
Grievance Procedure under ADA or 

California State Disability Civil Rights Laws 

This grievance procedure is established to meet the requirements of the Americans with 
Disabilities Act of 1990 ("ADA"), the Americans with Disabilities Amendments Act 
(ADAAA) and Californic1, State law. Except as otherwise indicated, it may be used by 
anyone wishing to file a complaint alleging discrimination on the basis of disability in the 
provision of services, activities, programs or benefits by Kings County. The procedure 
should also be used to address all complaints regarding barriers to physical access to any 
County facility. 

NOTE: Discrimination complaints by applicants for, and recipients of, public benefits 
administered by the County are handled by the Human Services Agency, pursuant to state 
law and the Human Services Agency's Administrative policy and Procedure No. 23. 
Notice of this fact is provided to all applicants and recipients. For more information, 
please contact the Program Manager/Civil Rights Coordinator for the Human Services 
Agency at 559.852.2201. If you submit a complaint to the ADA Coordinator that should 
be directed to the Human Services Agency, your complaint will be forwarded to the 
Human Services Agency, and will be deemed received by the Human Services Agency 
upon actual receipt by it for purposes of the filing and response deadlines stated in Policy. 
and procedure No. 23. Please also note that the County's Personnel Rules govern 
employment related complaints of disability discrimination. Please refer to section 10200 
to 10250 of the Personnel Rules regarding the County's grievance procedure, as well as 
Chapter 14 of the Personnel Rules regarding discrimination complaints. The process 
described in either part may be relied upon to make a complaint of disability 
discrimination. 

A complaint using this procedure should be in writing and should contain information 
about the alleged discrimination such as name, address, and phone number of the 
complainant and location, date and description of the problem(s). If you are viewing 
these instructions online at the County's website, please find the form for making a 
complaint below. Copies of the complaint form are also available from the Public Works 
Department or County Administration Office, County Government Center, 1400 West 
Lacey, Hanford, CA 93230. Alternative means of filing a complaint, such as personal 
interviews or a tape recording of the complaint, are available to person with disabilities 
upon request. 

Exhibit G

Exhibit G 
17 of 34



Exhibit C 

County of Kings 2016 ADA Self-Evaluation 

The complaint should be submitted by the complainant and/or his/her designee as soon as 
possible, but not later than 60 calendar days after the alleged violation to: 

Kevin McAlister, ADA Coordinator 
County Government Center 

1400 West Lacey Blvd. 
Hanford, CA 93,230 

If this complaint is being made on behalf of someone other than me, that person's contact 
information is: 

My complaint relates to circumstances that occurred: 

a) On the following date: 

b) At the following location: 

My complaint is as follows: 

(Please be as specific as possible, and include the names and contact information of 
anyone who might have knowledge of the facts giving rise to your complaint. To help us 
to address your concerns promptly, please stick to the facts: who, want, when, where, 
and how. Please attach additional pages if necessary.) 

2014-2-434 [99311] 

Exhibit G

Exhibit G 
18 of 34



ExhibitD 

ASSURANCES AND CERTIFICATIONS 

Contractor hereby agrees that programs and services receiving financial assistance from and 
through the California Department of Health Care Services or Kings County Behavioral Health 
will be administered in accordance with the Health and Safety Code Sections 11750 et seq. and 
any other applicable state or federal requirements, including civil rights . . 

A. Contractor certifies and agrees that: 

I. A working transition plan for services to persons with disabilities exists and is in 
use as defined in Title 9, Section 10800, et seq. of the California Code of 
Regulations (CCR).' 

2. All products, rep01is, preliminary findings, or data assembled or complied by 
Contractor under this Agreement becomes the property of the State. The State 
reserves the right to authorize others to use or reproduce such materials. 

3. All announcements of events, such as public meetings, hearings, or training 
courses, shall include a statement of advance notice for accommodations for any 
disabled, deaf, or hearing impaired individual. 

4. Limited English Proficiency (LEP) - Contractor will take reasonable steps to 
ensure meaningful access to its programs, services, and inf01mation on the 
services the Contractor provides, free of charge. Additionally, the Contractor 
ce1iifies that it has established and implemented as required by State DHCS, 
policies and procedures for language assistance services that provide LEP persons 
with meaningful access, i.e. oral interpretation services, bilingual staff, telephone 
interpreter lines, written language services, community volunteers, etc. 

5. Sexual contact shall be prohibited between participants/clients and the 
treatment/recovery program staff, including members to the Board of Directors. 
Service Providers shall include this policy prohibition as part of an overall clients' 
rights statement given to the client at admission and shall include a statement in 
each employee personnel file that notes that the employee has read and 
understood the sexual contact prohibition. This policy shall remain in effect for 
six (6) months after a client is discharged from treatment services. 

Contractor further agrees to establish a complaint policy and procedure which provides the 
following: 

I. A procedure by which a person of any class of persons subjected to discrimination 
prohibited by Title VI of the Civil Rights Act of 1964, Section 504 of the 
Rehabilitation Act of 1973, Section 11135, et seq. of the California Government 
Code, or Title 9, Section 10800, et seq. of the California Code of Regulations may 
individually or by a representative file a written complaint. The subject complaint 
will clearly state under which law the complaint is filed. 

Page 1 of 3 

Exhibit G

Exhibit G 
19 of 34



Exhibit D 

2. A statement advising individuals that complaints may be filed with the County or 
the U.S. Depaiiment of Health and Human Services' Office for Civil Rights 
("OCR"). 

3. A statement advising individuals that in cases where the complaint is filed 
initially with the OCR, the OCR may elect to investigate the complaint or request 
that the Civil Rights Officer for the County conduct the investigation. 

4. Within the time limits procedurally imposed, the complainant shall be advised in 
writing as to the findings regarding the alleged complaint. In the same written 
notice, the complainant shall be advised that if he/she is not satisfied with the 
decision, an appeal may be filed with the U.S. Depaiiment of Health and Human 
Services' Office for Civil Rights. 

5. Maintenance of records regarding: 

(a) number of complaints filed; 

(b) the nature of the complaint; · 

( c) the validity of the complaint; and 

( d) conective action taken. 

Contractor shall adhere to the confidentiality of patient records as specified under State, Federal, 
and local laws, including, but not limited to, Title 45 of the Code of Federal Regulations, Parts 
80 and 84, Title VI of the Civil Rights Act of 1964, and the privacy requirements of the "Privacy 
Rule" (HIP AA) promulgated by the U.S. Depaiiment Health and Human Services at Title 45 of 
the Code of Federal Regulations, sections 160 through 164. Nothing in this paragraph shall 
preclude the parties from subsequently entering into a Business Associate Agreement if required 
by the Privacy Rule. 

Drug-Free Workplace Government Code Section 8355 

Contractor agrees that all prograin contractors of services receiving funds from and 
through the State Department of Health Care Services will provide an alcohol/drug free 
workplace by doing all of the following: 

1. Publishing a statement notifying employees that the unlawful manufacture, 
distribution, dispensation, possession, or use of a controlled substance is 
prohibited in the person or organization's workplace and specifying the actions 
that will be talcen against employees for violations of said prohibition. 

2. Establishing a drug-free awareness pro grain to inform employees about all of the 
following: 

a. The dangers of drug abuse in the workplace; 

Page 2 of 3 

Exhibit G

Exhibit G 
20 of 34



Exhibit D 

b. The person or organization's policy of maintaining a drug-free· workplace; 

c. Any available drug counseling, rehabilitation, and employee assistance 
programs; 

d. The penalties that may be imposed upon employees for drug abuse 
violations. 

3. Requiring that each employee engaged in the performance of the contract or grant 
be given a copy of the company's drug-free policy statement and that, as a 
condition of employment on the contract or grant, the employee agrees to abide 
by the terms of the statement. [Chapter 5.5 Section 8350 to Division 1 of Title 2 
of the Government Code.] 

Page 3 of 3 

Exhibit G

Exhibit G 
21 of 34



Behavioral Health 
County of Kings 
Branding Policy 
Created August, 2009 

Overview 

Exhibit E 

Behavioral Health (BH) is a department within Kings County and serves as the funder, 
coordinator, and administrator of mental health services and alcohol and other drug 
services in Kings County. 

The Mission of BH is to promote, support, and invest in the wellness and recovery of 
individuals living in the communities of Kings County. To achieve this end, BH 
contracts with a number of community based providers, organizations, and agencies to 
provide a variety of services that range from prevention, family support groups, mental 
health crisis response, addiction treatment, etc. In addition, BH funds a number of local 
programs, initiatives, and activities to also promote, support, and invest in the wellness of 
individuals in residing within the County. 

Purpose 
The services funded by BH are almost entirely funded with public dollars earmarked to 
provide specific services. As such, BH deems it necessary to demonstrate to the public 
how it: 1) utilizes those public funds; 2) exhibits the types of projects, programs, and 
services it is funding; and 3) generate public awareness of the collaboration between 
various programs in the County and the BH. 

This awareness is conducted through the Branding Policy developed by BH. This 
Branding policy includes the following stipulations: 

• Contractors, Grantors, and Providers shall ensure that all program outreach 
materials, brochures, flyers, special event announcements, and press releases 
regarding any program funded dfrectly or in part by BH contain the language that 
reflects that services are funded by Kings County Behavioral Health. 

• All written materials, including, but not limited to flyers, brochures, and/or other 
written material must contain the BH logo. This applies to any and all electronic 
materials as well as websites, on-line advertising, and social networking sites, etc. 

• The BH Logo must appear in its original color (Black and Purple) and format, 
unless the entire document is going to be in grayscale or black and white. In such 
instance, the logo may appear in such a manner as to be uniform with the 
document. 

• Whenever possible BH wants and the logo to appear on materials in addition to 
the required funding language. 

• The language for the branding must be written in the following format statement: 
"(name of organization) (type of) services funded by Kings County Behavioral 
Health." 

• BH reserves the right to review materials for public use that has the branding 
language and logo should that service be funded by BH. Should material 

Page 1 of2 

Exhibit G

Exhibit G 
22 of 34



Exhibit E 

containing BH language and logo, or services funded, are used in a manner that is 
deemed offensive, discriminatory, political, or in violation of any County . wide 
policies, BH has a right to demand the revision of the materials or services to 
eliminate any identified concerns. BH reserves the right to approve the use of 
materials utilizing the BH Brand should the need arise. 

• BH will not allow its brand to be associated with any services, program, action, 
that may be perceived by the public to be damaging to the County or any of its 
agencies, or contr?,ry to the mission of BH. 

Benefits 
The branding policy ensures that BH and Kings County are afforded the appropriate 
recognition for its funding of and/or support of publicly available programs. The 
Branding policy also provides assurances for BH that its name, logo, and funding are not 
used in manner that may be damaging to the public or the County. 

· The Branding policy also works to provide the partnering agencies with a direct 
collaborative connection to BH and demonstrate to the public the joint effort to seeking 
the overall wellness of the people and communities of Kings County. 

BH is available to address any concerns or issues not covered in this policy on a case by 
· case bases. 

Page 2 of2 

Exhibit G

Exhibit G 
23 of 34



Exhibit F 

HIP AA Business Associate Exhibit 

I. Recitals. 

A. This Agreement has been determined to constitute a business associate 
relationship under the Health Insurance P01tability and Accountability Act ("HIP AA") and 
its implementing privacy and security regulations at 45 CFR Parts 160 and 164 ("the 
HIP AA regulations"). 

B. Kings County ("County") wishes to, or may, disclose to Business Associate 
certain information pursuant to the terms of this Agreement, some of which may constitute 
Protected Health Information ("PHI") pursuant to HIP AA regulations. 

C. "Protected Health Information" or "PHI" means any information, whether 
oral or recorded in any form or medium that relates to the past, present, or future physical 
or mental condition of an individual, the provision of health and dental care to an 
individual, or the past, present, or future payment for the provision of health and dental 
care to an individual; and that identifies the individual or with respect to which there is a 
reasonable basis to believe the information can be used to identify the individual. PHI shall 
have the meaning given to such te1m under HIP AA and HIP AA regulations, as the same 
may be amended from time to time. 

D. "Security Incident" means the attempted or successful unauthorized access, 
use, disclosure, modification, or destruction of PHI, or confidential data that is essential to 
the ongoing operation of the Business Associate's organization and intended for internal 
use; or interference with system operations in an information system. 

E. As set fo1th in this Agreement, Contractor IDT Consultants Inc. is the 
Business Associate of County that provides services, ananges, performs or assists in the 
perfo1mance of functions or activities on behalf of County and creates, receives, maintains, 
transmits, uses or discloses PHI. 

F. County and Business Associate desire to protect the privacy and provide for 
the security of PHI created, received, maintained, transmitted, used or disclosed pursuant 
to this Agreement, in compliance with HIP AA and HIP AA regulations. 

G. The purpose of this Exhibit is to satisfy ce1tain standards and requirements 
of HIP AA and the HIP AA regulations, and other applicable laws. 

H. The terms used in this Exhibit, but not otherwise defined, shall have the 
same meanings as those te1ms are defined in the HIP AA regulations. 

In exchanging info1mation pursuant to this Agreement, the patties agree as follows: 

Page 1 of 11 

Exhibit G

Exhibit G 
24 of 34



Exhibit F 

II. Permitted Uses and Disclosures of PHI by Business Associate. 

A. Permitted Uses and Disclosures. Except as otherwise indicated in this 
Exhibit, Business Associate may use or disclose PHI only to perform functions, activities 
or services specified in this Agreement, for, or on behalf of County, provided that such use 
or disclosure would not violate the HIP AA regulations, if done by County. 

B. Specific Use and Disclosure Provisions. Except as otherwise indicated in 
this Exhibit, Business Associate may: 

1) Use and Disclose for Management and Administration. Use and 
disclose PHI for the proper management and administration of the Business Associate or to 
caiTy out the legal responsibilities of the Business Associate, provided that disclosures are 
required by law, or the Business Associate obtains reasonable assurances from the person 
to whom the info1mation is disclosed that it will remain confidential and will be used or 
further disclosed only as required by law or for the purpose for which it was disclosed to 
the person, and the person notifies the Business Associate of any instances of which it is 
aware that the confidentiality of the information has been breached. 

2) Provision of Assertive Community Treatment Team ("ACT'~ Program Services. 
Use and disclose PHI to provide ACT program services to County. ACT program services 
means the provision of services to adults and their natural supports as further defined in 
the Scope of Work, which is attached as Exhibit A to the Agreement who are consumers 
serviced through Business Associate. 

III. Responsibilities of Business Associate. 

Business Associate agrees: 

A. Nondisclosure. Not to use or disclose Protected Health Inf01mation (PHI) 
other than as permitted or required by this Agreement or as required by law. 

B. Safeguards. To implement administrative, physical, and technical 
safeguards that reasonably and appropriately protect the confidentiality, integrity, and 
availability of the PHI, including electronic PHI, that it creates, receives, maintains, uses or 
transmits on behalf of County; and to prevent use or disclosure of PHI other than as 
provided for by this Agreement. Business Associate shall develop and maintain a written 
information privacy and security program that includes administrative, technical and 
physical safeguards appropriate to the size and complexity of the Business Associate' s 
operations and the nature and scope of its activities, and which incorporates the 
requirements of section C, Security, below. Business Associate will provide County with 
its current and updated policies. 

C. Security. The Business Associate shall take any and all steps necessai·y to 
ensure the continuous security of all computerized data systems containing County PHI. 
These steps shall include, at a minimum: 

Page 2 of 11 

Exhibit G

Exhibit G 
25 of 34



Exhibit F 

1) Complying with all of the data system security precautions listed in 
the Business Associate Data Security Standards set forth in Attachment 1 to this Exhibit; 

2) Security Officer. If the incident occurs after business hours or on a 
weekend or holiday and involves electronic PHI, notification shall be provided by calling 
the County ITSD Help Desk. Business Associate shall take: 

i. Prompt conective action to mitigate any risks or damages 
involved with the breach and to protect the operating environment and 

ii. Any action pertaining to such unauthorized disclosure 
required by applicable Federal and State laws and regulations. 

3) Investigation of Breach. To immediately investigate such security 
incident; breach, or unauthorized use or disclosure of PHI or confidential data. Within 72 
hours of the discove1y, to notify the County: 

1. 

involved in the breach, 
What data elements were involved and the extent of the data 

ii. A description of the unauthorized persons known or 
reasonably believed to have impi-operly used or disclosed PHI or confidential data, 

111. A description of where the PHI or confidential data is 
believed to have been improperly transmitted, sent, or utilized, 

1v. A description of the probable causes of the improper use or 
disclosure; and 

v. Whether Civil Code sections 1798.29 or 1798.82 or any 
other federal or state laws requiring individual notifications of breaches are triggered. 

4) Written Report. To provide a written rep01t of the investigation to 
the County under HIP AA within ten (10) working days of the ·discovery of the breach or 
unauthorized use or disclosure. The report shall include, but not be limited to, the 
info1mation specified above, as well as a full, detailed corrective action plan, including 
information on measures that were taken to halt and/or contain the improper use or 
disclosure. 

5) Notification of Individuals. To notify individuals of the breach or 
unauthorized use or disclosure when notification is required under state or federal law and 
to pay any costs of such notifications, as well as any costs associated with the breach. The 
County shall approve the time, manner and content ·of any such notifications. 

6) County Contact Information. To direct communications to the 
above referenced County staff, Business Associate shall initiate contact as indicated herein. 
County reserves the right to make changes to the contact information below by giving 
written notice to the Business Associate. Said changes shall not require an amendment to 
this Exhibit or the Agreement to which it is incorporated. 

Page 3 of 11 

Exhibit G

Exhibit G 
26 of 34



County Administrative Office 
County of Kings 
1400 W. Lacey Blvd. 
Hanford, CA 93230 

and 

Exhibit F 

Kings County Behavioral Health 
460 Kings County Drive, No. 101 
Hanford, CA 93230 

D. Employee Training and Discipline. To train and use reasonable measures 
to ensure compliance with the requirements of this Exhibit by employees who assist in the 
performance of functions or activities on behalf of County under this Agreement and use 
or disclose PHI; and discipline such employees who intentionally violate any provisions of 
this Exhibit, including by te1mination of employment. In complying with the.provisions of 
this section, Business Associate shall observe the following requirements: 

1) Business Associate shall provide information privacy and security 
training, at least annually, at its own expense, to all its employees who assist in the 
performance of functions or activities on behalf of County under this Agreement and use 
or disclose PHI. 

2) Business Associate shall require each employee who receives 
information privacy and security training to sign a certification, indicating the employee's 
name and the date on which the training was completed. 

3) Business Associate shall retain each employee's written 
certifications for County inspection for a period of six (6) years following contract 
termination. 

IV. Obligations of County. 

County agrees to: 

A. Notice of Privacy Practices. Provide Business Associate with applicable 
and relevant Notice( s) of Privacy Practices that County HIP AA-covered healthcare 
components produce in accordance with 45 CFR 164.520, as well as any changes to such 
notice(s). 

B. Permission by Individuals for Use and Disclosure of PHI. Provide the 
Business Associate with any changes in, or revocation of, permission by an Individual to 
use or disclose PHI, if such changes affect the Business Associate's permitted or required 
uses and disclosures. 

C. Notification oj Restrictions. Notify the Business Associate of any 
restriction to the use or disclosure of PHI that County has agreed to in accordance with 45 
CFR 164.522, to the extent that such restriction may affect the Business Associate's use or 
disclosure of PHI. 

Page 4 of 11 

Exhibit G

Exhibit G 
27 of 34



Exhibit F 

D. Requests Conflicting with 1IIPAA Rules. Not request the Business 
Associate to use or disclose PHI in any manner that would not be pe1missible under the 
HIP AA regulations if done by County. 

V. Audits, Inspection and Enforcement. 

From time to time, County may inspect the facilities, systems, books and records of 
Business Associate to monitor compliance with this Agreement and this Exhibit. Business 
Associate shall promptly remedy any violation of any provision of this Exhibit and shall 
cettify the same to the County Privacy Officer or the County Chief Info1mation Security 
Officer in writing. The fact that County inspects, or fails to inspect, or has the right to 
inspect, Business Associate's facilities, systems and procedures does not relieve Business 
Associate of its responsibility to comply with this Exhibit, nor does County's: 

A. Failure to detect or 

B. Detection, but failure to notify Business Associate or require Business 
Associate's remediation of any unsatisfactory practices constitute acceptance of such 
practice or a waiver of County's enforcement rights under this Agreement and this Exhibit. 

VI. Termination. 

A. Termination for Cause. Upon County's knowledge of a material breach of 
this Exhibit by Business Associate, County shall: 

1) Provide an opp01iunity for Business Associate to cure the breach or 
end the violation and terminate this Agreement if Business Associate does not cure the 
breach or end the violation within the time specified by County; 

2) Immediately terminate this Agreement if Business Associate has 
breached a material term of this Exhibit and cure is not possible; or 

3) If neither cure nor termination is feasible, repott the violation to the 
Secretary of the U.S. Depaitment of Health and Human Services. 

B. Judicial or Administrative Proceedings. Business Associate will notify 
County if it is named as a defendant in a criminal proceeding for a violation of HIP AA. 
County may terminate this Agreement if Business Associate is found guilty of a criminal 
violation of HIP AA. County may terminate this Agreement if a finding or stipulation that 
the Business Associate has violated any standard or requirement of HIP AA, or other 
security or privacy laws is made in any administrative or civil proceeding in which the 
Business Associate is a party or has been joined. 

C. Effect of Termination. Upon termination or expiration of this Agreement 
for any reason, Business Associate shall promptly return or destroy all PHI received from 
County ( or created or received by Business Associate on behalf of County) that Business 

Page 5 of 11 

Exhibit G

Exhibit G 
28 of 34



Exhibit F 

Associate still maintains in any fo1m, and shall retain no copies of such PHI or, if return or 
destruction is not feasible, shall continue to extend the protections of this Exhibit to such 
info1mation, and shall limit further use of such PHI to those purposes that make the return 
or destruction of such PHI infeasible. This provision shall apply to PHI that is in the 
possession of subcontractors or agents of Business Associate. 

VII. Miscellaneous Provisions. 

A. Disclaimer. County makes no warranty or representation that compliance 
by Business Associate with this Exhibit, HIP AA or the HIP AA regulations will be 
adequate or satisfactory for Business Associate's own purposes or that any information in 
Business Associate's possession or control, or transmitted or received by Business 
Associate, is or will be secure from unauthorized use or disclosure. Business Associate is 
solely responsible for all decisions made.by Business Associate regarding the safeguarding 
of PHI. 

B. Amendment. The parties acknowledge that federal and state laws relating 
to electronic data security and privacy are rapidly evolving and that amendment of this 
Exhibit may be required to provide for procedures to ensure compliance with such 
developments. The parties specifically agree to take such action as is necessary to 
implement the standards and requirements of HIP AA, the HIP AA regulations and other 
applicable laws relating to the ·security or privacy of PHI. Upon County's request, Business 
Associate agrees to promptly enter into negotiations with County concerning an 
amendment to this Exhibit embodying written assurances consistent with the standards and 
requirements of HIP AA, the HIP AA regulations or other applicable laws. County may 
te1minate this Agreement upon thirty (30) days written notice in the event: 

1) Business Associate does not promptly enter into negotiations to 
amend this Exhibit when requested by County pursuant to this Section or 

2) Business Associate does not enter into an amendment providing 
assurances regarding the safeguarding and security of PHI that County, in its sole 
discretion, deems -sufficient to satisfy the standards and requirements of HIP AA and the 
HIP AA regulations. 

C. Assistance in Litigation or Administrative Proceedings. Business 
Associate shall make itself and any subcontractors, employees, or agents assisting Business 
Associate in the performance of its obligations under this Agreement, available to County 
at no cost to County to testify as witnesses, or otherwise, in the event of litigation or 
administrative proceedings being commenced against County, its directors, officers or 
employees based upon claimed violation of HIP AA, the HIP AA regulations or other laws 
relating to security and privacy, which involves inactions or actions by the Business 
Associate, except where Business Associate or its subcontractor, employee, or agent is a 
named adverse party. 

Page 6 of 11 

Exhibit G

Exhibit G 
29 of 34



Exhibit F 

D. No Third-Party Beneficiaries. Nothing express or implied in the terms and 
conditions of this Exhibit is intended to confer, nor shall anything herein confer, upon any 
person other than County or Business Associate and their respective successors or 
assignees, any rights, remedies, obligations or liabilities whatsoever. 

E. Inte1pretation. The te1ms and conditions in this Exhibit shall be interpreted 
as broadly as necessary to implement and comply with HIP AA, the HIP AA regulations 
and applicable state laws. The paiiies agree that any ambiguity in the terms and conditions 
of this Exhibit shall be resolved in favor of a meaning that complies and is consistent with 
HIP AA and the HIP AA regulations. 

F. Regulat01y References. ·A reference in the te1ms and conditions of this 
Exhibit to a section in the HIP AA regulations means the section as in effect or as amended. 

G. Survival. The respective rights and obligations of Business Associate under 
Section VII.C of this Exhibit shall survive the te1miilation or expiration of this Agreement. 

H. No Waiver of Obligations. No change, waiver or discharge of any liability 
or obligation hereunder on any one or more occasions shall be deemed a waiver of 
perfo1mance of any continuing or other obligation, or shall prohibit enforcement of any 
obligation, on any other occasion. 

Page 7 of 11 

Exhibit G

Exhibit G 
30 of 34



Exhibit F 

Attachment 1 
Business Associate Data Security Standards 

I. General Security Controls. 

A. Confidentiality Statement. All persons that will be working with County 
PHI must sign a confidentiality statement. The statement must include at a minimum, 
General Use, Security and Privacy Safeguards, Unacceptable Use, and Enforcement 
Policies. The statement must be signed by the workforce member prior to access to 
County PHI. The statement must be renewed annually. The Business Associate shall retain 
each person's written confidentiality statement for County inspection for a period of six (6) 
years following contract termination. 

B. Background Check. Before a member of the Business Associate's 
workforce may access County PHI, Business Associate must conduct a thorough 
background check of that worker and evaluate the results to assure that there is no 
indication that the worker may present a risk for theft of confidential data. The Business 
Associate shall retain each workforce member's background check documentation for a 
period of three (3) years following contract termination. 

C. Workstation/Laptop Enc1yption. All workstations and laptops that process 
and/or store County PHI must be encrypted using a FIPS 140-2 certified algorithm, such as 
Advanced Encryption Standard (AES), with a 128bit key or higher. The encryption 
solution must be full disk unless approved by the County Information Security Office. 

D. Server Security. Servers containing unencrypted County PHI must have 
sufficient administrative, physical, and technical controls in place to protect that data, 
based upon a risk assessment/system security review. 

E. Minimum Necessmy. Only the minimum necessary amount of County PHI 
required to perform necessary business functions may be copied, downloaded, or exported. 

F. Removable Media Devices. All electronic files that contain County PHI 
data must be encrypted when stored on any removable media or portable device (i.e. USB 
thumb drives, floppies, CD/DVD, Blackberry, backup tapes, etc.). Must be encrypted 
using a FIPS 140-2 certified algorithm, such as Advanced Encryption Standard (AES), 
with a 128bit key or higher. 

G. Antivirus Software. All workstations, laptops and other systems that 
process and/or store County PHI must install and actively use comprehensive anti-virus 
software solution with automatic updates scheduled at least daily. 

H. Patch Management. All workstations, laptops and other systems that 
process and/or store County PHI must have security patches applied, with system reboot if 
necessary. There must be a documented patch management process which determines 

Page 8 of 11 

Exhibit G

Exhibit G 
31 of 34



ExhibitF 

installation timeframe based on risk assessment and vendor recommendations. At a 
maximum, all applicable patches must be installed within 30 days of vendor release. 

I. Usel' IDs and Password Contl'ols. All users must be issued a unique user 
name for accessing County PHI. Username must be promptly disabled, deleted, or the 
password changed upon the transfer or termination of an employee with knowledge of the 
password. Passwords are not to be shared. Must be at least eight characters. Must be a 
non-dictionary word. Must not be stored in readable format on the computer. Must be 
changed every 60 days. Must be changed if revealed or compromised. Must be composed 
of characters from at least three of the following four groups from the standard keyboard: 

• Upper case letters (A-Z) 
• Lower case letters (a-z) 
• Arabic numerals (0-9) 
• Non-alphanumeric characters (punctuation symbols) 

J. Data Sanitization. All County PHI must be sanitized using NIST Special 
Publication 800-88 standard methods for data sanitization when the County PSCI is no 
longer needed. 

II. System Security Controls. 

A. System Timeout. The system must provide an automatic timeout, requiring 
re-authentication of the user session after no more than 20 minutes of inactivity. 

B. Warning Banners. All systems containing County PHI must display a 
warning banner stating that data is confidential, systems are logged, and system use is for 
business purposes only. User must be directed to log off the system if they do not agree 
with these requirements. 

C. System Logging. The system must maintain an automated audit trail which 
can identify the user or system process which initiates a request for County PHI, or which 
alters County PHI. The audit trail must be date and time stamped, must log both 
successful and failed accesses, must be read only, and must be restricted to authorized 
users. If County PHI is stored in a database, database logging functionality must be 
enabled. Audit trail data must be archived for at least six (6) years after occurrence. 

D. Access Controls. The system must use role based access controls for all 
user authentications, enforcing the principle of least privilege. 

E. Transmission Enc1yption. All data transmissions of County PHI outside 
the secure internal network must be encrypted using a FIPS 140-2 certified algorithm, such 
as Advanced Encryption Standard (AES), with a 128bit key or higher. Encryption can be 
end to end at the network level, or the data files containing County PHI can be encrypted. 
This requirement pertains to any type of County PHI in motion such as website access, file 
transfer, and E-Mail. 

Page 9 of 11 

Exhibit G

Exhibit G 
32 of 34



Exhibit F 

F. Intrusion Detection. All systems involved in accessing, holding, 
transpotting, and protecting County PHI that are accessible via the Internet must be 
protected by a comprehensive intrusion detection and prevention solution. 

III. Audit Controls. 

A. System Security Review. All systems processing and/or storing County PHI 
must have at least an annual system risk assessment/security review which provides 
assurance that administrative, physical, and technical controls are functioning effectively 
and providing adequate levels of protection. Reviews shall include vulnerability scanning 
tools. 

B. Log Reviews. All systems processing and/or storing County PHI must have 
a routine procedure in place to review system logs for unauthorized access. 

C. Change Control. All systems processing and/or storing County PHI must 
have a documented change control procedure that ensures separation of duties and protects 
the confidentiality, integrity and availability of data. 

IV. Business Continuity/ Disaster Recovery Controls. 

A. Disaster Recove1y. Business Associate must establish a documented plan 
to enable continuation of critical business processes and protection of the security of 
electronic County PHI in the event of an emergency. Emergency means any circumstance 
or situation that causes nmmal computer operations to become unavailable for use in 
performing the work required under this Agreement for more than 24 hours. 

B. Data Backup Plan. Business Associate must have established documented 
procedures to back-up County PHI to maintain retrievable exact copies of County PHI. 
The plan must include a regular schedule for making back-ups, storing back-ups offsite, an 
inventory of back-up media, and the amount of time to restore County PHI should it be 
lost. At a minimum, the schedule must be a weekly full back-up and monthly offsite 
storage of County data. 

V. Paper Document Controls. 

A. Supervision of Data. County PHI in paper form shall not be left unattended 
at any time, unless it is locked in a file cabinet, file room, desk or office. Unattended 
means that information is not being observed by an employee authorized to access the 
information. County PHI in paper form shall not be left unattended at any time in vehicles 
or planes and shall not be checked in baggage on commercial airplanes. 

B. Escorting Visitors. Visitors to areas where County PHI is contained shall 
be escorted and County Protected Health Information shall be kept out of sight while 
visitors are in the area. 

Page 10 of 11 

Exhibit G

Exhibit G 
33 of 34



Exhibit F 

C. Confidential Destruction. County PHI must be disposed of through 
confidential means, using NIST Special Publication 800-88 standard methods for data 
sanitization when the County PSCI is no longer needed. 

D. Removal of Data. County PHI must not be removed from the premises of 
the Business Associate except with ex:press written permission of County. 

E. Faxing. Faxes containing County PHI shall not be left unattended and fax 
machines shall be in secure areas. Faxes shall contain a confidentiality statement notifying 
persons receiving faxes in enor to destroy them. Fax numbers ·shall be verified with the 
intended recipient before sending. 

F. Mailing. County PHI shall only be mailed using secure methods. Large 
volume mailings of County Protected Health Information shall be by a secure, bonded 
courier with signature required on receipt. Disks and other transp01iable media sent 
through the mail must be encrypted with a County approved solution, such as a solution 
using a vendor product specified on the CSSI. 

Page 11 of 11 

Exhibit G

Exhibit G 
34 of 34



Exhibit H

Exhibit H 
1 of 1



1

Agreement No. ____

COUNTY OF KINGS

FIRST AMENDMENT TO AGREEMENT

This first amendment (“1st Amendment”) to the Agreement (“Agreement”) is

entered into on __________ ____, 2021 (the “Effective Date”), by and between the County

of Kings, a political subdivision of the State of California (“County”), and JDT Consultants

Inc., a California corporation (singularly a “Party” and collectively the “Parties”).

R E C I T A L S

WHEREAS, the Contractor provides Therapeutic Behavioral Service (“TBS”)

under the Agreement the Parties entered into on or about July 1, 201;

WHEREAS, the County exercised its option to extend the Agreement to June 30,

2022;

WHEREAS, County also requires Intensive Home Based Services (“IBHS”) for

beneficiaries (“Beneficiaries”) of Kings County Behavioral Health (“KCBH”);

WHEREAS, IBHS are individualized, strength based interventions designed for

ameliorating mental health conditions by fostering and building the skills Beneficiaries

need to successfully function at home and the community;

WHEREAS, the Parties intend to expand the services under the Agreement by

adding IBHS to Contractor’s obligations;

WHEREAS, the Parties intend to increase the term of the Agreement to terminate

on June 30, 2024;

WHEREAS, Section 6 of the Agreement authorizes the Parties to modify the

Agreement with the execution of a written amendment; and

WHEREAS, Contractor is ready, willing, able, and qualified to perform IHBS, in

addition to TBS.

NOW, THEREFORE, the Parties agree as follows:

1. Section 4 is replaced in its entirety with the following:

This Agreement commences on July 1, 2019, and terminates on June 30,

2024, unless otherwise terminated in accordance with its terms.

2. Section 6 is replaced in its entirety with the following:



2

This Agreement may be modified only by a written amendment signed

by the Contractor and the County’s Board of Supervisors (“Board”) or other

representative as authorized by the Board.

Any proposed increase in a single line item up to ten percent (10%)

of the original line item must be approved by the Director of KCBH, or their

designee.  Any such Director approved modification shall not exceed the amount set

forth in Section 3 of the Agreement.

3. The revised scope of work setting forth Contractor’s obligations to provide

TBS and IHBS is attached to this 1st Amendment as Revised Exhibit A.  The scope of

work identified as Exhibit A in the Agreement remains valid for the period beginning July

1, 2019, and ending June 30, 2021. Revised Exhibit A operates on the Effective Date.

4. The revised budget setting forth Contractor’s compensation is attached to this

1st Amendment as Revised Exhibit B.  The budget identified as Exhibit B in the

Agreement remains valid for the period beginning July 1, 2019, and ending June 30, 2021.

Revised Exhibit B operates on the Effective Date.

5. The recitals and exhibits are integral to this 1st Amendment and are

incorporated into this 1st Amendment by this reference.

6. The Agreement is attached to this 1st Amendment as Exhibit G.

7. The letter noticing Contractor that County exercised its option to extend the

term of the Agreement is attached to this 1st Amendment as Exhibit H.

8. All other terms and conditions of the Agreement remain in full force and

effect.

9. The Parties may execute this Agreement by electronic means.  The electronic

signatures affixed by their respective signatories give rise to a valid, enforceable, and fully

effective agreement.

10. Each signatory to this Agreement represents it is authorized to enter into this

Agreement and bind the Party to which its signature represents.

SIGNATURES ON FOLLOWING PAGE



3

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the Parties executed this 1st Amendment the day and

year first written above.

COUNTY OF KINGS JDT CONSULTANTS INC.

By: ____________________________ By:_________________________________

      Craig Pedersen, Chair       Jana D. Todd, LCSW, CEO

      Kings County Board of Supervisors

ATTEST

By:_________________________________
       Catherine Venturella, Clerk of the Board

APPROVED AS TO FORM

Diane Freeman, Interim County Counsel

By:_________________________________
      Cindy Crose Kliever, Deputy County Counsel

Exhibits/Attachments:

Revised Exhibit A: Scope of Work

Revised Exhibit B: Compensation/Budget

Exhibit G: Agreement

Exhibit H: Letter exercising option



JDT Consultants Inc.

SCOPE OF WORK

July 1, 2021 to June 30, 2024

Contractor shall provide Therapeutic Behavioral Services (TBS) and Intensive Home Based

Services (IHBS)  to Kings County children/youth who are eligible for Medi-Cal, meet criteria for

medical necessity, and are authorized by Kings County Behavioral Health (KCBH).

Description of the TBS Model

TBS is an intensive, one-to-one, face-to-face, short-term outpatient treatment intervention for

beneficiaries under the age of 21 with serious emotional disturbance (SED) who are experiencing

a stressful transition or life crisis and need additional, short-term, specific support services. These

services shall be available to beneficiaries with difficult behaviors who require one-on-one

assistance and who may be at risk of psychiatric hospitalization. TBS is not a “stand alone” service,

and is intended to supplement other specialty mental health services by addressing one to three

behaviors that jeopardize the beneficiary’s ability to remain in his or her current home. The

Contractor shall provide the beneficiary with skills to effectively manage the behavior(s) or

symptom(s) that is the barrier to achieving residence at the lowest appropriate level. TBS services

shall be provided in the beneficiary’s home and other environments where the beneficiary’s

behaviors occur.

Description of Intensive Home Based Services

Intensive Home-Based Services (IHBS) are individualized, strength-based interventions designed

to ameliorate mental health conditions that interfere with a beneficiary’s functioning and are aimed

at helping the beneficiary build skills necessary for successful functioning in the home and

community and improving the beneficiary’s family ability to help the beneficiary successfully

function in the home and community.

IHBS support the engagement and participation of the beneficiary and his/her significant support

persons  and  to  help  the  beneficiary  develop  skills  and  achieve  the  goals  and  objectives  of  the

treatment and the Child/Family Treatment (CFT) plan.

A. TBS Criteria

1. Eligible beneficiaries shall meet all of the following criteria:

a. Are under the age of 21;

b. Have full-scope Medi-Cal;

c. Meet medical necessity criteria for these Specialty Mental Health Services

(SMHS) as set forth in CCR, Title 9, Section 1830.205 or Section 1830.210;

d. Be currently receiving mental health services from the County’s Mental Health

Plan (MHP).

e. Meet one of the following criteria:

i. Be residing in/being considered for a Short Term Residential Therapeutic

Program (STRTP);

Revised Exhibit A

Revised Exhibit A 
1 of 5



ii. Have had at least one emergency psychiatric hospitalization within the last

24 months;

iii. Be at risk for a psychiatric hospitalization; or

iv. Be at risk for being removed from home placement.

B. IHBS Criteria

1. Eligible beneficiaries shall meet all of the following criteria:

a. Are under the age of 21;

b. Have full-scope Medi-Cal;

c. Meet medical necessity criteria for these Specialty Mental Health Services

(SMHS) as set forth in CCR, Title 9, Section 1830.205 or Section 1830.210;

d. Be currently receiving mental health services from the County’s Mental Health

Plan (MHP);

e. Currently receiving Intensive Care coordination Services (ICC).

2. IHBS may be provided to beneficiaries who:

a. Are receiving, or being considered for, Wraparound;

b. Are receiving, or being considered for, a specialized care rate due to behavioral

health needs;

c. Are being considered for other intensive SMHS, including, but not limited to,

TBS, or are receiving crisis stabilization/intervention services;

d. Are currently in, or being considered for, high-level-care institutional settings,

such as group homes or Short-Term Residential Therapeutic Programs

(STRTPs);

e. Have been discharged within 90 days from, or currently reside in, or are being

considered  for  placement  in,  a  psychiatric  hospital  or  24-hour  mental  health

treatment facility [e.g. psychiatric inpatient hospital, psychiatric health facility

(PHF), community treatment facility, etc.];

f. Have experienced two or more mental health hospitalizations in the last 12

months;

g. Have experienced two or more placement changes, within 24 months, due to

behavioral health needs;

h. Have been treated with two or more antipsychotic medications, at the same

time, over a three-month period [Healthcare Effectiveness Data Information Set

(HEDIS) Specification for Antipsychotics in Children and Adolescents (APC)];

i. If the beneficiary is zero through five years old and has more than one

psychotropic medication, the beneficiary  is six through 11 years old and has

more than two psychotropic medications, or the beneficiary is 12 through 17

years old and has more than three psychotropic medications;

j. If the beneficiary is zero through five years old and has more than one mental

health diagnosis, the beneficiary  is six through 11 years old and has more than

two mental health diagnoses, or the beneficiary  is 12 through 17 years old and

has more than three mental health diagnoses;

Revised Exhibit A

Revised Exhibit A 
2 of 5



k. Have two or more emergency room visits in the last 6 months due to primary

mental health condition or need, including, but not limited to, involuntary

treatment under California Welfare and Institutions Code section 5585.50;

l. Have been detained, pursuant to W&I sections 601 and 602, primarily due to

mental health needs; or

m. Have received SMHS within the last year, and have been reported homeless

within the prior six months.

C. Authorization and Reauthorization for TBS and IHBS

1. All TBS and IHBS referrals shall be reviewed and authorized by the County prior to

contractor rendering services. Services provided without approval of the County shall

not be reimbursed.

2. Services shall be approved by County for either 30 or 60 days at a time, and are

expected to produce the desired changes within a few months. Initial 30 day

authorization  shall  include  the  TBS or  IHBS assessment  and  Plan  of  Care.  Monthly

reauthorization meetings between County and the Contractor shall include the

following:

a. Beneficiary  progress  toward  behaviors  targeted  in  the  Plan  of  Care  in

measurable terms. The current frequency and duration of behaviors will be

compared to the prior authorization period;

b. Behaviors by the beneficiary as well as precipitating events that are rendering

their current placement at risk will be identified, and a specific intervention plan

will be determined;

c. Successful interventions in decreasing the beneficiary’s target behaviors during

the prior review period will be discussed. Types of interventions to be employed

in the next authorization period will be overviewed;

d. The strategies and effectiveness of involving the beneficiary’s care provider

during the previous authorization period will be discussed. Additional strategies

for involving the beneficiary’s care provider during the upcoming authorization

period will be identified;

e. The  plan  for  titration  and  discontinuance  of  TBS  or  IHBS  in  the  upcoming

authorization period will be determined. The days and hours of service will be

identified;

f. The next reauthorization date will be established.

D. Services

1. Contractor shall be available to accept referrals from County for TBS and IHBS service

delivery on a daily basis.

2. Upon receipt of an authorized TBS or IHBS referral, Contractor shall contact family

within 24-48 hours of receiving referral.

3. Contractor will make efforts to assess each beneficiary referred within 1-3 working

days.

4. TBS and IHBS assessments shall be completed within the first 10 days of service by a

licensed/waivered staff person.

Revised Exhibit A

Revised Exhibit A 
3 of 5



5. TBS  and  IHBS  assessments  shall  establish  Medical  Necessity  for  TBS  or  IHBS  by

evaluating the beneficiary’s current behavior (presenting problem/impairment) and

documenting the following:

a. How the behavior causes a significant impairment in an important area of life

functioning; and

b. A reasonable probability of significant deterioration in an important area of life

functioning without TBS  or IHBS services, or

c. A reasonable probability that the beneficiary would not progress

developmentally as individually appropriate without TBS or IHBS services.

6. During the first 30 days of service services should range between 6-12 hours per week.

If more hours are required, Contractor should contact with the County’s Children’s

System of Care Program Manager for authorization.

7. Contractor shall match the beneficiary with a coach or coaches for TBS and behavior

specialists for IHBS. The matching process between the beneficiary  and coach(es) or

behavioral specialist  is an important component of the TBS model  and IHBS and shall

take into consideration factors that include:

a. Cultural background;

b. The beneficiary’s and/or provider’s primary language;

c. Beneficiary age and gender;

d. The coach and behavior specialists experience and training in working with the

beneficiary’s target behaviors;

e. The beneficiary’s disabilities or handicaps;

f. Known beneficiary and care provider needs, strengths, and family dynamics.

8. Contractor shall develop a Plan of Care for each beneficiary served, and include

identification of the following:

a. Behaviors exhibited by the beneficiary that are rendering their current

placement at risk, and the need of intervention

b. The precipitating event(s), frequency and duration of each target behavior

c. Days and hours of service, based on the beneficiary’s needs

d. Specific interventions to be employed to address the target behaviors

e. Strategies for involving the beneficiary’s care provider

f. The plan for titration and discontinuance of TBS or IHBS services, as

improvements occur

i. If applicable, a plan for transition to adult services when the beneficiary

turns 21 years old and is no longer eligible for TBS or IHBS

g. A Safety Plan, which will include the following:

i. Vital information for an anticipated crisis

ii. Interventions to be undertaken by the a coach or behavioral specialists

is not present with the beneficiary  and caretaker

9. Contractor shall accept expedited referrals from County.  Contractor will contact family

the same day the referral is received and schedule an assessment with 24-48 hours.

E.  Progress Notes and Documentation

1. Documentation is required each day that TBS or IHBS is delivered. All direct service

documentation shall be completed in accordance with County’s documentation guidelines.

2. Progress notes shall include a comprehensive summary covering the time that services

were provided, but need not document every minute of service time.

Revised Exhibit A

Revised Exhibit A 
4 of 5



3. Progress notes shall be co-signed by a licensed mental health professional (LMHP) if the

TBS coach or IHBS behavior specialists is providing the service is not an LMHP.

4. TBS and IHBS progress notes shall clearly and specifically document the following:

a. Whether there have been significant changes in the beneficiary’s environment since

the initial development of the TBS or IHBS Plan of Care

b. Whether TBS or IHBS provided to the beneficiary  has not been effective and the

beneficiary  is not making progress toward identified goals

i. In this situation, there must be documented evidence in the chart and any

additional information from the contractor indicating that they have

considered alternatives, and only requested additional hours/days for TBS

or IHBS based on the documented expectation that additional time will be

effective.

c. Whether progress is being made in stabilizing the behaviors and/or symptoms by

changing or eliminating maladaptive behaviors and increasing adaptive behaviors.

5. Contractor only bills for direct services, documentation not to exceed 30 minutes per

service and travel time not to exceed 90 minutes per service).

E.  Staffing

1. Contractor agrees to provide adequate staffing for TBS and IHBS services in Kings

County as detailed in this Scope of Work.

2. Contractor shall compose a staff that reflects the population being served, both

culturally and linguistically.

F. Contractor Deliverables

1. Contractor shall comply will all reporting requirements from County

2. Contractor shall adhere to County’s utilization and compliance review processes.

3. Contractor shall identify a suitable representative to attend regularly scheduled

meetings or other meetings scheduled by the Director of Behavioral Health of

his/her designee.  Meetings may include, but are not limited to case staffing, child

and family team meetings, and contract monitoring meetings.

4. Contractor shall provide trainings to their staff to enhance and enrich their clinical

expertise and the values of wellness and recovery. Trainings shall include annual

Confidentiality/Health Information Portability and Accountability Act

(HIPAA) training with an annual renewal of a signed confidentiality statement and

Four  (4) hours of training must be  related  to Culturally and Linguistically

Appropriate Services (CLAS) standards.

G. Provider Grievance Procedure

1. Contractor may appeal a denied, terminated, or modified request for services

from County. The written appeal shall be submitted to County within thirty (30)

calendar days of the postmark of the notification of the denial, termination, or

modification. Send appeal to:

Kings County Behavioral Health

Managed Care Division

460 Kings County Drive, Suite 101

ATTN: Grievances/Appeals

Revised Exhibit A

Revised Exhibit A 
5 of 5



Budget

KINGS COUNTY JDT  PROJECTED TBS IHBS BUDGET: FY 21/22, 22/23 23/24

FTE % Admin. Direct Total

0001 TBS/IHBS Supervisor (1) 100% 75,000.00 75,000.00

0002 TBS/IHBS Coaches (4) 100% 160,000 160,000.00

0003 TBS/IHBS Program Manager 10% 3,400.00 3,400.00

0004 TBS/IHBS Adminstrative Assistant 10% 2,500.00 2,500.00

0005 TBS/IHBS Medical Records Clerk 10% 2,500.00 2,500.00

0006 Full-Charge Bookkeeper 10% 3,400.00 3,400.00

0007 Chief Executive Officer 5% 4,000.00 4,000.00

0008

15,800.00$   235,000.00$     250,800.00$     

0030 OASDI 948.00 14,100.00 15,048.00

0031 316.00 4,700.00 5,016.00

0032 U.I. 16 268 284

1,280.00$     19,068.00$       20,348.00$       

0040 Retirement

0041 Health Insurance

0042 Life Insurance

0043 Fringe Benefits - 15% 2,370.00 29,622.00 31,992.00

2,370.00$     29,622.00$       31,992.00$       

303,140.00$     

FACILITY/EQUIPMENT EXPENSES

1010 Rent/Lease Building 5,000.00

1030 Rent/Lease Equipment

1050 Utilities 2,114.00

7,114.00$         

MEDICARE

FACILITY/EQUIPMENT TOTAL

PAYROLL TAX TOTAL

EMPLOYEE BENEFITS

EMPLOYEE BENEFITS TOTAL

SALARY & BENEFITS GRAND TOTAL

Budget Categories Total Proposed Budget

Line Item Description (Must be itemized)

PERSONNEL SALARIES

SALARY TOTAL

PAYROLL TAXES

Revised Exhibit B

Revised Exhibit B 
1 of 2



Budget

KINGS COUNTY JDT  PROJECTED TBS IHBS BUDGET: FY 21/22, 22/23 23/24

1060 Telephone Land Lines and Cellular Phones 2,500.00

1061

1062 Postage 224.00

1070 Printing/Reproduction 125.00

1071 Publications 0.00

1072 Legal Notices/Advertising 391.00

1080 Office Supplies 4,200.00

1090 Household Supplies 0

1100 Medication Services 0.00

1120 Program Supplies - ______________________________________Therapeutic Supplies 19,586.00

1122 Program Supplies - ______________________________________Incentives, Graduations, Activities 17,985.00

1130 Transportation of Clients 514.00

1140 Staff Mileage 12,448.00

1141 Staff Travel (Out of County) 0.00

1150 Staff Training/Registration 3,000.00

1151 Lodging 0.00

1152 Other Operating Expenses (list)

60,973.00$       

1160 Administrative Overhead 0.00

1161 External Audit 1,500.00

1170 Worker's Compensation Insurance 2,200.00

1171 Liability Insurance 2,200.00

1172 Insurance-Other Auto & EPLI 1,754.00

1173 Other (list) Sexual Molestation 250.00

7,904.00$         

1180 Computer/Email Maintenance & Repair/Software/Encryption 2,000.00

1181 Interpreter Services 1,000.00

3,000.00$         

2000

2001

382,131.00$     

,

Vol/Units

Revenue/Service Descriptions of Svs Rate

3000 TBS Services 90,984 2.1 191,065.50$     

3100 IHBS Services 90,984 2.1 191,065.50$     

3200

REVENUE TOTAL

382,131.00$     

2.1Cost per unit

FIXED ASSETS:

FIXED ASSETS TOTAL

TOTAL PROJECTED EXPENSES

PROJECTED REVENUE:

OPERATING EXPENSES:

Answering Services

OPERATING EXPENSES TOTAL

TOTAL PROJECTED REVENUE

FINANCIAL SERVICES EXPENSES:

FINANCIAL SERVICES TOTAL

SPECIAL EXPENSES (Consultant/Specialist):

SPECIAL EXPENSE TOTAL

Revised Exhibit B

Revised Exhibit B 
2 of 2



AGREEMENT FOR SERVICES 
BETWEEN THE COUNTY OF KINGS AND JDT CONSULTANTS INC. 

TIDS AGREEMENT is made and entered into as of the 1st day of July, 2019, by and 
between the County of Kings, a political subdivision of the State of California (hereinafter 
"County") and JDT Consultants Inc., a California for-profit organization (hereinafter 
"Contractor"). 

RECITALS 

· WHEREAS, County requires professional Therapeutic Behavioral Services (TBS), in 
compliance with Kings County Behavioral Health's Policies and Procedures, to Kings 
County Medi-Cal beneficiaries who meet the criteria to establish eligibility for TBS. 

WHEREAS, Contractor is ready, willing, able, and qualified to perform such services. 

NOW, THEREFORE, the parties mutually agree as follows: 

1. SCOPE OF SERVICES 

County hereby engages Contractor and Contractor shall do, perform, and carry out the 
services as set forth in Exhibit A. 

2. RESPONSIBILITIES OF CONTRACTOR 

Contractor possesses the requisite skills necessary to perform the work under this 
Agreement and County relies upon such skills. Contractor shall, at all times utilizing his 
ability, experience and talent, faithfully, industriously and professionally perform the work set 
forth in Exhibit A to County's reasonable satisfaction. County's acceptance of Contractor's 
work does not constitute a release of Contractor from his professional responsibility. 

Contractor affirms that it possesses cun-ent valid appropriate licensure, including, but 
not limited to, driver's license, professional license, certificate of tax-exempt status, or permits, 
as required to perform the work under this Agreement. 

3. COMPENSATION 

Consultant shall not be entitled to nor receive from County any additional consideration, 
compensation, or other remuneration for services rendered under this Agreement except as set 
forth in Exhibit B 

Payment for service provided under this Agreement is limited to the maximum amount 
of $382,131 for Fiscal Year 2019/2020 and $382,131 fir Fiscal Year 2020/2021. 

Exhibit G

Exhibit G 
1 of 34



Should no funds or insufficient funds be appropriated for this Agreement, County 
reserves the right to propose an amendment or unilaterally terminate this Agreement 
immediately. 

Upon submission of an invoice by Contractor, and upon approval of County's 
representative, County shall pay Contractor monthly in arrears, up to the maximwn amount 
provided for in this section. Each invoice must include a description of services rendered, to 
whom, date of service and the _charges according to the agreed upon method. 

4. TERM 

This Agreement shall commence on July 1, 2019, and shall terminate on June 30, 
2021, unless otherwise terminated iri accordance with its terms. County shall have the option 
to extend this Agreement for one (1) additional year on the same terms and conditions. 

5. RECORDS AND INSPECTIONS. 

Contractor shall maintain full, complete, and accurate records with respect to all matters 
covered under this Agreement. All such records shall be prepared in accordance with 
generally accepted accounting procedures, shall be clearly identified, and shall be kept readily 
accessible. County shall have free access during normal work hours to such records and the 
right to examine, inspect, copy, or audit them, at no cost to County. Records shall be 
maintained for seven (7) years after the termination of this Agreement or any extension of this 
Agreement. 

6. AMENDMENTS 

This Agreement may be modified only by a written amendment signed by Con.tractor 
and County Board of Supervisors or other representative authorized by County Board of 
Supervisors. 

7. TERMINATION 

The right to terminate this Agreement under this section may be exercised without 
prejudice to any other right or remedy to which the terminating party may be entitled at law or 
under this Agreement. 

A. Without Cause. Either party shall have the right to terminate this Agreement 
without cause by giving the other party thirty (30) calendar days prior written notice of 
its intention to terminate pursuant to this provision, specifying the date of termination. 
If the termination is for non-appropriation of funds, County may terminate this 
Agreement effective immediately. 

B. With Cause. This Agreement may be terminated by either party should the other 
party materially breach this Agreement. · Upon a material breach, the non-defaulting 

2 

Exhibit G

Exhibit G 
2 of 34



party shall provide written notice to the defaulting party of its intention to terminate this 
Agreement and allow a period of ten (10) days to cure the breach. If the breach is not 
remedied within that ten (10) day period, the non-defaulting party may terminate the 
Agreement on further written notice specifying the date of termination. 

Alternatively, County may elect to cure the default and any expense incurred shall be 
payable by Contractor to County. 

If the nature of the breach is such that it cannot be cured within a ten (10) day period, 
the defaulting party may submit a written proposal within that period which sets forth a 
specific means to resolve the default and a date certain for completion. If the non
defaulting party consents to that proposal in writing, the defaulting party shall 
immediately embark on its plan to cure. If the default is not cured within the time 
specified, the non-defaulting party may terminate upon written notice specifying the 
date of termination. 

C. Effects of Termination. Termination of this Agreement shall not terminate any 
obligations of any liability to County for damages sustained by County because of any 
breach of contract by Contractor, nor to indemnify, to maintain and make available any 
records pertaining to this Agreement, to cooperate with any audit, to be subject to offset, 
or to make any reports of pre-termination contract activities. 

D. Forbearance Not to be Construed as Waiver of Breach or Default. · In no event 
shall any act of forbearance by either party constitute a waiver of any breach of this 
Agreement or any default which may then exist, nor shall such act impair or prejudice 
any remedy available to the non-breaching party with respect to the breach or default. 

8. INSURANCE 

A. Without limiting County's right to obtain indemnification from Contractor or any 
third parties, prior to commencement of work, Contractor shall purchase and maintain 
the following types of insurance for minimum limits indicated during the term of this 
Agreement and provide an Endorsed Additional Insured page from Contractor's 
Insurance Carrier guaranteeing such coverage to County. Such page shall be mailed as 
set forth under the Notice Section of this Agreement prior to the execution of this 
Agreement. In the event Contractor fails to keep in effect at all times insurance 
coverage as herein provided, County may, in addition to other remedies it may have, 
suspend, or terminate this Agreement upon the occurrence of such event. 

1. Commercial General Liability. Two Million Dollars ($2,000,000) per 
occurrence and Five Million Dollars ($5,000,000) annual aggregate covering 
bodily injury, personal injury and property damage. County and its officers, 
employees and.agents shall be endorsed to above policies as additional insured, 
using ISO form CG 20 26 or an alternate form that is at least as broad as form 
CG 20 26, as to any liability arising from the performance of this Agreement. 

3 

Exhibit G

Exhibit G 
3 of 34



2. Automobile Liability. Comprehensive Automobile Liability Insurance 
with limits for bodily injury of not less than Five Hundred Thousand Dollars 
($500,000) per person, One Million Dollars ($1,000,000) per accident and for 
property damages not less than One Hundred Thousand Dollars ($100,000), or 
such coverage with a combined single limit of One Million Dollars ($1,000,000). 
Coverage should include owned and non-owned vehicles used in connection with 
this Agreement. 

3. Workers Compensation. Statutory coverage, if and as required according 
to the California Labor Code. The policy shall be endorsed to waive the 
insurer's subrogation rights against County. 

4 . Professional Liability. One Million Dollars ($1,000,000) limit per 
occurrence or claim and Three Million Dollars ($3,000,000) annual aggregate 
limit covering Contractor's wrongful acts, errors and omissions. 

County will accept a claims made policy under the following circumstances: any 
retroactive date must be shown and must be dated before the commencement of 
this Agreement, the policy must be kept in full force and effect or Contractor 
may provide tail coverage or e~tended reporting coverage with a retroactive 
dates to cover any time gaps for five (5) years after the termination of this 
Agreement or any extension of this Agreement 

B. Insurance is to be placed with admitted insurers rated by A.M. Best Co. as A:VII 
or higher. Lower rated, or approved but not admitted insurers, may be accepted if prior 
approval is given by County's Risk Manager. 

C. Each of the above required policies shall be endorsed to provide County with 
thirty (30) days prior written notice of cancellation. County is not liable for the 
payment of premiums or assessments on the policy. No cancellation provisions in the 
insurance policy shall be construed in derogation of the continuing duty of Contractor to 
furnish insurance during the term of this Agreement. 

9. INDEMNIFICATION 

A. When the law establishes a professional standard of care for Contractor's 
services, to the fullest extent permitted by law, Contractor shall indemnify, defend, and 
hold harmless County and any and all of its Board members, officials, employees and 
agents from and against any and all losses, liabilities, damages, costs, and expenses, 
including legal counsel's fees and costs but only to the extent Contractor is responsible 
for such damages, liabilities, and costs on a comparative basis of fault between 
Contractor and County in the performance of professional services under this 
Agreement. Contractor shall not be obligated to defend or indemnify County for 
County's own negligence or for the negligence of third parties. 

4 

Exhibit G

Exhibit G 
4 of 34



B. Other than in the performance of professional services and to the full extent 
permitted by law, Contractor shall indemnify, defend, and hold harmless County, and 
any and all of its Board members, officials, employees, and agents from and against any 
liability (including liability for claims, suits, actions, arbitration proceedings, 
administrative proceedings, regulatory proceedings, losses, expenses or costs of any 
kind, whether actual, alleged or threatened, including legal counsel 's fees and costs, 
court costs, interest, defense costs, and expert witness fees), where the same arise out of, 
are a consequence of, or are in any way attributable to, in whole or in part, any act, 
omission, fault or negligence, whether active or passive, by Contractor or by arty 
individual or entity for which Contractor is legally liable, including, but not limited to, 
officers, agents, employees, or subcontractors of Contractor. 

C. This indemnification specifically includes any claims that may be against County 
by any taxing authority or third party asserting that an employer-employee relationship 
exists by reason of this Agreement. 

D. These indemnification obligations shall survive the termination of this 
Agreement as to any act, omission, fault or negligence occurring during this Agreement 
or any extension of this Agreement. The County's rights to indemnification are in 

. addition to and shall not limit any other rights or remedies that County may have under 
law or this Agreement. 

10. INDEPENDENT CONTRACTOR 

Contractor is an independent contractor and not an agent, officer or employee of 
County. The parties mutually understand and agree that this Agreement is by and between two 
independent contractors and is not intended to, and shall not be construed to create, the 
relationship of agent, servant, employee, partnership, joint venture or association. 

11. COMPLIANCE WITH LAW 

Contractor shall comply with all federal, state and local laws and regulations applicable 
to its performance including, but limited to, Government Code section 8350 et seq. regarding a 
drug free workplace and all health and safety standards set forth by the State of California and 
County. 

Contractor shall comply with all state and federal confidentiality laws including, but 
limited to, the Health Insurance Portability and Accessibility Act (HIP AA) and its regulations 
as amended. Contractor shall execute and comply with the HIP AA Business Associate 
Agreement attached as Exhibit F. 

12. CONFIDENTIALITY 

Contractor shall not use County confidential information for any purpose other than 

5 

Exhibit G

Exhibit G 
5 of 34



carrymg out Contractor's obligations under this Agreement. Contractor shall prevent 
unauthorized disclosure of any County confidential information. Contractor shall promptly 
transmit to County all requests for disclosure of County confidential information. 

13. CONFLICT OF INTEREST 

Contractor warrants that its employees or their immediate families or Board of Directors 
or officers have no financial interest, including, but not limited to, other projects or 
independent contracts, and shall not acquire any financial interest, direct or indirect, which 
conflicts with the rendering of services under this Agreement. Contractor shall employ or 
retain no such person while rendering services under this Agreement. Services rendered by 
Contractor's associates or employees shall not relieve Contractor from personal responsibility 
under this clause. Contractor has an affirmative duty to disclose to County in writing the 
name( s) of any person( s) who have an actual, potential or apparent conflict of interest. 

14. NONDISCRIMINATION 

In rendering services _under this Agreement, Contractor shall comply with all applicable 
federal, state and local laws, rules and regulations and shall not discriminate based on age, 
ancestry, color, gender, marital status, medical condition, national origin, physical or mental 
disability, race, religion, gender identity, or sexual orientation. 

Further, Contractor shall not discriminate against its employees, which includes, but is 
not limited to, employment upgrading, demotion or transfer, recruitment or recruitment 
advertising, layoff or termination, rates of pay or other forms of compensation and selection for 
training, including apprenticeship. 

15. SUBCONTRACTORS 

Services under this Agreement are deemed to be personal services. Contractor warrants 
that it has not and it shall not subcontract any work under this Agreement without the prior 
written consent of County subject to any required state or federal approval. 

16. ASSIGNMENT 

Contractor shall not assign this Agreement or monies due without the prior written 
consent of County subject to any required state or federal approval. Assignment by Contractor 
of any monies due shall not constitute an assignment of the Agreement. 

17. UNFORESEEN CIRCUMSTANCES 

Neither party shall be responsible for any delay caused by natural disaster, war, civil 
disturbance, labor dispute or other cause beyond a party's reasonable control, provided written 
notice is provided to the other party of the cause of the delay within ten (10) days of the start of 
the delay. Thereafter, the parties shall meet and confer as to whether to amend, suspend, or 

6 

Exhibit G

Exhibit G 
6 of 34



terminate this Agreement. 

18. OWNERSHIP OF DOCUMENTS 

County shall be the owner of and shall be entitled to possession of any computations, 
plans, correspondence or other pertinent data and information gathered by or computed by 
Contractor prior to termination of this Agreement by County or upon completion of the work 
pursuant to this Agreement. County's reuse of any such materials on any project other than the 
project for which they were originally intended shall be at County's sole risk. No material 
prepared in connection with the project shall be subject to copyright in the United States or in 
any other county. 

19. NOTICE 

Any notice necessary to the performance of this Agreement shall be given in writing by 
personal delivery, overnight carrier, or by prepaid first-class mail addressed as follows: 

COUNTY: 
COUNTY OF KINGS 

1400 W. LACEY BLVD. 

HANFORD, CA 93230 

CONTRACTOR: 
IDT CONSULTANTS, INC. 

4205 WEST GARDEN DRJVE 

FRESNO CA,93 722 

If notice is given by: a) personal delivery, it is effective as of the date of personal 
delivery; b) overnight carrier, it is effective as of the date of delivery; c) mail, it is effective as 
of five (5) days following the date of mailing or the date of delivery reflected upon a return 
receipt, whichever occurs first. 

20. CHOICE OF LAW 

The parties have executed and delivered this Agreement in the County of Kings, State 
of California. The parties agree that the laws of the State of California shall govern the 
validity, enforceability or interpretation of this Agreement and Kings County shall be the 
venue for any action or proceeding, in law or equity that may be brought in connection with 
this Agreement. · Contractor hereby waives any rights it may possess under Section 394 of the 
Code of Civil Procedure to transfer to a neutral county or other venue any action arising out of 
this Agreement. 

21. SEVERABILITY 

If any of the provisions of this Agreement is found to be unenforceable, the remainder 
shall be enforced as fully as possible and the unenforceable provision shall be deemed 
modified to the limited extent required to permit enforcement of the Agreement as a whole. 

7 

Exhibit G

Exhibit G 
7 of 34



22. SURVIVAL 

The following sections shall survive the termination of this Agreement: Section 5 
Records and Inspections, Section 8 Insurance, Section 9 Indemnification, and Section 12 
Confidentiality. 

23. No THIRD PARTY BENEFICIARIES. 

· County and Contractor are the only parties to this Agreement and are the only parties 
entitled to enforce its terms. Nothing in this Agreement gives, is intended to give, or shall be 
construed to give or provide, any right or benefit, whether directly or indirectly or otherwise, to 
a third party. 

24. ENTIRE AGREEMENT; CONTRIBUTIONS OF BOTH PARTIES; IMAGED AGREEMENT 

This Agreement, including its Recitals and Exhibits which are fully incorporated into 
and are integral parts of this Agreement, constitutes the entire agreement between the parties 
and there are no inducements, promises, terms, conditions .or obligations made or entered into 
by County or Contractor other than those contained herein. 

The parties agree that each party had had an opp011unity to review this Agreement and 
consult with legal counsel and it is expressly agreed and understood that the rule stated in Civil 
Code section 1654, that ambiguities in a contract should be construed against the drafter, shall 
have no application to the construction of the Agreement. 

An original executed Agreement may .be imaged and electronically stored. Such 
imaged Agreement may be used in the same manner and for the same purposes as the original. 
Neither party may object to the admissibility of the imaged Agreement on the basis that it was 
not originated or maintained in documentary form. 

25. CULTURALLY AND LINGUISTICALLY APPROPRIATE SERVICES STANDARDS 

To ensure equal access to quality care by diverse populations, Contractor shall adopt 
and implement the federal Office of Minority Health (OMH) national Culturally and 
Linguistically Appropriate Standards (CLAS), and will be demonstrated through policies, 
training and cultural competency plans its efforts address the CLAS requirements. 

26. AUTHORITY 

Each signatory to this Agreement represents that it is authorized to enter into this 
Agreement and to bind the pa11y to which its signature represents. 

8 

Exhibit G

Exhibit G 
8 of 34



IN WITNESS WHEREOF the parties have executed this Agreement the day and year 
first written above. 

County of Kings 

ATTEST: 
Sfp 1 0 2019 

. U\i tri~ ~vffio. & ~ 
~ Catherine\Tenturella, . Clerk to the B~ d 

Approved and Endorsements Received: 

Sande 

APPROVED AS TO FORM: 
Lee Burdick, County Counsel 

Exhibits/ Attachments: 
Exhibit A: Scope of Work 
Exhibit B: Budget 

Jana D. Todd, CSW, CEO 
IDT Co ultants Inc. 

Exhibit C: Kings County ADA Grievances Procedures 
Exhibit D: Assurances and Certifications 
Exhibit E: Branding 
Exhibit F: BAA/HIP AA 

9 

Exhibit G

Exhibit G 
9 of 34



EXHIBIT A 
IDT Consultants Inc. 

SCOPE OF WORK 
July 1, 2019 - June 30, 2021 

Page 1 of 4 

Contractor shall provide Therapeutic Behavioral Services (TBS) to Kings County children/youth 
who are eligible for Medi-Cal, meet criteria for medical necessity, and are referred by Kings 
County Behavioral Health (KCBH). The program will be identified as TBS and individuals 
participating in TBS will be referred to as "clients." 

Description of the TBS Model 
TBS is an intensive, one-to-one, face-to-face, short-te1m outpatient treatment intervention for 
individuals under the age of21 with serious emotional disturbance (SED) who are experiencing a 
stressful transition or life crisis and need additional, short-term, specific support services. These 
services shall be available to children with difficult behaviors who require one-on-one assistance 
and who may be at risk of psychiatric hospitalization. TBS is not a "stand alone" service, and is 
intended to supplement other specialty mental health services by addressing one to three 
behaviors that jeopardize the child's ability to remain in his or her current home. The Contractor 
shall provide the client with skills to effectively manage the behavior(s) or symptom(s) that is the 
bruTier to achieving residence at the lowest appropriate level. TBS services shall be provided in 
the client's home and other environments where the client's behaviors occur. 

A. Kings County TBS Criteria 
Eligible children/youth shall meet all of the following criteria: 

a. Be 21 years of age or younger 
b. Have full-scope Medi-Cal 
c. Be currently receiving mental health services from Kings County Behavioral 

Health (KCBH) or a contracted Mental Health Plan (MHP) agency 
d. Meet one of the following criteria: 

1. Be residing in/being considered for a group home (Level 12 or above) 
facility 

11. Have had at least one emergency psychiatric hospitalization within the last 
24 months 

m. Be at risk for a psychiatric hospitalization 
1v. Be at risk for being removed from home placement 

B. Authorization and Reauthorization 
• All TBS referrals shall be reviewed and authorized by KCBH prior to services being 

rendered. Services provided without approval of the KCBH shall not be reimbursed. 
• Services shall be approved by KCBH for either 30 or 60 days at a time, and are 

expected to produce the desired changes within a few months. 
• Initial 30 day authorization shall include the TBS assessment and Plan of Care. 
• Monthly reauthorization meetings between KCBH and the Contractor shall include 

the following: 

Exhibit G

Exhibit G 
10 of 34



Page 2 of 4 

o Client progress toward behaviors targeted in her/her Plan of Care . in 
measurable terms. The current frequency and duration of behaviors will be 
compared to the prior authorization period. 

o Behaviors by the client as well as precipitating events that are rendering their 
cunent placement at risk will be identified, and a specific intervention plan 
will be determined. 

o Successful interventions in decreasing the client's target behaviors during the 
prior review period will be discussed. Types of interventions to be employed 
in the next authorization period will be overviewed. 

o The strategies and effectiveness of involving the client' s care provider during 
the previous authorization period will be discussed. Additional strategies for 
involving the client's care provider during the upcoming authorization period 
will be identified. 

o The plan for titration and discontinuance of TBS in the upcoming 
authorization period will be determined. 

o The days and hours of service will be identified. 
o The next reauthorization date will be established. 

C. Services 
• Contractor shall be available to accept refenals from KCBH for TBS service delivery 

on a daily basis. 
• Upon receipt of an authorized TBS referral, Contractor shall contact family within 

24-48 hours ofreceiving refe1rnl. 
• Contractor will make efforts to assess each child/youth refened within 1-3 working 

days. 
• A TBS Assessment shall be completed within the first 10 days of service by a 

licensed/waivered staff person. 
• The TBS Assessment shall establish Medical Necessity for TBS by evaluating the 

child/youth's current behavior (presenting problem/impairment) and documenting the 
following: 

o How the behavior causes a significant impairment in an impo1tant area of life 
functioning. 

o A reasonable probability of significant deterioration in an imp01tant area of 
life functioning without TBS services, or 

o A reasonable probability that the client would not progress developmentally as 
individually appropriate without TBS services. 

• During the first 30 days of service services should range between 6-12 hours per 
week. If more hours are required, Contractor should contact with the KCBH' s 
Children's System of Care Program Manager for authorization. 

• Contractor shall match the client with a coach or coaches. The matching process 
between the client and coach(es) is an impo1tant component of the TBS model and 
shall take into consideration factors that include: 

o Cultural background 
o The client's and/or provider's primary language 
o Consumer age and gender 

Exhibit G

Exhibit G 
11 of 34



Page 3 of 4 

o The coach's experience and training m working with the client's target 
behaviors 

o The client's disabilities or handicaps 
o Known client and care provider needs, strengths, and family dynamics 

• Contractor shall develop a Plan of Care for each client served, and include 
identification of the following: 

o Behaviors exhibited by the client that are rendering their cunent placement at 
risk, and the need of intervention 

o The precipitating event(s), frequency and duration of each target behavior 
o Days and hours of service, based on the client's needs 
o Specific interventions to be employed to address the target behaviors 
o Strategies for involving the client's care provider 
o The plan for titration and discontinuance of TBS services, as improvements 

occur 
• If applicable, a plan for transition to adult services when the 

beneficiary turns 21 years old and is no longer eligible for TBS 
o A Safety Plan, which will include the following: 

• Vital information for an anticipated crisis 
• Interventions to be unde1iaken by the a coach is not present with the 

client and caretaker 
• Contractor will accept expedited referrals from KCBH. Contractor will contact 

family the same day the refenal is received and schedule an assessment with 24-48 
hours. 

D. Progress Notes and Documentation 
• Documentation is required each day that TBS is delivered. All direct service 

documentation shall be completed in accordance with KCBH's documentation 
guidelines. 

• Progress notes shall include a comprehensive summary covering the time that 
services were provided, but need not document every minute of service time. 

• Progress notes shall be co-signed by a licensed mental health professional 
(LMHP) if the TBS coach providing the service is not an LMHP. 

• TBS Progress notes shall clearly and specifically document the following: 
o Whether there have been significant changes in the client's environment 

since the initial development of the TBS Plan of Care 
o Whether TBS provided to the client has not been effective and the client is 

not making progress toward identified goals 
• In this situation, there must be documented evidence in the chaii 

and any additional information from the provider indicating that 
they have considered alternatives, and only requested additional 
hours/days for TBS based on the documented expectation that 
additional time will be effective. 

o Whether progress is being made in stabilizing the behaviors and/or 
symptoms by changing or eliminating maladaptive behaviors and 
increasing adaptive behaviors 

Exhibit G

Exhibit G 
12 of 34



Page 4 of 4 

E. Staffing 
• Contractor agrees to provide adequate staffing for TBS services in Kings County 

as detailed in this Scope of Work. 
• Contractor shall compose a staff that reflects the population being served, both 

culturally and linguistically. 

F. Contractor Deliverables 
• Contractor shall comply will all reporting requirements from KCBH. 
• Contractor shall adhere to KCBH's utilization and compliance review processes. 
• Contractor shall identify a suitable representative to attend regularly scheduled 

meetings or other meetings scheduled by the Director of Behavioral Health of 
his/her designee. Meetings may include, but are not limited to case staffings, 
child and family team meetings, and contract monitoring meetings. 

G. Provider Grievance Procedure 
• Contractor may appeal a denied, terminated, or modified request for services from 

KCBH. The written appeal shall be submitted to KCBH within thirty (30) 
calendar days of the postmark of the notification of the denial, termination, or 
modification. Send appeal to: 

Kings County Behavioral Health 
Managed Care Division 

460 Kings County Drive, Suite 101 
ATTN: Grievances/ Appeals 

Exhibit G

Exhibit G 
13 of 34



Page 1 of 3 

EXHIBIT-B 

KINGS COUNTY BUDGET FY 19/20 AND FY 20/21 

Budget Categories Total Proposed Budget 
FTE 

Line Item Description (Must be itemized) % Admin. Direct Total 

PERSONNEL SALARIES 
0001 TBS Supervisor (1) 100% 75,000.00 75,000.00 

0002 TBS Coaches (4) 100% 160,000 160,000.00 

0003 TBS Program Manager 10% 3,400.00 3,400.00 

0004 TBS Adminstrative Assistant 10% 2,500.00 2,500.00 

0005 TBS Medical Records Clerk 10% 2,500.00 2,500.00 

0006 Full-Charge Bookkeeper 10% 3,400.00 3,400.00 

0007 Chief Executive Officer 5% 4,000.00 4,000.00 

0008 
SALARY $ $ $ 

TOTAL 15,800.00 235,000.00 250,800.00 

PAYROLL TAXES 
0030 OASDI 948.00 14,100.00 15,048.00 

0031 MEDICARE 316.00 4,700.00 5,016.00 

0032 U.1. 16 268 284 
PAYROLL TAX $ $ $ 

TOTAL 1,280.00 19,068.00 20,348.00 

EMPLOYEE BENEFITS 
0040 Retirement 
0041 Health Insurance 

0042 Life Insurance 
0043 Frinae Benefits - 15% 2,370.00 29,622.00 31,992.00 

EMPLOYEE $ $ $ 
BENEFITS TOTAL 2,370.00 29,622.00 31,992.00 

$ 
SALARY & BENEFITS GRAND TOTAL 303,140.00 

FACILITY/EQUIPMENT EXPENSES 

1010 Rent/Lease Building 5,000.00 

1030 Rent/Lease Equipment 

1050 Utilities 2,114.00 
$ 

FACILITY/EQUIPMENT TOTAL 7,114.00 

Exhibit G

Exhibit G 
14 of 34



Page 2 of 3 

EXHIBIT-B 

KINGS COUNTY BUDGET FY 19/20 AND FY 20/21 

OPERATING EXPENSES· 
Land Lines and Cellular 

1060 Telephone Phones 

1061 Answering Services 
1062 Postage 
1070 Printing/Reproduction 
1071 Publications 
1072 Legal Notices/Advertising 
1080 Office Supplies 
1090 Household Supplies 
1100 Medication Services 

Program Supplies - Therapeutic 
1120 Supplies 

Program Supplies - Incentives, Graduations, 

1122 Activities 

1130 Transportation of Clients 

1140 Staff Mileage 
1141 Staff Travel (Out of County) 
1150 Staff Training/Registration 

1151 Lodging 
1152 Other Operating Expenses (list) 

OPERATING EXPENSES TOTAL 

FINANCIAL SERVICES EXPENSES: 

1160 Administrative Overhead 

1161 External Audit 
1170 Worker's Compensation Insurance 
1171 Liability Insurance 
1172 Insurance-Other Auto & EPLI 

Sexual 
1173 Other (list) Molestation 

FINANCIAL SERVICES TOTAL 

SPECIAL EXPENSES (ConsultanUSPecialist): 

2,500.00 

224.00 
125.00 

0.00 
391.00 

4,200.00 
0 

0.00 

19,586.00 

17,985.00 
514.00 

12,448.00 
0.00 

: 
3,000.00 

0.00 

$ 
60,973.00 

0.00 
1,500.00 
2,200.00 
2,200.00 
1,754.00 

250.00 
$ 

7,904.00 

2,000.00 
1,000.00 

1180 
1181 

Computer/Email Maintenance & Repair/Software/Encryption 
Interpreter Services 

SPECIAL EXPENSE TOTAL I 3~000.00 

FIXED ASSETS: 

12000 
2001 

FIXED ASSETS TOT AL I 

TOTAL PROJECTED EXPENSES 13$82,131.00 

Exhibit G

Exhibit G 
15 of 34



Page 3 of 3 
EXHIBIT-B 

l<INGS COUNTY BUDGET FY 19/20 AND FY 20/21 

PROJECTED REVENUE: 

Vol/Units 

Revenue/Service Descriptions of Svs Rate 
$ 

3000 TBS Services 181 ,967 2.1 382,131.00 

3100 
3200 

REVENUE TOTAL 

TOTAL PROJECTED COSTS I $ 
FOR EACH FISCAL YEAR 382,131.00 

Cost per unit ____ 2_.1_ 

Exhibit G

Exhibit G 
16 of 34



Exhibit C 

County of Kings 2016 ADA Self-Evaluation 

AppendixE. 

Kings County ADA Grievance Procedure 

Kings County 
Grievance Procedure under ADA or 

California State Disability Civil Rights Laws 

This grievance procedure is established to meet the requirements of the Americans with 
Disabilities Act of 1990 ("ADA"), the Americans with Disabilities Amendments Act 
(ADAAA) and Californic1, State law. Except as otherwise indicated, it may be used by 
anyone wishing to file a complaint alleging discrimination on the basis of disability in the 
provision of services, activities, programs or benefits by Kings County. The procedure 
should also be used to address all complaints regarding barriers to physical access to any 
County facility. 

NOTE: Discrimination complaints by applicants for, and recipients of, public benefits 
administered by the County are handled by the Human Services Agency, pursuant to state 
law and the Human Services Agency's Administrative policy and Procedure No. 23. 
Notice of this fact is provided to all applicants and recipients. For more information, 
please contact the Program Manager/Civil Rights Coordinator for the Human Services 
Agency at 559.852.2201. If you submit a complaint to the ADA Coordinator that should 
be directed to the Human Services Agency, your complaint will be forwarded to the 
Human Services Agency, and will be deemed received by the Human Services Agency 
upon actual receipt by it for purposes of the filing and response deadlines stated in Policy. 
and procedure No. 23. Please also note that the County's Personnel Rules govern 
employment related complaints of disability discrimination. Please refer to section 10200 
to 10250 of the Personnel Rules regarding the County's grievance procedure, as well as 
Chapter 14 of the Personnel Rules regarding discrimination complaints. The process 
described in either part may be relied upon to make a complaint of disability 
discrimination. 

A complaint using this procedure should be in writing and should contain information 
about the alleged discrimination such as name, address, and phone number of the 
complainant and location, date and description of the problem(s). If you are viewing 
these instructions online at the County's website, please find the form for making a 
complaint below. Copies of the complaint form are also available from the Public Works 
Department or County Administration Office, County Government Center, 1400 West 
Lacey, Hanford, CA 93230. Alternative means of filing a complaint, such as personal 
interviews or a tape recording of the complaint, are available to person with disabilities 
upon request. 

Exhibit G

Exhibit G 
17 of 34



Exhibit C 

County of Kings 2016 ADA Self-Evaluation 

The complaint should be submitted by the complainant and/or his/her designee as soon as 
possible, but not later than 60 calendar days after the alleged violation to: 

Kevin McAlister, ADA Coordinator 
County Government Center 

1400 West Lacey Blvd. 
Hanford, CA 93,230 

If this complaint is being made on behalf of someone other than me, that person's contact 
information is: 

My complaint relates to circumstances that occurred: 

a) On the following date: 

b) At the following location: 

My complaint is as follows: 

(Please be as specific as possible, and include the names and contact information of 
anyone who might have knowledge of the facts giving rise to your complaint. To help us 
to address your concerns promptly, please stick to the facts: who, want, when, where, 
and how. Please attach additional pages if necessary.) 

2014-2-434 [99311] 

Exhibit G

Exhibit G 
18 of 34



ExhibitD 

ASSURANCES AND CERTIFICATIONS 

Contractor hereby agrees that programs and services receiving financial assistance from and 
through the California Department of Health Care Services or Kings County Behavioral Health 
will be administered in accordance with the Health and Safety Code Sections 11750 et seq. and 
any other applicable state or federal requirements, including civil rights . . 

A. Contractor certifies and agrees that: 

I. A working transition plan for services to persons with disabilities exists and is in 
use as defined in Title 9, Section 10800, et seq. of the California Code of 
Regulations (CCR).' 

2. All products, rep01is, preliminary findings, or data assembled or complied by 
Contractor under this Agreement becomes the property of the State. The State 
reserves the right to authorize others to use or reproduce such materials. 

3. All announcements of events, such as public meetings, hearings, or training 
courses, shall include a statement of advance notice for accommodations for any 
disabled, deaf, or hearing impaired individual. 

4. Limited English Proficiency (LEP) - Contractor will take reasonable steps to 
ensure meaningful access to its programs, services, and inf01mation on the 
services the Contractor provides, free of charge. Additionally, the Contractor 
ce1iifies that it has established and implemented as required by State DHCS, 
policies and procedures for language assistance services that provide LEP persons 
with meaningful access, i.e. oral interpretation services, bilingual staff, telephone 
interpreter lines, written language services, community volunteers, etc. 

5. Sexual contact shall be prohibited between participants/clients and the 
treatment/recovery program staff, including members to the Board of Directors. 
Service Providers shall include this policy prohibition as part of an overall clients' 
rights statement given to the client at admission and shall include a statement in 
each employee personnel file that notes that the employee has read and 
understood the sexual contact prohibition. This policy shall remain in effect for 
six (6) months after a client is discharged from treatment services. 

Contractor further agrees to establish a complaint policy and procedure which provides the 
following: 

I. A procedure by which a person of any class of persons subjected to discrimination 
prohibited by Title VI of the Civil Rights Act of 1964, Section 504 of the 
Rehabilitation Act of 1973, Section 11135, et seq. of the California Government 
Code, or Title 9, Section 10800, et seq. of the California Code of Regulations may 
individually or by a representative file a written complaint. The subject complaint 
will clearly state under which law the complaint is filed. 

Page 1 of 3 

Exhibit G

Exhibit G 
19 of 34



Exhibit D 

2. A statement advising individuals that complaints may be filed with the County or 
the U.S. Depaiiment of Health and Human Services' Office for Civil Rights 
("OCR"). 

3. A statement advising individuals that in cases where the complaint is filed 
initially with the OCR, the OCR may elect to investigate the complaint or request 
that the Civil Rights Officer for the County conduct the investigation. 

4. Within the time limits procedurally imposed, the complainant shall be advised in 
writing as to the findings regarding the alleged complaint. In the same written 
notice, the complainant shall be advised that if he/she is not satisfied with the 
decision, an appeal may be filed with the U.S. Depaiiment of Health and Human 
Services' Office for Civil Rights. 

5. Maintenance of records regarding: 

(a) number of complaints filed; 

(b) the nature of the complaint; · 

( c) the validity of the complaint; and 

( d) conective action taken. 

Contractor shall adhere to the confidentiality of patient records as specified under State, Federal, 
and local laws, including, but not limited to, Title 45 of the Code of Federal Regulations, Parts 
80 and 84, Title VI of the Civil Rights Act of 1964, and the privacy requirements of the "Privacy 
Rule" (HIP AA) promulgated by the U.S. Depaiiment Health and Human Services at Title 45 of 
the Code of Federal Regulations, sections 160 through 164. Nothing in this paragraph shall 
preclude the parties from subsequently entering into a Business Associate Agreement if required 
by the Privacy Rule. 

Drug-Free Workplace Government Code Section 8355 

Contractor agrees that all prograin contractors of services receiving funds from and 
through the State Department of Health Care Services will provide an alcohol/drug free 
workplace by doing all of the following: 

1. Publishing a statement notifying employees that the unlawful manufacture, 
distribution, dispensation, possession, or use of a controlled substance is 
prohibited in the person or organization's workplace and specifying the actions 
that will be talcen against employees for violations of said prohibition. 

2. Establishing a drug-free awareness pro grain to inform employees about all of the 
following: 

a. The dangers of drug abuse in the workplace; 

Page 2 of 3 

Exhibit G

Exhibit G 
20 of 34



Exhibit D 

b. The person or organization's policy of maintaining a drug-free· workplace; 

c. Any available drug counseling, rehabilitation, and employee assistance 
programs; 

d. The penalties that may be imposed upon employees for drug abuse 
violations. 

3. Requiring that each employee engaged in the performance of the contract or grant 
be given a copy of the company's drug-free policy statement and that, as a 
condition of employment on the contract or grant, the employee agrees to abide 
by the terms of the statement. [Chapter 5.5 Section 8350 to Division 1 of Title 2 
of the Government Code.] 

Page 3 of 3 

Exhibit G

Exhibit G 
21 of 34



Behavioral Health 
County of Kings 
Branding Policy 
Created August, 2009 

Overview 

Exhibit E 

Behavioral Health (BH) is a department within Kings County and serves as the funder, 
coordinator, and administrator of mental health services and alcohol and other drug 
services in Kings County. 

The Mission of BH is to promote, support, and invest in the wellness and recovery of 
individuals living in the communities of Kings County. To achieve this end, BH 
contracts with a number of community based providers, organizations, and agencies to 
provide a variety of services that range from prevention, family support groups, mental 
health crisis response, addiction treatment, etc. In addition, BH funds a number of local 
programs, initiatives, and activities to also promote, support, and invest in the wellness of 
individuals in residing within the County. 

Purpose 
The services funded by BH are almost entirely funded with public dollars earmarked to 
provide specific services. As such, BH deems it necessary to demonstrate to the public 
how it: 1) utilizes those public funds; 2) exhibits the types of projects, programs, and 
services it is funding; and 3) generate public awareness of the collaboration between 
various programs in the County and the BH. 

This awareness is conducted through the Branding Policy developed by BH. This 
Branding policy includes the following stipulations: 

• Contractors, Grantors, and Providers shall ensure that all program outreach 
materials, brochures, flyers, special event announcements, and press releases 
regarding any program funded dfrectly or in part by BH contain the language that 
reflects that services are funded by Kings County Behavioral Health. 

• All written materials, including, but not limited to flyers, brochures, and/or other 
written material must contain the BH logo. This applies to any and all electronic 
materials as well as websites, on-line advertising, and social networking sites, etc. 

• The BH Logo must appear in its original color (Black and Purple) and format, 
unless the entire document is going to be in grayscale or black and white. In such 
instance, the logo may appear in such a manner as to be uniform with the 
document. 

• Whenever possible BH wants and the logo to appear on materials in addition to 
the required funding language. 

• The language for the branding must be written in the following format statement: 
"(name of organization) (type of) services funded by Kings County Behavioral 
Health." 

• BH reserves the right to review materials for public use that has the branding 
language and logo should that service be funded by BH. Should material 

Page 1 of2 

Exhibit G

Exhibit G 
22 of 34



Exhibit E 

containing BH language and logo, or services funded, are used in a manner that is 
deemed offensive, discriminatory, political, or in violation of any County . wide 
policies, BH has a right to demand the revision of the materials or services to 
eliminate any identified concerns. BH reserves the right to approve the use of 
materials utilizing the BH Brand should the need arise. 

• BH will not allow its brand to be associated with any services, program, action, 
that may be perceived by the public to be damaging to the County or any of its 
agencies, or contr?,ry to the mission of BH. 

Benefits 
The branding policy ensures that BH and Kings County are afforded the appropriate 
recognition for its funding of and/or support of publicly available programs. The 
Branding policy also provides assurances for BH that its name, logo, and funding are not 
used in manner that may be damaging to the public or the County. 

· The Branding policy also works to provide the partnering agencies with a direct 
collaborative connection to BH and demonstrate to the public the joint effort to seeking 
the overall wellness of the people and communities of Kings County. 

BH is available to address any concerns or issues not covered in this policy on a case by 
· case bases. 

Page 2 of2 

Exhibit G

Exhibit G 
23 of 34



Exhibit F 

HIP AA Business Associate Exhibit 

I. Recitals. 

A. This Agreement has been determined to constitute a business associate 
relationship under the Health Insurance P01tability and Accountability Act ("HIP AA") and 
its implementing privacy and security regulations at 45 CFR Parts 160 and 164 ("the 
HIP AA regulations"). 

B. Kings County ("County") wishes to, or may, disclose to Business Associate 
certain information pursuant to the terms of this Agreement, some of which may constitute 
Protected Health Information ("PHI") pursuant to HIP AA regulations. 

C. "Protected Health Information" or "PHI" means any information, whether 
oral or recorded in any form or medium that relates to the past, present, or future physical 
or mental condition of an individual, the provision of health and dental care to an 
individual, or the past, present, or future payment for the provision of health and dental 
care to an individual; and that identifies the individual or with respect to which there is a 
reasonable basis to believe the information can be used to identify the individual. PHI shall 
have the meaning given to such te1m under HIP AA and HIP AA regulations, as the same 
may be amended from time to time. 

D. "Security Incident" means the attempted or successful unauthorized access, 
use, disclosure, modification, or destruction of PHI, or confidential data that is essential to 
the ongoing operation of the Business Associate's organization and intended for internal 
use; or interference with system operations in an information system. 

E. As set fo1th in this Agreement, Contractor IDT Consultants Inc. is the 
Business Associate of County that provides services, ananges, performs or assists in the 
perfo1mance of functions or activities on behalf of County and creates, receives, maintains, 
transmits, uses or discloses PHI. 

F. County and Business Associate desire to protect the privacy and provide for 
the security of PHI created, received, maintained, transmitted, used or disclosed pursuant 
to this Agreement, in compliance with HIP AA and HIP AA regulations. 

G. The purpose of this Exhibit is to satisfy ce1tain standards and requirements 
of HIP AA and the HIP AA regulations, and other applicable laws. 

H. The terms used in this Exhibit, but not otherwise defined, shall have the 
same meanings as those te1ms are defined in the HIP AA regulations. 

In exchanging info1mation pursuant to this Agreement, the patties agree as follows: 

Page 1 of 11 

Exhibit G

Exhibit G 
24 of 34



Exhibit F 

II. Permitted Uses and Disclosures of PHI by Business Associate. 

A. Permitted Uses and Disclosures. Except as otherwise indicated in this 
Exhibit, Business Associate may use or disclose PHI only to perform functions, activities 
or services specified in this Agreement, for, or on behalf of County, provided that such use 
or disclosure would not violate the HIP AA regulations, if done by County. 

B. Specific Use and Disclosure Provisions. Except as otherwise indicated in 
this Exhibit, Business Associate may: 

1) Use and Disclose for Management and Administration. Use and 
disclose PHI for the proper management and administration of the Business Associate or to 
caiTy out the legal responsibilities of the Business Associate, provided that disclosures are 
required by law, or the Business Associate obtains reasonable assurances from the person 
to whom the info1mation is disclosed that it will remain confidential and will be used or 
further disclosed only as required by law or for the purpose for which it was disclosed to 
the person, and the person notifies the Business Associate of any instances of which it is 
aware that the confidentiality of the information has been breached. 

2) Provision of Assertive Community Treatment Team ("ACT'~ Program Services. 
Use and disclose PHI to provide ACT program services to County. ACT program services 
means the provision of services to adults and their natural supports as further defined in 
the Scope of Work, which is attached as Exhibit A to the Agreement who are consumers 
serviced through Business Associate. 

III. Responsibilities of Business Associate. 

Business Associate agrees: 

A. Nondisclosure. Not to use or disclose Protected Health Inf01mation (PHI) 
other than as permitted or required by this Agreement or as required by law. 

B. Safeguards. To implement administrative, physical, and technical 
safeguards that reasonably and appropriately protect the confidentiality, integrity, and 
availability of the PHI, including electronic PHI, that it creates, receives, maintains, uses or 
transmits on behalf of County; and to prevent use or disclosure of PHI other than as 
provided for by this Agreement. Business Associate shall develop and maintain a written 
information privacy and security program that includes administrative, technical and 
physical safeguards appropriate to the size and complexity of the Business Associate' s 
operations and the nature and scope of its activities, and which incorporates the 
requirements of section C, Security, below. Business Associate will provide County with 
its current and updated policies. 

C. Security. The Business Associate shall take any and all steps necessai·y to 
ensure the continuous security of all computerized data systems containing County PHI. 
These steps shall include, at a minimum: 

Page 2 of 11 

Exhibit G

Exhibit G 
25 of 34



Exhibit F 

1) Complying with all of the data system security precautions listed in 
the Business Associate Data Security Standards set forth in Attachment 1 to this Exhibit; 

2) Security Officer. If the incident occurs after business hours or on a 
weekend or holiday and involves electronic PHI, notification shall be provided by calling 
the County ITSD Help Desk. Business Associate shall take: 

i. Prompt conective action to mitigate any risks or damages 
involved with the breach and to protect the operating environment and 

ii. Any action pertaining to such unauthorized disclosure 
required by applicable Federal and State laws and regulations. 

3) Investigation of Breach. To immediately investigate such security 
incident; breach, or unauthorized use or disclosure of PHI or confidential data. Within 72 
hours of the discove1y, to notify the County: 

1. 

involved in the breach, 
What data elements were involved and the extent of the data 

ii. A description of the unauthorized persons known or 
reasonably believed to have impi-operly used or disclosed PHI or confidential data, 

111. A description of where the PHI or confidential data is 
believed to have been improperly transmitted, sent, or utilized, 

1v. A description of the probable causes of the improper use or 
disclosure; and 

v. Whether Civil Code sections 1798.29 or 1798.82 or any 
other federal or state laws requiring individual notifications of breaches are triggered. 

4) Written Report. To provide a written rep01t of the investigation to 
the County under HIP AA within ten (10) working days of the ·discovery of the breach or 
unauthorized use or disclosure. The report shall include, but not be limited to, the 
info1mation specified above, as well as a full, detailed corrective action plan, including 
information on measures that were taken to halt and/or contain the improper use or 
disclosure. 

5) Notification of Individuals. To notify individuals of the breach or 
unauthorized use or disclosure when notification is required under state or federal law and 
to pay any costs of such notifications, as well as any costs associated with the breach. The 
County shall approve the time, manner and content ·of any such notifications. 

6) County Contact Information. To direct communications to the 
above referenced County staff, Business Associate shall initiate contact as indicated herein. 
County reserves the right to make changes to the contact information below by giving 
written notice to the Business Associate. Said changes shall not require an amendment to 
this Exhibit or the Agreement to which it is incorporated. 

Page 3 of 11 

Exhibit G

Exhibit G 
26 of 34



County Administrative Office 
County of Kings 
1400 W. Lacey Blvd. 
Hanford, CA 93230 

and 

Exhibit F 

Kings County Behavioral Health 
460 Kings County Drive, No. 101 
Hanford, CA 93230 

D. Employee Training and Discipline. To train and use reasonable measures 
to ensure compliance with the requirements of this Exhibit by employees who assist in the 
performance of functions or activities on behalf of County under this Agreement and use 
or disclose PHI; and discipline such employees who intentionally violate any provisions of 
this Exhibit, including by te1mination of employment. In complying with the.provisions of 
this section, Business Associate shall observe the following requirements: 

1) Business Associate shall provide information privacy and security 
training, at least annually, at its own expense, to all its employees who assist in the 
performance of functions or activities on behalf of County under this Agreement and use 
or disclose PHI. 

2) Business Associate shall require each employee who receives 
information privacy and security training to sign a certification, indicating the employee's 
name and the date on which the training was completed. 

3) Business Associate shall retain each employee's written 
certifications for County inspection for a period of six (6) years following contract 
termination. 

IV. Obligations of County. 

County agrees to: 

A. Notice of Privacy Practices. Provide Business Associate with applicable 
and relevant Notice( s) of Privacy Practices that County HIP AA-covered healthcare 
components produce in accordance with 45 CFR 164.520, as well as any changes to such 
notice(s). 

B. Permission by Individuals for Use and Disclosure of PHI. Provide the 
Business Associate with any changes in, or revocation of, permission by an Individual to 
use or disclose PHI, if such changes affect the Business Associate's permitted or required 
uses and disclosures. 

C. Notification oj Restrictions. Notify the Business Associate of any 
restriction to the use or disclosure of PHI that County has agreed to in accordance with 45 
CFR 164.522, to the extent that such restriction may affect the Business Associate's use or 
disclosure of PHI. 

Page 4 of 11 

Exhibit G

Exhibit G 
27 of 34



Exhibit F 

D. Requests Conflicting with 1IIPAA Rules. Not request the Business 
Associate to use or disclose PHI in any manner that would not be pe1missible under the 
HIP AA regulations if done by County. 

V. Audits, Inspection and Enforcement. 

From time to time, County may inspect the facilities, systems, books and records of 
Business Associate to monitor compliance with this Agreement and this Exhibit. Business 
Associate shall promptly remedy any violation of any provision of this Exhibit and shall 
cettify the same to the County Privacy Officer or the County Chief Info1mation Security 
Officer in writing. The fact that County inspects, or fails to inspect, or has the right to 
inspect, Business Associate's facilities, systems and procedures does not relieve Business 
Associate of its responsibility to comply with this Exhibit, nor does County's: 

A. Failure to detect or 

B. Detection, but failure to notify Business Associate or require Business 
Associate's remediation of any unsatisfactory practices constitute acceptance of such 
practice or a waiver of County's enforcement rights under this Agreement and this Exhibit. 

VI. Termination. 

A. Termination for Cause. Upon County's knowledge of a material breach of 
this Exhibit by Business Associate, County shall: 

1) Provide an opp01iunity for Business Associate to cure the breach or 
end the violation and terminate this Agreement if Business Associate does not cure the 
breach or end the violation within the time specified by County; 

2) Immediately terminate this Agreement if Business Associate has 
breached a material term of this Exhibit and cure is not possible; or 

3) If neither cure nor termination is feasible, repott the violation to the 
Secretary of the U.S. Depaitment of Health and Human Services. 

B. Judicial or Administrative Proceedings. Business Associate will notify 
County if it is named as a defendant in a criminal proceeding for a violation of HIP AA. 
County may terminate this Agreement if Business Associate is found guilty of a criminal 
violation of HIP AA. County may terminate this Agreement if a finding or stipulation that 
the Business Associate has violated any standard or requirement of HIP AA, or other 
security or privacy laws is made in any administrative or civil proceeding in which the 
Business Associate is a party or has been joined. 

C. Effect of Termination. Upon termination or expiration of this Agreement 
for any reason, Business Associate shall promptly return or destroy all PHI received from 
County ( or created or received by Business Associate on behalf of County) that Business 

Page 5 of 11 

Exhibit G

Exhibit G 
28 of 34



Exhibit F 

Associate still maintains in any fo1m, and shall retain no copies of such PHI or, if return or 
destruction is not feasible, shall continue to extend the protections of this Exhibit to such 
info1mation, and shall limit further use of such PHI to those purposes that make the return 
or destruction of such PHI infeasible. This provision shall apply to PHI that is in the 
possession of subcontractors or agents of Business Associate. 

VII. Miscellaneous Provisions. 

A. Disclaimer. County makes no warranty or representation that compliance 
by Business Associate with this Exhibit, HIP AA or the HIP AA regulations will be 
adequate or satisfactory for Business Associate's own purposes or that any information in 
Business Associate's possession or control, or transmitted or received by Business 
Associate, is or will be secure from unauthorized use or disclosure. Business Associate is 
solely responsible for all decisions made.by Business Associate regarding the safeguarding 
of PHI. 

B. Amendment. The parties acknowledge that federal and state laws relating 
to electronic data security and privacy are rapidly evolving and that amendment of this 
Exhibit may be required to provide for procedures to ensure compliance with such 
developments. The parties specifically agree to take such action as is necessary to 
implement the standards and requirements of HIP AA, the HIP AA regulations and other 
applicable laws relating to the ·security or privacy of PHI. Upon County's request, Business 
Associate agrees to promptly enter into negotiations with County concerning an 
amendment to this Exhibit embodying written assurances consistent with the standards and 
requirements of HIP AA, the HIP AA regulations or other applicable laws. County may 
te1minate this Agreement upon thirty (30) days written notice in the event: 

1) Business Associate does not promptly enter into negotiations to 
amend this Exhibit when requested by County pursuant to this Section or 

2) Business Associate does not enter into an amendment providing 
assurances regarding the safeguarding and security of PHI that County, in its sole 
discretion, deems -sufficient to satisfy the standards and requirements of HIP AA and the 
HIP AA regulations. 

C. Assistance in Litigation or Administrative Proceedings. Business 
Associate shall make itself and any subcontractors, employees, or agents assisting Business 
Associate in the performance of its obligations under this Agreement, available to County 
at no cost to County to testify as witnesses, or otherwise, in the event of litigation or 
administrative proceedings being commenced against County, its directors, officers or 
employees based upon claimed violation of HIP AA, the HIP AA regulations or other laws 
relating to security and privacy, which involves inactions or actions by the Business 
Associate, except where Business Associate or its subcontractor, employee, or agent is a 
named adverse party. 

Page 6 of 11 

Exhibit G

Exhibit G 
29 of 34



Exhibit F 

D. No Third-Party Beneficiaries. Nothing express or implied in the terms and 
conditions of this Exhibit is intended to confer, nor shall anything herein confer, upon any 
person other than County or Business Associate and their respective successors or 
assignees, any rights, remedies, obligations or liabilities whatsoever. 

E. Inte1pretation. The te1ms and conditions in this Exhibit shall be interpreted 
as broadly as necessary to implement and comply with HIP AA, the HIP AA regulations 
and applicable state laws. The paiiies agree that any ambiguity in the terms and conditions 
of this Exhibit shall be resolved in favor of a meaning that complies and is consistent with 
HIP AA and the HIP AA regulations. 

F. Regulat01y References. ·A reference in the te1ms and conditions of this 
Exhibit to a section in the HIP AA regulations means the section as in effect or as amended. 

G. Survival. The respective rights and obligations of Business Associate under 
Section VII.C of this Exhibit shall survive the te1miilation or expiration of this Agreement. 

H. No Waiver of Obligations. No change, waiver or discharge of any liability 
or obligation hereunder on any one or more occasions shall be deemed a waiver of 
perfo1mance of any continuing or other obligation, or shall prohibit enforcement of any 
obligation, on any other occasion. 

Page 7 of 11 

Exhibit G

Exhibit G 
30 of 34



Exhibit F 

Attachment 1 
Business Associate Data Security Standards 

I. General Security Controls. 

A. Confidentiality Statement. All persons that will be working with County 
PHI must sign a confidentiality statement. The statement must include at a minimum, 
General Use, Security and Privacy Safeguards, Unacceptable Use, and Enforcement 
Policies. The statement must be signed by the workforce member prior to access to 
County PHI. The statement must be renewed annually. The Business Associate shall retain 
each person's written confidentiality statement for County inspection for a period of six (6) 
years following contract termination. 

B. Background Check. Before a member of the Business Associate's 
workforce may access County PHI, Business Associate must conduct a thorough 
background check of that worker and evaluate the results to assure that there is no 
indication that the worker may present a risk for theft of confidential data. The Business 
Associate shall retain each workforce member's background check documentation for a 
period of three (3) years following contract termination. 

C. Workstation/Laptop Enc1yption. All workstations and laptops that process 
and/or store County PHI must be encrypted using a FIPS 140-2 certified algorithm, such as 
Advanced Encryption Standard (AES), with a 128bit key or higher. The encryption 
solution must be full disk unless approved by the County Information Security Office. 

D. Server Security. Servers containing unencrypted County PHI must have 
sufficient administrative, physical, and technical controls in place to protect that data, 
based upon a risk assessment/system security review. 

E. Minimum Necessmy. Only the minimum necessary amount of County PHI 
required to perform necessary business functions may be copied, downloaded, or exported. 

F. Removable Media Devices. All electronic files that contain County PHI 
data must be encrypted when stored on any removable media or portable device (i.e. USB 
thumb drives, floppies, CD/DVD, Blackberry, backup tapes, etc.). Must be encrypted 
using a FIPS 140-2 certified algorithm, such as Advanced Encryption Standard (AES), 
with a 128bit key or higher. 

G. Antivirus Software. All workstations, laptops and other systems that 
process and/or store County PHI must install and actively use comprehensive anti-virus 
software solution with automatic updates scheduled at least daily. 

H. Patch Management. All workstations, laptops and other systems that 
process and/or store County PHI must have security patches applied, with system reboot if 
necessary. There must be a documented patch management process which determines 

Page 8 of 11 

Exhibit G

Exhibit G 
31 of 34



ExhibitF 

installation timeframe based on risk assessment and vendor recommendations. At a 
maximum, all applicable patches must be installed within 30 days of vendor release. 

I. Usel' IDs and Password Contl'ols. All users must be issued a unique user 
name for accessing County PHI. Username must be promptly disabled, deleted, or the 
password changed upon the transfer or termination of an employee with knowledge of the 
password. Passwords are not to be shared. Must be at least eight characters. Must be a 
non-dictionary word. Must not be stored in readable format on the computer. Must be 
changed every 60 days. Must be changed if revealed or compromised. Must be composed 
of characters from at least three of the following four groups from the standard keyboard: 

• Upper case letters (A-Z) 
• Lower case letters (a-z) 
• Arabic numerals (0-9) 
• Non-alphanumeric characters (punctuation symbols) 

J. Data Sanitization. All County PHI must be sanitized using NIST Special 
Publication 800-88 standard methods for data sanitization when the County PSCI is no 
longer needed. 

II. System Security Controls. 

A. System Timeout. The system must provide an automatic timeout, requiring 
re-authentication of the user session after no more than 20 minutes of inactivity. 

B. Warning Banners. All systems containing County PHI must display a 
warning banner stating that data is confidential, systems are logged, and system use is for 
business purposes only. User must be directed to log off the system if they do not agree 
with these requirements. 

C. System Logging. The system must maintain an automated audit trail which 
can identify the user or system process which initiates a request for County PHI, or which 
alters County PHI. The audit trail must be date and time stamped, must log both 
successful and failed accesses, must be read only, and must be restricted to authorized 
users. If County PHI is stored in a database, database logging functionality must be 
enabled. Audit trail data must be archived for at least six (6) years after occurrence. 

D. Access Controls. The system must use role based access controls for all 
user authentications, enforcing the principle of least privilege. 

E. Transmission Enc1yption. All data transmissions of County PHI outside 
the secure internal network must be encrypted using a FIPS 140-2 certified algorithm, such 
as Advanced Encryption Standard (AES), with a 128bit key or higher. Encryption can be 
end to end at the network level, or the data files containing County PHI can be encrypted. 
This requirement pertains to any type of County PHI in motion such as website access, file 
transfer, and E-Mail. 

Page 9 of 11 

Exhibit G

Exhibit G 
32 of 34



Exhibit F 

F. Intrusion Detection. All systems involved in accessing, holding, 
transpotting, and protecting County PHI that are accessible via the Internet must be 
protected by a comprehensive intrusion detection and prevention solution. 

III. Audit Controls. 

A. System Security Review. All systems processing and/or storing County PHI 
must have at least an annual system risk assessment/security review which provides 
assurance that administrative, physical, and technical controls are functioning effectively 
and providing adequate levels of protection. Reviews shall include vulnerability scanning 
tools. 

B. Log Reviews. All systems processing and/or storing County PHI must have 
a routine procedure in place to review system logs for unauthorized access. 

C. Change Control. All systems processing and/or storing County PHI must 
have a documented change control procedure that ensures separation of duties and protects 
the confidentiality, integrity and availability of data. 

IV. Business Continuity/ Disaster Recovery Controls. 

A. Disaster Recove1y. Business Associate must establish a documented plan 
to enable continuation of critical business processes and protection of the security of 
electronic County PHI in the event of an emergency. Emergency means any circumstance 
or situation that causes nmmal computer operations to become unavailable for use in 
performing the work required under this Agreement for more than 24 hours. 

B. Data Backup Plan. Business Associate must have established documented 
procedures to back-up County PHI to maintain retrievable exact copies of County PHI. 
The plan must include a regular schedule for making back-ups, storing back-ups offsite, an 
inventory of back-up media, and the amount of time to restore County PHI should it be 
lost. At a minimum, the schedule must be a weekly full back-up and monthly offsite 
storage of County data. 

V. Paper Document Controls. 

A. Supervision of Data. County PHI in paper form shall not be left unattended 
at any time, unless it is locked in a file cabinet, file room, desk or office. Unattended 
means that information is not being observed by an employee authorized to access the 
information. County PHI in paper form shall not be left unattended at any time in vehicles 
or planes and shall not be checked in baggage on commercial airplanes. 

B. Escorting Visitors. Visitors to areas where County PHI is contained shall 
be escorted and County Protected Health Information shall be kept out of sight while 
visitors are in the area. 

Page 10 of 11 

Exhibit G

Exhibit G 
33 of 34



Exhibit F 

C. Confidential Destruction. County PHI must be disposed of through 
confidential means, using NIST Special Publication 800-88 standard methods for data 
sanitization when the County PSCI is no longer needed. 

D. Removal of Data. County PHI must not be removed from the premises of 
the Business Associate except with ex:press written permission of County. 

E. Faxing. Faxes containing County PHI shall not be left unattended and fax 
machines shall be in secure areas. Faxes shall contain a confidentiality statement notifying 
persons receiving faxes in enor to destroy them. Fax numbers ·shall be verified with the 
intended recipient before sending. 

F. Mailing. County PHI shall only be mailed using secure methods. Large 
volume mailings of County Protected Health Information shall be by a secure, bonded 
courier with signature required on receipt. Disks and other transp01iable media sent 
through the mail must be encrypted with a County approved solution, such as a solution 
using a vendor product specified on the CSSI. 

Page 11 of 11 

Exhibit G

Exhibit G 
34 of 34



Exhibit H

Exhibit H 
1 of 1



 ...................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................   
 
BOARD ACTION : APPROVED AS RECOMMENDED: _________ OTHER: ________ 
 
 
 
 
 

I hereby certify that the above order was passed and adopted 

on ________________________, 2021. 

CATHERINE VENTURELLA, Clerk of the Board 

By                                                    , Deputy. 
 

 
 

SUBMITTED BY: County Counsel – Diane Freeman 
 
SUBJECT: APPOINTMENT OF DIRECTORS TO THE CORCORAN IRRIGATION 

DISTRICT  
 

SUMMARY: 
 

Overview: 
The Corcoran Irrigation District has requested the Kings County Board of Supervisors appoint Directors 
to its District Board for Divisions 2 and 5, in lieu of election pursuant to the provisions of Elections 
Code section 10515. 
  
Recommendation: 
Appoint Matthew O. Gilkey as Director of Division 2 and Erik J. Hansen as Director of Division 5 
of the Corcoran Irrigation District for the period of December 3, 2021 at 12:00 p.m. through 
December 5, 2025 at 12:00 p.m. 
 
Fiscal Impact: 
None. 
 

BACKGROUND: 
Pursuant to Elections Code section 10515, if the number of persons who have filed a Declaration of Candidacy 
for a district office does not exceed the number of offices to be filled, the Board of Supervisors may make the 
appointment of the candidate in lieu of holding the election.  The Corcoran Irrigation District (“District”) has 
certified that the conditions required for an appointment exist.  Specifically, that only one person has filed a 
Declaration of Candidacy for the Director positions of Districts 2 and 5, up for election.  Accordingly, the 
District has requested that the Kings County Board of Supervisors appoint the recommended candidates in lieu 
of election. 
 

 

 _________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________   

  

COUNTY OF KINGS 
BOARD OF SUPERVISORS 

GOVERNMENT CENTER HANFORD, CALIFORNIA 93230 (559) 852-2362 
Catherine Venturella, Clerk of the Board of Supervisors 

 
 

AGENDA ITEM 
December 7, 2021 

 





















 ...................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................   
 
BOARD ACTION : APPROVED AS RECOMMENDED: _________ OTHER: ________ 
 
 
 
 
 

I hereby certify that the above order was passed and adopted 

on ________________________, 2021. 

CATHERINE VENTURELLA, Clerk to the Board 

By                                                    , Deputy. 
 

 
 

SUBMITTED BY: Fire Department – Bill Lynch / German Ortiz  
 
SUBJECT: ACCEPTANCE OF THE 2021 EMERGENCY MANAGEMENT 

PERFORMANCE GRANT AND THE 2021 EMERGENCY MANAGEMENT 
PERFORMANCE GRANT PROGRAM-AMERICAN RESCUE PLAN ACT 

 
SUMMARY: 
 

Overview: 
The purpose of the Emergency Management Performance Grant (EMPG) is to support comprehensive 
emergency management efforts at the local level and to encourage the improvement of mitigation, 
preparedness, response, and recovery capabilities for all hazards the County might face. Funds provided 
under the EMPG must be used to support activities that improve the Operational Area’s ability to 
prevent, prepare for, mitigate, respond to, and recover from emergencies and disasters, whether natural 
or man-made.  

 
Recommendation: 

a. Approve the Fire Department to accept the 2021 Emergency Management Performance 
Grant and the 2021 Emergency Management Performance Grant Program-American 
Rescue Plan Act;  

b. Authorize the County Fire Chief to sign all grant documents; and 
c. Adopt a Resolution designating the Fire Chief, County Administrative Officer, or 

Purchasing Manager as authorized signatories for execution of all grant documentation.   
 

Fiscal Impact: 
The EMPG Program plays an important role in the implementation of emergency preparedness 
nationally by supporting the building, sustainment, and delivery of core capabilities essential to 
achieving a secure and resilient nation. The program provides funding for all hazards approach to 
emergency response. The total allocation for Fiscal Year 2021-2022 is $217,174 and is already included  
 

__________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________   

  

COUNTY OF KINGS 
BOARD OF SUPERVISORS 

GOVERNMENT CENTER HANFORD, CALIFORNIA 93230  (559) 852-2362 
Catherine Venturella, Clerk of the Board of Supervisors 

 
 

AGENDA ITEM 
December 7, 2021  

 
 



Agenda Item 
ACCEPTANCE OF THE FISCAL YEAR 2021-2022 EMERGENCY MANAGEMENT 
PERFORMANCE GRANT  
December 7, 2021 
Page 2 of 2 
 

 

(Cont’d) 
in the County’s Adopted Budget. This grant requires a dollar for dollar cash match, which has been 
allocated from Fire Department funds for the fiscal year. The grant allocation and cash match will result 
in the combined program total of $434,348 for Fiscal Year 2021-2022. The EMPG is a reimbursement 
grant, and all expenditures are to be administered by the Kings County Office of Emergency Services, 
and Office of Emergency Services (Cal-OES) for review and approval, and the Kings County Office of 
Emergency Services will process reimbursement funds.  

 
BACKGROUND: 
Kings County receives EMPG funding each year from Cal-OES, the pass through State entity awarded by the 
Department of Homeland Security, for performing tasks to improve disaster preparedness, mitigation, response, 
and recovery efforts within the Kings County Operational Area.  Activities include working with community 
partners for planning efforts, participating in and hosting trainings and exercises to assure responders’ skills are 
kept up-to-date, and revising the County’s mitigation and response plans when needed.  
 
In Fiscal Year 2020-2021, the EMPG program funded salary for two position in the Office of Emergency 
Services.  Additional program expenses included operating costs, such as educational and outreach materials, 
communication services, and other related expenses associated with operating and sustaining the office and 
grant procured equipment as well as the Operational Area (OA) Emergency Operations Center (EOC).   
 
Planned activities for Fiscal Year 2021-2022 include the salaries and operating expenses for three personnel 
working in the program.  Additional proposed training activities include additional trainings related to disaster 
cost recovery, public information, alerting, and warning, and general EOC training in line with the Cal-OES 
position-credentialing program.  The grant will be used to continue to support the operational costs for the 
County EOC and associated equipment and services.   
 
The Fiscal Year 2021-2022 EMPG performance period is July 1, 2021 through June 30, 2023, which has 
changed from a 12 month to a 24-month performance period to allow more project time to execute projects.   
 
The Resolution has been reviewed and approved as to form by County Counsel.  



Governing Body Resolution 
 
BE IT RESOLVED BY THE  

                      (Governing Body) 
OF THE THAT 

                        (Name of Applicant) 
  , OR 

(Name or Title of Authorized Agent) 
  , OR 

(Name or Title of Authorized Agent) 
  , 

(Name or Title of Authorized Agent) 
 

is hereby authorized to execute for and on behalf of the named 
Applicant, a public entity established under the laws of the State of 
California, any actions necessary for the purpose of obtaining federal 
financial assistance provided by the federal Department of Homeland 
Security and subgranted through the State of California for the following 
Grant Award: 
 
             

(List Grant Year and Program) 
 

Passed and approved this day of , 20    
 

Certification 
 

I, , duly appointed and 
(Name) 

 
   Of the      
  (Title)  (Governing Body) 

 
do hereby certify that the above is a true and correct copy of a resolution 
passed and approved by the 
   day of ,20    

 
 
 
  
 

(Official Position) 
 
 
 

(Signature)     (Date) 





 ...................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................   
 
BOARD ACTION : APPROVED AS RECOMMENDED: _________ OTHER: ________ 
 
 
 
 
 

I hereby certify that the above order was passed and adopted 

on ________________________, 2021. 

CATHERINE VENTURELLA, Clerk to the Board 

By                                                    , Deputy. 
 

 
 

SUBMITTED BY: Fire Department – Bill Lynch / German Ortiz  
 
SUBJECT: ACCEPTANCE OF THE FISCAL YEAR 2021 HOMELAND SECURITY 

GRANT PROGRAM  
 
SUMMARY: 
 

Overview: 
The State Homeland Security Grant Program (SHSGP) is awarded by the California Governor’s Office 
of Emergency Services (CalOES) through the Department of Homeland Security to Operational Areas 
throughout the State. The grant supports local efforts to prevent terrorism and other catastrophic events 
and to prepare the Nation for the threats and hazards that pose the greatest risk to the security of the 
United States. This is an annual grant, which funds Homeland Security related activities for first 
responder agencies within the Kings County Operational Area.  

 
Recommendation: 

a. Authorize the Fire Department to accept the Fiscal Year 2021 State Homeland Security 
Grant Project; 

b. Authorize the County Fire Chief to sign all grant Documents; and 
c. Adopt a Resolution designating the Fire Chief, County Administrative Officer, or 

Purchasing Manager as authorized signatories for execution of all grant documentation  
 
Fiscal Impact: 
This year’s 2021 State Homeland Security Grant allocation to the county is for $226,074, and was 
included in the Adopted Fiscal Year 2021-2022 Budget Unit 242000. The grant is a reimbursement 
grant. Approximately $114,284 of the total allocation will be distributed among County Agencies, while 
the remainder $111,790 is to be distributed among the municipal public safety partners. All purchases 
will be executed by the respective sub-recipient agency awarded by the Kings County Approval 
Authority, and those agencies will provide the Kings County Fire Department with an invoice. The Fire  
 

__________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________   

  

COUNTY OF KINGS 
BOARD OF SUPERVISORS 

GOVERNMENT CENTER HANFORD, CALIFORNIA 93230  (559) 852-2362 
Catherine Venturella, Clerk of the Board of Supervisors 

 
 

AGENDA ITEM 
December 7, 2021 

 
 



Agenda Item 
ACCEPTANCE OF THE FISCAL YEAR 2021 HOMELAND SECURITY GRANT PROGRAM 
December 7, 2021 
Page 2 of 2 
 

 

(Cont’d) 
Department will invoice the State, and then track the expenditures and reimbursements. Payments from 
CalOES are to be paid within 30 to 45 days after the receiving of the invoice.   
 

BACKGROUND: 
This grant is offered by CalOES to assist local first response agencies to purchase the needed equipment, 
training, and services that would be required in responding to a terrorist activity. This year’s request included 
funding to the Hanford Police Department (HPD), Hanford Fire Department (HFD), Kings County District 
Attorney’s Office, Kings County Fire Department, and the Kings County Information Technology Department. 
The projects awarded to the Hanford Police Department will provide a Computer Aided Dispatch (CAD) 
System Software Module Installation and Configuration, and a Terrorism Incident Prevention Equipment. This 
will provide HPD with a mobile vehicle trailer kit, which will come in a trailer with barriers and accessories that 
will be capable of rapid deployment at community events that occur in roadways as soft target protection. The 
project awarded to the Hanford Fire Department will provide HFD with Base Station Radios and Mobile 
Radios. The project awarded to the Kings County District Attorney’s Office will provide Forensic Computers 
and Software. The project awarded to the Kings County Fire Department will provide 4-Gas Air Monitors. The 
project for the Kings County Information Technology Department will provide train for two individuals 
responsible for managing cybersecurity in the organization with a training that focuses on conducting high-value 
penetration testing step by step and end to end.  The office of Emergency Services Division of Fire has projected 
for funding the 5% allowable management and administration costs for administering the grant.  
 
The Kings County State Homeland Security Grant Program application was executed and agreed to by the 
Approval Authority representatives from the City of Lemoore Police Department, City of Hanford Fire 
Department, as well as the Kings County Sheriff’s Office, Kings County Health Department, and Kings County 
Fire Department.  
 
The Resolution has been reviewed and approved as to form by County Counsel.  
 
 



Governing Body Resolution 
 
BE IT RESOLVED BY THE  

                      (Governing Body) 
OF THE THAT 

                        (Name of Applicant) 
  , OR 

(Name or Title of Authorized Agent) 
  , OR 

(Name or Title of Authorized Agent) 
  , 

(Name or Title of Authorized Agent) 
 

is hereby authorized to execute for and on behalf of the named 
Applicant, a public entity established under the laws of the State of 
California, any actions necessary for the purpose of obtaining federal 
financial assistance provided by the federal Department of Homeland 
Security and subgranted through the State of California for the following 
Grant Award: 
 
             

(List Grant Year and Program) 
 

Passed and approved this day of , 20    
 

Certification 
 

I, , duly appointed and 
(Name) 

 
   Of the      
  (Title)  (Governing Body) 

 
do hereby certify that the above is a true and correct copy of a resolution 
passed and approved by the 
   day of ,20    

 
 
 
  
 

(Official Position) 
 
 
 

(Signature)     (Date) 





 ...................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................   
 
BOARD ACTION: APPROVED AS RECOMMENDED: _________ OTHER: ________ 
 
 
 
 
 

I hereby certify that the above order was passed and adopted 

on ________________________, 2021. 

CATHERINE VENTURELLA, Clerk to the Board 

By                                                    , Deputy. 
 

 
 

SUBMITTED BY: Human Services Agency – Sanja Bugay/Maria Rodriguez-Lopez  
 
SUBJECT: HOMELESS HOUSING, ASSISTANCE, AND PREVENTION PROGRAM 

ROUND THREE GRANT APPLICATION    
 
SUMMARY: 
 

Overview: 
The Human Services Agency (HSA) is requesting Board approval to apply and accept the Homeless 
Housing, Assistance, and Prevention (HHAP) Program Round 3 grant award through the California 
Business Consumer Services administered by the Homeless Coordinating and Financing Council 
(HCFC).  Grant funds are made available to support ongoing efforts to end and prevent homelessness for 
our community.   
 
Recommendation: 

a. Authorize Human Services Agency to apply for Homeless Housing Assistance and 
Prevention Round 3 grant fund through the Business Consumer Services administered 
through the Homeless Coordinating and Financial Council; and 

b. Authorize the Human Services Agency Director, or their designee, to submit application 
and sign necessary grant documents required to secure funds.   

 
Fiscal Impact: 
There will be no impact to County General Fund.  There is no required County match. The HHAP 
Round 3 award allocation for Kings County is $349,228.  All HHAP Round 3 grant funds must be 
expended by June 30, 2026.  This funding may be used as a match for federal funds as long as purposes 
of the projects meet the basic requirements of the HHAP grant.  There are sufficient appropriations in 
the Fiscal Year (FY) 2021-2022 Adopted Budget.   
 

 
(Cont’d) 

 

__________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________   

  

COUNTY OF KINGS 
BOARD OF SUPERVISORS 

GOVERNMENT CENTER HANFORD, CALIFORNIA 93230  (559) 852-2362 
Catherine Venturella, Clerk of the Board of Supervisors 

 
 

AGENDA ITEM 
December 7, 2021 

 



Agenda Item 
HOMELESS HOUSING, ASSISTANCE, AND PREVENTION PROGRAM ROUND THREE 
GRANT APPLICATION 
December 7, 2021 
Page 2 of 2 
 

 

BACKGROUND: 
The State of California has established the HHAP pursuant to Health and Safety Code 50220.7(a).  The program 
is administered by the California HCFC in the Business, Consumer Services and Housing Agency. On 
September 15, 2021, the HCFC announced HHAP Round 3 Allocation and Agreement to apply, full application 
to be submitted by June 30, 2022.  HHAP Round 3 is authorized by AB 140 (Committee on budget, Chapter 
111 Statutes of 2021), which was signed into law by Governor Newsom on July 19, 2021.  HHAP Round 3 is a 
$1 billion grant that provides local jurisdictions flexible funding to continue efforts to end and prevent 
homelessness in their communities.  This non-competitive funding is available to cities, counties, and 
Continuums of Care for which, Kings County has been allocated $349,228 to support a regional response to 
reduce and end homelessness.     

 
The general purpose of the program is to provide jurisdictions with one-time grant funds to support regional 
coordination and expand local capacity to address their immediate homelessness challenges informed by best 
practices framework focused on moving homeless individuals and families into permanent housing and 
supporting the efforts of those individuals and families to maintain their permanent housing.  HSA will 
coordinate efforts with the Kings/Tulare Homeless Alliance, the bi-county Continuum of Care, as a regional 
response to reduce and end homelessness.  

 
HSA is requesting Board approval to apply for HHAP Round 3 grant funds, which will be used to assist in 
addressing immediate homelessness challenges.  Eligible uses of funding include the following:   
   

• Rapid rehousing, rental subsidies and incentives to landlords such as security deposits and holding fees. 
• Operating subsidies in new and existing affordable or supportive housing units, emergency shelters, and 

navigation centers.  Operating subsidies may include operating reserves. 
• Incentives to property owners, including, but not limited to, security deposits and holding fees. 
• Street outreach to assist persons experiencing homelessness to access permanent housing services. 
• Service coordination, which may include access to workforce, education, and training programs, or other 

services needed to promote housing stability in supportive housing. 
• Systems support for activities necessary to create regional partnerships and maintain a homeless services 

and housing delivery system, particularly for vulnerable populations including families and homeless 
youth. 

• Delivery of permanent housing and innovative housing solutions such as hotel and motel conversions. 
• Prevention and shelter diversion to permanent housing. 
• New navigation centers and emergency shelters based on demonstrated need. 

 
 



 ...................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................   
 
BOARD ACTION : APPROVED AS RECOMMENDED: _________ OTHER: ________ 
 
 
 
 
 

I hereby certify that the above order was passed and adopted 

on ________________________, 2021. 

CATHERINE VENTURELLA, Clerk to the Board 

By                                                    , Deputy. 
 

 
 

SUBMITTED BY: Human Services Agency – Sanja Bugay/Maria Rodriguez-Lopez 
 
SUBJECT: AGREEMENT WITH KINGS UNITED WAY FOR MOBILE APPLICATION 

MAINTENANCE  
 
SUMMARY: 
 

Overview: 
The Human Services Agency (HSA) is requesting to approve the contract with Kings United Way for 
Fiscal Year (FY) 2021–2022 and FY 2022-2023 for the continued maintenance of the 211 online and 
mobile application (app). 

 
Recommendation:   
Approve the Agreement with Kings United Way for continued maintenance for the 211 online and 
mobile application, retroactively effective from July 1, 2021 to June 30, 2023. 

 
Fiscal Impact:   
There is no impact to County General Fund associated with this recommended agreement.  Cost for this 
service will be covered with dedicated federal and state revenues.  The total cost of this contract is 
$120,000 for the entire 2 years ($60,000 for FY 2021-2022 and $60,000 for FY 2022-2023).  Sufficient 
funding is included in the FY 2021-2022 and 2022-2023 Budgets for this expenditure within Budget 
Unit 520000. 

 
BACKGROUND: 
Kings United Way assisted with the implementation of the County 211 information and referral system. 211 is 
designated by the Federal Communications Commissions as a quick dial number for nonemergency community 
information and as referral service for social services assistance.   

 
(Cont’d) 

__________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________   

  

COUNTY OF KINGS 
BOARD OF SUPERVISORS 

GOVERNMENT CENTER HANFORD, CALIFORNIA 93230  (559) 852-2362 
Catherine Venturella, Clerk of the Board of Supervisors 

 
 

AGENDA ITEM 
December 7, 2021 

 



Agenda Item 
AGREEMENT WITH KINGS UNITED WAY FOR MOBILE APPLICATION MAINTENANCE 
December 7, 2021 
Page 2 of 2 
 

 

On December 1, 2009, the Board of Supervisors (BOS) approved the original contract (Board Agreement #09-
107) for Kings United Way to assist with the implementation of the County 211 informational and referral 
system.  
 
On March 1, 2016, the BOS approved contract (Board Agreement #16-012) for the continuous support to the 
211 services and to increase the number of resources available to County residents with the implementation of 
the new 211 mobile application.  This contract also funded support of a 211 Kings County Coordinator and 
uploading of Kings County Data into the mobile application.  With this new funding, the residents of Kings 
County are able to dial and search the database for resources. 
 
On July 25, 2017, and October 11, 2018, the Purchasing Department approved a budget for the continued 
maintenance and marketing of the online and mobile application. 
 
On August 6, 2019, the BOS approved contract (Board Agreement #19-071) to amend the October 11, 2018, the 
Purchasing Division approved the contract for the additional amount for FY 2018-2019 and to extend the 
contract for FY 2019-2020.  This additional funding enabled and supported the Mobile application text/chat 
infrastructure cost. 
 
A second amendment to Agreement #19-071 was approved by the BOS on June 9, 2020.  This second 
amendment was to modify the additional funding for FY 2019–2020 and extend the agreement for one 
additional year (FY 2020-2021) for the maintenance to the 211 mobile application and the Text/Chat 
infrastructure cost. 
 
With the continuous support of HSA, Kings United Way has been able to update the information referral system 
for the residents of Kings County. Residents can dial 211, go online, or download the 211mobile app as an 
information tool to find local resources and services from government, community, and non-profit organizations 
ranging from mental health, substance abuse, parenting support and education, and housing assistance to 
programs in place to provide utility and food assistance. They can also receive the information via text or live 
chat online with a representative from the 211 data center.   
 
HSA is now requesting to approve this contract for FY 2021–2022 and FY 2022-2023 for the continued 
maintenance for both the online and mobile app. 
 
The agreement has been reviewed and approved by County Counsel as to form. 



Agreement No. _
COUNTY OF KINGS

AGREEMENT FOR SERVICES

THIS AGREEMENT is made and entered inro on _,2021 , between
the County of Kings, a political subdivision of the State of Calilornia (.'County"), and
Kings United Way, a Califomia nonprofit corporation (-Contractor") (singutarty a "Party"
and collectively the "Paties").

RECITALS

WHEREAS, County requires 2l I telephone system services to equip the public with
inlormation regarding resources and relerrals through a telephone service that include
voice, web, mobile. chat and text functions; and

WHEREAS, Contractor is ready, willing, able, and qualified to perlbrm such
servlc es.

NOW THEREFORE, the Parties agree:

l. ScoPE oF SERVICES

County hereby engages Contractor and Contractor shall do. perform, and carry'out
the services as set forth in Exhibit A.

2. RESPoNSIBILITIES oF CoNTRACToR

Contractor possesses the requisite skills necessary to perform the work under this
Agreement and County relies upon such skills. Contractor shall, at all times utilizing its
abiliry, experience and talent. faithlulll', industriously and professionally perform the work
set lorth in Exhibit A to County's reasonable satisfaction. County's acceptance ol
Contractor's work does not constitute a release of Contractor from its professional
responsibility.

Contractor affirms that it possesses current valid appropriate licensure, including,
but not limited to, driver's license, professional license, certificate oftax-exempt status, or
permits, as required to perlorm the work under this Agreement.

Kings United way FY 2l/22 & 2423
Human Services Agreement # 166



3. CoMPENSATIoN

Contractor shall not be entitled to nor receive from County any additional
consideration, compensation, or other remuneration lor services rendered under this
Agreement except as set fonh in Exhibit B.

All funds provided under this Agreement must be completely expended by June 30,
2023. The Parties acknowledge and agree rhat the County's obligation to make payments
to Contractor is contingent upon receipt ofFederal and State funds. Both program activities
and funding allocations are subject to immediate reduction or termination in the event ol
the reduction or termination of funding or authorization.

Upon submission of an invoice by Contractor. and upon approval of County's
representative. County shall pay Contractor monthl), in arrears. up to the maximum amount
provided for in Section 3. Each invoice must include a description of services rendered, to
whom, date ofservice and the charges according to the agreed upon method.

Payments will be made on a cost reimbursement basis. Contractor shall bill County
for amounts equal to the actual costs incurred for allowable items, within thirty (30)
calendar days' following the end olthe month in which services were delivered. Contractor
shall submit its billing to County in the format specified by County and documented in
such reasonable detail, as the Countl"s Auditor requires to establish lunds were expended
for the intended purposes of this Agreement.

ln order to ensure that expenditures are claimed to correct fiscal year allocation, the
billing for the month of June 2022 and J:une 2023 must be received by County by July 10s
each year.

Upon receipt and approval of the monthly invoice, County shall remit to Contractor
the amount ol allowable reimbursement costs incurred in the performance of this
Agreement. Such remittance shall be made to Contractor within thirty (30) calendar days'
after timely receipt of the expenditure and statistical reports for each preceding calendar
month.

Final payment will be made upon receipt of the reconciled expenditure and
statistical reports for the period ending June 30,2023. Final billing for all costs of the
agreement must be submitted before July 10,2023. Final payment may be held until any
necessary termination audit is completed.

Contractor is responsible for the repayment of all audit exceptions resulting from
audits performed by County; state of federal agencies related to this Agreement.

2
Kings United \l'a;' FY 2ln2 &22J23
Human Services Agreement # 166



Invoices and audits shall be submitted electronicallv to:

HSA.Contracts@co.kings.ca.us

All Conractor costs shall be supported by properly executed payrolts, time records,
attendance records, invoices, contracts. detailed general ledgers. vouchers, orders or any
other documents pertaining in whole or in pan to this Agreement.

4. TERM

This Agreement commences on July l, 2021, and terminates on June 30, 2023,
unless otherwise terminated in accordance with its terms. The Parties acknowledge and
understand this Agreement covers the Parties' obligations retroactively to July l, 2O2l .

5. REC0RDS AND INSPECTIoNS

Contractor shall maintain full. complete. and accurate records with respect to all
matters covered under this Agreement. All such records shall be prepared in accordance
w'ith generally accepted accounting procedures, shall be clearly identified, and shall be kept
readily accessible. County shall have free access during normal work hours to such records
and the right to examine, inspect, copy, or audit them, at no cost to County. Records shall
be maintained for seven (7) years after the termination of this Agreement or any extension
of this Agreement.

6. AMENDMENTS

This Agreement may be modified only by a written amendmenr signed by
Contractor and County Board of Supervisors or other representative authorized by County
Board of Supervisors.

Any proposed increase in a single line item up to ten percent (10%) ofthe original
line item amount must be approved by the Director of the Human Services Agency or her
designee. Any such Director approved modification shall not exceed the amount set forth
in Section 3.

7. TERMINATION

The right to terminate this Agreement may be exercised without prejudice to any
other right or remedy to which the terminating Party may be entitled at law or under this
Agreement.

A. Without Cause. Either Party may terminate this Agreement without cause by
giving the other Party thirty (30) calendar days'written notice of its intention to terminate

Kings United Way FY 21t22 & 22123 3

Human Services Agreement # 166



pursuant to this provision. specifying the date of termination. If the County's funding for
services under this Agreement becomes unavailable. the County may terminate this
Agreement effective immediately.

B. With Cause. This Agreement may be terminated by either Parr.v should the
other Party materially breach its duties or responsibilities hereunder. Upon determining a
material breach has occurred, the non-defaulting Party shall provide written notice to the
defaulting Parry of its intention to terminate this Agreement and inlorm the defaulting Party
whether the breach is able to be cured or not.

Brer) ach Subiect to Cure . Unless otherwise specifically noted in the
Notice of Default, all Notices of Breach shall be deemed subject to this provision. If the
non-defaulting Pa(y deems the breach ol a nature subject to cure, said Party shall allow
the delaulting Party a period ofat least ten (10) calendar days to cure the breach. If the
breach is not remedied within the period specified in the Notice ol Default, the non-
defaulting Party may terminate the Agreement upon further written notice specifying the
date of termination.

a. In the event the nature olthe breach requires more time than
allowed in the Notice of Default to cure, the defaulting Party may submit a written proposal
to the non-defaulting Parry within that period. in which said Party sets forth a specific plan
to remedy the default and a date cenain lor completion. If the non-defaulting Patly agrees
to the proposed plan in u,riting. the delaulting Party shall immediately commence curing
the breach. If the defaulting Parry fails to cure the breach within the time agreed upon by
the Parties. the non-defaulting Party may: i) terminate this A$eement immediately; ii)
terminate on the date specified in the Notice of Default; or iii) grant the defaulting Party
additional time to cure the breach.

b. Altematively, the County may elect to cure the default and any
expense incuned as a result thereof shall be bome by the Contractor.

2) Breach Not Subiect to Cure. If the non-defaulting Party deems the
breach is of such a nature as it is not subject to or is incapable of being cured, it shall
provide a Notice of Default to the defaulting Party of its intent to terminate this Agreement,
in which it shall include a date upon which the Agreement terminates.

C. Effects of Termination. Termination of this Agreement shall not terminate
Contractor's obligations or liability to the County for damages sustained by the County
because of the Contractor's breach, nor the Contractor's duty to indemnify, maintain and
make available any records pertaining to this Agreement. cooperate with any audit. be
subject to offset. or make any reports ol pre-termination contract activities.

Kings Unired Wa! FY 21122 & 22123
Human Services Agreement # 166

.+



D. Forbearance not Waiver ol Breach or Default. In no event shall any act of
forbearance by either Party of previous acts by the other Pany that constitute a breach or
default ol the Party's obligations under this Agreement shall not act as a waiver of the
Parties' right to assert a breach or default of this Agreement has occurred, nor shall such
act impair or prejudice any remedy available to the non-breaching Party with respect to the
breach or default.

8. INSURANCE

A. Requirement to Obtain. Maintain. and Deliver Proof of Insurance Prior to
Execution of the Agreement or Commencement of Work. Without limiting the County's
right to obtain indemnification from Contractor or any third parties, prior to the
commencement of work or execution of this Agreement. Contractor shall purchase and
maintain the lollowing types of insurance for the minimum limits indicated below
throughout the term of this Agreement. Contractor shall provide an Endorsed Additional
Insured page from Contractor's Insurance Carrier to the County's Risk Manager
guaranteeing such coverage to the County prior to the execution of this Agreement.
Contractor shall deliver prool of insurance and all endorsements in accordance with this
Agreement's Notice Section, or as otherwise agreed between the Parties. Failure to obtain,
maintain, or provide proof ol insurance coverage is a material breach of this Agreement
and may result in the immediate suspension or termination of this Agreement for cause, in
addition to any other remedies the County may have under the law.

B. Endorsement ofPolicies. Contractor shall cause each policy outlined below'
to be endorsed designating the County and its Board members, officials, officers,
employees, and agents as additional insureds, using ISO form CG 20 26 or an alternate
form that is at least as broad as form CG 20 26, as to any liability arising lrom the
performance of this Agreement.

C. Waiver of Subrogation Rights against the County. To the extent possible.
each insurance policy must include a waiver ofthe insurer's subrogation rights against the
County.

D. lnsurance Limits. Contractor shall obtain the required insurance policies for
the amounts set forth below, unless otherwise approved by the County's Risk Manager in
writing prior to the execution of this Agreement.

l. Commercial General Liabiliw. Two Million Dollars ($2,000,000) per

occurrence and Five Million Dollars ($5,000,000) annual aggregate covering bodily injury,
personal injury and property damage.

2. Automobile Liabilitv. Comprehensive Automobile Liability
Insurance with limits for bodily injury of not less than Five Hundred Thousand Dollars

5
Kings Unired Wa1 FY 2lD2 & 2Y23
Human Servic€s A8reement # 166



($500.000) per person. One Million Dollars ($1.000.000) per accidenr, and not less rhan
One Hundred Thousand Dollars ($100.000) for property damages, or such coverage with
a combined single limit of One Million Dollars ($ 1,000,000). Coverage should include
owned and non-owned vehicles used in connection with this Agreement.

3. Workers C mpensation. Statutory coverage, if and as required
endorsedaccording to the Califomia Labor Code. Contractor shall cause the policy to be

to waive the insurer's subrogation rights against the County.

4. Professional Liabilirv. One Million Dollars ($1,000,000) limit per
occurrence or claim and Three Million Dollars (53,000,000) annual aggregate limit
covering Contractor's wrongful acts, errors, and omissions.

E. Ratins of Insurers. Insurance is to be placed with admitted insurers rated by
A.M. Best Co. as A:VII or higher. Lower rated, or approved but not admitted insurers, may
be accepted if prior approval is given by the County's Risk Manager.

F. Notice of Cancellat ion to the County and Pavment of Premiums . Contractor
shall cause each ofthe above insurance policies to be endorsed to provide the County with
thirty (30) days' prior written notice of cancellation. The County is not liable for the
payment of premiums or assessments on the policy. No cancellation provisions in the
insurance policy shall be construed in derogation ofthe continuing duty ofthe Contractor
to fumish insurance during the term of this Agreement.

9. INDEMNTFICATIoN

A. When the law establishes a professional standard of care for Contractor's
services, to the lullest extent permitted by law, Contractor shall indemnify, defend, and
hold harmless County and any and all of its Board members, officials, employees and
agents from and against any and all losses. liabilities. damages, costs, and expenses.
including legal counsel's fees and costs but only to the extent Contractor is responsible for
such damages, liabilities, and costs on a comparative basis of fault between Contractor and
County in the performance ofprofessional services under this Agreement. Contractor shall
not be obligated to defend or indemnif! County for County's own negligence or for the
negligence of third Parties.

B. Other than in the performance ol professional services and to the full extent
permitted by law, Contractor shall indemnify, defend, and hold harmless County, and any
and all of its Board members. officials. employees, and agents from and against any
liability (including liability lor claims. suits. actions. arbitration proceedings.
administrative proceedings, regulatory proceedings, losses, expenses or costs of any kind,
whether actual, alleged or threatened, including legal counsel's fees and costs, court costs.
interest, defense costs, and expert witness fees), where the same arise out of, are a

Kings United Way FY 2ln2 & 2Y23
Human Senices Aereement # 166

6



consequence of, or are in any way attributable to" in whole or in part, any act, omission,
fault or negligence, whether active or passive, by Contractor or by any individual or entity
for which Contractor is legally liable, including, but not limited to, officers, agents,
employees. or subcontractors ol Contractor.

C. This indemnification specifically includes any claims that may be against
County by any taxing authority or third party asserting that an employer-employee
relationship exists because of this Agreement.

D. These indemnification obligations shall survive the termination of this
Agreement as to any act, omission, fault or negligence occurring during this Agreement or
any extension of this Agreement. The County's rights to indemnification are in addition ro
and shall not limit any other rights or remedies that County may have under law or this
Agreement.

10. INDEPENDENTCoNTRAcToR

Contractor is an independent contractor and not an agent, officer or employee of
County. This Agreement is by and between two (2) independent contractors and is not
intended to, and shall not be construed to create, the relationship of agent. servant,
employee, pannership, joint venture or association.

II. COMPLIANCE WITH LAw

Contractor shall comply with the provisions olthis Agreement and all federal, state
and local laws and regulations applicable to its perlormance including, but limited to,
Govemment Code section 8350 et seq. regarding a drug free workplace and all health and
safety standards set forth by the State of California and County.

Contractor shall execute and comply with the Assurance of Compliance with
County - Non Discrimination, attached as Exhibit C.

12. CoNFIDENTIALITY

Contractor shall not use County confidential information for any purpose other than
carrying out Contractor's obligations under this Agreement. Contractor shall prevent
unauthorized disclosure ofany County confidential inlormation. Contractor shall promptly
transmit to County all requests for disclosure of County confidential information.

I3. CoNFLICT OF INTEREST

Contractor warrants that its employees or their immediate families or Board of
Directors or officers have no financial interest. including. but not limited to. other projects

7
Kings United Wa! FY 21122 & 2U23
Human S€n'ices Agreement # 166



or independent contracts, and shall not acquire any financial interest, direct or indirect,
which conflicts with the rendering of services under this Agreement. Contractor shall
employ or retain no such person *,hile rendering services under this Agreement. Services
rendered by Contractor's associates or employees shall not relieve Contractor from
personal responsibility under this clause. Contractor has an affirmative duty to disclose to
County in writing the name(s) of any person(s) who have an actual, potential or apparent
conflict of interest.

14. NoN Dr sc Rr M r NATToN

In rendering services under this Agreement, Contractor shall comply with all
applicable federal. state and local laws, rules and regulations and shall not discriminare
based on age, ancestry color, gender, marital status. medical condition, national origin.
physical or mental disability, race, religion, gender identity, gender expression. sexual
orientation, military status, or other protected class.

Furtheq Contractor shall not discriminate against its employees, which includes, but
is not limited to, employment upgrading. demotion or transfeq recruitment or recruitment
advertising. layoffor termination. rates ofpay or other lorms olcompensation and selection
for training. including apprenticeship.

15. SUBCoNTRACToRS

Contractor shall include the following provisions in all agreements between
Contractor and any subcontractors: i) Section 5 Records and Inspections; ii) Section 8

Insurance; iii) Section 9 Indemnification; iv) Section I I Compliance with Law; v) Section
12 Contidentiality; vi) Section l3 Conflict of Interest; vii) Section l4 Nondiscrimination;
and viii) Section 25 ADA Compliance.

16. ASSIGNMENT

Contractor shall not assign this Agreement or monies due without the prior written
consent of County subject to any required state or lederal approval. Assigrment by
Contractor ofany monies due shall not constitute an assignment of the Agreement.

17. UNFoRESEENCIRCUMSTANcES

Neither Party shall be responsible for any delay caused by natural disaster war. civil
disturbance, labor dispute or other cause beyond a Party's reasonable control, provided
written notice is provided to the other Pany ofthe cause of the delay within ten ( l0) days
of the start of the delay. Thereafter, the Parties shall meet and confer as to whether to
amend, suspend, or terminate this Agreement.

Kings United Wa] FY 21t22 & 22J23
Human Senices Ageemenl # 166

8



18. OWNERSHTPoFDoCUMENTS

County shall be the owner ofand shall be entitled to possession ofany computations,
plans, correspondence or other pe(inent data and information gathered by or computed by
Contractor prior to termination of this Agreement by County or upon completion of the
work pursuant to this Agreement. County's reuse of any such materials on any project
other than the project lor which they were originally intended shall be at County's sole
risk. No material prepared in connection with the project shall be subject to copyright in
the United States or in any other county.

19. NorrcE
Any notice necessary to the performance of this Agreement shall be given in writing

by personal delivery fax, ovemight carrier, e-mail or by prepaid first-class mail addressed
as follows:

County
Sanja K. Bugay
Kings County Human Services Agency
1400 West Lacey Blvd., Building 12

Hanford, CA93230

Contractor
Nanette Villaneal, Executive Director
Kings United Way
125 West 7th Street
Hanford, CA93230

If notice is given by: a) personal delivery, it is effective as of the date of personal
delivery: b) fax, it is ellective as of the date of the fax; c) ovemight carrier, it is effective
as of the date of delivery; d) e-mail, it is effective as of the date it was sent; e) mail, it is

eflective as ol five (5) days lollowing the date of mailing or the date of delivery reflected
upon a retum receipt, whichever occurs first.

20. CHoICE oFLAw

The Parties have executed and delivered this Agreement in the County ol Kings.
State of Califomia. The Parries agree that the laws olthe State of Califomia shall govem
the validitl,, enforceability or interpretation of this Agreement and Kings County shall be

the venue for any action or proceeding, in law or equity that may be brought in connection
with this Agreement. Contractor hereby waives any rights it may possess under Section

394 ofthe Code of Civil Procedure to transfer to a neutral county or other venue any action
arising out of this Agreement.

2I. SEVERABILITY

If any of the provisions of this Agreement is found to be unenforceable, the

remainder shall be enforced as fully as possible and the unenforceable provision shall be

deemed modified to the limited extent required to permit enforcement of the Agreement as

a whole.

Kings United wa) FY 21122 & 2A23
Human Services Agreeme # 166

9



22. SuRvrvAL

The following sections shall survive the termination of this Agreement: i) Section 5
Records and Inspections; ii) Section 8 Insurance: iii) Section 9 Indemnificatiou and iv)
Section l2 Confidentiality.

23. l\*o THIRD PARTY BENEFICIARIES

County and Contractor are the only Parties to this Agreement and are the only
Parties entitled to enforce its terms. Nothing in this Agreement gives, is intended to give.
or shall be construed to give or provide. any right or benefit, rvhether directly or indirectly
or otherwise. to a third party.

24. ADACoMPLIANCE

Contractor shall comply with the Americans rvith Disabilities Act, Title II and
applicable Califomia state lara,s. The lau' providing the greatest degree of access to
qualified persons u,ith disabilities shall apply to this Agreement.

Contractor shall ensure that all persons receiving programs. services. or activities
through thisAgreement shall have available a copy olCounty's ADA grievance procedures
as set lorth in County's ADA Self-Evaluation, Appendix E, which is attached to this
Agreement as Exhibit D.

25. ENTIRE AGREEMENT; CONTRIBUTIONS OF BOTH PARTIES; IMAGED
AGREEMENT

This Agreement. including its Recitals and Exhibits w'hich are fully incorporated
into and are integral parts of this Agreement, constitutes the entire agreement between the
Parties and there are no inducements, promises, terms, conditions or obligations made or
entered into by Counqv or Contractor other than those contained herein.

The Parties agree that each Party had had an opportunity to review this Agreement
and consult with legal counsel and it is expressly agreed and understood that the rule stated

in Civil Code section 1654. tl-rat ambiguities in a contract should be construed against the

drafter, shall have no application to the construction ofthe Agreement.

Kings United Way FY 2l/22 &.22123
Hunan Services Agreenenl # 166

10



An original executed Agreement rnay be imaged and electronically stored. Such
imaged Agreement may be used in the same manner and for the same pulposes as the
original. Neither Party may object to the admissibilig' of the imaged Agreement on the
basis that it rvas not originated or mainlained in documentary form.

26. ELECTRONICSIGNATURES

The Parties may execute this Agreement by electronic means. The electronic
signatures affixed by their respeclive signatories give rise to a valid. enforceable, and fully
effective agreement.

27. ATJTHORITY

Each signatory to this Agreement represents that it is authorized to enter into this
Agreement and to bind the Party to which its signature represents.

REMAINDER OF PAGE INTENTIONALLY BLANK

SIGNATURES ON FOLLOWING PAGE(S)

Kings Unitcd Way FY 2l/22 &.22123
Human Sen ices Agreerllent , 166

1l



IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the Parties have executed this Agreernent the day and

year first wlitten above,

COUNTY OF KINGS I(INGS UNITED WAY

By:
Craig Pedersen, Chair
I(ings County Board of Supervisors

ATTEST

By:
Catheline Venturella,
Clerk ofthe Board

APPROVED AS TO ENDORSEMI:INTS
RECIEVED
Diane Freeman, Interirn County Counsel

Nanette
By\/illarrp:l

fiffifiEElEii",l, Exeerffig Dlt€ttoit..

APPROVED AS TO ENDORSEMENTS
REC ED

By:
Sanja , Director', HSA

By:
Ad ln inistmtive Prograrn Manager

Db[.[y ngn.d by l{.n!rte virl.r.e.l
DN: <n=Nanelre Mll.rual. o=Klng!

€ryull=nanen€!€ltlngtunlteds.y.or9,
.=U5

Hu d , Risl< Managcr Atonya M

APPROVED AS TO FORM
Diane Freeman, Interim County Counsel

By:
4{*ru, Clndy Cross Kllovor

2a2021.11.09 09:36:44
.0800

Cindy Crose Kliever,

ExhibitsiAttachments :

Exhibit A: Scope of Work
Exhibit B: Operating Budget
Exhibit C: Assurance of Cornpliance with County - Non Discrimination
Exhibit D: Kings County ADA Grievance Procedures

12
Kings Unircd W!, l;Y 21127 & 22J7J

IluDlso Scrv;ccs Agttcnrcrrt,, 166



Exhibit A
Scope of Work

In July 2000. the Federal Communications Commission (''FCC") reserved the 2l I
dialing code for community information and referral services. The FCC intended the 2l I
code as an easy-to-remember and universally recognizable number that would create a
critical connection between individuals and families in need to appropriate communiry-
based organizations and government agencies. Currently. 211 systems cover all or part of
all fifty (50) states.

ln 2009, the County approved Contractor to serve as the lead entity to provide 2l I
services to the residents olKings County. Services are available via the following: i) dialing
2-l-l and speaking with a live call specialist; ii) logging onto the 2ll website portal; iii)
using a mobile application for Apple and Android Smart Phone devices; and iv) through
chat and text.

The Contractor shall provide the following services and deliverables during each
contract year:

Activities/Del iverables Staff Responsible
Maintain a current, comprehensive. computerized inventory
of community resources in English and Spanish.

2l I Database Specialist

Conduct updates to 21 I IntellifulrM App to improve
functionality.

Consultant
(under supervision of Director)

Maintain SMS Text and Live Chat service provision. 211 Coordinator

Conduct 6 presentations to KCHSA staff to promote 2l I
services. including SMS Text/Live Chat features.

2l I Database Specialist

Participate in 6 tabling events throughout Kings County to
market and educate on the 2l I IntellilulrM App and
Text/Live Chat (subject to COVID social distancing and
social gathering rules)

I I I Coordinator

Integrate 211 services into ACEs Aware initiative to support
implementation of CIE and make buffering resources
available to mitigate toxic stress.

2l I Coordinator
Director

2 1 I Database Specialist

t2
Kings United wa) FY 2lD2 & 2?J23
Human Services ASreement # 166

Work closely with KCHSA staff from each depanment to
keep agency services up+o-date and accurate in the 2l I
database.



Conduct follow-up calls to ensure caller was able to access
resources and provide additional resource information, if
needed.

2li Coordinator
Director

Review all follow-up forms to evaluate service delivery and
determine gaps in services.

Director

Meet with the County quarterly to review the scope and
deliverables to ensure compliance with the contract.

Submit quarterly reports (by the 1 5th of the after the quarter
ends) to KCHSA to provide updates on scope of work
deliverables.

21 I Coordinator
Director

The County shall:

l. Send updates to the Contractor.

2. Meet with the Contractor quarterly to review the scope and deliverables to ensure
compliance with the contract.

KinSs Unired Way FY 21122 & 2423
Human Services Agreemenl # 166

l3



Exhibit B

Operating Budget
July l, 202l-June 30,2022

Kings United wa)'FY 21122 &.22123
Human Services Agrcement # 166

Budget Category Budgeted
Amount

Personnel Costs
Salaries

21 I Coordinator
$43,680/annual x 0.50 FTE Responsible lor day-to-day operations of 2l I
and all marketing and outreach activities.

s2l .840

2l I Database Specialist
$38,480/annual x 0.50 FTE Responsible for database maintenance and
translation of resources into Spanish.

$ 1 9.240

2l I Director
$76,834/annual x 0.10 FTE
Responsible for oversight of 2 I I services and evaluation of program

s7.68.+

Pavroll Taxes

$2.438
Benefits (Health and Retirement)

$4.840
Total Personnel Costs $56.042

Operating Expenses
Consultants
Mobile App Maintenance (Fedieson)
$200/month x 12 months = 2,400

$2.400

Total Operating/Program Expenses $2.400

Indirect
Accounting, audit. program evaluation $58.442 x 2.6658oh $ 1,5s8

Total Funding Request $60.000

l4



Exhibit B

Operating Budget
July l, 2022-June 30, 2023

Kings United wa)'f'Y 2l/22 &. )2123
Human Services A8reement # 166

Budget Category Budgeted
Amount

Personnel Costs

Salaries

211Coordinator
$44,,720/wnual x 0.50 FTE Responsible for day+o-day operations of 2l I
and all marketing and outreach activities.

s22.360

21 I Database Specialist
$39,520/annual x 0.50 FTE Responsible for database maintenance and
ranslation of resources into Spanish.

$ 19,760

21 I Director
$76,834/annua[ x 0.05 FTE
Responsible for oversight of 2l I services and evaluation of program

$3,842

PayrolI Taxes

$2.750
Benefits (Health and Retirement)

$5,500
Total Personnel Costs $s4,2\2

Operating Expenses

Consultants
Mobile App Maintenance (Fedieson)
S232.33/month x l2 months : 2.788

s2.788

Total Operating/Program Expenses s2,788

Indirect
Accounting, audit, program evaluation $57,000 x 5.263oh $3,000

Total Funding Request $60.000

15



Exhibit C

Assurance of Compliance with the Kings County Human Services Agency lor
Nondiscrimination in State and Federally Assisted Programs

ASSURANCE OF COMPLIANCE IN STATE AND FEDERALASSISTANCE
PROGRAMS

Contractor agrees that it will comply with Title VI of the Civil Rights Act of 1964
as amended (42 U.S.C. !j 2000d er seq.): Section 504 of the Rehabilitation Act of 1973 (29
U.S.C. S 701 et seq.); the Age Discrimination Act of 1975 (42 U.S.C. $ 6101 ar seq.); the
Food Stamp Act of 1977. and in particular secion 272.6; (7 U.S.C. $ 2012 et seq.): Title II
of the Americans with Disabilities Act of 1990 (42 U.S.C. $ 12131 et seq.); Govemment
Code Section 11135 et seq.; Califomia Code ofRegulations 22 CCR $S 98000 - 98413;24
CCR $ 3 l05a(e); the Dymally-Alatorre Bilingual Services Act (Govemment Code g 7290
et seq.) and other applicable federal and state laws, as u,ell as their implementing
regulations. Contractor will ensure that employment practices and provision of services
under this Agreement are nondiscriminatory, and that no person shall because ofrace. color,
creed, national origin, ethnic group identification, political affiliation, religion. marital
status, sex, sexual orientation, age, or physical or mental disability be excluded from
participation in or be denied the benefits of, or be otherwise subject to discrimination.
Contractor shall immediately take any measures necessary to effectuate this Agreement.

THIS ASSURANCE is given in consideration of and for the purpose of obtaining
any and all federal and state assistance; and the Contractor HEREBY GIVES
ASSURANCE THAI administrative methods/procedures which have the effect of
subjecting individuals to discrimination or defeating the objectives of the Califomia
Department of Social Services (CDSS) Manual olPolicies and Procedures Chapter 21, will
be prohibited.

BY ACCEPTING THIS ASSURANCE, the Contractor agrees to compile data.

maintain records and submit reports as required. to permit ellective enforcement of the
aforementioned laws, rules and regulations and pemit authorized CDSS and/or federal
govemment personnel, during normal working hours. to review such records. book and
accounts as needed to ascertain compliance. If there are any violations of this assurance.

CDSS shall have the right to invoke fiscal sanctions or other legal remedies in accordance

with Welfare and Institutions Code $ i0605, or Govemment Code $$ I1135-39, or any

other laws. or the issue may be referred to the appropriate federal agency for further
compliance action and enforcement of this assurance.

ntractor directly or through contract,
ives federal or state assistance.
Dq6rly!i9redbyN.net€MllJ.erl

anette Villaneal, ExdetnivE'
Kings United Way

16

THIS ASSURANCE is binding on the Co
license, or other provider services, as long as it rece

r

Kines United Way FY 2l/22 & 22123

Human Services Agreement # 166



Exhibit D

Countl of Kinss 20 16 ADA Self-Evaluation

Appendix E.

Kings County ADA Grievance Procedure

This grievance procedure is established to meet the requirements of the Americans
with Disabilities Act of 1990 ("ADA'), the Americans with Disabilities Amendments Act
(ADAAA) and Califomia State law. Except as otherwise indicated, it may be used by
anyone wishing to file a complaint alleging discrimination on the basis of disability in the
provision of services. activities, programs or benefits by Kings County. The procedure
should also be used to address all complaints regarding barriers to physical access to any
County facility.

NOTE: Discrimination complaints by applicants for, and recipients of, public
benefits administered by the County are handled by the Human Services Agency, pursuant
to state law and the Human Services Agency's Administrative policy and Procedure No.
23. Notice olthis fact is provided to all applicants and recipients. For more information,
please contact the Program Manager/Civil Rights Coordinator for the Human Services
Agency at 559.852.2201. If you submit a complaint to the ADA Coordinator that should
be directed to the Human Services Agency. your complaint will be forwarded to the Human
Services Agency, and will be deemed received by the Human Services Agency upon actual
receipt by it for purposes ofthe filing and response deadlines stated in Policy and procedure
No. 23. Please also note that the County's Personnel Rules govem employment related
complaints of disability discrimination. Please refer to section 10200 to I 0250 of the
Personnel Rules regarding the County's grievance procedure, as well as Chapter 14 of the
Personnel Rules regarding discrimination complaints. The process described in either pan
may be relied upon to make a complaint of disability discrimination.

A complaint using this procedure should be in writing and should contain
information about the alleged discrimination such as name! address. and phone number of
the complainant and location, date and description ofthe problem(s). Ifyou are viewing
these instructions online at the County's website, please find the form for making a

complaint below. Copies of the complaint form are also available from the Public Works
Department or County Administration Office, County Govemment Center, 1400 West
Lacey, Hanford, CA 93230. Altemative means of filing a complaint, such as personal

17
Kings Uniled Wa! FY 2ln2 & 2423
Human Services Agreement d 166

Kings County
Grievance Procedure under ADA or

Califomia State Disability Civil Rights Laws



interviews or a tape recording of the complaint, are available to person with disabilities
upon request.

The complaint should be submitted by the complainant and/or his/her designee as

soon as possible, but no later than sixty (60) calendar days afler the alleged violation to:

Dominic Tyburski, ADA Coordinator
County Govemment Center

1400 West Lacey Blvd.
Hanford, CA 93230

If this complaint is being made on behalf of someone other than me, that person's

contact information is:

My complaint relates to circumstances that occurred:

a) On the lbllowing date:

b) At the following location:

My complaint is as follows:

(Please be as specific as possible. and include the names and contact inibrmation of
anyone who might have knowledge of the facts giving rise to your complaint. To help us

to address your concerns promptly, please stick to the facts: who, want. when, where. and

how Please attach additional pages ilnecessary.)

Kings Unired Way FY 2lD2 & Dl23
Huma. S€rvices A8reement d 166

l8





 ...................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................   
 
BOARD ACTION : APPROVED AS RECOMMENDED: _________ OTHER: ________ 
 
 
 
 
 

I hereby certify that the above order was passed and adopted 

on ________________________, 2021. 

CATHERINE VENTURELLA, Clerk to the Board 

By                                                    , Deputy. 
 

 
 

SUBMITTED BY: Job Training Office – Lance Lippincott 
 
SUBJECT: CLOSEOUT OF WORKFORCE INNOVATION AND OPPORTUNITY ACT 

SUBGRANT 
 
SUMMARY: 
 

Overview: 
This action will close out County Agreement 18-068, approved by your Board on December 7, 2021. 
This subgrant agreement provided Workforce Innovation and Opportunity Act (WIOA) funding to Kings 
County for the period of October 1, 2018, through September 30, 2021. 

 
Recommendation: 
Approve the documents to close out the Workforce Innovation and Opportunity Act Subgrant, 
County Agreement 18-068. 

 
Fiscal Impact: 

             Subgrant K9110015 (County Agreement 18-068) provided $2,872,743 in federal WIOA funding for the  
period October 1, 2018, through September 30, 2021. The term of the grant has expired and 100% of 
the funds have been expended. This grant did not require a local match. 

 
BACKGROUND: 
Kings County Agreement 18-068 represents allocated Workforce Innovation and Opportunity Act training funds 
provided to Kings County.  From October 1, 2018, through September 30, 2021, there were 689 Kings County 
residents that were enrolled into work experience, vocational training, on-the-job training, and other services 
designed to assist them in obtaining permanent employment.  In addition to enrolled individuals receiving 
services, the Kings County Job Training Office provided services to more than 600 Kings County businesses.  A 
copy of the agreement is on file with the Clerk of the Board. 

__________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________   

  

COUNTY OF KINGS 
BOARD OF SUPERVISORS 

GOVERNMENT CENTER HANFORD, CALIFORNIA 93230  (559) 852-2362 
Catherine Venturella, Clerk of the Board of Supervisors 

 
 

AGENDA ITEM 
December 7, 2021 

 



ATTACHIVIENT 5

WORKFORCE INNOVATION AND OPPORTUNITY ACT
SUBRECIPIENT RETEASE

(Use only for a full subgrant closeout)

Pursuant to the terms of Subg ra nt Number K9110015

with a total allocation amount of S 872 7 43.002

a total expenditure amount of S 877 t 43.002

(dolla rslce nts),

(dolla rslce nts),

(dollars/cents),and a total cash paid (drawn) amount of $ 872 7 43.002

Countv of Kinss - Job Train ins Office

124 North lrwin Street

Hanford cA 93230
(subrec prenfs r,rame and address)

(hereafter called the subrecipient) or to its assignees, if any, the subrecipient upon payment of the
said sum by the State of California, Employment Development Department (hereafter called the
state) does remit, release, and discharge the state, its officers, agents, and employees, of and from
all liabilities, obligations, claims and demand whatsoever under or rising from the said subgrant.

lN WITNESS WHEREOF, this release has been executed this 7th day of
December 207L

Subrecipient's Authorized Representative

Crais Pedersen
Name (please print)

Signatu re

Cha ir - Kinss Countv Board of Su pervisors

Title



ATTACHMENT 6

WORKFORCE INNOVATION AND OPPORTUNITY ACT
SUBRECIPIENTS ASSIGNMENT OF REFUNDS, REBATES AND CREDITS

(Use only for a full subgrant closeout)

Su b rec ip ient Name Countv of Kinss - Job Trainin e Office

Subg rant Number K9110015

Street Address 124 North lrwin Street

City, State, & Zip Hanford cA 93230

Pursuant to the terms of Subgrant Number K9110015, and for the total allocation of
2 877 74 0 and in consideration of the reimbursement costs and payment of fee, as

provided in the said agreement and any assignment thereunder the Countv of Kines - Job
Training Office (hereafter called the subrecipient) does hereby:

Assign, transfer, set over and release to the Central Office Workforce Services Division,
Employment Development Department, the State of California (hereafter called COWSD), all
right, title and interest thereon, arising out of the performance of said subgrant together with
all the rights of action accrued or hereafter accrue thereunder.

A8ree to take whatever action may be necessary to effect prompt collection of all such refunds,
rebates, credits, or other amounts (including any interest thereon), due or which may become
due, and forward to COWSD checks (made payable to the Employment Development
Department), for all proceeds so collected. The reasonable costs of any such action to effect the
collection shall constitute allowable costs when approved by the chief of CowsD, as stated in
the said subgrant and may be applied to reduce any amounts otherwise payable to the cowsD
under the term s thereof.

Agree to cooperate fully with COWSD as to any claims or suit in connection with such refunds,
rebates, credits, or other amounts due (including any interest thereon); to execute any protest,
pleading, application, power of attorney, or other papers in connection therewith; and to
permit COWSD to represent it at any hearing, trial or other proceeding arising out of such claim
or su it.

lN WITNESS WHEREOF, this assignment has been executed on this 7th day of DECEMBER 2027

Subrecipient's Authorized Representative

C rat s Pedersen
Name (p lease p rint)

Chair - Kines Countv B

Title
oard of Su pervisors

Sign atu re



ATTACHMENT 7

WORKFORCE INNOVATION AND OPPORTUNITY ACT
CLOSEOUT TAX CERTIFICATION

(Use only for a full subgrant closeout)

ln the performance of Subgrant Number K91100 L 5

I certify that I have complied with the requirements of the law, and the Central Office Workforce
services Division, Employment Development Department, state of california, regarding the
obtaining of employer identification/account numbers, collection, payment, deposit, and reporting
of federal, state and local taxes and the provision of w-2 forms to employees who are not now my
employees. For present employees, formerly under the award, w 2 forms will be required as per
the California Employers Guide. lnformation on W-2 form reporting requirements is contained in
lnternal Revenue Service publication, "Employer's Tax Guide,,,(publication 15, Circular E).

lN WITNESS WHEREOF, this certification has been executed this 7rH day of
DECEM BE R 207L

Su brecipient's Autho rized Representative

CnerG PEoensrru

Name (please print)

Signatu re

CHATR - KtNGs co BoARD oF supER VISORS

Title

Subrecipient's Name Countv of Kinss

Employer lD Number 94-6000814



ATTACHMENT 4

WORKFORCE INNOVATION AND OPPORTUNITY ACT

CLOSEOUT STATUS OF CASH
(Use for all closeouts)

Su brecip ient Name and Address

Kinss Cou ntv

1"24 North lrwin Street

Hanford cA 93230

Su brecip ient Code KN

Su bgra nt Number K9110015

Grant Code 1136

Proiect Term 70/or/18

Total allocation for this grant code:

2. Total expenditures reported in Section ll

of the WIOA Summary of Expenditures Report

3. Unexpended balance to be deobligated?

to 09/3Ol2t

s 5L2 L67.O0

s 5L7 162.00

5512,1,62. 00

So.oo

Subrecipient's Authorized Representative

Cobi Reviou s

Name (ple

C.n
ase print)

*A
Signature

Fiscal Analvst lll
Title

1. How much cash has been drawn down
under th is grant code?



Page 1 oI 2 WIA/\/VIOA SUMMARY OF EXPENDITURES 1012912021 12:13..28PM

Subgrantee Code KINGS COUNTY JOB TRAINING
OFFICE
1 '136

1 0 I 0 1 I 20 1 8-09 I 30 t 2021

Report Type: O

Grant Code:
Grant Term: Report Period: 202109

I.SUBGRANT INFORMATION

1. Year Of Appropriation

2. Report Revision Number

3. Subgrant Number

4. Subgrant Term From-To:

5. Total Allotment

6. Closeout Report (Y/N)

ll. TOTAL EXPENDITURES (Admin + Program)

III. ADMINISTRATIVE EXPENDITURES

1 . Administrative Cash Expenditures

2. Administrative Accrued Expenditures

3. Total Admin Expenditures

rv. oTHER REPORTABLE rTEMS (ADMIN)

1. Non-Federal Support (Stand-in)

2. Unliquidated Obligations

3. Program lncome Earned

4. Program lncome Expended

V. CUMULATIVE EXPENDITURES (PROGRAM)

2018
1

K91 10015

4t1t2018-913012021

$512,1 62.00

Yes

$512,162.00

$35,653.12

$0.00

$35,653.12

Cash
Expenditure

Accrued
Expenditure

$0.00

$0.00

$0.00

$0.00

Total
Expenditure

$0.00

$67,088.61

$31,197.93

$0.00

1. Core Self Services

2. Core RegistrationMlOA Career Services Basic

3. lntensive Services/WIOA Career Services lnd.

4. Career Services Follow-Up

5. WIOA Training Services

a. WIOA Training Payments

b. WIOA Other Training Services

6. Other

7. Total Program Expenditure $476,508.88 $0.00

$s38,328.61
$0.00

$39,893.73

$476,508.88

vt. oTHER REPORTABLE rTEMS (PROGRAM)

1. Non-Federal Support (Stand-in)

2. Unliquidated Obligations

a. Unliquidated Obligations-Core and lntensive Services/Career Services

b. Unliquidated Obligations-Training Services

c. Unliquidated Obligations-Other

3. Program lncome Earned

4. Program lncome Expended

$0.00

$0.00

$0.00

$0.00

$0.00

$0.00

$0.00

FWSDOg-,1 1A Page 1 ol 2 3/1 0



Page 2 of 2 WIA/VVIOASUMMARYOF EXPENDITURES 1012912021 12..13:28PM

Vll. MISCELLANEOUS ITEMS (ADMIN AND/OR Cash

PROGRAM) Contributions

1. Federal Mandated Match $0.00

2. State Mandated Match $0.00

3. Federal Leveraged Resources $0.00
4. Non-Federal Leveraged Resources $0.00

5. Transitional jobs Expenditures

VIII. 9130 - RECIPIENT SHARE OF EXPENDITURES

1. Total Recipient Share of Expenditures

2. Total Program lncome Earned

3. Total Program lncome Expended

lX. NDWG EXPENDITURES: PROJECT OPERATOR LEVEL

ln-Kind
Contributions

$0.00

$0.00

$0.00

$0.00

Total

$0.00

$0.00

$0.00

$0.00

$0.00

$0.00

$0.00

$0.00

1. Participant Wages

2. Participant Fringe Benefits

3. Core and lntensive Services/WIOA Career Svcs Basic & lndividualized

4. NEG/NDWG - Funding Training

5. Career Services Follow-Up

6. NEG/NDWG-Funded Supportive Services

7. Needs-Related Payments (NRP)

8. Program [Vlangement and Oversight

a. Administrative, Excl NRP Processing

b. Other

9. Other

X. COMMENTS

SEPTETVBER2O21 K911 1 136 NDWG CLOSEOUT REPORT

$0.00

$0.00

$98,286.54

$338,328.61

$0.00

$39,893.73

$0.00

$35,653.12

$0.00

$0.00

XI. CERTIFICATION

1. Name 2. Title
LANCE, LIPPINCOTT DIRECTOR

4. Contact Name 5. Contact Title

COBI L REVIOUS FISCAL ANALYSTIII

3. Phone Number

(559) 8524e60
6. Phone Number

(s59) 8s24973
7. Date Submitted

10t29t2021

Si e Dat

FWSDOg-11A Page 2 ol 2 3/1 0



ATTACHIVIENT 4

WORKFORCE INNOVATION AND OPPORTUNITY ACT

CLOSEOUT STATUS OF CASH
(Use for all closeouts)

Su brecipient Name and Address

Kings Cou ntv

124 North lrwin Street

H anfo rd cA 93230

Su brecipient Code KNG

Su bgrant Number K9110015

Grant Code 1136

Project Term 10/07/78

Total allocation for this grant code:

1. How much cash has been drawn down
under this grant code?

2. Total expenditures reported in Section ll

of the WIOA Summary of Expenditures Report

3. Unexpended balance to be deobligated?

ro 09/30/27

Ss12,162.00

S s 12,152. oo

s 512 152.00

s0 .00

Su brecip ient's Authorized Representative

Cobl Revious
Name (please p rint)

C,,+" TLLA.
Signature

Fiscal Analv
Title

t



Page 1 of2 WIA/WIOA SUIVIMARY OF EXPENDITURES 10t2st2021 12:18:01 PM

Subgrantee Code KINGS COUNTY JOB TRAINING
OFFICE
1136
1 0 I 0 1 t 20 1 8-09 130 I 2021

Report Type: O

Granl Code.
Grant Term: Report Period: 202109

I,SUBGRANT INFORMATION

1. Year Of Appropriation

2. Report Revrsion Number

3. Subgrant Number

4. Subgrant Term From-To:

5. Total Allotment

6. Closeout Report (Y/N)

ll. TOTAL EXPENDITURES (Admin + Program)

III. ADMINISTRATIVE EXPENDITURES

1. Administrative Cash Expenditures

2. Administrative Accrued Expenditures

3. Total Admin Expenditures

rv. oTHER REPORTABLE rTEMS (ADMTN)

1. Non-Federal Support (Stand-in)

2. Unliquidated Obligations

3. Program lncome Earned

4. Program lncome Expended

V. CUMULATIVE EXPENDITURES (PROGRAM)

2018
1

K91 1 001 5

4t1t2018-913012021

$512,162.00
Yes

$512,162.00

$35,6s3.1 2

$0.00

$3s,653.1 2

Cash
Expenditure

Accrued
Expenditure

$0.00

$0.00

$0.00

$0.00

Total
Expenditure

$0.00

$67,088.61

$31,197.93

$0.00

1. Core Self Services

2. Core RegistrationMlOA Career Services Basic

3. lntensive ServicesMlOA Career Services lnd.

4. Career Services Follow-Up

5. WIOA Training Services

a. WIOA Training Payments

b. WIOA Other Training Services

6. Other

7. Total Program Expenditure $476,508.88 $0.00

$338,328.61
$0.00

$39,893.73

$476,508.88

vr. orHER REPORTABLE lTEMS (PROGRAM)

1. Non-Federal Support (Stand-in)

2. Unliquidated Obligations

a. Unliquidated Obligations-Core and lntensive Services/Career Services

b. Unliquidated Obligations-Training Services

c. Unliquidated Obligations-Other

3. Program lncome Earned

4. Program lncome Expended

$0.00

$0.00

$0.00

$0.00

$0.00

$0.00

$0.00

FWSDOg.11A Page 1 of2 3/1 0



Page 2 o'f 2 WIA/WIOA SUMMARY OF EXPENDITURES 10t29t2021 12:18:01 PM

Vll. MISCELLANEOUS ITEMS (ADMIN AND/OR Cash

PROGRAM) Contributions

'1 . Federal Mandated Match $0.00

2. State Mandated Match $0.00

3. Federal Leveraged Resources $0.00

4. Non-Federal Leveraged Resources $0.00

5. Transitional jobs Expenditures

VIII.9130. RECIPIENT SHARE OF EXPENDITURES

1. Total Recipient Share of Expenditures

2. Total Program lncome Earned

3. Total Program lncome Expended

lX. NDWG EXPENDITURES: PROJECT OPERATOR LEVEL

ln-Kind
Contributions

$0.00

$0.00

$0.00

$0.00

Total

$0.00

$0.00

$0.00

$0.00

$0.00

$0.00

$0.00

$0.00

1. Participant Wages

2. Participant Fringe Benefits

3. Core and lntensive ServicesMlOA Career Svcs Basic & lndividualized

4. NEG/NDWG - Funding Training

5. Career Services Follow-Up

6. NEG/NDWG-Funded Supportive Services

7. Needs-Related Payments (NRP)

8. Program [\i'langement and Oversight

a. Administrative, Excl NRP Processing

b. Other

9. Other

X. COMMENTS

SEPTEIVBER2O21 K911 ,1 136 NDWG CLOSEOUT REPORT

$0.00

$0.00

$98,286.54

$338,328.61

$0.00

$39,893.73

$0.00

$35,653.12

$0.00

$0.00

XI. CERTIFICATION

1. Name 2. Title

LANCE, LIPPINCOTT DIRECTOR

4. Contact Name 5. Contact Title

COBI L REVIOUS FISCAL ANALYSTIII

3. Phone Number

(559) 852-4960

6. Phone Number

(559) 8524973

7. Date Submitted

10t29t2021

t ( lz/, \*;J r7-

FWSDOg-11A Page 2 of 2 3t10



ATTACHMENT 4

WORKFORCE INNOVATION AND OPPORTUNITY ACT

CLOSEOUT STATUS OF CASH
(Use for all closeouts)

Subrecipient Name and Address

Kines Countv

124 North lrwin Street

Hanford, CA 93230

Subrecipient Code KNG

Subgrant Number K9110015

Grant Code 2Ol

Project Term 07/oLhq

Total allocation for this grant code:

1. How much cash has been drawn down

under this grant code?

2. Total expenditures reported in Section ll

of the WIOA Summary of Expenditures Report

3. Unexpended balance to be deobligated?

Cobi Revious
Name (please print)

C; e* ,;
Signatu re

Fiscal Anal

to 06/3O/2O

s 130 834.00

s 130 834.00

5130,834.00

So.oo

Subrecipient's Authorized Representative

Title

!.5



Page 1 of 2 WIA /VIOA SUI\4[\4ARY OF EXPENDITURES 08113t2020 03:33:16 PM

Subgrantee Code: KINGS COUNTY JOB TRAINING
OFFICE

Grant Code: 201
Grant Term: 0710112018-0613012020

I.SUBGRANT INFORMATION

1. Year Of Appropriation

2. Report Revision Number

3. Subgrant Number

4. Subgrant Term From-To:

5. Total Allotment

6. Closeout Report (Y/N)

Report Type: O

Report Period: 202006

2018

1

K91 10015

4t1t2018-3t31t2021

$130,834.00
Yes

ll. TOTAL EXPENDITURES (Admin + Program)

III. ADMINISTRATIVE EXPENDITURES
'l . Administrative Cash Expenditures

2. Administrative Accrued Expenditures

3. Total Admin Expenditures

tv. oTHER REPORTABLE rTEMS (ADMTN)

1. Non-Federal Support (Stand-in)

2. Unliquidated Obligations

3. Program lncome Earned

4. Program lncome Expended

$130,834.00

$'13,083.40

$o.oo

$13,083.40

v. cUMULATIVE EXPENDTTURES (PROGRAM) Cash
Expenditure

Accrued

$0.00

$0.00

$0.00

$o.oo

Total
Expenditure

$0.00

$17,204.67

$11,879.73

$o.oo

Expendilure

1. Core Self Services

2. Core Registration/VVlOA Career Servicbs Basic

3. lntensive ServicesAlVlOA Careei Services lnd.

4. Career Services Follow-Up

5. WIOA Training Services

a. WIOA Training Payments

b. WIOA Other Training Services

c. WIOA Training Supportive Services

6. Other

7. Total Program Expenditure $117,750.60 $o.oo

$81,404.e1
$0.00

$7,261.29

$o'oo

$117,750.60

vr. oTHER REPORTABLE rTEMS (PROGRAM)

'1 . Non-Federal Support (Stand-in)

2. Unliquidated Obligations

a. Unliquidated Obligations-Core and lntensive Services/Career Services

b. Unliquidated Obligations-Training Services

c. Unliquidated Obligations-Other

3. Program lncome Earned

4. Program lncome Expended

$0.00

$o.oo

$o.oo

$0.00

$0.00

$0.00

$0.00

FWSDO9-1 
,1A Page 1 ol 2 3t10



WIA/VVIOA SUIVIVARY OF EXPENDITURES 0811312020 03:33:16 PMPage 2 of 2

vil. MtScELLANEOUS ITEMS (ADMIN AND/OR
PROGRAM)

1. Federal lVandated Match

2. State Mandated Match

3. Federal Leveraged Resources

4. Non-Federal Leveraged Resources

5. Leveraged Training Resources

6. Fed Share of Unliquidated Obligations for PFP

7 . PFP Contract Expenditures

B. Transitional Jobs Expenditures

9. lncumbent Worker Training Expenditures

VIII. 9130 - RECIPIENT SHARE OF EXPENDITURES

1. Total Recipient Share of Expenditures

2. Total Program lncome Earned

3. Total Program lncome ExPended

IX. COMMENTS

JUNE2O2O Kg1| 201 ADULT CLOSEOUT REPORT

Cash
Contributions

$0.00

$o.oo

$o'oo

$0.00

ln-Kind
Contributions

$0.00

$0.00

$0.00

$0.00

Total

$0.00

$o.oo

$0.00

$o.oo

$o.oo

$o.oo

$o.oo

$0.00

$0.00

$0.00

$o.oo

$0.00

X. CERTIFICATION
'l . Name

LANCE, LIPPINCOTT

4. Contact Name

COBI L REVIOUS

2. Title

DIRECTOR

5. Contact Title

FISCAL ANALYST III

3. Phone Number

(55e) 852-4e60

6. Phone Number

(559) 852-4973

7. Date Submitted

811312020

I
ture Date

FWSDO9.1 1A Page 2 ol 2 3/1 0



ATTACHMENT 4

WORKFORCE INNOVATION AND OPPORTUNITY ACT

CTOSEOUT STATUS OF CASH
(Use for all closeouts)

Subrecipient Name and Address

Kinss Countv

124 North lrwin Street

Hanford cA 93230

Subrecipient Code KNG

Su bgrant Number K9110015

Grant Code 202

Project Term 10/o1/L8

Total allocation for this grant code:

1. How much cash has been drawn down
under this grant code?

2. Total expenditures reported in Section ll

of the WIOA Summary of Expenditures Report

3. Unexpended balance to be deobligated?

Cobi Revious

Name (please print)

to OGI30/2O

s691 487.00

5697,481.0o

s691 487.00

So .00

Subrecipient's Authorized Representative

0,a; Cn
Signature

Fiscal Analvst lll
Title

r fi 15\-t$A



WIA/VVIOA SUlVll\4ARY OF EXPENDITURES 0811312020 03:41:57 PMPage 1 of 2

Subgrantee Code: KINGS COUNTY JOB TRAINING
OFFICE

Grant Code: 202
Grant Term: 1010112018-061301202Q

I.SUBGRANT INFORMATION

1. Year Of Appropriation

2. Report Revision Number

3. Subgrant Number

4. Subgrant Term From-To:

5. Total Allotment

6. Closeout Report (Y/N)

IL TOTAL EXPENDITURES (Admin + Program)

III, ADMINISTRATIVE EXPENDITURES

1. Administrative Cash Expenditures

2. Administrative Accrued Expenditures

3. Total Admin Expenditures

rv. oTHER REPORTABLE rTEMS (ADMTN)

1. Non-Federal Support (Stand-in)

2. Unliquidated Obligations

3. Program Income Earned

v. cUMULATTVE EXPENDTTURES (PROGRAM)

Repo( Type: O

Report Period: 202006

Cash
Expenditure

201 8

1

K91 1 001 5

411t2018-3t31t2021

$697,487.00
Yes

$697,487.00

$69,748.60

$0.00

$69,748.60

1. Core Self Services

2. Core Registration/VVlOA Career Services Basic

3. lntensive Services/W|OA Career Services lnd.

4. Career Services Follow-Up

5. WIOA Training Services

a. W|OR Training Payments

b. WIOA Other Training Services

c. WIOA Training Supportive Services

6. Other

7. Total Program Expenditure $627,738.40

vr. oTHER REpORTABLE |TEMS (PROGRAM)

1. Non-Federal Support (Stand-in)

2. Unliquidated Obligations

a. Unliquldated Obligations-Core and lntensive Services/Career Services

b. Unliquidated Obligations-Training Services

c. Unliquidated Obligations-Other

3. Program Income Earned

4. Program lncome Expended

FWSDO9-1 1A Page 1 of 2

Accrued
Expenditure

$o.oo

$o.oo

$o'oo

$0.00

$0.00

Total
Expenditure

$0.00

$s4,405.33

$32,855.27

$0.00

$493,724.09
$o.oo

$46,753.71

$o.oo

$627,738.40

$o.oo

$o.oo

$o.oo

$0.00

$o.oo

$0.00

$0.00

3/1 0



WIA/WIOA SUIVMARY OF EXPENDITURES 08113t2020 03:41:57 PMPage 2 of 2

v[. MtscELLANEOUS TTEMS (ADMtN ANDiOR
PROGRAM)

1. Federal lVandated lVlatch

2. State lVandated Match

3. Federal Leveraged Resources

4. Non-Federal Leveraged Resources

5. Leveraged Training Resources

6. Fed Share of Unliquidated Obligations for PFP

7. PFP Coniract Expenditures

8. Transitional Jobs Expenditures

9. lncumbent Worker Training Expenditures

VIII. 9130 - RECIPIENT SHARE OF EXPENDITURES

1. Total Recipient Share of Expenditures

2.Tola,l Program lncome Earned

3. Total Program lncorne Expended

IX. COMMENTS

JUNE2O2O Kg11 202 ADULT CLOSEOUT REPORT

Cash
Contributions

$0.00

$0.00

$0.00

$0.00

ln-Kind
Contributions

$o.oo

$0.00

$86,370.00

$o.oo

Total

$o,oo

$0.00

$86,370.00

$o.oo

$o.oo

$o.oo

$o.oo

$0.00

$0.00

$0.00

$o.oo

$o.oo

X. CERTIFICATION
'1. Name 2. Title 3. Phone Number

LANCE, LrpptNoorr DIRECToR (5s9)852-4e60

4. Contact Name 5. Contact Title 6. Phone Number
coBt L REVTOUS FTSCAL ANALYST ilt (5s9) 852-4973

7. Date Submitted

811312020

1
S Date

FWSDO9-1 1A Page 2 of 2 3/'10



ATTACHMENT 4

WORKFORCE INNOVATION AND OPPORTUNIW ACT
CLOSEOUT STATUS OF CASH

(Use for all closeouts)

Su brecipient Name and Address

Kinss CountV

124 North lrwin Street

H a nford cA 93230

Su brecipient Code KNG

Subgrant Number K9110015

Grant Code 301

Project Term 04lot/18

Total allocation for this grant code:

1. How much cash has been drawn down
u nder this grant code?

2. Total expenditures reported in Section ll
of the WIOA Summary of Expenditures Report

3. Unexpended balance to be deobligated?

Cobi Revious
Name (please print)

(]
\p

Signatu re

Fiscal Ana

So.oo

Subrecipient's Authorized Representative

to 06/30/20

q75 L2.0O15

Title

(-r.;t-.,3

575L,sL2.oo

57st,sr2.oo

l



Page 1 of 2 WIA/WIOA SUMIMARY OF EXPENDITURES 08t13t2020 03:54:46 PM

Subgrantee Code: KINGS COUNTY JOB TRAINING
OFFICE

Grant Code: 301

Grant Term: 0410112018-0613012020

I.SUBGRANT INFORMATION

Report Type: O

Report Period: 202006

1. Year Of Appropriation

2. Report Revision Number

3. Subgrant Number

4. Subgrant Term From-To:

5. Total Allotment

6. Closeout Report (Y/N)

ll. TOTAL EXPENDITUReS laOmin + Program)

III. ADMINISTRATIVE EXPENDITURES

1 . Administrative Cash Expenditures

2. Administrative Accrued Expenditures

3. Total Admin Expenditures

rv. oTHER REPORTABLE |TEMS (ADMIN)

1. Non-Federal Supporl (Stand-in)

2. Unliquidated Obligations

3. Program lncome Earned

4. Program lncome Expended

v. cUMULAT|VE EXPENDITURES (PROGRAM)

2018

1

K91 1 001 5

4t1t2018-313112021

$751 ,512.00
Yes

$751,512.00

$62,062.6'l

$0.00

$62,062.61

$o.oo

$0.00

$0.00

$0.00

Cash
Expenditure

Accrued
Expenditure

Total
Expenditure

$8,986.18
$680,463.21
$689,449.39

$0.00

$520,435.47

1. Youth ln School

2. Youth Out Of School

3. Total Program Expenditures

a. Youth Summer Employment Opportunities

b. WIOA Paid and Unpaid Work Experience

vl. oTHER REPORTABLE IrEMS (PROGRAM)

1. Non-Federal Support (Stand-in)

2. Unliquidated Obligations

3. Program Income Earned

4. Program Income Expended

$689,449.39 $o.oo

$0.00

$o.oo

$0.00

$o.oo

FWSDO9-1 1A Page 1 of 2 3t10



WIA/WIOA SUMI\4ARY OF EXPENDITURES 08113t2020 03:54:46 PMPage 2 of 2

vll. MtscELLANEOUS TTEMS (ADMtN AND/OR
PROGRAM)

1. Federal Mandated tVatch

2. State l\4andated lVatch

3. Federal Leveraged Resources

4. Non-Federal Leveraged Resources

5. Fed Share of Unliquidated Obligations for PFP

6. PFP Contract Expenditures

VIII.9130 - RECIPIENT SHARE OF EXPENDITURES

1. Total Recipient Share of Expenditures

2. Total Program lncome Earned

3. Total Program lncome Expended

IX. COMMENTS

JUNE2O2O K911 301 YOUTH CLOSEOUT REPORT

Cash
Contributions

$o.oo

$0.00

$0.00

$o.oo

ln-Kind
Contributions

$0.00

$0.00

$0.00

$0.00

Total

$o.oo

$0.00

$0.00

$o.oo

$o.oo

$0.00

$0.00

$0.00

$o.oo

X. CERTIFICATION

1. Name 2. Title

LANCE, LIPPINCOTT DIRECTOR

4. Contact Name 5. Contact Title

COBI L REVIOUS FISCAL ANALYST III

3. Phone Number

(55e) 852-4960

6. Phone Number

(559) 852-4973

7. Date Submitted

811312020

Date

FWSDO9-1 1A Page 2 of 2 3110



ATTACHMENT 4

WORKFORCE INNOVATION AND OPPORTIINITY ACT
CLOSEOUT STATUS OF CASH

(Use for all closeouts)

Subrecipient Name and Address

Kinss Countv

124 North lrwin Street

H a nfo rd. cA 93230

Su brecipient Code KNG

Subgrant Number K9110015

04/01/18

Total allocation for this grant code:

1. How much cash has been drawn down
u nder this grant code?

2. Total expenditures reported in Section ll
of the WIOA Summary of Expenditures Report

3. Unexpended balance to be deobligated?

Cobi Revious
Name (please print)

s0.00

Subrecipient's Authorized Representative

to 06/30/20

S2,298.00

s2.298.00

s2 298.O0

Cr+" (e',.
SiBnature

Fiscal Analvst I II

Title

(0t .,)

Grant Code 302

Project Term



WIA /VIOA SUIVIVARY OF EXPENDITURES 08113t2020 03:54:00 PMPage 'l of 2

Subgrantee Code: KINGS COUNTY JOB TRAINING
OFFICE

Grant Code: 302
Grant Term: 0410112018-068A12020

I.SUBGRANT INFORMATION

Report Type: O

Report Period: 202006

1. Year Of Appropriation

2. Report Revision Number
3. Subgrant Number

4. Subgrant Term From-To:

5. Total Allotment

6. Closeout Report (Y/N)

2018

1

K91 1 001 5

411t201B-3t3112021

$2,298.00
Yes

Il. TOTAL EXPENDITURES (Admin + Program)

III. ADMINISTRATIVE EXPENDITURES

1. Administrative Cash Expenditures

2. Administrative Accrued Expenditures

3. Total Admin Expenditures

lv. oTHER REPORTABLE TTEMS (ADM|N)
'1 . Non-Federal Support (Stand-in)

2. Unliquidated Obligations

3. Program lncome Earned

4. Program lncome Expended

v. cUMULAT|VE EXpENDTTURES (pROGRAM)

$2,298.00

$0.00

$0.00

$0.00

Cash
Expenditure

Accrued
Expenditure

$o.oo

$o.oo

$0.00

$0.00

Total
Expenditure

$0.00
$2,298.00
$2,298.00

$0.00

$0.00

1. Youth ln School
2. Youth Out OfSchool
3. Total Program Expenditures

a. Youth Summer Employment Opportunities

b. WIOA Paid and Unpaid Work Experience

vr. oTHER REpORTABLE TTEMS (pROGRAMi

1. Non-Federal Support (Stand-in)

2. Unliquidated Obligations

3. Program lncome Earned

4. Progrim lncome Expended

$2,2e8.00 $0.00

$0.00

$0.00

$0.00

$0.00

FWSDO9-1 1A Page 1 of 2 3/1 0



WIA /VIOA SUIVIVIARY OF EXPENDITURES o1ll3t2o2o 03:54:00 pMPage 2 of 2

vll. MIScELLANEOUS TTEMS (ADMIN AND/OR
PROGRAM)

1. Federal Mandated lVatch

2. State t\ilandated l\4atch

3. Federal Leveraged Resources

4. Non-Federal Leveraged Resources
5. Fed Share of Unliquidated Obligations for PFp
6. PFP Contract Expenditures

VIII. 9130 - RECIPIENT SHARE OF EXPENDITURES

1. Total Recipient Share of Expenditures
2. Total Program lncome Earned

3. Total Program lncome Expended

IX. COMMENTS

JUNE2O2O K91 1 302 YOUTH CLOSEOUT REPORT

Cash
Contributions

$0.00

$0.00

$0.00

$0.00

ln-Kind
Contributions

$0.00

$0.00

$o.oo

$0.00

Total

$0.00

$0.00

$o.oo

$o.oo

$o.oo

$0.00

$0.00

$o.oo

$o.oo

X. CERTIFICATION

1. Name 2. Title
LANCE, LIPPINCOTT DIRECTOR

4. Contact Name 5. Contact Tifle
COBI L REVIOUS FISCAL ANALYST III

3. Phone Number

(sse) 852-4960

6. Phone Number

(5s9) 852-4e73

7. Date Submitted

8t1312020

1

ature Da

FWSDO9.1 1A Page 2 of 2 3/1 0



ATTACHMENT 4

WORKFORCE INNOVATION AND OPPORTUNITY ACT

CTOSEOUT STATUS OF CASH
(Use for all closeouts)

Kinss Coun tV

124 North lrwin Street

Hanford cA 93230

Su brecipient Code I(NG

Subgrant Number K91100 15

Grant Code 500

Project Term 10/01/L8

Total allocation for this grant code:

1. How much cash has been drawn down
under this grant code?

2. Total expenditures reported in Section ll
of the WIOA Summary of Expenditures Report

3. Unexpended balance to be deobligated?

Cobi Revious
Name (please print)

0.00

Subrecipient's Authorized Representative

to O6/3O/20

5771-,728.0o

S171.128.00

s11L 128.00

C,f, (G.
Signatu re

Fiscal ,Ana

Title
lvst

)Lib

Subrecipient Name and Address



WIA/WIOA SUIUMARY OF EXPENDITURES 0811312020 03:57:56 PMPage 1 of 2

Subgrantee Code: KINGS COUNTY JOB TRAINING
OFFICE

Grant Code: 500
Grant Term: 1010112018-0613012020

I.SUBGRANT INFORMATION

1. Year Of Appropriation

2. Report Revision Number

3. Subgrant Number,: - :
4. Subgrant lerm From-lo:
5. Total Allotment

6. Cioseout Report (Y/N)

ll. TOTAL EXPENDITURES (Admin + Program)

III. ADMINISTRATIVE EXPEN DITURES

1. Administrative Cash Expenditures

2. Administrative Accrued Expenditures

3. Total Admin Expenditures

rv. oTHER REpORTABLE |TEMS (ADMIN)

1. Non-Federal Support (Stand-in)

2. Unliquidated Obligations

3. Program lncome Earned

4. Program lncome Expended

v. cuMULAT|VE EXPENDITURES (PROGRAM)

Report Type: O

Report Period: 202006

Cash
Expenditure

Accrued
Expenditure

2or a

1

K91 1 001 5

4t1t2018-3t31t2021

$171,128.00
Yes

$171,128.00

$1,898.41

$0.00

$1,898.41

$o.oo

$0.00

$0.00

$o.oo

Total
Expenditure

$0.00

$17,828.85

$o.s+

$0.00

$140,241.40
$0.00

$11,159.00

$o.oo

$169,229.59

$o.oo

$o.oo

$o,oo

$0.00

$0.00

$o.oo

$0.00

3110

1. Core Self Services

2. Core Registration/WlOA Career Services Basic

3. lntensive ServicesAfflOA Career Services lnd.

4. Career Services Follow-Up

5. WIOA Training Services

a. WIOA Training Payments

b. WIOA Other Training Services

c. WIOA Training Supportive ServiCes

6. oiher
7. Totai Program Expenditure $169,229.59 $o.oo

vt. oTHER REPORTABLE rrEMS (PROGRAM)

'1. Non-Federal Suppotl (Stand-in)

2. Unliquidated Obligations

a. Unliquidated Obligations-Core and lntensive Services/Career Services

b. Unliquidated Obligations-Training Services

c. Unliquidated Obligations-Other

3. Program lncome Earned

4. Program lncome Expended

FWSDOS-1 1A Page 1 of 2



WIA/WIOA SUMMARY OF EXPENDITURES o1l13l2o2o 03:57:56 pMPage 2 of 2

vil. M|SCELLANEOUS TTEMS (ADMIN AND/OR
PROGRAM)

'1 . Federal Mandated lVatch

2. State l\4andated lVatch

3. Federal Leveraged Resources
4. Non-Federal Leveraged Resources
5. Leveraged Training Resources

6. Fed Share of Unliquidated Obligations for pFp

7. PFP Contract Expenditures

B. Transitional Jobs Expenditurds

9. lncumbent Worker Training Expenditures

VIII. 9130 - RECIPIENT SHARE OF EXPENDITURES

1. Total Recipient Share of Expenditures
2. Total Program lncome Earned
3. Total Program lncome Expended

IX, COMMENTS

JUNE2O2O K91 1 5OO ADULT CLOSEOUT REPORT

Cash
Contributions

$0.00

$0.00

$o.oo

$0.00

ln-Kind
Contributions

$0.00

$0.00

$o.oo

$o.oo

Total

$0.00

$0.00

$o.oo

$o.oo

$0.00

$0.00

$0.00

$o.oo

$o,oo

$0.00

$o.oo

$0.00

X. CERTIFICATION

1. Name

LANCE, LIPPINCOTT

4. Contact Name

COBI L REVIOUS

2. Title

DIRECTOR

5. Contact Title

FISCAL ANALYST III

3. Phone Number
(55e) 852-4960

6. Phone Number
(55e) Bs2-4973

7. Date Submitted

811312020

h
S Date 7--7

FWSDO9.1 1A Page 2 of 2 3110



ATTACHMENT 4

WORKFORCE INNOVATION AND OPPORTUNITY ACT
CLOSEOUT STATUS OF CASH

(Use for all closeouts)

Subrecipient Name and Address

Kinss Countv

124 North lrwin Street

Hanford, CA 93230

Su b recipient Code KNG

Subgrant Number K9110015

Grant Code 501

Project Term 07 /oL/18

Total allocation for this grant code:

2. Total expenditures reported in Section ll
of the WIOA Summary of Expenditures Report

3. Unexpended balance to be deobligated?

Cobi Revious
Name (please p rint)

5o.oo

Subrecipient's Authorized Representative

to O6/30/20

5rr2,2B7.oo

S112,281.00

s LL2 281.00

Cr*r, (*.,{r.'o
Signature

Fiscal Analyst lll
Title

1. How much cash has been drawn down
u nder this grant code?



WIA /VIOA SUMMARY OF EXPENDITURES 0811312020 04:00:21 PMPage 1 of 2

Subgrantee Code: KINGS COUNTY JOB TRAINING
OFFICE

Grant Code: 501

Grant Term: 0710112018-0613012020

I.SUBGRANT INFORMATION

1. Year Of Appropriation

2. Report Revision Number

3. Subgrant Number

4. Subgrant Term From-To:

5. Total Allotment
6. Closeout Report (Y/N)

Il. TOTAL EXPENDITURES (Admin + Program)

III. ADMINISTRATIVE EXPENDITURES

1. Administrative Cash Expenditures

2. Administrative Accrued Expenditures

3. Total Admin Expenditures

rv. oTHER REPORTABLE rTEMS (ADMTN)

'1 . Non-Federal Support (Stand-in)

2. Unliquidated Obligations

3. Program lncome Earned

4. Program lncome Expended

v. cUMULAT|VE EXpENDTTURES (pROGRAM)

Report Type: O

Report Period: 202006

Cash
Expenditure

Accrued
Expenditure

2018

1

K91 1 001 5

41112018-313112021

$1 12,281 .00

Yes

$112,281.00

$11,228.10

$o.oo

$11,228.10

$76,351.08

$0.00

$8,982.48

$0.00

$101,052.90

$0.00

$o.oo

$0.00

$0.00

$0.00

$o.oo

$0.00

3/1 0

1. Core Self Services

2. Core RegistrationMlOA Career Services Basic

3. lntensive ServicesMlOA Career Services lnd.

4. Career Services Follow-Up

5. WIOA Training Services

a. WIOA Training Payments
b. WIOA Other Training Services

c. WIOA Training Supportive Services

6. Other

7. Total Program Expenditure $101,052.90 $o.oo

vr. oTHER REPORTABLE TTEMS (pROGRAM)

1. Non-Federal Support (Stand-in)

2. Unliquidated Obligations

a. Unliquidated Obligations-Core and lntensive Services/Career Services

b. Unliquidated Obligations-Training Services

c. Unliquidated Obligations-Other

3. Program lncome Earned

4. Program lncome Expended

FWSDO9.1 1A Page 1 of 2

$0.00

$0.00

$0.00

$0,00

Total
Expenditure

$0.00

$10,105,29

$5,614.0s

$o.oo



WIA/VVIOA SUMMARY OF EXPENDITURES 08t1312020 04:00:21 Pt/Page 2 o'f 2

vll. MtscELLANEOUS TTEMS (ADMIN AND/OR
PROGRAM)

1. Federal Mandated lt/atch

2. State Mandated lVlatch

3. Federal Leveraged Resources

4. Non-Federal Leveraged Resources

5. Leveraged Training Resources

6. Fed Share of Unliquidated Obligatlons for PFP

7. PFP Contract Expenditures

B. Transitional Jobs Expenditures

9. lncumbent Worker Training Expenditures

VIIi. 9130 - REcIPIENT SHARE oF EXPENDITURES

1. Total Recipient Share of Expenditures

2.Total Program lncome Earned

3. Total Progranr Income Expended

IX. COMMENTS

JLINE2O2O I(911 501 DISLOC CLOSEOUT REPORT

Cash
Contributions

$0.00

$0.00

$0.00

$0.00

ln-Kind
Contributions

$0.00

$0.00

$0.00

$0.00

Total

$o.oo

$0.00

$o.oo

$o.oo

$0.00

$0.00

$0.00

$o.oo

$0.00

$o.oo

$o

$o

.00

.00

X. CERTIFICATION
1. Name 2. Title

LANCE, LIPPINCOTT DIRECTOR

4. Contact Name 5. Contact Title

COBI L REVIOUS FISCAL ANALYST III

3. Phone Number

(559) 852-4960

6. Phone Number

(559) 852-4973

7. Date Submitted

8113t2020

t
Date

F\t/sD09-1 1A Page 2 of 2 3/1 0



ATTACHMENT 4

WORKFORCE INNOVATION AND OPPORTUNITY ACT

CLOSEOUTSTATUS OF CASH
(Use for all closeouts)

Su brecipient Name and Address

Kines CountV

124 North lrwin Street

Hanfo rd cA 93230

Subrecipient Code KNG

Grant Code 5O2

Project Term ro/01,h8

Total allocation for this grant code:

1. How much cash has been drawn down
u nder this grant code?

2. Total expenditures reported in Section ll
of the WIOA Summary of Expenditures Report

3. Unexpended balance to be deobligated?

Cobi Revious
Name (please print)

5362,tt5.00

s362 715.O0

So 00

Subrecipient's Authorized Representative

to 06/3O/20

q362 775.OO

c (..rto,-^
Signatu re

Fiscal Analvst ll
Title

SubgrantNumber K9110015



WIA /VIOA SUIVMARY OF EXPENDITURES 0811312020 04:13:35 PMPage 1 of 2

Subgrantee Code: KINGS COUNTY JOB TRAINtNG
OFFIOE

Grant Code: 502
Grant Term: 1010112018-0613012020

I.SUBGRANT INFORMATION

1. Year Of Appropriation

2. Report Revision Number

3. Subgrant Number

4. Subgrant Term From-To:

5. Total Allotment

6. Closeout Report (Y/N)

ll. TOTAL EXPENDITURES (Admin + Program)

III. ADMINISTRATIVE EXPENDITURES

1 . Administrative Cash Expenditures

2. Administrative Accrued Expenditures

3. Total Admin Expenditures

rv. oTHER REpORTABLE TTEMS (ADMtN)

1. Non-Federal Support (Stand-in)

2. Unliquidated Obligations

3. Program lncome Earned

4. Program Income Expended

v. cUMULAT|VE EXpENDTTURES (pROGRAM)

Report Type: O

Report Period: 202006

Cash

201 8

1

K91 1 001 5

41112018-3131t2021

$362,775.00

Yes

$362,775.00

$26p22.70

$0.00

$26,922.70

Expenditure

1. Core Self Services

2. Core Registration/WIOA Career Services Basic

3. lntensive ServicesAfilOA Career Services lnd.

4. Career Services Follow-Up

5. WIOA Training Services

a. WIOA Training Payments
b. WIOA Other Training Services

c. WIOA Training Supportive Services

6. Other

7. Total Program Expenditure $335,852.30

vr. oTHER REpORTABLE TTEMS (pROGRAM)

1. Non-Federal Supporl (Stand-in)

2. Unliquidated Obligations

a. Unliquidated Obligations-Core and lntensive Services/Career Services

b. Unliquidated Obligations-Training Services

c. Unliquidated Obligations-Other

3. Program lncome Earned

4. Program lncome Expended

FWSDO9.1 1A Page 1 of2

Accrued
Expenditure

$0.00

$0.00

$o.oo

$0.00

$0.00

Total
Expenditure

$0.00

$13,831 .91

$6,108.49

$o.oo

$27'1,083.04
$0.00

$44,828.86

$o.oo

$335,852.30

$0.00

$o.oo

$0.00

$0.00

$o.oo

$0.00

$0.00

3110



WIA /VIOA SUMI\4ARY OF EXPENDITURES o}tlst2o2o 04:13:35 pMPage 2 of 2

v[. MtscELLANEOUS TTEMS (ADMtN AND/OR
PROGRAM)

1. Federal lVandated lVlatch

2. State lVandated Match
3. Federal Leveraged Resources
4. Non-Federal Leveraged Resources
5. Leveraged Training Resources

6. Fed Share of Unliquidated Obligations for pFp
7. PFP Contract Expenditures
B. Transitional Jobs Expenditures
9. lncumbent Worker iraining Expenditures

VIII. 9130 - RECIPIENT SHARE OF EXPENDITURES
1. Total Recipient Share of Expenditures
2. Total Program lncome Earned
3. Total Program lncome Expended

IX, COMMENTS

JUNE2O2O K911 502 DISLOC CLOSEOUT REPORT

Cash
Conkibutions

$0.00

$0.00

$o.oo

$o.oo

ln-Kind
Contributions

$0.00

$0.00

$7,925.00

$o.oo

Total

90.00

$0.00

$7,925.00

$o.oo

$o.oo

$o.oo

$0.00

$o.oo

$0.00

$0.00

$o.oo

$0.00

X. CERTIFICATION

1. Name

LANCE, LIPPINCOTT

4. Contact Name

COBI L REVIOUS

2. Title

DIRECTOR

5. Contact Title

FISCAL ANALYST III

3. Phone Number

(5se) 852-4e60

6. Phone Number
(55e) 852-4973

7. Date Submitted

8t13t2020

4
Lure

FWSDO9-,1 1A Page 2 of 2 3t10



ATTACHMENT 4

WORKFORCE INNOVATION AND OPPORTUNITY ACT

CLOSEOUT STATUS OF CASH
(Use for all closeouts)

Su b recipient Name and Address

Kinss Cou ntv

124 North lrwin Street

H a nford cA 93230

Su b recipient Code KNG

Su bgra nt Number K9110015

Grant Code 292

Project Term o7 /o7/78

Total allocation for this grant code:

1. How much cash has been drawn down

under this grant code?

2. Total expenditures reported in Section ll

of the WIOA Summary of Expenditures Report

3. Unexpended balance to be deobligated?

s5 069.00

q0 00

Su b recipient's Authorized Representative

ro 06/30/19

s5 069.00

s 5 069.00

Cobi Revio us

Name (p lease print)

Sign atu re

FiscalAnalvst lll
Tltle

(r^ nis<-, 
^..



Page 1 of 2 WAA//IOA SUMMARY OF EXPENDITURES 08t20t2019 06:24:44PM

Subgrantee Code: KINGS COUNry
Grant Code: 292
Grant Term: 0710112018-0613012019

Report Type: O

Report Period: 201906

I.SuecnANr INFoRMATIoN

1. Year Of Appropriation 2018

1

K9110015

4t1t2018-9t3012020

$5,069.00

Yes

2.

3.

4.

5.

Report Revision Number

Subgrant Number

Subgrant Term From-To:

totiiettotment
6. Closeout Report (Y/N)

ll. TOTAL EXPENDITURES (Admin + Program)

III. ADMINISTRATIVE EXPENDITURES

$5,069.00

1. Administrative Cash Expenditures

2. Administrative Accrued Expenditures
$0.00

$0.00

$0.003. Total Admin Expenditures

rv. oTHER REpORTABLE rrEMS (ADMTN)

1. Non-Federal Support (Stand-in)

2. Unliquidated Obligations

$0.00

$0.00

$0.00

$0.00

rned

rogram lncome Expended

v. cUMULATIVE EXPENDITURES (PROGRAM)

1. Program Cash Expenditures

2. Program Accrued Expenditures

3. Total 25% Rapid Response

VI. OTHER REPORTABLE ITEMS (PROGRAM)

1. Non-Federal Support (Stand-in)

2. Unliquidated Obligations

$5,069.00

$0.00

$5,069.00

$0.00

$0.00

3 Program lncome Earned $0.00

4. Program lncome Expended $0.00

FWSDOg-11A Page 1 ot 2 3110



Page 2 o'f 2 WIAAA/IOA SUMMARY OF EXPENDITURES 08t20t201e 06:24:44PM

v[. MtSCELLANEOUS TTEMS (ADMTN AND/OR
PROGRAM)

1. Federal Mandated lVatch

2. State Mandated ttlatch

3. Federal Leveraged Resources

4. Non-Federal Leveraged Resources

Cash
Contributions

$0.00

$0.00

$0.00

$0.00

ln-Kind
Contributions

$0.00

$0.00

$0.00

$0.00

Total

$0.00

$0.00

$0.00

$0.00

VIII. 9130 - RECIPIENT SHARE OF EXPENDITURES
'1 . Total Recipient Share of Expenditures

2. Total Program lncome Earned

3. Total Program lncome Expended

IX. COMMENTS

JUNE2O19 K911 292 RAPID RESPONSE LAYOFF AVERSION CLOSEOUT REPORT

$0.00

$0.00

$0.00

X. CERTIFICATION
1. Name

*r-

LANCE, LIPPINCOTT

4. Contact Name

COBI L REVIOUS

2. Title 3. Phone Number

DTRECTOR (559) 852-4960'

5. Contact Title 6. Phone Number

FrscAL ANALYST ilr (559) 852-4973

7. Date Submitted

8t2012019

r /z,z-/ tt,^t' /gnaEure

FWSD09-1 1A Page 2 ol 2 3t10

(i



ATTACHMENT 4

WORKFORCE INNOVATION AND OPPORTUNITY ACT
CLOSEOUT STATUS OF CASH

(Use for all closeouts)

Su b recipient Name and Address

Kinss Countv

124 North lrwin Street

Hanford cA 93230

Su brecipient Code KNG

Su bgrant Number K9110015

Grant Code 293

Project Term L010L/18

Total allocation for this grant code:

1. How much cash has been drawn down
u nder this gra nt code?

2. Total expenditures reported in Section ll
of the WIOA Summary of Expenditures Report

3. Unexpended balance to be deobligated?

to 06/30/1-9

S 19,940.00

S19,940.00

S 19,940.00

So.oo

Su brecip ient's Authorized Representative

Cobi Revious
Name (p lease p rint)

Crb. Grr^^L)
Sign atu re

Fiscal Analvst lll
Title



Page 1 of 2 WA /t/lOA SUMMARY OF EXPENDITURES 08t20t201s 06:26:11 PM

Subgrantee Code: KINGS COUNry
Grant Code: 293
Grant Term: 1010112018-0613012019

Report Type: O

Report Period: 201906

I.SUBGRANT INFORMATION

1. Year Of Appropriation
2. Report Revision Number

201 I
1

K91 10015

4t1t2018-9t30t2020

$19,940.00

Yes

3. Subgrant Number

4. Subgrant Term From-To:

5. Total Allotment

6. Cloieout neport (Vltt)

ll. TOTAL EXPENDITURES (Admin + Program) $19,940.00

III. ADMINISTRATIVE EXPENDITURES

1. Administrative Cash Expenditures

2. Administrative Accrued Expenditures

3. Total Admin Expenditures

rv. oTHER REpORTABLE |TEMS (ADMTN)

$0.00

$0.00

$0.00

1. Non-Federal Support (Stand-in) $0.00

2. Unliquidated Obligations $0.00

$0.00

$o.oo

3. Program lncome Earned

4. Program lncome Expended

V. CUMULATIVE EXPENDITURES (PROGRAM)

1. Program Cash Expenditures

2. Program Accrued Expenditures

3. Total 25% Rapid Response

vr. oTHER REPORTABLE ITEMS (PROGRAM)

1. Non-Federal Support (Stand-in)

$19,940.00

$0.00

$19,940.00

2. Unliquidated Obligations

3. Program lncome Earned

$0.

$0.

$0.

$0.

00

00

00

004. Program lncome Expended

FWSDOg.11A Page 'l of 2 3/1 0



Page 2 of 2 WIA /UIOA SUMIMARY OF EXPENDITURES 08t20t201e 06:26:'1'l PM

Vll. MISCELLANEOUS ITEMS (ADMIN AND/OR Cash ln-Kind

PROGRAM) Contributions Contributions

1. Federal Mandated Match $0.00 $0.00

2. State Mandated Match $0.00 $0.00

3. Federal Leveraged Resources $0.00 $0.00

4. Non-Federal Leveraged Resources $0.00 $0.00

VIII. 9130 - RECIPIENT SHARE OF EXPENDITURES

1. Total Recipient Share of Expenditures

2. Total Program lncome Earned

3. Total Program lncome Expended

IX. COMMENTS

JUNE2O1 9 K91 1 293 RAPID RESPONSE LAYOFF AVERSION CLOSEOUT REPORT

Total

$0.00

$0.00

$0.00

$0.00

$0.00

$0.00

$0.00

X. CERTIFICATION

1. Name 2. Title

LANCE, LIPPINCOTT DIRECTOR

4. Contact Name 5. Contact Title

COBI L REVIOUS FISCAL ANALYST III

3. Phone Number
(559) 852-4960

6. Phone Number
(559) 852-4973

7. Date Submitted

8t20t2019

z*t/trt

FWSDOg.1 1A Page 2 ot 2 3110

z_ z;/a<^^r



WORKFORCE INNOVATION AND OPPORTUNITY ACT
CLOSEOUT STATUS OF CASH

(Use for allcloseouts)

Su brecip ient Name and Add ress

Kings County

124 North lrwin Street

Hanford cA 93230

Su brecipient Code KNG

Su bgra nt N umber

Grant Code 540

Project Term 01/01,11,8

1. How much cash has been drawn down
under th is grant code?

2. Total expenditures reported in Section Il

of the WIOA Summary of Expenditures Report

3. Unexpended balance to be deobligated?

Cobi Reviou s

Name (p lease print)

to 06/30/19

577,971.00

9tt,9tt.oo

517,971,.00

so.oo

Subrecipient's Authorized Representative

C-t-,.
S ign atu re

Fiscal Ana lvst lll
Title

ATTACHIVIENT 4

K9110015

Total allocation for this grant code:



WIA/WIOA SUI\4MARY OF EXPENDITURES 08t20t201e 06:27:38 PMPage 1 of 2

Subgrantee Code: KINGS COUNTY
Grant Code: 540
Grant Term: 0710112018-0613012019

I.SUBGRANT INFORMATION

Report Type: O

Report Period: 201906

1. Year Of Appropriation
2. Report Revision Number

)ita
1

K91 1 001 5

4t1t2018-9130t2020

$17,971.00
yes

$17,971.00

3. Subgrant Number
4. Subgrant Term From-To:

5. Total Allotment
6. Closeout Report (Y/N)

ll. TOTAL EXPENDITURES (Admin + Program)

III. ADMINISTRATIVE EXPENDITURES

1. Administrative Cash Expenditures $o

$0

$o

00

00

00

2. Administrative Accrued Expenditures

3 Total Admin Expenditures

tv. oTHER REPORTABLE TTEMS (ADM|N)

1. Non-Federal Support: (Stand-in) $0.00

$0.00

$0.00

$0.00

2. Unliquidated Obligations

3. Program lncome Earned

4. Program lncome Expended

V. CUMULATIVE EXPENDITURES (PROGRAM)

1. Program Cash Expenditures

2. Program Accrued Expenditures

3. Total 25% Rapid Response

VI. OTHER REPORTABLE ITEMS (PROGRAM)
1. Non-Federal Support (Stand-in)

2. Unliquidated Obligations

3. Program lncome Earned

4. Program Income Expended

$17,971 .00

$0.00

$17,971.00

$0.00

$0.00

$0.00

$0.00

FWSD09-,I 1A Page 1 of 2 3t10



WA A/IOA SUMIVIARY OF EXPENDITURES 08t20t2019 06:27:38 PMPage 2 of 2

vil. MtscELLANEOUS TTEMS (ADMtN AND/OR
PROGRAM)

1. Federal Mandated tVlatch

2. State Mandated Match

3. Federal Leveraged Resources

4. Non-Federal Leveraged Resources

Cash
Contributions

$0.00

$0.00

$0.00

$0.00

ln-Kind
Contributions

$0.00

$0.00

$0.00

$0.00

Total

$0.00

$0.00

$0.00

$0.00

VIII. 9130 - RECIPIENT SHARE OF EXPENDITURES
'1 . Total Recipient Share of Expenditures

2. Total Program lncome Earned

3. Total Program lncome Expended

IX. COMMENTS

JUNE2O19 K9,I1 540 RAPID RESPONSE CLOSEOUT REPORT

$0.00

$0.00

$0.00

X. CERTIFICATION
'l . Name

LANCE, LIPPINCOTT
4. Contact Name

COBI L REVIOUS

2. Title 3. Phone Number
DTRECTOR (559)852-4960

5. Contact Title 6. Phone Number

FlscAL ANALYST ilt (559) 852-4973

7. Date Submitted

812012019

tlzz/t t
Eure ,^y' /

FWSDOg-1 1A Page 2 ot 2 3t10



ATTACHIVENT 4

WORKFORCE INNOVATION AND OPPORTUNITY ACT
CLOSEOUT STATUS OF CASH

(Use for allcloseouts)

Subrecipient Name and Address

Kings Cou ntv

124 No rth lrwin Street

H a nford cA 93230

Su b recip ie nt Code KNG

S u bgra nt N u mber

Project Term 10/0u78

Total allocation for this grant code:

1. How much cash has been drawn down
under th is grant code?

3. Unexpended balance to be deobligated?

to 06 30 L9

s89.286.00

S89.286.00

S89.286.00

So,oo

Su b recipient's Authorized Representative

Cobi Revious
Name (please p rint)

Sign at u re

Fiscal Analyst lll
Title

K8106180

Grant Code 547

2. Total expenditures reported in Section ll
of the WloA Summary of Expenditures Report



Page 1 of 2 WA /VIOA SUMMARY OF EXPENDITURES 08t20t2o1s 06:28:56 PM

Subgrantee Code: KINGS COUNTY
Grant Code: 541
Grant Term: 1010112018-0613012019

I.SUBGRANT INFORMATION

Report Type: O

Report Period: 201906

1. Year Of Appropriation

2. Report Revision Number

3. Subgrant Number

2018

1

K91 1 001 5

41112018-913012020

$89,286.00

Yes

4. Subgrant Term From-To:

5. Total Allotment

6. Closeout Report (Y/N)

ll. TOTAL EXPENDITURES (Admin + Program)

III. ADMINISTRATIVE EXPENDITURES

$89,286.00

'1 . Administrative Cash Expend $0.00

$o.oo

$0.00

2. Administrative Accrued Expenditures

3. Total Admin itures

rv. oTHER REPORTABLE rTEMS (ADMTN)

1. Non-Federal Support (Stand-in)

2. Unliquidated Obligations

3. Program lncome Earned

4. Program lncome Expended

$0.00

$0.00

$0.00

$0.00

v. cUMULATTVE EXPENDTTURES (PROGRAM)

1. Program Cash Expenditures

2. Program Accrued Expenditures

3. Total 25% Rapid Response

vt. oTHER REPORTABLE rTEMS (PROGRAM)

I

$89,286.00

$0.00

$89,286.00

1. Non-Federal Support (Stand-in)

2. Unliquidated Obligations

3. Program lncome Earned

$0.00

$0.00

$0.00

$0.004. Program lncome Expended

FWSDOg.11A Page 1 ot2 3/1 0



WIA /t/lOA SUlVll\4ARY OF EXPENDITURES 08t20t2019 06:28:56 PMPage 2 of 2

Vll. MISCELLANEOUS ITEMS (ADMIN AND/OR Cash
PROGRAM) Contributions

'1 . Federal Mandated Match $0.00
2. State Mandated Match $0.00
3. Federal Leveraged Resources $0.00
4. Non-Federal Leveraged Resources $0.00

VIII. 9130 . RECIPIENT SHARE OF EXPENDITURES

1. Total Recipient Share of Expenditures

2. Total Program lncome Earned

3. Total Program lncome Expended

IX. COMMENTS

JUNE2O19 K911 541 RAPID RESPONSE CLOSEOUT REPORT

ln-Kind
Contributions

$0.00

$0.00

$0.00

$0.00

Total

$0.00

$0.00

$0.00

$0.00

$0.00

$0.

$0.

00

00

X. CERTIFICATION

1. Name 2. Title

LANCE, LIPPINCOTT DIRECTOR

4. Contact Name 5. Contact Title

COBI L REVIOUS FISCAL ANALYST III

3. Phone Number

(55e) 852-4960

6. Phone Number
(559) 852-4e73

7. Date Submitted

8t20t2019

{ Fbz/tr
Eure oaty' 7

FWSDOg.11A Page 2 of 2 3/1 0





 ...................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................   
 
BOARD ACTION : APPROVED AS RECOMMENDED: _________ OTHER: ________ 
 
 
 
 
 

I hereby certify that the above order was passed and adopted 

on ________________________, 2021. 

CATHERINE VENTURELLA, Clerk of the Board 

By                                                    , Deputy. 
 

 
 

SUBMITTED BY: Administration – Edward Hill/Sande Huddleston 
 
SUBJECT: CLAIM FOR DAMAGES FOR FRANCISCO MACIEL RUIZ 

 
SUMMARY: 
 

Overview: 
Claim for Damages are received by the Board of Supervisors and reviewed by the Risk Manager, as well 
as County Counsel.  Their recommendation is brought before your Board for your consideration.  
 
Recommendation: 
Deny the Claim for Damages filed by Matthew Soleimanpour on behalf of Francisco Maciel Ruiz. 
 
Fiscal Impact: 
None with this action. 
 

BACKGROUND: 
On November 10, 2021, a claim for damages was filed by Matthew Soleimanpour on behalf of Francisco Maciel 
Ruiz, claiming that the Kings County Sheriff’s Department entered into unsafe practices in their pursuit of a 
suspect, leading the suspect to collide with Francisco Maciel Ruiz. After investigation of the claim, County 
Counsel’s office finds that the County is not liable for any damages. Pursuant to Government Code section 
912.6, staff recommends your Board find that the claim is without merit and deny the claim. 

 _________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________   

  

COUNTY OF KINGS 
BOARD OF SUPERVISORS 

GOVERNMENT CENTER HANFORD, CALIFORNIA 93230 (559) 852-2362 
Catherine Venturella, Clerk of the Board of Supervisors 

 
 

AGENDA ITEM 
December 7, 2021 

 





 ...................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................   
 
BOARD ACTION : APPROVED AS RECOMMENDED: _________ OTHER: ________ 
 
 
 
 
 

I hereby certify that the above order was passed and adopted 

on ________________________, 2021. 

CATHERINE VENTURELLA, Clerk of the Board 

By                                                    , Deputy. 
 

 
 

SUBMITTED BY: Administration – Edward D. Hill/Sande Huddleston  
 
SUBJECT: APPROVAL OF CRIME BOND AS PUBLIC OFFICIAL BOND AND SET 

FAITHFUL PERFORMANCE AMOUNTS 
  
SUMMARY: 
 

Overview: 
Section 1450 of the Government Code requires elected public officials to file a public official bond (P.O. 
Bond) with the County Clerk.  Section 1481 et seq allows counties to use a master crime bond in place 
of individual bonds.  That section also requires the appointing authority to set the amount of the P.O. 
Bond for each elective office.  Staff recommends the amounts set forth in the attachment. 
  
Recommendation: 
a. Approve substitution of the County’s Master Crime Bond for individual public official bonds; 

and  
b. Approve the amounts in the declaration as the amounts required for faithful performance     

bonds of each elected official. 
 
Fiscal Impact: 
Continuing the practice of substituting the County’s Master Crime Bond for the individual P.O. Bonds 
required for elected officials eliminates several thousand dollars in premiums over the period of the four 
year terms of the elective officials.  
 

BACKGROUND: 
The Government Code requires that elected officials secure a faithful performance bond, often referred to as a 
public official bond.  The Finance Department Director is included because the Treasurer function is located in 
that Department and should be included in the required bonding procedure.  The P.O. Bond is to assure that any  

 
(Cont’d) 

 _________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________   

  

COUNTY OF KINGS 
BOARD OF SUPERVISORS 

GOVERNMENT CENTER HANFORD, CALIFORNIA 93230 (559) 852-2362 
Catherine Venturella, Clerk of the Board of Supervisors 

 
 

AGENDA ITEM 
December 7, 2021 

 



Agenda Item 
APPROVAL OF CRIME BOND AS PUBLIC OFFICIAL BOND AND SET FAITHFUL 
PERFORMANCE AMOUNTS   
December 7, 2021 
Page 2 of 3 
 

 

citizen who alleges that the County has suffered a loss of money, securities or other property because of the 
failure of the public official to faithfully perform the duties of his or her office can look to the surety to 
reimburse the County the amount of the loss.  The Code also required the Board to set the amount of the P.O. 
Bond for each County elected official.  
 
In lieu of individual bonds, the County is permitted to use its master crime bond to meet this requirement; 
however, it must be written on a faithful performance form.  The County’s Master Crime Bond meets this test. 
 
The County participates in the Crime Bond program offered by PRISM (Pubic Risk Innovation Solutions, and 
Management).  This provides coverage against a broad range of exposure ranging from burglary and robbery to 
computer fraud and forgery.  Kings County has a $25,000 deductible; upper limits are $10 million per 
occurrence with an excess of $5,000,000. 
 
To reduce the exposure to loss, the County should set the specific amounts of the faithful performance aspect of 
the master crime bond.  Staff has prepared a list of amounts that provides reasonable protection to the public 
without unnecessarily exposing the master crime bond to claims against its full limits.  Most amounts do not 
exceed the County’s deductible. 
 
If approved by your Board, staff will follow the procedures set forth in the Government Code to request 
approval of the bond as to form from the Presiding Judge of the Superior Court, recording of the bond, as 
approved, in the office of the County Recorder and filing of the bond.  The bond of the Clerk is to be filed with 
the Finance Department as an official record of the Treasurer function and the bond covering all other offices is 
to be filed with the County Clerk.  The following outlines established amounts of the faithful performance 
bonds as recommended.  

 
Upon recommendation from staff, the Board of Supervisors does hereby establish the amounts of the faithful 
performance bonds, pursuant to the GC 1480, the respective offices as follows: 
 
 County Supervisors                                   $10,000 each 
 Assessor/Clerk/Recorder                 $10,000 
 Sheriff/Coroner                 $15,000 
 Department of Finance Director                 $50,000 
 District Attorney                 $15,000 
 
 
Attachment: Government Crime Policy Declaration  















 ...................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................   
                                                                      
BOARD ACTION : APPROVED AS RECOMMENDED:            OTHER: ________ 
  
 
 

I hereby certify that the above order was passed and adopted 

on ________________________, 2021. 

CATHERINE VENTURELLA, Clerk of the Board 

By                                                    , Deputy. 
 

 

 
SUBMITTED BY: 

 
Administration – Edward Hill/Domingo Cruz 
 

SUBJECT: PUBLIC SAFETY REALIGNMENT & POST RELEASE COMMUNITY 
SUPERVISION 2021 PLAN 

SUMMARY: 
 
 Overview: 
 On November 17, 2021, the Kings County Community Corrections Partnership (CCP) Committee met 

and approved the Public Safety Realignment & Post Release Community Supervision 2021 Plan.  This 
plan is submitted to the Board of State and Community Corrections (BSCC) annually to meet the 
requirement of Assembly Bill 109 (AB 109) of 2011, known as the Public Safety Realignment Act.   

 
 Recommendation: 
 Approve the Public Safety Realignment & Post Release Community Supervision 2021 Plan to meet 

the requirement of Assembly Bill 109. 
  
 Fiscal Impact: 

None with this action.  Public Safety Realignment allocations were adopted by your Board during the 
Budget Hearing on August 17, 2021 in the amount of $11,799,559.  Below is the list of allocations. 
 

 
 

 Total FY 21/22  
Adopted 

% of Total 
Allocated

Administration (111000) 47,491$             0.40%
County Counsel (130000) 44,000               0.37%
Human Resources (140000) 65,900               0.56%
District Attorney (216400) 416,447             3.53%
Sheriff - AB 109 (221500) 8,871,505          75.19%

2,269,216          19.23%
Defense of the Accused (302500) 85,000 0.72%

11,799,559$      100.00%

Department

Probation (233100)

 
 

(Cont’d) 

 _________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________   

COUNTY OF KINGS 
BOARD OF SUPERVISORS 

GOVERNMENT CENTER HANFORD, CALIFORNIA 93230   (559) 852-2362 
Catherine Venturella, Clerk of the Board of Supervisors 

 

AGENDA ITEM 
December 7, 2021  



Agenda Item   
PUBLIC SAFETY REALIGNMENT & POST RELEASE COMMUNITY SUPERVISION 2021 
PLAN   
December 7, 2021 
Page 2 of 3 

 

 
BACKGROUND: 
The California Legislature passed the Public Safety Realignment Act (Assembly Bill 109), which transferred 
responsibility for supervising specific low-level inmates and parolees from the California Department of 
Corrections and Rehabilitation (CDCR) to counties.  Assembly Bill 109 (AB 109) took effect October 1, 2011. 
AB 109 legislation requires each county to develop its own implementation plan on how best to utilize sanctions 
and evidence-based practices to improve services and reduce recidivism.  Every year, AB 109 tasks the local 
Community Corrections Partnership Committee to review and update its Public Safety Realignment Plan to 
make sure that they are current.   
 
Program funding with the Job Training Office will continue to operate in this fiscal year, as it continues to show 
positive impacts, including increased numbers of clients securing jobs, and remaining crime free.  The number 
of successful clients this program assisted are outlined below, including the month of September 2021, Year-to-
Date for 2021, 2019 to 2020, 2020 to 2021, and a Cumulative Total: 
 

Participants Current 
Month 

Year 
to 

Date 

2020 
to 

2021 

2019 
to 

2020 

Cumulative 

Total Referrals (Probation Dept. referrals to JTO/CCP Staff) 5 20 117 128 265 
Participants receiving Basic Career Services 3 16 117 128 261 

Participants receiving Individualized Career Services 3 16 117 128 261 
Participants utilizing Job Readiness Workshops 0 0 0 31 31 
Participants obtaining Unsubsidized Employment 8 25 77 48 150 
Recidivism Rates for Participants 0 0 7 9 16 

 
 
The Kings County Sheriff’s Office (KCSO) saw an increase in the number of inmates beginning early in 2020, 
however, population numbers leveled off in 2021 after some relief from the Coronavirus Disease 2019 (COVID-
19) virus, and the fact that state prisons began re-opening inmate reception centers.  The Sheriff’s Office is 
currently citing the majority of bookings with bail amounts up to $25,000, and authorizing supervisory staff to 
use a great deal of discretion to issue citations to appear on low-level offenses and warrant arrests. 
 
Changes in funding awarded to the County included an increase in allocation of $2,629,815 for Fiscal Year (FY) 
2021-2022 from FY 2020-2021.  There is also zero growth fund allocation for FY 2020-2021, which the County  
was allocated $663,327 in FY 2019-2020.  The allocation for FY 2021-2022 is $795,859.  Growth funds are 
awarded based on performance measures, which include the Second Striker Reduction (total amount of second 
time offenders), Felony Probation Improvement (probationers sent to prison while on probation), Incarceration 
Reduction (reduction of felons to prison), or Low Incarceration Rates (lower count of felons against the 
statewide average).   
 
 

 



Agenda Item   
PUBLIC SAFETY REALIGNMENT & POST RELEASE COMMUNITY SUPERVISION 2021 
PLAN   
December 7, 2021 
Page 3 of 3 

 

 
During the upcoming year, an emphasis will continue to be placed on enhancing and providing evidenced-based 
programs for Community Supervision offenders needing these services in an effort to promote reducing 
recidivism rates.  Evidence-based practices are “supervision policies, procedures, programs, and practices 
demonstrated by scientific research to reduce recidivism among individuals under probation, parole, or post-
release supervision.”  Understanding rehabilitation and accountability are not mutually exclusive; the goal for 
reducing recidivism rates is to provide programming and treatment to address the root causes of criminality.  In 
order to determine the appropriate programming and treatment, a Risk-Need-Responsivity model is used by the 
Probation Department.  The Risk Principle matches the level of service to the offender’s risk to reoffend.  The 
Need Principle assesses the offender’s criminogenic needs and targets those needs in treatment.  And, the 
Responsivity Principle involves maximizing the offender’s ability to learn from rehabilitative intervention by 
providing cognitive behavioral treatment and tailoring the intervention to the learning style, motivation, abilities 
and strengths of the offender. 
 
Attached to this agenda item is the Kings County Public Safety Realignment & Post Release Community 
Supervision 2021 Plan.  
 



1 
 

County of Kings  
Public Safety Realignment 

& 

Post Release Community Supervision 
 

2021 Plan 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 

Executive Committee of the Community Corrections Partnership 
 

Nocona Soboleski, Court Executive Officer, Superior Court 
David Robinson, Sheriff 

Rusty Stivers, Chief, Avenal Police Department 
Keith Fagundes, District Attorney 
Marianne Gilbert, Public Defender 

Lisa Lewis, Behavioral Health Director 
Kelly Vernon, Chief Probation Officer (Chair) 

 
1424 Forum Drive 

Hanford, CA 93230 
(559) 852-4303 



2 
 

Table of Contents 
 
Overview………………………………………………………………………....................................3 
Budget…………………………………………………………………………....................................3 
Public Safety Partners.………………………………………………………....................................4 
District Attorney ..…………………………………………………………….....................................4 
Public Defender ..…………………………………………………………….....................................4 
Probation…………………………….…………………………………………………………………..4 
Sheriff.…………………………………………………………………………....................................6 
Support Services…..…………………………………………………………....................................7 
Summary Table ..………………………………………………………………………………….……8 
Outcomes ...................................................................................................................................9  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



3 
 

OVERVIEW OF 2011 PUBLIC SAFETY REALIGNMENT ACT (AB 109)  
 
In 2011, the California Legislature passed Assembly Bill (AB) 109 known as the Public Safety 
Realignment Act.  This legislation transfers responsibility for supervising specific low-level 
inmates and parolees from the California Department of Corrections and Rehabilitation 
(CDCR) to counties.  AB 109 took effect October 1, 2011 and realigned three major areas of 
the criminal justice system.  On a prospective basis, the legislation:  
 

 Transferred the location of incarceration for lower-level offenders (specified non-violent, 
non-serious, non-sex offenders) from state prison to local county jail, and provides for 
an expanded role for post-release supervision for these offenders; and 

 

 Transferred responsibility for post-release supervision of lower-level offenders (those 
released from prison after having served a sentence for a non-violent, non-serious, and 
non-sex offense) from the state to the county level by creating a new category of 
supervision called Post-Release Community Supervision (PRCS); and 

 

 Transferred the housing responsibility for parole and PRCS revocations to local jail 
custody.  AB 109 also tasked the local Community Corrections Partnership (CCP), who 
acts as the governing body responsible for developing and submitting public safety 
realignment implementation recommendations to the Board of Supervisors.  The CCP 
recommends a plan for implementation, which shall be deemed, accepted by the Board 
of Supervisors unless rejected by a 4/5th vote.  The Executive Committee of the CCP 
for Kings County  is composed of the Chief Probation Officer (Chair), Sheriff-Coroner, a 
Chief of Police (represented by the Avenal Police Chief), District Attorney, Public 
Defender, Presiding Judge of the Superior Court or designee, and Behavioral Health 
Director.  
 
 

BUDGET  
The costs associated with the efforts required under AB 109 are funded with a dedicated 
portion of state sales tax revenue and Vehicle License Fees (VLF).  These funding sources are 
outlined in trailer bills AB 118 and Senate Bill (SB) 89 of 2011.  The latter provided revenue to 
counties for local public safety programs, and the former established the Local Revenue Fund 
for counties to receive the revenues and appropriate funding for efforts required under 2011 
Public Safety Realignment. 
 
In November 2012, California voters approved Governor Brown’s Proposition 30, which 
created a constitutional amendment that protected ongoing funding to the counties for 
Realignment.  The amendment prohibits the Legislature from reducing or removing funding to 
counties for compliance with AB 109. 
 
The table below outlines the distribution of Public Safety Realignment funds.   
 



4 
 

[1]

2020-2021 AB 109 

PROGRAM FUND 

BALANCE

[2]

2021-2022 

Allocation for 

AB 109 

PROGRAMS

[3]

2021-2022 

Allocation for AB 

109 DA/PD 

Activities 

(revocation)

[4]

2021-2022 

Allocation for 

CCP Planning

[5]

 Allocation for 

PRCS

[6]

 Anticipated 

One-Time State 

Mandated 

Reimbursement 

Funding

[7]

2020-21 One-

Time Growth 

Funding

[8]

2021-2022     

10% Transfer 

Out to 

Innovation Sub-

Account

[9]                       

One-Time 

Realignment 

Backfill
Total 2021-22 

Allocation

\

KINGS $3,748,774 $9,994,338 $300,000 $100,000 $0 $0 $795,859 ($79,586) $0 $14,859,386

FY 2021-2022 Adopted Distribution of AB 109 Funds:

FY 11/12 

Actual

FY 12/13 

Actual

FY 13/14 

Actual

FY 14/15 

Actual

FY 15/16 

Actual

FY 16/17 

Actual

FY 17/18 

Actual

FY 18/19 

Actual

 FY 19/20  

Actual 

 FY 20/21  

Actual 

 FY 20/21  

Adopted 

 Total FY 21/22  

Adopted 

% of Total 

Allocated

Administration (111000) -$             28,979$         97,547$         94,981$        94,981$        94,981$         47,491$        47,491$        47,491$         47,491$          47,491$         47,491$             0.40%

County Counsel (130000) 30,024         18,230           89,676           88,164          88,164          88,164           44,000          44,000          44,000 44,000            44,000           44,000               0.37%

Human Resources (140000) 19,375         28,143           128,201         131,799        131,799        131,799         65,900          65,900          65,900 65,900            65,900           65,900               0.56%

District Attorney (216400) -               -                68,088           114,027        263,822        237,408         95,515          186,639        330,298 346,981          379,250         416,447             3.53%

Sheriff - AB 109 (221500) 1,155,829    2,055,944      4,583,208      5,858,185     6,166,102     6,444,737      6,651,128     7,273,946     7,747,902 8,129,735       8,371,648      8,871,505          75.19%

540,013       1,237,666      1,991,655      1,783,259     1,770,495     1,791,889      1,595,922     1,685,716     1,916,437 1,988,747       2,328,329      2,269,216          19.23%

Defense of the Accused (302500) 78,110         37,750           30,750           27,500          32,500          53,250           53,250          80,875          80,000 85,000 85,000 85,000 0.72%

1,823,351$  3,457,456$    7,031,984$    8,148,579$   8,604,500$   8,918,008$    8,600,242$   9,384,566$   10,232,028$  10,707,854$   11,321,618$  11,799,559$      100.00%

Fund Balance Reserved for Ongoing 

AB 109 Requirements: 3,059,827$     

Probation (233100)

 
 
PUBLIC SAFETY PARTNERS 
 
DISTRICT ATTORNEY 
Prison realignment has increased the number of persons placed on probation because of 
insufficient resources available to support traditional incarceration.  An increase in probationers 
has resulted in more violations of probation hearings, thereby, requiring additional services 
from District Attorney Staff. 
   
The District Attorney will dedicate prosecution and investigation resources toward review of 
PRCS violations, court appearances, and proactive follow-up with PRCS participants via 
communication through defense attorneys representing PRCS participants and ensuring local 
resources are available and offered through said communication with the participant’s attorney. 
In addition, the District Attorney will maintain an online presence with the goal of reintegrating 
at-large PRCS offenders with the justice system in an effort to increase engagement and 
participation with the courts and justice partners.  The District Attorney dedicates resources to 
help locate PRCS probationers, who have warrants for non-appearance and non-participation 
in supervision.  Where PRCS cases involve victims, the Victim Witness Assistance Program 
advocates will provide support and services to victims, including court support should a case 
proceed to hearing. 
 
DEFENSE OF THE ACCUSED  
Kings County’s contracted public defense attorneys may work with the realigned offender 
population, and provide services to those individuals who qualify for county jail and alternative 
program placement sentences under AB 109.  Under AB 118, the Legislature provided funding 
for the Public Defender to handle the additional workload.  
 
PROBATION DEPARTMENT 
The Probation Department supervises offenders released from the California Department of 
Corrections and Rehabilitation under Post Release Community Supervision (PRCS).  These 
offenders are comprised of those offenders whose most recent crime is non-serious pursuant 
to Penal Code (PC) 1192.7(c) and non-violent pursuant to 667.5(c) PC.   



5 
 

As of September 24, 2021, the department supervises approximately 300 PRCS Offenders 
with six (6.0) full time equivalent (FTE) Deputy Probation Officer I/II’s.  The PRCS Officers are 
assigned to Hanford, Lemoore, Corcoran, Avenal and the unincorporated areas of Kings 
County; these officers work closely with the respective police agency in their jurisdiction.  
Additionally, these officers work frequent night and weekend shifts to maximize supervision 
efforts 

 

 GLOBAL POSITIONING SYSTEM (GPS) MONITORING PROGRAM 
To help offset the increasing number of offenders in the Kings County Jail following 
criminal justice realignment, the Probation Department’s Electronic Monitoring Unit 
implemented a GPS Monitoring Program in November of 2011; this unit operates within 
the authority granted by Penal Code sections 1203.016 - 1203.018.  GPS Monitoring 
allows the Department to closely monitor the whereabouts and movement of its 
participants 24 hours a day, 7 days a week with one (1.0) FTE Deputy Probation Officer 
III, one (1.0) FTE Deputy Probation Officer I/II and two (2.0) FTE Probation  
Technicians.  As of October 20, 2021, the program supervises approximately 64 
offenders who would otherwise be detained or sentenced to time in the Kings County 
Jail.  In addition to being subject to 24/7 monitoring, these offenders are afforded the 
opportunity to maintain employment and attend treatment or other educational 
programs.   
 
In addition to detained and sentenced inmates, the Probation Department utilizes GPS 
monitoring only pursuant to 1210.7 PC to maintain a higher level of supervision of high-
risk offenders who are under supervision of the Department on PRCS, mandatory 
supervision, or probation.  Further, the Probation Department operates a juvenile GPS 
house arrest program in collaboration with the Kings Juvenile Center and the Kings 
County Superior Court’s Court Juvenile Division. 

  
The Probation Department signed a Memoranda of Understanding with the County’s Job 
Training Office (JTO) as recommended and approved by the CCP Executive Board.  The goal 
of the collaborative effort is to assist in improving the quality of life in the communities by 
reducing crimes committed by individuals subject to PRCS by providing valuable resources 
such as resume building and employment opportunities.  The Department saw positive 
impacts, including increased numbers of clients securing jobs and remaining crime free. 
 
 Job Training Office             $110,673 
  
  Total:              $ 110,673 
 
The Probation Department’s struggle continues with recruiting Deputy Probation Officer’s, 
Juvenile Correction Officers and Probation Technicians; as well as, retaining those positions.  
Currently, there are eight (8) vacancies for the position of Juvenile Correction Officer, five (5) 
vacancies for the position of Deputy Probation Officer, and three (3) vacancies for Probation 
Technician.  In calendar year 2021, there have been fourteen (14) Juvenile Correction Officer’s 
who have resigned (some resigning by email and phone without two-week notice), five (5) 
Deputy Probation Officer resignations and three (3) Probation Technician resignations.  As a 



6 
 

result of the dramatic understaffing, the Department has began requesting volunteers or 
mandating Deputy Probation Officers to work in the Juvenile Center on average of five to six 
shifts per week.  This results in the Deputy Probation Officer’s duties, responsibilities not being 
met, and the workload/caseloads being unsupervised.  The Department has struggled with this 
issue year-after-year, and it does not appear there will be any relief anytime soon. 
 
SHERIFF 
The Kings County Sheriff’s Office (KCSO) saw an increase in the number of inmates beginning 
early in 2020, however, population numbers leveled off in 2021 after some relief from the 
Coronavirus Disease 2019 (COVID-19) virus, and the fact that state prisons began re-opening 
inmate reception centers.  The jail population hovered at approximately 500 inmates and 
above all year.  The Sheriff’s Office is currently citing the majority of bookings with bail 
amounts up to $25,000, and authorizing supervisory staff to use a great deal of discretion to 
issue citations to appear on low-level offenses and warrant arrests. 
 
COVID-19 protocols have been implemented consistent with California Department of Public 
Health (CDPH) guidelines to comply with vaccine and testing mandates.  This process is ever 
changing to comply with repeated changes implemented by CDPH.  KCSO continues to isolate 
all new housing intakes to prevent the spread of COVID-19 within the Kings County Jail.  
Inmates are frequently tested, and have been offered approved COVID-19 vaccinations as 
additional measures to combat the virus and its spread within the facility.  
 
A Detentions Lieutenant has been assigned to constantly monitor the protocols established by 
local, state, and federal entities to comply with employee testing and vaccine mandates.  
 
Funding through AB 109 dollars does not cover all costs such as medical costs for inpatient 
and outpatient medical needs.  The original CCP Board gave the majority of the funding to the 
Sheriff’s Office to stop the early release of inmates that had been occurring for many years.  
Any further reductions in future funding will likely result in the early release of inmates back 
into the community. 
 
In 2020 and continuing into 2021-2022, the Sheriff’s Office has increased its Programs Division 
staffing from one allocated position to three.  These additions have allowed the Sheriff to 
expand the inmate programs to include: 
 
The jail programs currently supported in whole or in part from AB 109 funds include: 
 

 Koinonia Church’s ministry in the jail, teaching “Battle Zone”, which is a Bible study 
program.  A chaplain is teaching a variety of Bible classes and helps organize other 
inmate religions needs. – This program is temporarily suspended due to COVID-19, but 
is expected to be restarted in 2021-2022 fiscal year. 
 

 GED services, as well as computer skills, life skills and/or Narcotics and Alcoholics 
Anonymous (NA and AA) meetings.  NA and AA programs have been reinstated now 
that COVID-19 restrictions were alleviated. 
 



7 
 

 In conjunction with the Job Training Office, the Programs Division of the Kings County 
Sheriff’s Office has implemented resume building classes along with additional job 
preparation programs, held in the computer-equipped classroom.  Hanford Adult School 
has also resumed their GED preparedness program, and are back in the facility on a 
regular basis. 
 

 The Programs Division has implemented a gardening class where inmates can grow 
different crops and develop horticulture skills.  Additionally, the pheasant enclosure was 
completed, and the first series of hatchlings are being raised by inmate workers with the 
goal of strategically releasing the birds in the wild to help with repopulation. 
 

 All inmates are eligible to assist in a variety of career related areas including the vehicle 
maintenance shop, Kings County Animal Services, the jail kitchen, and county motor 
pool.  Through these programs, inmates clean parks and community substations utilized 
by Sheriff’s Office personnel.   
 

 Sheriff’s Office auto detailing program, which teaches trade skills that can successfully 
lead to job security upon release. 
 

 The Sheriff's Office has also expanded its inmate calling service contract to include 
tablets, which can be issued to inmates.  These tablets will be loaded with a variety of 
programs that will be helpful to them.  Many of the programs are trade or educational 
related, but they will also have access to movies, be able to listen to music, 
communicate with family, etc. 
 

Possibly, because of the pandemic and economic downturn, The Sheriff’s Office has once 
again found itself struggling to recruit and retain detentions staff.  Entering the 2021-2022 fiscal 
year, KCSO has over 15 vacancies in both the “Detentions Deputy” classification as well as the 
“Detentions Technician” classification.  Various recruiting efforts have been utilized to include 
social media campaigns, etc. Additional “extra-help” background investigators have been hired 
(mostly CDCR retired annuitants) to process the influx of new applicants.  A new contract is 
pending with the Detentions Deputies Association to include a significant pay increase that will 
eventually assist with the department’s ability to recruit and retain qualified staff.  
  
 
SUPPORT SERVICES 
 
VICTIM WITNESS 
The unit provides services to all victims of violent crime, as well as those offenders sentenced 
under AB 109.  These services include orientation to the criminal justice system, court 
escort/support, victim of crime application assistance, crisis intervention, and referrals to other 
agencies.  This unit has handled the influx of crime well.  In April of 2015, this unit moved from 
under the management of the Probation Department to the District Attorney’s Office.   
 
 
 



8 
 

COUNTY COUNSEL 
The County houses a great number of inmates who, because of past prison sentences, may 
be more contentious and file a significantly higher number of writs.  One Attorney handles the 
defense of the Sheriff in these cases.  This attorney handles all matters associated with AB 
109.  
 
HUMAN RESOURCES 
Human Resources manages recruitments to attract qualified candidates, facilitates the hiring 
process, and performs other related personnel tasks to maintain and support staffing of the 
additional funded positions in County Departments related to Realignment.  Human Resources 
continues to work with the overall AB 109 increases in staffing and related turnover across the 
County on a number of personnel related issues. 
 
ADMINISTRATION 
Administration performs data related analysis, and assists the departments with administrative, 
financial, and operational tracking functions, as well as construction activities.    Administration 
completes annual realignment questionnaires for the State.  Its efforts also include the 
preparation of this report.  
 
Administration has also managed the financials for the AB 900 Phase II jail expansion and the 
SB 1022 jail expansion projects.  The AB 900 Phase II project has been completed, and 
administration completed the audit.  Administration is continuing to work on the final close-out 
of the project with the State.  The SB 1022 project is completed, and administration completed 
the audit phase, and in the process of closing it out in the upcoming year.     
 
IN SUMMARY 
The table below provides a summary of Realignment Components: 

 

Population Affected Component of Public Safety Realignment Local Plan

Release from State Prison State prisoners serving sentences for non-

violent, non-serious and non-sex offenses with 

one of these offenses in their criminal history 

will be placed on county post-release 

community supervision instead of state parole. 

The Court will adjudicate violations of county 

post-release community supervision. 

The Probation Department is designated as the administrator 

of county post-release community supervision. 

On State Parole Violations of State Parole will be adjudicated by 

Board of Parole hearings. 

The Parole Board hearings occur at the courts. 

Currently Held Pretrial in County Jail Certain inmates may be released pre-trial on 

electronic monitoring. 

The Probation Department and the Sheriff are designated as 

administrators of electronic monitoring for pre-trial inmates. 

Currently Sentenced in County Jail Certain sentenced inmates may be placed on 

home detention. 

The Sheriff and Probation designated as administrators of 

electronic monitoring for sentenced inmates. 

Measures and Outcomes Establish outcome measures related to local 

incarceration inmates and post-release 

community supervision populations (per 

AB109). 

The Probation Department, in coordination with 

Administration, is designated to develop research design, 

collect data, and report on outcomes associated with AB109. 

-                                              Flash Incarceration

-                                              Alternative Sanctions

-                                              Vocational Training

-                                              Educational Training

-                                              Specialized Courts

-                                              MH & AOD Services

Evidence Based Practices and Treatment Each of the involved agencies, including those 

participating in the Community Corrections 

Partnership, will support and/or assist in the 

implementation of the following activities, 

practices, and efforts.



9 
 

OUTCOMES  
 
Every year, the State allocates future Public Safety Realignment growth revenue to counties 
across the State from a dedicated portion of state sales tax and VLF.  Starting in FY 2015/16, 
these allocations were based on performance measures that included three areas of 
incentives.  Those performance measures and incentive areas included improvements in 
probation practices (80%), reductions in 2nd Strikers ($36,575 per reduction), and 
improvements in State Prison incarceration measures (20%).  Due to COVID-19, there was no 
growth allocation for Kings County for 2019-2020. 
 
 
2nd Striker Reduction  
The first step in calculating growth allocations is to determine which counties sent fewer felons 
to prison with second-strike designations than in the previous year.  Counties get a direct 
allocation of $36,575 for each one fewer second striker than the previous year.  This allocation 
is taken off the top, so it is not part of the portions allocated based on incarceration or 
probation.  There is a cap of 10% of the overall growth funding for 2nd striker reduction 
allocations. 
 
Probation – 80%  
Felony Probation Success – 60%: Sixty percent of growth funds are allocated by taking a 
county’s annual felony probation population and subtracting the number of those revoked to 
prison or jail.  The number of each county’s non-revoked probationers is then calculated as a 
share of the number statewide and the county receives that share of these funds. 
 
Felony Probation Improvement – 20%: Twenty percent of growth funds are allocated to 
counties that improve their felony probation failure rate from one year to the next.  A county’s 
failure rate is determined by dividing its annual felony probation population by the number of 
probationers revoked to prison or jail.  If that rate decreases from one year to the next, then the 
difference is multiplied by the county’s total felony probation population.  This gives the number 
that would have been revoked under the previous year’s higher revocation rate.  That number 
is then calculated as a share of the total number among all counties that qualify and the county 
receives that share of these funds.  
 
Incarceration – 20%  
Incarceration Reduction – 10%: Ten percent of the growth funds are allocated to counties 
that send fewer felons to prison on new convictions from one year to the next.  The difference 
is then calculated as a share of the total difference among all counties that qualify and the 
county receives that share of these funds. 
 
Low Incarceration Rate – 10%: Ten percent of the growth funds are allocated to counties that 
have a lower rate of incarceration per capita than the statewide rate.  The rate is calculated by 
taking a county’s number of felon admissions for new convictions and dividing it by the 
county’s overall population.  That rate is then compared to the statewide rate to determine how 
many more people would be imprisoned if the county’s rate were not lower than the statewide 
rate.  That number is then calculated as a share of the total number for all counties that qualify 



10 
 

and the county receives that share of these funds.  The California State Association of 
Counties (CSAC) provided an update on September 27, 2021 detailing the description of 
growth allocation.  See table below.   
 



11 
 

Goals  
1) Implement a non-monetary, risk-based alternative to incarceration for pre-trial offenders to 

alleviate jail overcrowding. Through an application and RFP process for a grant provided by 
the Judicial Council of California, the Kings County Superior Court and the Kings County 
Probation Department, along with the Sheriff, District Attorney and Contract Defense 
Attorney Coordinator, worked collaboratively to develop a pretrial pilot program.  As a result 
of the process, the Superior Court received grant funding for the pilot program.  The 
Probation Department, through funding of the grant, will provide pretrial services seven 
days a week from 0700 to 1800 hours and 2300 to 0700 hours.  The program will be staffed 
with one (1) full-time Deputy Probation Officer III, three (3) full-time Probation Aides, and 
one (1) full-time Electronic Monitoring Technician with oversight by a Deputy Chief 
Probation Officer in cooperation with the Kings County Court Executive Officer. 

The pretrial pilot program will safely reduce the number of low to medium risk incarcerated 
offenders pending Court, where bail is the only obstacle to pre-trial release.  As a result of 
implementing the Pretrial Pilot Program, as of October 21, 2021, there are a total of 139 
inmates who have been released to the program from the Kings County Jail.  Of the 139 
clients on the program, 50 are being supervised on Pretrial and 89 are being supervised on 
GPS monitoring while on Pretrial. 

Overall, between the operation of the Pretrial Pilot Program and the department’s 
Electronic Monitoring Program, we have been able to remove 203 inmates from the Kings 
County Jail and safely supervise and monitor them in the community. 

2) Continued collaboration with the Job Training Office to provide empirically based 
rehabilitative interventions for PRCS offenders.  

 
 Collaboration is an ongoing effort between all stakeholders. 

 
Measures  
1) Continue Probation’s efforts in measuring outcomes and recidivism levels for PRCS 

offenders. Staff is continuing its data tracking efforts.  Probation continues  exploring an 
updated and much needed case management system  to increase the County’s ability to 
track recidivism rates and outcomes.  The Department’s current case management system 
is 12 years old and ineffective. 

2) Number of offenders sentenced to alternative sentencing and probation programs.  

In FY 2020-2021, there were 524 offenders that participated in the GPS Monitoring Program.  
There were 486 participants that completed the program making the successful completion 
rate of 93%.  The average daily population for the program was 63.   

3) Number of offenders sent to State Prison and Local Custody.  
 



12 
 

In FY 2020-2021, there were a total of 631* offenders sent to State Prison or Local Custody.  
The breakdown is as follows: 
 

 Adult Felony – State Prison                                                                       574  Offenders 

 Adult Felony – 1170(h) Straight Sentences                                                 17  Offenders 

 Adult Felony – 1170(h) Split Sentence                                                        37  Offenders 

 Adult Felony – 1170(h) Split Sentence Mandatory Supervision only            3  Offenders 
                                                                                                        Total 631  Offenders 

*Does not include offenders who were immediately sentenced in Court without probation intervention or investigation.  A large percentage of the offenders 
sentenced for offenses committed in the three State Prison facilities in the county are immediately sentenced.    

 
In FY 2020-2021, there were a total of 224 new offenders placed on Post Release Community 
Supervision; of which, approximately 100 were emergency and expedited releases due to the 
COVID Pandemic.  As a result, staff were having to cease working on their daily duties and 
responsibilities, and handle the emergency releases, including working after hours and on 
weekends.     





 ...................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................   
                                                          
BOARD ACTION : APPROVED AS RECOMMENDED:            OTHER: ________ 
 
 
 

I hereby certify that the above order was passed and adopted 

on ________________________, 2021. 

CATHERINE VENTURELLA, Clerk of the Board 

By                                                    , Deputy. 
 

 

SUBMITTED BY: Administration – Edward Hill/ Kyria Martinez  
 
SUBJECT: BOARD MEETING CANCELLATION SCHEDULE FOR 2022 
 

SUMMARY: 
 

Overview: 
 Each year, the County issues a holiday schedule identifying the dates it will be closed for business.  

Your Board has, over the last several years, cancelled Board meetings on the following days: Tuesdays 
that follow Monday holidays; the first Tuesday in May for the Employee Recognition barbecue; the 
meetings that coincide with the National Association of Counties (NACo) Legislative Conference; the 
California State Association of Counties (CSAC) Annual Meeting; and during the week between 
Christmas and New Years.   

 
Recommendation: 
Approve the cancellation schedule for the Board of Supervisors’ meetings for 2022. 

 

Fiscal Impact: 
 None. 
 

BACKGROUND: 
Your Board has recognized holidays each year by issuing a schedule of meeting cancellations in advance, so 
that staff can plan accordingly and to advise outside agencies whose meetings follow the Board meetings.  Staff 
is recommending a schedule of meetings every Tuesday in 2022 except for the following dates:  
  
       January 18, 2022 – Tuesday after Martin Luther King Day 
       February 15, 2022 - National Association of Counties (NACo) Legislative Conference  
       February 22, 2022 – Tuesday after President’s Day 
       May 3, 2022 – Employee Recognition Barbeque 
       May 31, 2022 – Tuesday after Memorial Day   

July 5, 2022 – Tuesday after Independence Day Observance 
       September 6, 2022 – Tuesday after Labor Day 
       November 15, 2022 – California State Association of Counties Annual Conference 
       December 27, 2022 – Tuesday after Christmas Day Observance on December 25, 2022 
             

 _________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________   

  

COUNTY OF KINGS 
BOARD OF SUPERVISORS 

GOVERNMENT CENTER HANFORD, CALIFORNIA 93230 (559) 852- 2362 
Catherine Venturella, Clerk of the Board of Supervisors 

 
 

AGENDA ITEM 
December 7, 2021 





 ...................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................  
 
BOARD ACTION : APPROVED AS RECOMMENDED: _________ OTHER: ________ 
 
 
 
 

I hereby certify that the above order was passed and adopted 

on ________________________, 2021. 

CATHERINE VENTURELLA, Clerk of the Board 

By                                                    , Deputy. 
 

 

 
 
 

SUBMITTED BY: Administration – Edward Hill/Kyria Martinez 
 
SUBJECT: AGREEMENT TO RETAIN FEDERAL LEGISLATIVE ADVOCATE 

 
Overview: 

            Kings County has contracted for Legislative Advocacy at the federal level for the past twelve years.  To 
continue this relationship, a new one-year contract is proposed with the current consultant, Paragon 
Government Relations, Inc. (PGR), through December 31, 2022.   
 
Recommendation: 
Authorize the County Administrative Officer to sign a one-year extension Agreement through 
December 31, 2022 to retain Paragon Government Relations, Inc. to perform federal legislative 
advocacy services for Kings County. 
 
Fiscal Impact: 
The cost of the Agreement is for an amount not to exceed $7,648 monthly for the second contract period, 
January 1, 2022 through December 31, 2022.  There is no increase to the contract from the prior year. The 
contract cost is reflected in the Fiscal Year 2021-2022 Adopted Budget for the CAO’s Office.   

 
BACKGROUND: 
Kings County first contracted with PGR (previously known as Waterman & Associates) beginning on January 1, 
2007.  The firm provides professional federal advocacy on behalf of Kings County, which includes representation 
of the County’s interests before Congress and federal agencies.  It should be noted that PGR specializes in 
representing county interests and has done so for over three decades.  Paragon has worked effectively with Kings 
County over the years to establish legislative and regulatory priorities, assist with strategic planning, and advocate 
to advance and protect the County’s interests at the federal level. 
   
 
 
 

(Cont’d)  
 

________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________  

  

COUNTY OF KINGS 
BOARD OF SUPERVISORS 

GOVERNMENT CENTER HANFORD, CALIFORNIA 93230 (559) 852-2362 
Catherine Venturella, Clerk of the Board of Supervisors 

 
 

AGENDA ITEM 
December 7, 2021 

 



Agenda Item 
AGREEMENT TO RETAIN FEDERAL LEGISLATIVE ADVOCATE 
December 7, 2021 
Page 2 of 3 
 

 

As the County’s eyes and ears in the nation’s capital, the firm keeps a close watch on congressional and regulatory 
activities.  They work closely with the CAO’s office on how best to respond to such federal activity, as well as 
how to navigate complex policy and political debates.  When appropriate, Paragon will draft official 
correspondence on behalf of the Board.  In addition, PGR provides the County with a number of written federal 
updates, including a weekly legislative outlook when Congress is in session, as well as a quarterly report detailing 
recent legislative and regulatory activities.  Paragon also provides frequent and targeted information to the Board, 
including a detailed analysis of legislative proposals and regulations that may impact the County.   

 
Since 2007, the partnership with Paragon has resulted in a number of benefits for the local community.  For 
example, prior to the congressional ban on earmarks, PGR delivered roughly $600,000 for the State Route 198 
highway project, $300,000 for the County’s Interoperable Emergency Communications System, as well as 
$300,000 for the County’s Computer-Aided Dispatch/Records Management System.  PGR was also instrumental 
in assisting Kings County with securing a $500,000 COPS grant to hire four new school-based law enforcement 
officers.   
 
In addition, Paragon has worked with key members of Congress to protect and enhance a number of programs 
that provide federal assistance to the County, including local law enforcement programs (SCAAP; Byrne/JAG; 
COPS), transportation programs (discretionary highway funding), housing grants (CDBG), and a number of other 
essential county programs (CalFresh/SNAP; USDA Rural Development funding; rural broadband grants; foster 
care; etc).  The firm has also worked with the Appropriations Committee to ensure that no additional federal 
funding would be allocated to the California High-Speed Rail Project.  Furthermore, Paragon has been proactive 
in requesting that no HSR funds be included in any future infrastructure proposal or transportation reauthorization 
measure.   
 
It should be noted that many of the funding opportunities available through the State would not be available if the 
programs were not first adequately funded at the federal level.  

 
With regard to water, PGR has worked closely with the County’s congressional delegation, as well as the 
administration, on efforts aimed at increasing water deliveries to the Central Valley.  In particular, the firm 
successfully lobbied for the passage of provisions in the Water Infrastructure Investments for the Nation (WIIN) 
Act that provided state and federal agencies with the necessary operational flexibility to maximize water supplies.  
Paragon has also lobbied for the inclusion of a spending rider directing the Bureau of Reclamation to complete 
feasibility studies on four CALFED storage projects, including the Temperance Flat project.  Finally, PGR sought 
statutory language that would have expanded the authorized service area of the Central Valley Project to include 
the Kettleman City Community Services District (KCCSD) and that would have provided for the delivery of up 
to 900 acre feet of water to KCCSD.  A legislative solution was ultimately not required, as the parties were able 
to come to an agreement.  However, the threat of legislation likely helped expedite the discussions. 
 
Finally, Paragon Government Relations has helped schedule and coordinate meetings for County officials with 
key members of Congress, committee staff, and federal agency officials.  Among other things, the firm drafts 
issue briefs and other pertinent documentation that help advance the County’s priorities.  Following these 
meetings, the Paragon team conducts the necessary follow-up with congressional staff and agency officials.   
 



Agenda Item 
AGREEMENT TO RETAIN FEDERAL LEGISLATIVE ADVOCATE 
December 7, 2021 
Page 3 of 3 
 

 

While there may be other associations and groups that advocate on similar issues, Paragon has a direct line of 
communication to the County’s congressional delegation, as well as the expertise and knowledge, to know how 
to respond on behalf of the Board.  In addition, the team at PGR has an outstanding relationship with the County’s 
congressional representatives. 

 
In conclusion, the County’s presence at the federal level since 2007 has been significantly enhanced by its 
partnership with PGR. As a result, staff recommends continuing the current relationship for an additional year 
through December 31, 2022. Staff proposes that your Board approve the new agreement with PGR through 
December 31, 2022.  
 
County Counsel has reviewed the Agreement.  
 













 ...................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................   
 
BOARD ACTION : APPROVED AS RECOMMENDED: _________ OTHER: ________ 
 
 
 
 
 

I hereby certify that the above order was passed and adopted 

on ________________________, 2021. 

CATHERINE VENTURELLA, Clerk to the Board 

By                                                    , Deputy. 
 

 
 

SUBMITTED BY: Behavioral Health- Lisa Lewis/ UnChong Parry  
 
SUBJECT: SIERRA HEALTH FOUNDATION: CENTER FOR HEALTH PROGRAM 

MANAGEMENT TELEHEALTH EXPANSION PROJECT GRANT 
 
SUMMARY: 
 

Overview: 
Kings County Behavioral Health (KCBH) Department was awarded a grant for $99,718 with the Sierra 
Health Foundation: Center for Health Program Management (The Center) to support the expansion of 
telepsychiatry services in the Department’s Multiple Organization Shared Telepsychiatry (MOST) 
project.  

 
Recommendation: 

a. Approve the Kings County Behavioral Health Department to accept the Coronavirus 
Response and Relief Supplemental Appropriations Act Telehealth Expansion Project 
Funding; and 

b. Authorize the Director of Behavioral Health to accept and sign the grant agreement, 
including any additional grant documentation.   

c. Adopt the budget change. (4/5 vote required) 
 

Fiscal Impact: 
This action will not impact the General Fund. This one time appropriation of $99,718 will be added to 
the Behavioral Health Mental health Services Act Budget Unit (422200). This allocation will be added 
to the Fiscal Year 2021-2022 Adopted Budget revenue and expenditure accounts specified on the Budget 
Appropriation and Transfer Form.  
 

 
(Cont’d) 

 

__________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________   

  

COUNTY OF KINGS 
BOARD OF SUPERVISORS 

GOVERNMENT CENTER HANFORD, CALIFORNIA 93230  (559) 852-2362 
Catherine Venturella, Clerk of the Board of Supervisors 

 
 

AGENDA ITEM 
December 7, 2021 

 
 



Agenda Item 
SIERRA HEALTH FOUNDATION: CENTER FOR HEALTH PROGRAM 
MANAGEMENT TELEHEALTH EXPANSION PROJECT GRANT 
December 7, 2021 
Page 2 of 2 
 

 

BACKGROUND: 
Kings County Behavioral Health (KCBH) Department applied for a project with The Center to support the 
expansion of telepsychiatry services. The Coronavirus Response and Relief Supplemental Appropriations Act 
Telehealth Expansion funding opportunity is part of the Department of Health Care Services; Medication 
Assisted Treatment (MAT) Access Points Project, which is funding a network of organizations through 
California to address the opioid and stimulant crises by supporting efforts that increase access to MAT.   
 
KCBH’s MOST project currently provides outpatient telepsychiatry and in person medical and peer services to 
adults who are participating in the County’s highest level of outpatient services, called the Full Service 
Partnership (FSP) Assertive Community Treatment (ACT) Team. The MOST clinic is operated by the County 
and services includes psychiatric assessments, medication education, medication injection/administration, 
medication management and refills, case management, peer supports, and transportation. The approved project 
for this expansion will enable the County to purchase the needed telehealth and information technology in order 
to expand MOST’s services to include children and youth and refresh equipment.  
 
The funding for this program is being passed through from a private foundation to the County. Kings County 
has already begun working with the awarding agency to provide feedback to their general template agreement. It 
is expected that the grant be executed within 30 days of receiving the final agency specific agreement. At this 
time KCBH has still not received the final agreement. In anticipation of the lack of Board meetings between 
December 22 and January 11th when this agreement could be due, KCBH is requesting authority for Dr. Lewis 
to sign the agreement after it has been approved by County Counsel to ensure that we can meet the execution 
deadlines for signing the final agreement.   

 







 ...................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................   
 
BOARD ACTION : APPROVED AS RECOMMENDED: _________ OTHER: ________ 
 
 
 
 
 

I hereby certify that the above order was passed and adopted 

on ________________________, 2021. 

CATHERINE VENTURELLA, Clerk of the Board 

By                                                    , Deputy. 
 

 
 

SUBMITTED BY: Community Development Agency – Chuck Kinney 
 
SUBJECT: MONTHLY REPORT OF THE PLANNING COMMISSION’S ACTIONS 
 
SUMMARY: 
 

Overview: 
Monthly report of the Planning Commission’s actions. 
 
Recommendation: 
Accept the monthly report of Planning Commission’s actions. 
 
Fiscal Impact: 
None.  
 

BACKGROUND: 
At a regular meeting held Monday, December 6, 2021, the Kings County Planning Commission reviewed the 
following: 
 

ACTIONS AS THE PLANNING COMMISION 
CONDITIONAL USE PERMIT No. 21-04 (Westlands Almond Solar Project) – The Planning 
Commission considered a proposal to establish a solar facility at 17511 Avenue Cutoff Road, Lemoore.  
The project was previously approved in two phases under CUP 14-01.  Phase 2 is being proposed as a 
separate Conditional Use Permit since the two phases are not under the same ownership. 
 
CONDITIONAL USE PERMIT No. 20-08 (Highroller Dairy) – The Planning Commission considered a 
proposal to add an anaerobic lagoon digester and associated infrastructure adjacent to the western boundary 
of the diary as well as adding three open lot corrals, two freestall barns, two hay barns and a dirt stacking 
area to the existing dairy.  The project is located at 14782 8th Avenue, Hanford.   
 

 _________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________   

  

COUNTY OF KINGS 
BOARD OF SUPERVISORS 

GOVERNMENT CENTER HANFORD, CALIFORNIA 93230 (559) 852-2362 
Catherine Venturella, Clerk of the Board of Supervisors 

 
 

AGENDA ITEM 
December 7, 2021 

 





 ...................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................   
 
BOARD ACTION : APPROVED AS RECOMMENDED: _________ OTHER: ________ 
 
 
 
 
 

I hereby certify that the above order was passed and adopted 

on ________________________, 2021. 

CATHERINE VENTURELLA, Clerk to the Board 

By                                                    , Deputy. 
 

 
 

SUBMITTED BY: Fire Department – William Lynch  
 
SUBJECT: DECLARATION, SALE, AND DONATION OF SURPLUS EQUIPMENT   
 
SUMMARY: 
 

Overview: 
The Fire Department is seeking authorization to declare one fire utility vehicle and multiple pieces of 
Hurst rescue equipment; one large spreader, one spreader, one ram (long), and one Maverick tool as 
surplus and authorization for the Purchasing Manager to sell said items at public auction.  Furthermore, 
the Fire Department is seeking authorization to donate one power unit, one spreader, one cutter, one ram 
(large), one ram (short), and one hose reel to the Laton Fire Department.  Lastly, the Fire Department is 
seeking authorization to donate one power unit, one cutter, one Maverick tool, and one hose reel to the 
Hanford Race Track. The Fire Department has historically given the Hanford Race Track surplus 
equipment to provide sufficient equipment at a discounted price and to have surplus equipment continue 
to serve county residents.     

 
Recommendation: 

a. Authorize the Fire Department to declare one fire utility vehicle, one large spreader, one 
spreader, one ram (long), and one Maverick tool as surplus; 

b. Authorize the Purchasing Manager to sell one fire utility vehicle, one large spreader, one 
spreader, one ram (long), and one Maverick tool as surplus at public auction; 

c. Authorize the Fire Department to donate one power unit, one spreader, one cutter, one ram 
(large), one ram (short), and one hose reel to the Laton Fire Department; and 

d. Authorize the Fire Department to donate one power unit, one cutter, one Maverick tool, 
and one hose reel to the Hanford Race Track. 

 
Fiscal Impact: 
Revenue from the sale of these fixed assets were not included in the County budget for FY 2021-2022.  
 

__________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________     

  

COUNTY OF KINGS 
BOARD OF SUPERVISORS 

GOVERNMENT CENTER HANFORD, CALIFORNIA 93230  (559) 852-2362 
Catherine Venturella, Clerk of the Board of Supervisors 

 
 

AGENDA ITEM 
December 7, 2021 

 
 



Agenda Item 
DECLARATION, SALE, AND DONATION OF SURPLUS EQUIPMENT  
 December 7, 2021 
Page 2 of 2 
 

 

(Cont’d) 
Revenue received from this sale will be deposited into the Department’s Other Revenue account; Budget 
Unit 241000, Account 80025. The surplus sale is estimated to generate $14,500. 

  
BACKGROUND: 
The Fire Department is seeking to sell one fire utility vehicle, one large spreader, one spreader, one ram (long), 
and one Maverick tool which are no longer in service. Due to their age and effectiveness the Department is 
requesting to declare them as surplus in order for the Kings County Purchasing Manager to sell them at public 
auction.  The Fire Department is also seeking permission to donate any items that do not sell at auction.  

Fire Apparatus Taken Out of Service 

Equip #             VIN                         Year    Make                 Model               Mileage               Reason 

51805 1GC2KXCG8BZ181562 2010 CHEV 2500 4X4 174743 

Age and 
maintenance 
cost 

 
 



 ...................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................   
 
BOARD ACTION : APPROVED AS RECOMMENDED: _________ OTHER: ________ 
 
 
 
 
 

I hereby certify that the above order was passed and adopted 

on ________________________, 2021. 

CATHERINE VENTURELLA, Clerk to the Board 

By                                                    , Deputy. 
 

 
 

SUBMITTED BY: Human Resources – Henie Ring/Melissa Avalos 
 
SUBJECT: ALLOCATION CHANGES AND LATERAL RECLASSIFICATIONS OF 

DEPARTMENT SPECIALIST I/II/III TO OFFICE ASSISTANT I/II/III 
 
SUMMARY: 
 

Overview: 
The Human Services Agency and Health Department requested that Human Resources review the 
Department Specialist I/II/III series due to recruitment issues at the advanced level and issues with cross-
training employees within the Office Assistant and Department Specialist series who are assigned 
varying clerical duties. Accordingly, Human Resources recommends the Department Specialist series be 
reclassified to the Office Assistant classifications. The Administrative Office and Human Resources 
support the recommendations below.  
 
Recommendation: 

a. In the Sheriff’s Office, in Budget Unit 22000 delete 1.0 Full-Time Equivalency 
Department Specialist I/II allocation and 2.0 Full-Time Equivalency Department 
Specialist III allocations offset by the addition of 1.0 Full-Time Equivalency Office 
Assistant I/II allocation and 2.0 Full-Time Equivalency Office Assistant III allocations; 
in Budget Unit 221200 delete 1.0 Full-Time Equivalency Department Specialist III 
allocation offset by the addition of 1.0 Full-Time Equivalency Office Assistant III 
allocation; in Budget Unit 222000 delete 1.0 Full-Time Equivalency Department 
Specialist III allocation offset by the addition of 1.0 Full-Time Equivalency Office 
Assistant III; and in Budget Unit 223000 delete 1.0 Full-Time Equivalency Department 
Specialist I/II allocation offset by the addition of 1.0 Full-Time Equivalency Office 
Assistant I/II allocation;  

b. In the Probation Department, in Budget Unit 233100 delete .50 Full-Time Equivalency 
Department Specialist I/II/III allocation offset by the addition of .50 Full-Time  

(Cont’d) 

 _________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________   

  

COUNTY OF KINGS 
BOARD OF SUPERVISORS 

GOVERNMENT CENTER HANFORD, CALIFORNIA 93230 (559) 852-2362 
Catherine Venturella, Clerk of the Board of Supervisors 

 
 

AGENDA ITEM 
December 7, 2021 

 



Agenda Item 
ALLOCATION CHANGES AND LATERAL RECLASSIFICATIONS OF DEPARTMENT 
SPECIALIST I/II/III TO OFFICE ASSISTANT I/II/III  
December 7, 2021 
Page 2 of 3 
 

 

Equivalency Office Assistant I/II/III allocation; in Budget Unit 233200 delete 1.0 Full-
Time Equivalency Department Specialist I/II/III allocation offset by the addition of 1.0 
Full-Time Equivalency Office Assistant I/II/III allocation; in Budget Unit 234000 delete 
7.0 Full-Time Equivalency Department Specialist I/II/III allocations offset by the 
addition of 7.0 Full-Time Equivalency Office Assistant I/II/III allocations; in Budget 
Unit 234800 delete 1.0 Full-Time Equivalency Department Specialist I/II/III allocation 
offset by the addition of 1.0 Full-Time Equivalency Office Assistant I/II/III allocations; 

c. In the Health Department, Budget Unit 411000 delete 1.0 Full-Time Equivalency 
Department Specialist I/II/III allocation offset by the addition of 1.0 Full-Time 
Equivalency Office Assistant I/II/III allocation;  

d. In the Human Services Agency, Budget Unit 510000 delete 12.0 Full-Time Equivalency 
Department Specialist I/II and 7.0 Full-Time Equivalency Department Specialist III 
allocations offset by the addition of 12.0 Full-Time Equivalency Office Assistant I/II 
and Full-Time Equivalency 7.0 Office Assistant III allocations;  

e. Laterally reclassify the Department Specialist I incumbents (M. Carrillo) to Office 
Assistant I with no change in salary in accordance with Personnel Rule 3022, Lateral; 

f. Laterally reclassify the Department Specialist II incumbents (M. Ash, M. Avila, L. 
Campos, B. Flores, D. Garcia, N. Gomez, S. Hernandez, V. Kilner-Avila, M. Lamar, V. 
Quintero, N. Rivera, Y. Rodriguez Alcantar, M. Urquizo, and T. Wilson) to Office 
Assistant II with no change in salary in accordance with Personnel Rule 3022, Lateral;  

g. Laterally reclassify the Department Specialist III incumbents (K. Alvarez, B. Bravo, C. 
Calderon, M. Cardenas, E. Cardoza, M. Castillo, J. Curiel, A. Frye, M. Garcia, K. 
Guevara, D. Miller, L. Puga, J. Rivera, R. Robles, L. Rose, and M. Sanchez)  to Office 
Assistant III with no change in salary in accordance with Personnel Rule 3022, Lateral;  

h. Laterally reclassify any Department Specialist to an Office Assistant hired or promoted 
to a Department Specialist classification prior to Board approval of this item; and 

i. Inactivate the Department Specialist I, II, III classifications.  
 

Fiscal Impact: 
There is no fiscal impact with these changes.   

 
BACKGROUND: 
The County of Kings currently employs 37 Department Specialists at various levels (I, II, and III) within four 
departments (the Health Department, Human Services Agency, Sheriff’s Office, and the Probation Department). 
With the minimum wage compaction over the past few years, the Office Assistant and Department Specialist 
series are on the same ranges. Accordingly, Human Resources recommends the lateral reclassification of the 
Department Specialist employees to the Office Assistant series. This change will allow more flexibility for 
transfers across the different County departments and flexibility internally for assigning individuals to the varied 
clerical responsibilities. The Office Assistant job specification currently incorporates a wide range of different 
and important clerical functions that are used to support County departments. As an Office Assistant, the 
incumbent will gain and use specific clerical knowledge for the department they work for, identical to a 
Department Specialist. As the incumbent’s clerical skills expand, they are able to promote to a higher level in 



Agenda Item 
ALLOCATION CHANGES AND LATERAL RECLASSIFICATIONS OF DEPARTMENT 
SPECIALIST I/II/III TO OFFICE ASSISTANT I/II/III  
December 7, 2021 
Page 3 of 3 
 

 

the Office Assistant series, just like a Department Specialist. In order to help with current compaction issues, 
Human Resources is trying to look at all classifications on a much larger scale. The reduction in classifications 
will help the County as a whole when looking at classification and compensation. The Union was notified of the 
proposed changes.  





 ...................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................   
 

BOARD ACTION : APPROVED AS RECOMMENDED: _________ OTHER: ________ 
 
 
 
 
 

I hereby certify that the above order was passed and adopted 

on ________________________, 2021. 

CATHERINE VENTURELLA, Clerk to the Board 

By                                                    , Deputy. 
 

 
SUBMITTED BY: Public Works Department – Dominic Tyburski / Mitchel Cabrera 

SUBJECT: REMOVAL OF MULTI-WAY STOP SIGN FOR WESTBOUND TRAFFIC 
AT THE INTERSECTION OF GRANGEVILLE BOULEVARD AND 25TH 
AVENUE 

 SUMMARY: 
 

Overview: 
Public Works Department staff prepared a study for the Grangeville Boulevard and 25th Avenue 
intersection following a request from the Naval Air Station Lemoore to consider the removal of the stop 
sign for west bound traffic on Grangeville Boulevard.  The study examined the intersection and 
concluded that the stop sign for westbound traffic on Grangeville Boulevard impeded the flow of traffic 
and was not required at this leg of the intersection.  As such, the Department has concluded that the stop 
sign should be removed. 

 
Recommendation: 
Adopt a resolution authorizing the removal of the stop sign for westbound traffic at the 
intersection of Grangeville Boulevard and 25th Avenue. 
 
Fiscal Impact: 
This project will not affect the General Fund as it falls under roadway maintenance and improvements.  
The cost in removing signage, striping, pavement stenciling, and personnel hours is estimated to be 
$1,000, which will be paid by the County Road Fund as shown in the approved FY 2021/22 Budget Unit 
311000, Account 82223135. 

 
BACKGROUND: 
On July 15, 2021, the Naval Air Station Lemoore submitted a written request for the removal of the stop sign 
for westbound Grangeville Boulevard. Naval Air Station Lemoore cited the increased traffic and the closure of 
the Grangeville Boulevard entrance booth as support for their request. Public Works staff prepared a stop sign 
study including an extensive field review in July of 2021, the analysis and conclusions are summarized in the 
Intersection Control Study on file with the Public Works Department. As discussed in the report, the California 
Manual for Uniform Traffic Control Devices provides guidance in Section 2B.04 stating that the roadway with 
the lower traffic volume should be controlled. Due to the high traffic volumes on Grangeville Boulevard at this 

 _________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________   

  

COUNTY OF KINGS 
BOARD OF SUPERVISORS 

GOVERNMENT CENTER    HANFORD, CALIFORNIA 93230 (559) 852-2362 
Catherine Venturella, Clerk of the Board of Supervisors 

 

AGENDA ITEM 
December 7, 2021 



Agenda Item 
REMOVAL OF MULTI-WAY STOP SIGN FOR WESTBOUND TRAFFIC AT THE INTERSECTION 
OF GRANGEVILLE BOULEVARD AND 25TH AVENUE 

December 7, 2021 
Page 2 of 2 

 

 

location, and to improve the flow of traffic, Public Works Department recommends removing the stop sign for 
westbound traffic. 
 
County Counsel has reviewed and approved the resolution to form. 





BEFORE THE BOARD OF SUPERVISORS 
OF THE COUNTY OF KINGS, STATE OF CALIFORNIA 

 
********* 

IN THE MATTER OF AUTHORIZING   RESOLUTION NO.    
REMOVAL OF STOP SIGN FOR THE 
WESTBOUND TRAFFIC AT THE 
INTERSECTION OF 25th AVENUE AND 
GRANGEVILLE BOULEVARD. 
       / 
 
 WHEREAS, the Board of Supervisors of the County of Kings, on the 27th day of August, 
1963 adopted Ordinance No. 267, authorizing the designation of stop intersections and the placing 
of stop signs at any or all entrances to the designated intersections; and 
 
 WHEREAS, the California Manual for Uniform Traffic Control Devices provides 
guidance within Section 2B.04, stating that the roadway with the lower traffic volumes should be 
controlled; and 
 
 WHEREAS, removal of the additional stop sign at the intersection of 25th Avenue and 
Grangeville Boulevard on Grangeville Boulevard for the westbound traffic is necessary for the 
safe and orderly movement of traffic; and 
 
 WHEREAS, the Naval Air Station Lemoore requested removal of the stop sign for west 
bound traffic on Grangeville Boulevard at the intersection with 25th Avenue. 
 

NOW, THEREFORE IT IS HEREBY RESOLVED, ORDERED AND FOUND by the 
Board of Supervisors, County of Kings, State of California, as follows: 
 

1. The foregoing recitals are true and correct. 
 

2. In accordance with Ordinance No. 267, the Director of Public Works is hereby 
authorized and instructed to remove the westbound stop sign at the intersection of 25th Avenue and 
Grangeville Boulevard. 
 

The foregoing resolution was adopted upon motion by Supervisor __________________, 
seconded by Supervisor ___________________, at a regular meeting held on the __ day of 
December 2021, by the following vote:  
 
 AYES:  Supervisors 
 NOES:  Supervisors 
 ABSENT: Supervisors 
 ABSTAIN: Supervisors 
 
              
      Craig Pedersen, Chairperson 
      Board of Supervisors 
      County of Kings, State of California 
 
IN WITNESS WHEREOF, I have set my hand this __ day of December 2021. 
 
              
      Catherine Venturella, Clerk of said Board 



 ...................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................   
 
BOARD ACTION : APPROVED AS RECOMMENDED: _________ OTHER: ________ 
 
 
 
 
 

I hereby certify that the above order was passed and adopted 

on ________________________, 2021. 

CATHERINE VENTURELLA, Clerk to the Board 

By                                                    , Deputy. 
 

 
 

SUBMITTED BY: Sheriff's Office – David Robinson 
 
SUBJECT: ALLOCATE 1.0 NEW FULL TIME DETENTIONS LIEUTENANT AND 

ADVANCE STEP OF TWO DETENTIONS LIEUTENANTS 
 
SUMMARY: 

 
Overview: 
In August 2021, there were new requirements in the jail for COVID-19 protocols, this included COVID 
reporting requirements, a plan for vaccination tracking, a workplace diagnostic screening testing plan in 
place for tracking test results and conducting workplace contact tracing. As a result, the Sheriffs office 
required an additional Lieutenant to provide management oversight to ensure compliance with the new 
health order and Cal OSHA Standards. The position needs to be added to the Sheriff’s Office Budget. In 
addition, due to the increase of the Salary Range for Detentions Sergeant, the Detentions Lieutenants are 
getting paid less than a top step Detentions Sergeant.  We request to advance Detentions Lieutenants 
Shari Long to Step 4 of Salary Range 235.5 and Ramon Collier to Step 3 of Salary Range 235.5. 
 
Recommendation: 

a. Allocate 1.0 Full Time Equivalency Detentions Lieutenant position in Budget unit 
233000; and 

b. Authorize the advance step for Ramon Collier, Detentions Lieutenant, to Step 3 position 
at Salary Range 235.5. 

c. Authorize the advance step for Shari Long, Detentions Lieutenant, to Step 4 position at 
Salary Range 235.5 

 
Fiscal Impact: 
The new allocated full time Detentions Lieutenant and the 5% increase salary for Detentions Lieutenants 
Shari Long and Ramon Collier will be absorbed in the current fiscal year salary savings.  The Sheriff’s 
Office will Budget for the new position in next year’s Fiscal Budget. 
 

 _________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________   

  

COUNTY OF KINGS 
BOARD OF SUPERVISORS 

GOVERNMENT CENTER HANFORD, CALIFORNIA 93230 (559) 852-2362 
Catherine Venturella, Clerk of the Board of Supervisors 

 
 

AGENDA ITEM 
December 7, 2021 

 



Agenda Item 
ADVANCE STEP OF TWO DETENTIONS LIEUTENANTS 
December 7, 2021 
Page 2 of 2 
 

 

BACKGROUND: 
In light of the July 26, 2021 State Public Health Order, the Sheriff’s Office asked for an overfill for an 
additional Detentions Lieutenant.  The Sheriff’s Office is now requesting the overfill Lieutenant Position to be 
added to the Sheriff’s Office Budget. The new requirements listed in the Department of Public Health (DPH) 
Order applies to all persons who come into the jail, not just staff.  The requirements of the DPH order are 
tremendous, this position will oversee the compliance with the new health order and Cal OSHA Standards as 
well as provide more managerial oversight during non-business hours. Having this additional position will 
provide more facility coverage which in turn mitigates liability for both the Sheriff’s Office and County.  With 
the increase in litigation to include Writs of Habeas Corpus and law suits being sought by incarcerated persons 
against the facility and its staff, having additional managerial oversight will ensure compliance with state 
standards. Jail Facilities have seen an increase in those incarcerated suffering from mental illnesses along with 
delays in transferring these persons to the Department of State Hospitals. Due to long wait lists for restoration 
programs at the state level the Kings County Jail Based Competency Restoration Program was started on July 1, 
2020. The additional Lieutenant position will also provide support and supervision to this vital program. 
 
Your Board approved the new Detentions Deputy Memorandum of Understanding which gave the members a 
10 % salary increase.  This increase raised a top step Detentions Sergeant to $38.35 per hour.  Currently we have 
two Detentions Lieutenants that are making $37.41 per hour which is less than a top Detentions Sergeant.  The 
Detentions Sergeants are also set to get another increase of 3% in July 2022.  We request to raise Lieutenant 
Shari Long to Step 4 of Salary Range 235.5 at $41.95 per hour and Lieutenant Ramon Collier to Step 3 of Salary 
Range 235.5 at $39.91 per hour.  This amount is still less than 5% more than the top step Detentions Sergeant, 
which would place a current top Step 5 Sergeant who promotes to Lieutenant in the next 9 months above Lt. 
Collier, until he receives his next merit increase in August of 2022.   
 

  Range Step 1 Step 2 Step 3 Step 4 Step 5 
Detentions Sergeant  221.5 $31.42 $33.02 $34.71 $36.49 $38.35 
Detentions Sergeant effective 7/2022 224.5 $32.37 $34.03 $35.77 $37.60 $39.52 
Detentions Lieutenant 235.5 $36.13 $37.97 $39.91 $41.95 $44.09 

 
      



 ...................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................   
 
BOARD ACTION : APPROVED AS RECOMMENDED: _________ OTHER: ________ 
 
 
 
 
 

I hereby certify that the above order was passed and adopted 

on ________________________, 2021. 

CATHERINE VENTURELLA, Clerk to the Board 

By                                                    , Deputy. 
 

 
 

SUBMITTED BY: Department of Public Health – Darcy Pickens 
 
SUBJECT: FARM AND RANCH SOLID WASTE CLEANUP AND ABATEMENT GRANT 
 
SUMMARY: 
 

Overview: 
Public Resources Code sections 48000 et seq. authorize the Department of Resources Recycling and 
Recovery (CalRecycle) to administer various grant programs in furtherance of the State of California’s 
efforts to reduce, recycle and reuse solid waste generated in the state thereby preserving landfill capacity 
and protecting public health and safety and the environment. The Kings County Public Health 
Department’s Division of Environmental Health Services seeks to apply for a Farm and Solid Waste 
Cleanup and Abatement grant to assist farm and ranch-land owners with cleanup costs. 

 
Recommendation: 
Adopt a resolution authorizing the Director of Public Health to execute and submit all necessary 
grant documents to CalRecycle for a Farm and Ranch Solid Waste Cleanup and Abatement Grant 
Program.   

 
Fiscal Impact: 
There will be no impact to the General Fund.  The grant funds will be directly disbursed to the identified 
landowner that submitted the required documentation for reimbursement of costs in the amount 
associated with cleanup of illegally dumped solid waste on their land. Through this grant, the department 
will make available $18,198 to county landowners who apply for cost reimbursement associated with 
solid waste cleanup.  

 
BACKGROUND: 
The Department of Resources Recycling and Recovery administers the Farm and Ranch Solid Waste Cleanup 
and Abatement Grant Program, which provides up to $1 million annually in grants for the cleanup of illegal  
 

(Cont’d) 

__________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________   

  

COUNTY OF KINGS 
BOARD OF SUPERVISORS 

GOVERNMENT CENTER HANFORD, CALIFORNIA 93230  (559) 852-2362 
Catherine Venturella, Clerk of the Board of Supervisors 

 
 

AGENDA ITEM 
December 7, 2021 

 



Agenda Item 
FARM AND RANCH SOLID WASTE CLEANUP AND ABATEMENT GRANT 
December 7, 2021 
Page 2 of 2 
 

 

solid waste sites on farm or ranch property. A site may be eligible for funding if the parcel(s) is(are) zoned for 
agricultural use, where unauthorized solid waste disposal has occurred, and where the site(s) is(are) in need of 
cleanup in order to abate a nuisance or public health and safety threat and/or a threat to the environment. Sites 
are not eligible for funding if the site is located on property where the owner or local agency is responsible for 
the illegal disposal of solid waste. Grants are limited to $50,000 per cleanup or abatement project, with a limit 
of $200,000 per year for each eligible applicant.  
 
The term of the grant is effective five years from the date of the adoption of the resolution. 
 
The Resolution has been reviewed and approved by County Counsel. 
 
 

 
 
 



Agenda Item 
FARM AND RANCH SOLID WASTE CLEANUP AND ABATEMENT GRANT 
December 7, 2021 
Page 3 of 2 
 

 

 



 

BEFORE THE BOARD OF SUPERVISORS 
OF THE COUNTY OF KINGS, STATE OF CALIFORNIA 

 
********* 

 
IN THE MATTER OF AUTHORIZING    RESOLUTION NO.______ 
FARM AND RANCH SOLID WASTE 
CLEANUP AND ABATEMENT 
GRANT PRGOGRAM APPLICATION / 
 
 WHEREAS, Public Resources Code sections 48000 et seq. authorize the Department of Resources 
Recycling and Recovery (CalRecycle) to administer various grant programs (grants) in furtherance of the State 
of California’s (State) efforts to reduce, recycle and reuse solid waste generated in the state thereby preserving 
landfill capacity and protecting public health and safety and the environment; and 

 WHEREAS, in furtherance of this authority CalRecycle is required to establish procedures governing the 
application, awarding, and management of the grants; and 

WHEREAS, CalRecycle grant application procedures require, among other things, an applicant’s 
governing body to declare by resolution certain authorizations related to the administration of CalRecycle grants; 
and 

WHEREAS, the Kings County Public Health Department’s Division of Environmental Health Services is 
the designated Local Enforcement Agency for solid waste in Kings County and seeks to apply for a Farm and 
Solid Waste Cleanup and Abatement grant in the amount of $18,198.50. 

 NOW, THEREFORE, IT IS HEREBY RESOLVED that the Board of Supervisors of Kings County hereby 
authorizes and empowers the Director of Public Health of the County of Kings, or their authorized designee, to 
execute and submit in the name of the County of Kings all necessary grant documents, including but not limited 
to applications, agreements, amendments and requests for payment, with the Department of Resources Recycling 
and Recovery (CalRecycle) for the purposes of securing grant funds and to implement and carry out the purposes 
specified in the application, subject to review by the County Counsel’s Office. 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that these authorizations are effective for five (5) years from the date of 
adoption of this resolution. 

The foregoing Resolution was adopted upon motion by Supervisor __________, seconded by Supervisor 
at a regular meeting held on the ___ day of ___________, 2021, by the following vote: 

 
AYES:  Supervisors 
NOES:  Supervisors 
ABSENT: Supervisors 
ABSTAIN: Supervisors 

 
           
   Craig Pedersen, Chairperson 
   Board of Supervisors, County of Kings 
 IN WITNESS WHEREOF, I have set my hand this ______ day of __________, 2021.  

           
   Catherine Venturella, Clerk 

Board of Supervisor, County of Kings 



 ...................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................   
 
BOARD ACTION : APPROVED AS RECOMMENDED:         OTHER: ___   
 

I hereby certify that the above order was passed and adopted 

on ________________________, 2021. 

CATHERINE VENTURELLA, Clerk of the Board 

By                                                    , Deputy. 
 

 
 

SUBMITTED BY:    Department of Public Health – Darcy Pickens/Heather Silva 
   

 
SUBJECT: NOVEL CORONAVIRUS 2019 COUNTY UPDATE 
 
SUMMARY: 
 

Overview: 
On March 4, 2020, the Governor of California proclaimed a State of Emergency throughout California 
because of the increase in cases reported of the novel coronavirus, a disease now known as COVID-19. 
The President of the United States likewise declared a national emergency because of the COVID-19 
outbreak on March 13, 2020.  On March 17, 2020, the Board proclaimed a local emergency in Kings 
County due to the imminent and proximate threat of exposure of COVID-19 on the residents of the 
County of Kings.   

 
Recommendation: 
Receive an update on the local emergency in Kings County due to the imminent and proximate 
threat of exposure of COVID-19 on the residents of the County of Kings and take action as 
deemed necessary. 
 
Fiscal Impact: 
The County is tracking costs and revenue losses related to the emergency. 
 

BACKGROUND: 
A Novel Coronavirus (COVID-19) was first detected in Wuhan City, Hubei Province, China, in December 
2019.  The Centers for Disease Control and Prevention (CDC) considers the virus to be a very serious public 
health threat.  The exact modes of transmission, the factors facilitating human-to-human transmission, the extent 
of asymptomatic viral shedding, the groups most at risk of serious illness, the attack rate, and the case fatality 
rate all remain active areas of investigation. The CDC believes at this time that symptoms appear two to 
fourteen days after exposure. Currently, there are vaccines for antiviral treatment of COVID-19. County staff 
has been working diligently to assess and provide resources and information to the community regarding 
COVID-19.  An update will be provided to the Board on County related activities and response.  

__________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________   

  

COUNTY OF KINGS 
BOARD OF SUPERVISORS 

GOVERNMENT CENTER HANFORD, CALIFORNIA 93230  (559) 852-2362 
Catherine Venturella, Clerk of the Board of Supervisors 

 
 

AGENDA ITEM 
December 7, 2021 





 ...................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................   
 
BOARD ACTION : APPROVED AS RECOMMENDED: _________ OTHER: ________ 
 
 
 
 
 

I hereby certify that the above order was passed and adopted 

on ________________________, 2021. 

CATHERINE VENTURELLA, Clerk to the Board 

By                                                    , Deputy. 
 

 
 

SUBMITTED BY: Administration – Edward Hill/Matthew Boyett 
County Counsel – Diane Freeman 

 
SUBJECT: SIXTH REDISTRICTING PUBLIC HEARING  
 
SUMMARY: 
 

Overview:  
The County will hold its sixth public hearing to engage the public in its redistricting process.  The 
County previously held three (3) public hearings on July 20, 2021, July 27, 2021, and August 31, 2021 at 
10:00 a.m., and two (2) public hearings on November 7, 2021 and November 16, 2021 at 6:30 p.m. to 
identify and discuss draft maps.  The County will hold its sixth public hearing on December 7, 2021 to 
receive public comment and to consider passing by resolution new supervisorial district boundaries. 

 
Recommendation: 

a. Conduct the County’s sixth public hearing for the County’s 2021 supervisorial redistricting 
process to further introduce and encourage public discussion concerning the redistricting 
process; and  

b. Consider adopting a new supervisorial district map by resolution. 
 
Fiscal Impact: 
None.   

 
BACKGROUND: 
 On December 7, 2021, the County will hold its sixth redistricting public hearing. Thereafter, the County will 
consider adopting a new supervisorial district map by resolution. The County previously held three (3) public 
hearings on July 20, 2021, July 27, 2021, and August 31, 2021 at 10:00 a.m., and two (2) public hearings on 
November 7, 2021 and November 16, 2021 at 6:30 p.m.  The County will hold its sixth public hearing on 

 
(Cont’d) 

__________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________   

  

COUNTY OF KINGS 
BOARD OF SUPERVISORS 

GOVERNMENT CENTER HANFORD, CALIFORNIA 93230  (559) 852-2362 
Catherine Venturella, Clerk of the Board of Supervisors 

 
 

AGENDA ITEM 
December 7, 2021 

 



Agenda Item 
SIXTH REDISTRICTING PUBLIC HEARING  
December 7, 2021 
Page 2 of 3 
 

 

December 7, 2021 to receive public comment and to consider passing by resolution a map identifying new 
supervisorial district boundaries.  The County will provide at the hearing live Spanish language translation.  
 
The County’s redistricting process has complied with the Fair Maps Act requirements, which include:  
 
Webpage Requirements 
• Create a redistricting webpage to be maintained for 10 years;  
• Post an explanation of the redistricting process and the process for giving public comments in English and 

all legally required languages; 
• Include on the webpage the hearing calendar, notices and agendas, recordings or summaries of hearings, all 

draft maps considered, and the final adopted map (the final map to be posted after adoption). 
 
Public Engagement  
• Identify local organizations that may be interested in redistricting and reached out to them with information 

and educational materials; 
• Create an interested-person sign-up on the County’s webpage;  
• Identify the applicable minority languages for the County;  
• Create a process for receiving written public comment on redistricting, including a dedicated web form or 

email address and a physical address.  
 
Public Hearings  
• Hold at least four public hearings for the public to give input on maps. 
 
Hearing Timing  
• Hold one hearing outside of regular business hours; 
• If a redistricting hearing is scheduled within a regular meeting of a jurisdiction’s governing body, provide 

notice for the hearing at a fixed time and begin the hearing at that time.  
 

Hearing Accessibility  
• Ensure all hearing locations are accessible to person with disabilities.  
 
Hearing Notice 
• Provide at least five-day online notice of hearings.  
• This requirement is reduced to three days in the last 27 days before a jurisdiction’s redistricting deadline.  
• Maintain and update a calendar of hearing dates on the redistricting webpage.  
 
Live Translation 
• Provide live translation at hearings upon request by a member of the public.  
 
Recordkeeping  
• Record hearings, or prepare a written summary of each public comment and board deliberation.  

 



Agenda Item 
SIXTH REDISTRICTING PUBLIC HEARING  
December 7, 2021 
Page 3 of 3 
 

 

Map Drafts and Adoption  
• Enable the public to submit written testimony and maps.  
• Do not post draft maps until at least 21 days after the release of the state-adjusted census data.  
• Post draft maps for at least seven days before adopting a final map. 
 
Members of the community have been encouraged to participate in the County’s sixth public hearing. Notice of 
today’s public hearing was published on the County’s website www.RedistrictKings.com at least five (5) days in 
advance.  Notice was also formally published in the Hanford Sentinel on November 27, 2021 and December 2, 
2021. The public hearing has additionally been promoted through a November 30, 2021 press release and online 
through social media.  Flyers announcing the hearing have been posted online and distributed via email to local 
community groups and all others that have requested notice.  Flyers were also displayed on County facility 
counters. Upon conclusion of the hearing, the County will make available online recordings or written 
summaries of the public hearing.  
 
The resolution has been reviewed and approved by County Counsel as to form.   


	1a AG ACP_agmt.pdf
	Template-ACP Trapping 10-1-21 to 9-30-22
	EXHIBIT A
	PRIME AWARD INFORMATION
	RECIPIENT AND PROJECT INFORMATION
	1. CDFA hereby awards an Agreement to the Recipient for the project described herein:
	The county shall place and service traps for the detection of the Asian Citrus Psyllid to prevent a major threat to the citrus industry in California.  Food and Agricultural Code 403, 2276.5, and 2283.
	Project Title: Asian Citrus Psyllid Trapping
	2.The Managers for this Agreement are:
	4. RECIPIENT: Please check appropriate box below:
	5. For a detailed description of activities to be performed and duties, see Scope of Work and Budget.
	GENERAL TERMS AND CONDITIONS
	PAYMENT AND BUDGET PROVISIONS


	Request

	ADP2403.tmp
	The Human Services Agency (HSA) is requesting Board approval to apply and accept the Homeless Housing, Assistance, and Prevention (HHAP) Program Round 3 grant award through the California Business Consumer Services administered by the Homeless Coordin...
	Recommendation:

	Blank Page
	Blank Page
	Blank Page
	Blank Page
	Blank Page
	Blank Page
	Blank Page
	Blank Page
	Blank Page
	Blank Page
	Blank Page
	Blank Page
	Blank Page

	Agreement No: 
	entered into on: 
	2021 the Effective Date by and between the County: 
	Budget Categories: 
	PERSONNEL SALARIES: 
	FTE PERSONNEL SALARIES: 
	AdminPERSONNEL SALARIES: 
	DirectPERSONNEL SALARIES: 
	TotalPERSONNEL SALARIES: 
	0001: 
	Admin100: 
	0002: 
	Admin100_2: 
	0003: 
	160000340000: 
	0004: 
	250000: 
	0005: 
	250000_2: 
	0006: 
	340000: 
	0007: 
	400000: 
	0008: 
	0008Row1: 
	0008Row2: 
	SALARY TOTALRow1: 
	SALARY TOTALRow1_2: 
	  1580000Row1: 
	23500000 Row1: 
	25080000 Row1: 
	PAYROLL TAXES: 
	SALARY TOTALPAYROLL TAXES: 
	SALARY TOTALPAYROLL TAXES_2: 
	  1580000PAYROLL TAXES: 
	23500000 PAYROLL TAXES: 
	25080000 PAYROLL TAXES: 
	0030: 
	OASDI: 
	0031: 
	MEDICARE: 
	UI: 
	0032Row1: 
	UIRow1: 
	0032Row2: 
	UIRow2: 
	PAYROLL TAX TOTALRow1: 
	PAYROLL TAX TOTALRow1_2: 
	PAYROLL TAX TOTALRow1_3: 
	128000 Row1: 
	1906800 Row1: 
	2034800 Row1: 
	EMPLOYEE BENEFITS: 
	128000 EMPLOYEE BENEFITS: 
	1906800 EMPLOYEE BENEFITS: 
	2034800 EMPLOYEE BENEFITS: 
	0040: 
	Retirement: 
	0041: 
	Health Insurance: 
	0042: 
	Life Insurance: 
	Fringe Benefits  15: 
	0043Row1: 
	Fringe Benefits  15Row1: 
	0043Row2: 
	Fringe Benefits  15Row2: 
	0043Row3: 
	Fringe Benefits  15Row3: 
	SALARY  BENEFITS GRAND TOTALRow1: 
	SALARY  BENEFITS GRAND TOTALRow1_2: 
	SALARY  BENEFITS GRAND TOTALRow1_3: 
	SALARY  BENEFITS GRAND TOTALRow1_4: 
	SALARY  BENEFITS GRAND TOTALRow1_5: 
	30314000 Row1: 
	FACILITYEQUIPMENT EXPENSES: 
	1010: 
	RentLease Building: 
	1030: 
	RentLease Equipment: 
	500000RentLease Equipment: 
	Utilities: 
	1050Row1: 
	UtilitiesRow1: 
	RentLease EquipmentRow2: 
	RentLease EquipmentRow2_2: 
	1050Row2: 
	UtilitiesRow2: 
	RentLease EquipmentRow3: 
	RentLease EquipmentRow3_2: 
	FACILITYEQUIPMENT TOTALRow1: 
	FACILITYEQUIPMENT TOTALRow1_2: 
	FACILITYEQUIPMENT TOTALRow1_3: 
	711400 Row1: 
	1050Row3: 
	UtilitiesRow3: 
	RentLease EquipmentRow4: 
	RentLease EquipmentRow4_2: 
	FACILITYEQUIPMENT TOTALRow2: 
	FACILITYEQUIPMENT TOTALRow2_2: 
	FACILITYEQUIPMENT TOTALRow2_3: 
	711400 Row2: 
	1050Row4: 
	UtilitiesRow4: 
	RentLease EquipmentRow5: 
	RentLease EquipmentRow5_2: 
	FACILITYEQUIPMENT TOTALRow3: 
	FACILITYEQUIPMENT TOTALRow3_2: 
	FACILITYEQUIPMENT TOTALRow3_3: 
	711400 Row3: 
	1050Row5: 
	UtilitiesRow5: 
	RentLease EquipmentRow6: 
	RentLease EquipmentRow6_2: 
	FACILITYEQUIPMENT TOTALRow4: 
	FACILITYEQUIPMENT TOTALRow4_2: 
	FACILITYEQUIPMENT TOTALRow4_3: 
	711400 Row4: 
	1050Row6: 
	UtilitiesRow6: 
	RentLease EquipmentRow7: 
	RentLease EquipmentRow7_2: 
	FACILITYEQUIPMENT TOTALRow5: 
	FACILITYEQUIPMENT TOTALRow5_2: 
	FACILITYEQUIPMENT TOTALRow5_3: 
	711400 Row5: 
	1050Row7: 
	UtilitiesRow7: 
	RentLease EquipmentRow8: 
	RentLease EquipmentRow8_2: 
	FACILITYEQUIPMENT TOTALRow6: 
	FACILITYEQUIPMENT TOTALRow6_2: 
	FACILITYEQUIPMENT TOTALRow6_3: 
	711400 Row6: 
	1050Row8: 
	UtilitiesRow8: 
	RentLease EquipmentRow9: 
	RentLease EquipmentRow9_2: 
	FACILITYEQUIPMENT TOTALRow7: 
	FACILITYEQUIPMENT TOTALRow7_2: 
	FACILITYEQUIPMENT TOTALRow7_3: 
	711400 Row7: 
	1050Row9: 
	UtilitiesRow9: 
	RentLease EquipmentRow10: 
	RentLease EquipmentRow10_2: 
	FACILITYEQUIPMENT TOTALRow8: 
	FACILITYEQUIPMENT TOTALRow8_2: 
	FACILITYEQUIPMENT TOTALRow8_3: 
	711400 Row8: 
	1050Row10: 
	UtilitiesRow10: 
	RentLease EquipmentRow11: 
	RentLease EquipmentRow11_2: 
	FACILITYEQUIPMENT TOTALRow9: 
	FACILITYEQUIPMENT TOTALRow9_2: 
	FACILITYEQUIPMENT TOTALRow9_3: 
	711400 Row9: 
	1050Row11: 
	UtilitiesRow11: 
	RentLease EquipmentRow12: 
	RentLease EquipmentRow12_2: 
	FACILITYEQUIPMENT TOTALRow10: 
	FACILITYEQUIPMENT TOTALRow10_2: 
	FACILITYEQUIPMENT TOTALRow10_3: 
	711400 Row10: 
	1050Row12: 
	UtilitiesRow12: 
	RentLease EquipmentRow13: 
	RentLease EquipmentRow13_2: 
	FACILITYEQUIPMENT TOTALRow11: 
	FACILITYEQUIPMENT TOTALRow11_2: 
	FACILITYEQUIPMENT TOTALRow11_3: 
	711400 Row11: 
	1050Row13: 
	UtilitiesRow13: 
	RentLease EquipmentRow14: 
	RentLease EquipmentRow14_2: 
	FACILITYEQUIPMENT TOTALRow12: 
	FACILITYEQUIPMENT TOTALRow12_2: 
	FACILITYEQUIPMENT TOTALRow12_3: 
	711400 Row12: 
	1050Row14: 
	UtilitiesRow14: 
	RentLease EquipmentRow15: 
	RentLease EquipmentRow15_2: 
	FACILITYEQUIPMENT TOTALRow13: 
	FACILITYEQUIPMENT TOTALRow13_2: 
	FACILITYEQUIPMENT TOTALRow13_3: 
	711400 Row13: 
	1050Row15: 
	UtilitiesRow15: 
	RentLease EquipmentRow16: 
	RentLease EquipmentRow16_2: 
	FACILITYEQUIPMENT TOTALRow14: 
	FACILITYEQUIPMENT TOTALRow14_2: 
	FACILITYEQUIPMENT TOTALRow14_3: 
	711400 Row14: 
	1050Row16: 
	UtilitiesRow16: 
	RentLease EquipmentRow17: 
	RentLease EquipmentRow17_2: 
	FACILITYEQUIPMENT TOTALRow15: 
	FACILITYEQUIPMENT TOTALRow15_2: 
	FACILITYEQUIPMENT TOTALRow15_3: 
	711400 Row15: 
	1050Row17: 
	UtilitiesRow17: 
	RentLease EquipmentRow18: 
	RentLease EquipmentRow18_2: 
	FACILITYEQUIPMENT TOTALRow16: 
	FACILITYEQUIPMENT TOTALRow16_2: 
	FACILITYEQUIPMENT TOTALRow16_3: 
	711400 Row16: 
	1050Row18: 
	UtilitiesRow18: 
	RentLease EquipmentRow19: 
	RentLease EquipmentRow19_2: 
	FACILITYEQUIPMENT TOTALRow17: 
	FACILITYEQUIPMENT TOTALRow17_2: 
	FACILITYEQUIPMENT TOTALRow17_3: 
	711400 Row17: 
	1050Row19: 
	UtilitiesRow19: 
	RentLease EquipmentRow20: 
	RentLease EquipmentRow20_2: 
	FACILITYEQUIPMENT TOTALRow18: 
	FACILITYEQUIPMENT TOTALRow18_2: 
	FACILITYEQUIPMENT TOTALRow18_3: 
	711400 Row18: 
	1050Row20: 
	UtilitiesRow20: 
	RentLease EquipmentRow21: 
	RentLease EquipmentRow21_2: 
	FACILITYEQUIPMENT TOTALRow19: 
	FACILITYEQUIPMENT TOTALRow19_2: 
	FACILITYEQUIPMENT TOTALRow19_3: 
	711400 Row19: 
	1050Row21: 
	UtilitiesRow21: 
	RentLease EquipmentRow22: 
	RentLease EquipmentRow22_2: 
	FACILITYEQUIPMENT TOTALRow20: 
	FACILITYEQUIPMENT TOTALRow20_2: 
	FACILITYEQUIPMENT TOTALRow20_3: 
	711400 Row20: 
	OPERATING EXPENSES: 
	1060: 
	Telephone: 
	Land Lines and Cellular Phones: 
	1061: 
	Land Lines and Cellular PhonesAnswering Services: 
	Land Lines and Cellular PhonesAnswering Services_2: 
	Land Lines and Cellular PhonesAnswering Services_3: 
	250000Answering Services: 
	1062: 
	Postage: 
	Land Lines and Cellular PhonesPostage: 
	Land Lines and Cellular PhonesPostage_2: 
	Land Lines and Cellular PhonesPostage_3: 
	1070: 
	Land Lines and Cellular PhonesPrintingReproduction: 
	Land Lines and Cellular PhonesPrintingReproduction_2: 
	Land Lines and Cellular PhonesPrintingReproduction_3: 
	1071: 
	Land Lines and Cellular PhonesPublications: 
	Land Lines and Cellular PhonesPublications_2: 
	Land Lines and Cellular PhonesPublications_3: 
	1072: 
	Legal NoticesAdvertising: 
	1080: 
	Office Supplies: 
	1090: 
	Household Supplies: 
	1100: 
	Medication Services: 
	1120: 
	Therapeutic Supplies: 
	1122: 
	Incentives Graduations Activities: 
	1130: 
	Transportation of Clients: 
	1140: 
	Staff Mileage: 
	1141: 
	Staff Travel Out of County: 
	1150: 
	Staff TrainingRegistration: 
	1151: 
	Lodging: 
	Other Operating Expenses list: 
	1152Row1: 
	Other Operating Expenses listRow1: 
	Other Operating Expenses listRow1_2: 
	FINANCIAL SERVICES EXPENSES: 
	6097300 FINANCIAL SERVICES EXPENSES: 
	1160: 
	Administrative Overhead: 
	1161: 
	External Audit: 
	1170: 
	Workers Compensation Insurance: 
	1171: 
	Liability Insurance: 
	1172: 
	InsuranceO: 
	Auto  EPLI: 
	Other list: 
	Sexual Molestation: 
	1173Row1: 
	Other listRow1: 
	SPECIAL EXPENSES ConsultantSpecialist: 
	790400 SPECIAL EXPENSES ConsultantSpecialist: 
	1180: 
	ComputerEmail Maintenance  RepairSoftwareEncryption: 
	Interpreter Services: 
	FINANCIAL SERVICES TOTALInterpreter Services: 
	1181Row1: 
	Interpreter ServicesRow1: 
	Interpreter ServicesRow1_2: 
	ComputerEmail Maintenance  RepairSoftwareEncryptionRow2: 
	FIXED ASSETS: 
	SPECIAL EXPENSE TOTALFIXED ASSETS: 
	SPECIAL EXPENSE TOTALFIXED ASSETS_2: 
	SPECIAL EXPENSE TOTALFIXED ASSETS_3: 
	300000 FIXED ASSETS: 
	2000: 
	ComputerEmail Maintenance  RepairSoftwareEncryption2000: 
	SPECIAL EXPENSE TOTAL2000: 
	SPECIAL EXPENSE TOTAL2000_2: 
	SPECIAL EXPENSE TOTAL2000_3: 
	300000 2000: 
	2001: 
	ComputerEmail Maintenance  RepairSoftwareEncryption2001: 
	SPECIAL EXPENSE TOTAL2001: 
	SPECIAL EXPENSE TOTAL2001_2: 
	SPECIAL EXPENSE TOTAL2001_3: 
	300000 2001: 
	2001Row1: 
	FIXED ASSETSRow3: 
	FIXED ASSETSRow3_2: 
	ComputerEmail Maintenance  RepairSoftwareEncryptionRow6: 
	300000 FIXED ASSETS TOTAL: 
	2001Row2: 
	FIXED ASSETSRow4: 
	FIXED ASSETSRow4_2: 
	ComputerEmail Maintenance  RepairSoftwareEncryptionRow7: 
	FIXED ASSETS TOTALRow1: 
	FIXED ASSETS TOTALRow1_2: 
	2001Row3: 
	FIXED ASSETSRow5: 
	FIXED ASSETSRow5_2: 
	TOTAL PROJECTED EXPENSESPROJECTED REVENUE: 
	TOTAL PROJECTED EXPENSESPROJECTED REVENUE_2: 
	TOTAL PROJECTED EXPENSESPROJECTED REVENUE_3: 
	PROJECTED REVENUERow1: 
	PROJECTED REVENUERow1_2: 
	PROJECTED REVENUERow1_3: 
	TOTAL PROJECTED EXPENSESRow2: 
	PROJECTED REVENUERow2: 
	PROJECTED REVENUERow2_2: 
	PROJECTED REVENUERow2_3: 
	TOTAL PROJECTED EXPENSESRow3: 
	VolUnits: 
	TOTAL PROJECTED EXPENSESRevenueService Descriptions: 
	of Svs: 
	Rate: 
	3000: 
	TOTAL PROJECTED EXPENSESTBS Services: 
	3100: 
	TOTAL PROJECTED EXPENSESIHBS Services: 
	IHBS Services3200: 
	IHBS Services3200_2: 
	TOTAL PROJECTED EXPENSES3200: 
	909843200: 
	213200: 
	19106550 3200: 
	3200Row1: 
	TOTAL PROJECTED EXPENSESREVENUE TOTAL: 
	90984REVENUE TOTAL: 
	21REVENUE TOTAL: 
	19106550 REVENUE TOTAL: 
	3200Row2: 
	REVENUE TOTALRow1: 
	REVENUE TOTALRow1_2: 
	TOTAL PROJECTED EXPENSESRow9: 
	90984Row3: 
	3200Row3: 
	REVENUE TOTALRow2: 
	REVENUE TOTALRow2_2: 
	TOTAL PROJECTED EXPENSESRow10: 
	3200Row4: 
	REVENUE TOTALRow3: 
	REVENUE TOTALRow3_2: 
	TOTAL PROJECTED EXPENSESRow11: 
	TOTAL PROJECTED REVENUERow1: 
	TOTAL PROJECTED REVENUERow1_2: 
	3200Row5: 
	REVENUE TOTALRow4: 
	REVENUE TOTALRow4_2: 
	TOTAL PROJECTED EXPENSESRow12: 
	TOTAL PROJECTED REVENUERow2: 
	3200Row6: 
	21Row1: 
	3200Row7: 
	21Row2: 
	3200Row8: 
	21Row3: 
	undefined: 
	Budget Categories Line Item Description Must be itemized: 
	FTE: 
	PERSONNEL SALARIES 0001 TBS Supervisor 1 0002 TBS Coaches 4 0003 TBS Program Manager 0004 TBS Adminstrative Assistant 0005 TBS Medical Records Clerk 0006 FullCharge Bookkeeper 0007 Chief Executive Officer 0008: 
	7500000 160000: 
	PAYROLL TAXES 0030 OASDI 0031 MEDICARE 0032 UI: 
	EMPLOYEE BENEFITS 0040 Retirement 0041 Health Insurance 0042 Life Insurance 0043 FrinQe Benefits  15: 
	1010 RentLease Building 1030 RentLease Equipment 1050 Utilities: 
	Program Supplies: 
	Transportation of Clients_2: 
	FINANCIAL SERVICES EXPENSES_2: 
	TOTAL PROJECTED EXPENSES 138213100: 
	RevenueService Descriptions: 
	3000 TBS Services 3100 3200: 
	181967: 
	 3821310021: 
	 3821310021_2: 
	 38213100REVENUE TOTAL: 
	TOTAL PROJECTED COSTS I: 
	21: 
	undefined_2: 
	97D4B46BD49C 16621771 E211 EBB02097: 
	AC57F4CA2178C5F8AC4EAFD96F30D94D: 
	undefined_3: 
	reodysign: 
	Governing Body:                              Board of Supervisors 
	Name of App: County of Kings 
	e of Authorized Agent:                                                        County Fire Chief 
	e of Authorized Agent_2:                                                  County Administrative Officer
	e of Authorized Agent_3:                                                    Purchasing Manager
	st Grant Year and Program:                                         FY 2021 EMPG and FY 2021 EMPG-ARPA
	Passed and approved this:     7th 
	20:  December 
	Name:                                        Craig Pedersen 
	tle: 
	T:            Chairman
	Governing Body_2:                          Kings County Board of Supervisors
	do hereby certify that the above is a true and correct copy of a reso: 21
	day of:                         7th 
	20_2:            December 
	Officia:            Chairman
	gnature: 
	S: 
	Date:                     12/07/2021


